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The financial details and capital evolution of the Ahilya Hotels Limited (AHL", Sayaji Housekeeping
Services Limited (‘'SHKSL"), Sayaji Hotels Limited (‘SHL"), Sayaji Hotels (Pune) Limited ('SHPL") and
Sayaji Hotels Management Limited (‘SHML'} for the previous 3 years as per the audited statement of
Accounts;

Name of the Company: Ahilya Hotels Limited

(INRin lacs)
As per last Audited | 1 year prior to the last | 2 years prior to the last
Financial Year Audited Financial Audited Financial Year
Year
2017-18 2016-17 2015-18

Equity Paid up Capital 806.4 806.4 806.4
Reserves and surplus 3914 402.7 403.1
Carry forward losses 29.8 31.2 30.7
Net Worth 1197.8 1209.1 1209.5
Miscellaneous Expenditure 0 0 0
Secured Loans 0 0 0
Unsecured Loans §36.0 636.0 636.0
Fixed Assets 8] 0 0
income from Operations 0 0 0
Total Income Q 0 0
Total Expenditure 14.7 0.5 1.3
Profit before Tax {14.7) (0.5) (1.3)
Profit after Tax (11.4) (0.4) (7.3
Cash profit (14.7) (0.5) (1.3)
EPS (in INR) {0.1) (0.0) (0.1)
Book value of equity shares 14.9 15.0 15.0

Note: Financial statements of AHL for FY 2015-16, FY 2018-17 and FY 2017-18 are prepared as per
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles ('GAAP".

Name of the Company: Sayaji Housekeeping Services Limited

(INR in lacs)
As per last Audited | 1 year prior to the last | 2 years prior to the last
Financial Year Audited Financial Audited Financial Year
Year
2017-18 2016-17 2015-16

Equity Paid up Capital 636.5 636.5 636.5
Preference Paid up Capital 0.9 0.8 1.0
Reserves and surplus 230.9 94.4 {(8.2)
Carry forward losses 0 0 1.6
Net Worth 868.3 731.8 629.3
Miscellaneous Expenditure 0 0 ¢
Secured Loans 0 o 0
Unsecured Loans 0.1 0.1 0
Fixed Assels g 0 0
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income from Operations 0 7.5 1.3
Total Income 141.0 109.3 1.3
Total Expenditure 0.4 8.7 9.5
Profit before Tax 140.5 102.6 (8.2)
Profit after Tax 136.5 100.6 (8.2)
Cash proefit 137.6 100.7 (8.2)
EPS (In INR) 2.1 16 ©.1)
Book valus of equity shares 13.6 11.5 9.9

Note: Financial statements of SHKSL for FY 2015-16 are prepared as per GAAP and for FY 2016-17
and FY 2017-18 are prepared as per IND AS.

Name of the Company: Sayaji Hotels Limited

(INR in Lacs)

As per last Audited
Finanaal Year

1 year prior to the last
Audited Financial Year

2 years prior o the last
Audited Financial Year

2017-18 2016-17 2015-18

Equity Paid up Capital 1751.8 $,751.8 1,751.8
Equity component of cumulative 251.7 251.7 0
Preference Shares*

Preference Paid up Capital 0 0] 1,000.0
Reserves and surplus 5578.5 5941.4 7.540.4
Carry forward losses Q 0 0
Net Worth 7582.0 7944 .9 10,292.2
Miscellaneous Expenditure 0 0 0
Secured Loans 7632.5 82728 5587.1
Unsecured Loans 3351.9 2856.5 3778.3
Fixed Assets 14758.5 15562.1 16,518.0
income from Operations 19150.4 15778.4 16,106.8
Total income 19396.8 15,617.7 16296.7
Total Expenditure 19773.3 16,657.5 16380.0
Profit before Tax {(376.4) (739.7) 1,063.5
Profil after Tax (423.5) (628.0) 980.6
Cash profit 1560.9 1293.0 2821 .14
EPS {in INR) (3.10) (4.27) 4.9
Book value of equity shares 433 45.3 53.0

Note: Financid statements of SHL for FY 2015-16 are prepared as per GAAP and for FY 2016-17 and
FY 2017-18 are prepared as per IND AS.
“As per IND AS, equity component of cumulative preference shares are part of equity share capital
therefore we have considered the same for the calculation of book value of equity shares.

Since, Sayaji Hotels (Pune) Limited and Sayaji Hotels Management Limited were not in existence on
31% March 2018, the financial statements of the same have not been presented.
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LIMITED REVIEW REPORT- IND AS STANDALONE FINANCIAL RESULTS

TO
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
SAYAJ HOTELS LIMITED

We have reviewed the accompanying statement of Standalone
Unaudited ind AS Financial Results for the quarter ended 30” June,
2018 of Sayaji Hotels Limited (the company), being submitted by the
company, pursuant to requirement of Regulation 33 of the SERI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
read with SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/FAC/62/2016 dated 5* July,
2016.

This Statement is the responsibility of the Company’s Menagement
and has been approved by the Board of Directors. The preparation of
the statement is in accordance with the recognition and measurement
principles laid down in the Indian Accounting Standards 34, Interim
Financial Reporting (*Ind As 34™), prescribed under section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules issued thereunder
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. Qur
tesponsibility is to issue a report on these Financial Statement based
On our review.

We conducted our review of the Statement in accordance with the
Standard on Review Engagements(SRE)2410 “Review Of Interim
Financial Information performed by the Independent Auditor of the
Entity”, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
This Standard requires that we plan and pecform the review to obtain
moderate assurance as to whether the statement is free of material
misstatements. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of Company
personnel and analytical procedures applied to financial data thys
provides less assurance than an audit. We have not performed an audit
and accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.
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8. Hazareshwar Colony. Udapur - 313 003 kivyasca@omeit com
Ret. Ne. . Daty -

We draw attention to Note No.5 regarding cancellation of Lease of
Land at Indore by Indore Development Authority and subsequent
Honourable High Court, Indore Bench’s decision of matter against
Company vide their order dated 16* Taly, 2018. The company is in

ForK.L .Vyas & Company,
Chartered Accountams,
F.R.N.~003289C,

Date: 14-68.201 8 Partner
Place: Indore M.NO.072043
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SAYAJI HOTELS LIMITED

BOARD’S.HEPURT& MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

To,
THE MEMBERS OF
SAYAJ HOTELS LIMITED

The Directors have pieasure in presenting their 35th Annual Repart of your Company together with its Audited consolidated and standalone
Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2018.

Pursuant to the notification dated February 16, 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company has adopted the indian
Accounting Standards ("Ind AS”) notified under the Companies {ingian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 with effect from Aprit 1, 2017,
As such financial staternents for the previous year ended as at March 31, 2017 have been restated to make comparabie to Ind AS.

HIGHLIGHTS OF PERFORMANGE

During the year under review, on standalone basis the total revenue in the year 2018 was increased by 21.85 % (from Rs.15917.79 Lakhs in
2017 to Rs.19396.85 Lakhs in 2018). This was mainly due to opening of the new botel unit and good performance of the existing hotefs. The
Losses After Tax is also decreased by 41% {from Rs. 614,75 Lakhs to Rs. 362.48 Lakhs). On consclidated level the totat revenue was
increased by 21.18% (from Rs. 18045.67 Lakhs to Rs. 21869.25 Lakhs). The loss after fax is also decreased by 71.36 % (from. Rs. 900.02
LakhstoRs. 257.78 Lakhs).

FINANCIAL RESULTS(Rs. in Lakhs, Excepl EPS)

Standatoae (Rs. in Lakhs) Consclidatad {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended Year endad Year ended

Margh 31,2018 | March 31,2017 | March 31, 2618 | Marck 31, 2017
Total income from operation{net) 19396.85 15817.79 21869.25 18045.67
Net Profit / {Loss) for the peried (before Tax,
Exceptional and/or Extraordinary items) (283.75) {718.14) {257.78) (900.32)
Share of Profit / (Loss) of associate - - 183.99 549.15
Net Profit / (Loss) for the period before lax
(after Exceptional and/or Extraordinary iters) {283.75) (719.14) (63.84) (350.87)
Net Profit / (Loss} for the period after tax
{after Exceptional and/or Extraordinary items) {362.85) {614.36) (388.13) {305.79)
Total Comprehensive ncome for the period
{Comprising Profit / (Loss) for the pericd (after tax)
and Other Comprehensive Income {after tax)j {362.48) (614.75) {365.36) (299.75)
Equity Share Capital 1751.80 1751.80 1751.80 1751.80
Eamnings Per Share
Basic: (2.76) (4.19) 2.91) {2.43}
Diluted: (2.76) (4.19) 2.91) (2.43)

LHOTELSEIMITED

sed Signatory
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DIVIDEND AMOUNTTO BE CARRIED T0 RESERVE

In view of the accumulated iosses as well as the Company is in the
process to expand its reach in the various part of the Country
through owned hotel, management modef, operating lease etc. and
said expansion may demand substantial working capita infusion,
hence the board has not recommended dividend for the financial
year2017-18 (Previous year 2016-17 Nil).

REGISTERED OFFICE SHIFTING

The Registered office of the Company is shifting from the State of
Gujarat to the State of Tamilnadu (within the jurisdiction of the
Registrar of Companies, Chennai) vide the order dated June 29th,
2018 of the Regional Director (North — Western Region),
Ahmedabad.

SHARE CAPITAL

The authorized share capital of the Company is Rs, 4000.00 Lakhs.
The paid up Equity Share Capital is Rs.1751.80Lakhs and
Preference Share Capital is Rs. 1000.00 Lakhs.Buring the ysar
under review, the Company has notissued shares with differential
voting right nor granted stock option not sweat equity.

The Company’s equity shares are listed with the BSE Lid. and
available for trading at the platform of BSE Lid.

FINANCE

Cash and cash equivalent as at 31st March, 2018 was Rs. 1214.95
Lakhs. The Company continues to focus enjudicious management
of its working capital, receivabies, and inventories. The working
capital paramelers were kept under strict check through
continzous monitoring.

DEFOSITS

In terms of the provisions of Sections 73 and 74 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits by
Companigs) Rules, 2014, the Company had no opening or closing
halances and during the year under review, the Gompany has also
not accepted any public deposits and as such, no amount of
principal orinterest was outstanding as on March 31, 2018.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

The Company has disclosed the full particulars of the loans given,
investments made or guarantees or security provided as required
under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation
343} and Schedule V of the SEBI (LODR) Reguiations, 2015 in
Notes to the financial statements attached wilh this Board Aeport.
However, the Company is covered under the infrastructure section
therefore section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable
‘s such,

During the year under review Rs. (1007.21 Lakhs)are proposed to
be carried in the financial statements under the head of the reserves
and surplus.(Previous year Rs. (644.36 Lakhs)

BUSINESS PLANS
P Vadodara

During 1he year the Company has Jaunched one more 4 Star
hotel in the Vadodara City under the ‘Sayaji' brand. The Halel
has 137 rooms, 2 restaurants and multiple banquet facitities.
The hotel received fair response from the city and
surrounding area. The current year will be ifs first fulk fledge
year of eperation.

The existing hotel at Vadodara city was re-branded in the
name of ‘Effotel’. At present that hote! is in the process of the
complete renovation and may re-open by September 2018.

e Raipur

Last year the Company started operation into the Raipur City.
The hotel property is receiving good response and ramping

up.
» Management Coniraci/l.ease Model

The Company is fecusing to apen more and more hotel into
the tier 2 ¢ities under the management contractfiease model.
This strategy will help the Cornpany int two ways, firstly the
prand of the Company will easily expand and secondly there
will be huge saving 0n account of capital expenditure and
incidental finance cost.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AMD ANALYSIS
GENERAL ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OPPORTUNITIES

Tourism has now become a significant industry in India. it is a sun
rise industry, an employment generator, a significant source of
foreign exchange for the couniry. Tourism in India is the third
largest foreign exchange earner of the country. The booming
tourism industry has had a cascading effect on the hospitality
sector with an increase in the occupancy ratios and average room
rates.

India is a large market for travel and tourism, 1f offers a diverse
portfelia of niche tourism products - cruises, adventuse, medical,
wellness, sports, MICE, eco-totirism, film, rural and religious
tourism. [ndia has been recognized as a destination for spiritual
tourism for domestic and international tourists.

Total contribution by travel and lourism sector 1o India's GDP is
expected ta increase from Rs 15.24 trillion {USS 234.03 billion) in
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2017 to Rs 32.05 tritlion (US$ 482.21 billion) in 2028. india ranked arrivals (FTAs) by 2020 and double the foreign exchange earnings
7th among 184 countries in terms of travel & towrism’s total aswell,

contribution to GDP in 2017. Travel and tourism s the third largest
foreign exchange earmer for India. Foreign exchange sarnings
{FEEs) in March 2018 were US$ 2.66 billion. The number of Foreign
Tourist Arrivals (FTAs} in March 2018 was 1,03 million. A sum of
US$ 27.693 billion was earned under forsign exchange through
tourism during calendar year 2017. Total employment in the secter
is expected 1o rise to 52.3 million jobs by 2028. During calendar
yaar2017,10.177 million foreign tourists have arrived in India. The
Government of India has set a target of 20 million foreign tourist

The launch of several branding and marketing initiatives by the
Government of india such as 'incredible Indial’ and ‘Athiti Devo
Bhava' has provided a focused impetus to growth. The Indian
government has also refeased a fresh category of visa - the medical
visa or M visa, 10 encourage medical tourism in the country.
Incredible India 2.0 campaign was launched in September 2017.
The Government of india is working to achieve 1% share in world’s
international tourist arrivals by 2620 and 2 % share by 2025.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Electranic tourist authorizations, known as £ - Tourist Visa, launched by the Government of
India have resulted in increase in number of tourist visa issued in the country, with arrivais
through e-visa increasing 57.2 per cent 1o 1.697 million during CY 2017. During CY 2018 (up
to February) armivals through e-visaincreased 60.7 per centyear-on-year to 516.000,

Naw Visa Reforms

India ranked 3rd among 184 couniries in terms of travel & tourism's total contribution to GDP
in 2016. India’s foreign exchange earnings (FEEs) from tourism increased by 20.8 per cent
during CY 2017 to reach US$ 27.693 billion. During CY 2018 {up to February) FEEs from
tourism increased 16.3 percent year-on-year to USS 5.49 billion.

Lonfribution to GDP
above worldaverage

The travei & tourism sector in India accounted for 9.3 per cent of the total employment
opportunities generated in the country in 2016, providing employment to around 40.3 mitlion
peaple during the same year. The number is expected to rise by 2 per cent annum to 46.42
million jobs hy 2026,

Creating higher employment

NN

Travel & tourism’s contriburtion to capital investment is projected to grow 6.3 per cent per

Higher investments annum during 2016-26, higher thanthe global average of 4.5 percent

Contribution of visitor exports to total exports is estimated 1o increase 7.2 percent per annum

Increasing visitor exports during 2016-2026 com pared to the world average of 4.3 per cent

NN

Source: World Travel & Tourism Council’s (WITG's) Economic impact 2017, Ministry of Tourism
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ADVANTAGE INDIA
' "\
e Foreign tourist amivals axpected to + India has a diverse portfolio of niche
increase at a CAGR of 7 per cent over tourism producis - cruises,
2005-25. adventure, medical, wellness, sports,
o 10.177 millicn foreign tourists visited MICE. eco-tourism, film, rural &
india in CY 2017, witnessing increase religious tourism
of 15.6 per cent from CY 2016. e [nJanuary 2017, Federation of indian
« By 2020, medical tourism industry of Chambers of Commerce & Industry
India & expected to touch US$ 9 I(FICCI) ﬂ?’;"“ﬂﬁd g{e launch of
i . ndia Travel Tech Launchpad.
billion. Robust Atfractive P J
Demand [ Opportunities
Diverse
~ attaractiong -
e The Visa an Armival scheme was
e India offers geographical diversily, extended to 150 countries in 2015
attractive beaches, 30 World Heritage ¢ AS-year tax holiday has been offered
Siles and 25 bio-gecgraphic zones for 2,3 and 4 star category hotels
# The country's big coastline is dotted located around UNESCC World
with a number of attractive beaches Heritage sites (except Delhi &
Mumbal

SEGMENT OF TOURISM AND-HOSPITALITY

¥

Accommeodation &
Catering

¥

Tourism and
Hospitality

Transportation

—

Accommudation could be hotels & molels. apariments,
camps. guest houses. fodge. hed & breakfast
establishments, house boats, resoits, cabins & hostals. In
addition, tourists also require catering facilities, which
includas include hotels, focal restaurants, roadside jints,
caleterias & redail outlets serving food & beverages.

Comprises aitine companies, cruise services, railways, car
tentals & more. A lourist's choice of transport would
gepend on the travel budget, destination, time, purpose of
thetour & convenience to the peintof destinatior,

4

L4

Aftractions

v

Travel Agents

Another majer compeonani of the travel & tourism industry
is ‘altraclions' such as theme parks & natural atiractions
including sceric locations, cullural & educational
attractions, monuments, events & medical, social or
professicnal causes.

v

Tour Qperators

A fragmented sector with a sunber of independent travel
agents & many onting businesses. They alse selt
associated products suchas insurance, car hire & currency
exchasge.

Offer custornized tours, including travel. accommodation
& sighisezing

AYAJL
o

)
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- EMERGING TOURISM AND HOSPITALITY SEGMENTS

Rural
Taurism \
Pilgrimage
tourism Eco-tourism

Luxury Medical
tourism tourism

Heritage Adventure

tourism tourism

RISING CONTRIBUTION TO INDIA'S GDP

A ¢ During 2006-17E, direct confribution of tourism & hospitality

e Tourism in India aceounts for 9.6 per cent of the GDP & is the ta GOP is estimated 1o have registered a CAGR of 14.05 per
3rd{argest foreign exchange earner for the country. cent

e The direct contribution of fravel & tourism to GDP is expacted

o Thetourism & hospitality sector’s direct contribution te GDP in -
2016, was US$ 71.7 billion. This is expected to rise by 6.8 per targach US$ 148.2 billion by 2027.

centto US$ 76.6 billion in 2017,

Direct Contribution of Tourism and Hosphiality to GDP{USD Billion)

o CAGR 14.05% - d2
RN g
5_ §
120 - ;
£

2015 241a 200TE 2527F

2745 2007 2003 2008 Z4Ld 2011 2312 2013 26M14

Source: World Travel & Tourism Council's Economic impact 2017, Minisiry of Tourism
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B

A

The sector's total contribution to GDP stood at US$ 208.9
billion (9.6 per cent of GDP} in 20116 and is forecast 10 rise by ®
6.7 per cent in 2017, and {o rise by 6.7 per cent pa to Rs

28,491.8 billion (USS 424.5 billion), 10 per cent of GOP in
2027,

n February 2018, the country earned foreign exchange of
around USS 2.706 billion. from the tourism sector.

LT N

Travel and lourism'slotal contribuion o GDP (USD Biltion)

460
Aok -
350
300 -
pL I
204
156
106

2007 2e 200% OB DRl 2012 2%

3 20413 2315 X&La 20LTE 2027F

Source: World Trave! & Tourism Council's Econamic Impact 2017, Ministry of Tourism

'FOREIGN ARRIVALS ARE RISING

®
tn CY2017, foreign tourist arrival in india stood at 10.177
miilion and reached 2.12 miflionin CY 2018 (up to February)
Foreign lourist arrivals into the country is forecast to increass ¢
ata CAGR o1 7.1 percent during 2005-25
india is expected to attract 17.3 mijlion international tourést *
arrivals by 2027.
Growth in tourist asrivals has been due to flexible government .

policies, developed rail & road infrastructure, ease in
availability of e-visas to foreign tourists.

The number of Foreign Toursist Arrivals (FTAS) in February
2018 were 1.05 million as compared to FTAs of 956,000 in
february 2018 and 849,000 lakh in February 2016

The growth rate in FTAs in February 2018 over February 2017
was 10.1 per cent.

The Goverement of India has set a target of 20 million foreign
tourist arrivals (FTAs) by 2020 and double the foreign
gxchange earnings as well.

The Government of india is working to achieve 1 percent share
in world's international tourist arrivals by 2020 and 2 per cent
share by 2025.
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Foreign tourists arriving in India(million)

[
&
3
i

Source: World Travel & Tourism Council's Economic impact 2017, Ministry of Tourism. Data for the year
2018 is updated till the month of Februery.

(B) e« Foreign exchange earnings (FEEs) in February 2018 were US$

o During 2017, india has earned foreign exchange of US$ 27,693 2.706 billion as compared to US$ 2.354 biflion in Febreary
billionfromtourism, 2017 and US$ 2.001 billion in Fabruary 2016,

kK e Foreign exchange eamings from tourism in India witnessed @  The year-on-year growth rate in FEES in February 2018 over

: growth at a CAGR of 10.4 per cent during 2006-17 Fedruary 2017 was 15 per cent, compared 1o 17.6 per centin

Feb 2017toJ 1
e In FY16, foreign exchange earnings from the tourism sector ruary 2017 to January 2016

stood al US$23.15 billion

Forvign Exchumgecarnings fromtouristin India{USD Billion}
30
20
ki 15 -
1o -
s
2007 200T 1009 [018 2011 2012 2013 29K3 J3XS FOLe 2317 Zoal

Source: Worid Travel & Tourism Council's Economic impact 2017, Ministry of Tourism. Data for the year 2018
3 js updated till the month of February.




SAYAJI HOTELS LIMITED

317

Domestic Consumers 1o lead Growth

» Domestic travel revenues are estimated at US$ 183.48 billion
in 2016 are anticipated to lurther increase to US3 203.3 biilion
by 2026.

# Reveaues earned from foreign visitors are estimated at US$
25.02 billion in 2016 & are projected to further increase to US$
40,11 billion by 2026.

& Indian travelers booked 52 per cent maore trips in the 3rd
quarter of 2016 as compared to last year.

e Outoftotal Indian travelers, in 2016,17 per cent people were in
the age bracket 18-24 vears, compared 10 12 per cent in the

previous year, which was mainly due to the increasing usage of
smart phones by the young travelsrs.

o India's state-of-the-art high-speed 15 coach train Tejas

Express made its 1st run on 22nd May 2017, from Mumbai to
North Goa. It covered a distance of 579 kms in 8.5 bours. The
train has 2 classes - Executive Chair Car & Chair Car. It is
equipped with facilities like autornatic doors, secured
gangways. Wi-Fi, LCD screens, magazines, tea-cofiee vending
machines, bio-loilets, etc. At the time of booking, the
passengers will have a choice ta opt for on-board catering
services, which will not be compulsery like in Shatabdi.

Share of Tourists by Expenditure

# Domestic

Spending

Foreign
Visiter

88% Spending

Expected Share of tourists by
Expenditure

i Domestic
Spending

Foreign
Visitor

83.5% Spending

Source: World Travel & Tourism Council's Economic Impact 2017, Ministry of Tourism
Rising Revenues from Leisure and Business Segments

e Share of revenues from leisure travel to the fotal tourism
revenue stood around 94.6 per cent in 2016.

» Leisure travel spending reached Rs 12,079 billion (45$ 179.7
biliion) in 2016 and is expected to reach Rs 12,910 billion (US$

196.41) biltion in 2017 and USS 386.3 billion by 2027.

@ Business travel revenues were Rs 689 bilkon (US$ 10.25
billion) in 2016 & are projected to increase to Rs 726.6 billion
(US$E11.1) billion by 2017 and US$ 23.3 hillion by 2027.

Segment Wise Revenue Share
(2016 E)

Bomestic
Spending

Foreign
Visitor
B 95% " Spending

Segment Wise Revenue Share
{2026 )

3 Domestic
Spending

Foreign
Visitor

83.6% Spending

Source: : World Travef & Tourism Council's Economic impact 2016, Aranca Research
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Government Initiatives

Swadash Barshan-

®  Based on specific themes, government has identified
13 circuits which inciudes Krishaa Circuit, Buddhist
Circuit, Hiralayan Circuit. North East Ciscuit & Coastal
Cireuit.

e Tajmahatsav: the 10 day celebration provide a platform
to exparience india’s aris, craft, culture, cuisine, dance
& music.

e  Under Budget 2018-19, the government allotted Rs
1,250 crore (US$193.08 million) for Integrated
development of tourist circuits under Swadesh
Darshan and Pilgrimage Rejuvenation and Spiritual
Augmentation Drive (PRASAD).

Pilgrimage Rejuvenation and Spiritual Augmentation
Drive (PRASAD)-

e National Mission on Pilgrimage Rejuvenation &
Spiritual Augmentation was implemented by the
Ministry for erhancing the facilities provided &
infrastructere at pilgrimage centres of all cities

Special Boards - The Ministry has set up a Hospitafity
Development & Promotion Board, which will monitor &
facilitate hotel project clearances/approvals.

Towrist Police - In March 2018, Ministry of Tourism initiated
State Governments/Union Territory administraticns of India
to deploy Tourist Police.

Tax Incentives - An investment-linked deduction wunder
Section 35 AD of the Income Tax Act is in piace for
establishing new hotels in the 2-star categary and above
across Ingia, thus permitting a 100 per cent deduction in
respect ofthe whole orany expenditare of a capital nature.

Salety and Security Initiatives-

e Ministry of Tourism launched a 24x7 Toll Free
Multifingeat Tourist [nformation-Helpline an
1800111363 or 1363 in 12 languages which wiil
provide information relating to travel in India,

o  Ministry of Tourism issued guidelines on Safety and
Security for States/UTs along wit h tips for travelers.

¢  Launched Sccial Media Awareness Campaign in the
spirit of ‘Atithidevo Bhava' to develop importance of
good conduct and behaviar towards tourists.

o Initiative to conduct constant dialogue with State/UTs
for drawing ideas for development and promoetion of

3.

4.

o in March 2018, total amount sanctioned by the
Ministry of Tourism for this scheme was Rs 5638.87
crofe ({185 868.87 million) since 2014-15,

Naticnal Tourism Policy 2015-

o  Formulation of National Tourism Policy 2015 that
would encourage the citizens of India to explora their
own country as weil as position the courntry as a “Must
See’ destination for global travelers.

@ Under Union Budget 2017, USD14.87 million was
allocated for promotion & publicity of various
programmes & schemes of the Tourism ministry.

Tourism Projecis-

@ Under Union Budget 2017-18, the government
allocated LUSD15.25 million for development of Umiam
Lake-Ulum Sahpetbneng-Mawdiangdiang under
North East Circuit of Swadesh Darshan Scheme &
USD11.53 million for development of Buddhist sites of
MP (Mandsaur- Dhar- Sanchi- Satra- Rewa)

Source: Union Budget 2015 16, Aranca Research

~TOURISM POLICY AND .lNlT_lATIVES_-GWE A BOOST TO THE INDUSTRY

5.

fourism.
Incentives from Ministry of Tourism-
Assistance inlarge revenite-generating projects.
Support 1o Public Private Partnerships in infrastructure
development such as viability gap funding.
Schemes for capacity-building of service providers.
Project Mausam-

Under ‘Project Mausam' the Government of India bas
proposed to eslablish cross cultural finkages & to revive
historic maritime culfural & economic ties with 39 Indian
Ocean countries. In 2015, Government of Jndia linked China
Silk Road project with Project Mausam,

E--Tourist Visa-

Since April 2017, the facility has been made available to
cifizen 161 countries.

Year-on-year growth of 48.3 per cenl was registered during

the month of December 2017, as a total of 241,000 fourists
arrived in India on £ — Tourist Visas

Foreigners traveling to India on e-tourist visa will receive a
BSNL SIM card which will be pre activated and loaded with
talktime and data.

Source: World Travel & TourismCouncil, Aranca Research
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SUBSIDIARY/IES AND ASSQCIATE/S

Your Company holds 100% equity as well as preference share
capital in Sayaji Housekeeping Services Limited, 52.37%equity
share capital in Aries Hotels Private Limited and 51.67% in Malwa
Hospitality Private Limited.

In May 2018, the Company has incorporated 3 new public limited
companies as its wholly ownec subsidiary i.e. (a) Sayaji Hotels
Management Limited (b) Sayaji Hotels {Pune) Limited (¢) Sayaji
Haotels (Vadodara) Limited.

BUSINESS SHOULD PROMOTE WELL-BEING OF EMPLOYEES

Our people are the key to truly leveraging the potential of the
Company's growth. The continuous zeal and commitment of our
people powers and we nuriure this with fraining, motivation,
jeadership development and performance rewards. The Company’s
Corporate Human Resource Policy sets a robust framework for
people management. Apart from this, Whistie Blower Policy,
Protection of Women’s Rights at Workplace Policy, and code of
conduct for protection of himan rights.

Sayaji is a merit-based organisation and diserimination of any form
based on caste, religion, region, gender or physical disability is not
permitted.

PROTECTION OF WOMENS AT WORKPLACE:

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at its
workpface and in line with the provision of the Sexual Harassment
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibiticn and Redressal)

Act,2013 and the Company has formulated a policy on 'Protection
of Women’s Rights at Workplace’ as per the provisions of the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013, This has been widely
disseminated. There were no cases of sexual harassment
complaints received by the Company in the financial year 2017-18.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

The Board of Directors formulated the Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR} Policy far your Company pursuant to the
provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014,
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s} thereof
for the time keing in force), on the recommendations of the CSR
Committee. The CSR Puolicy outlines the CSR vision of your
Company whick is based on embedded tenets of trust, faimess and
care,

As the average net profit of the Company for last 3 years is negative
hence therg is ng fiability on the Company to incur expenditure on
CSR activities as preseribed w/s 135 and Schedule VI of the
Companies Act, 2013 hence is not required to provide particulars of
CSR.

CSR Palicy has also been approved by the Board and placed on the
Company’s website at htips://www.sayajihotels.com/data/
Corporate_Social_Responsibility_Policy.pdf
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Continuously changing Consumer Competition from Hotel industry
demands. alternatives
\ Improper and ] y
d ineffective marketing J A
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND RISX MONITORING

In risk management and menitoring, the probability of risk is
estimated with avaifable data/ information and appropriate risk
treatments are worked out in the following areas:

1.

Economic Environment and Market conditions

The hospitality industry is prone to impacts due fo
fluctuations in the economy caused by changes in global and
domestic economies, changes in local market conditions,
excess hotel room supply, reduced international or local
demand for hotel rooms aad associated services,
compelition in the industry, government policies and
regulations, fluctuations in interest rates and foreign
exchange rates and other social factors. Since demand for
hotels is affected by world econgmic growth, a global
recession could also Jead to 2 downlum in the hotel industry.

Revenue Concealration

High concentration in any single business segment exposes
SHL to the risks inherent inthat segment. Prudent norms are
being adopted based on which we can monitor and prevent
undesirable concentration in a geography, industry, or
customer. The quest for diversified activities within the
existing realm of over all management after due
consideration of the advantages and disadvantages of each
activity is consistent with company policy of increasing
business volumes with minimum exposure to undue risks.
Concentration of revenue from any particular brand or
segment of industry is sought to be minimized over the fong
term by careful extension into other activities, particularly in
areas SHL has some basic advantage.

Infiation and Cost Structure
The industry in general has a high operating leverage. At

organizational level, cost optimization and cost recuction
initiatives are implemented and are ¢losely monitored. SHL
controls costs through budgetary mechanism and its review
against actual performance with the key objective of aligning
them to the financial budgats/mode!. The focus on these
initiatives wiil further inculcate across the organization the
importance of cost reduction and control.

Financial Reporting Risks

Changing laws, regulations and standards relating to
accounting, corporate governance and public disclosure ¢an
create uncertainty for companies. These new or changed
laws, regulations and standards may lack specificity and are
subject fo varying interpretations. Their application in
practice may evolve over time, as new guidance is provided
by requlatory and governing bodies. This could result in
continuing uncertainty regarding compliance matters and
higher costs of compliance as a result of ongoing revisions to
stich corporate governance standards.

SHL is committed to maintaining high standards of
compliances, corpofate governance and public disclosure
and complying with evolving laws, regulations and
standards in this regard would further help us address these
issues.

Risk of Carporate ascounting fraud:

Accounting fraud or eorporate accounting fraud are business
scandals arising out of misusing or misdirecting of funds,
overstating revenues, understating expenses etc. SHL to
mitigate this risk by:

o Understanding the applicabfe laws and regulations

#  Conducting risk assessments
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Legal risk is the risk in which SHL is exposed to legal action.
As SHL is governed by various laws and SHL has {o do its
business within four walls of law, where SHL is exposed to
legal risk exposure. Focus is to be given on evaluating the
risks involved in a contract, ascertaining our responsibilities
under the applicable law of the centract, restricting our
liabilities under the contract, and covering the risks invalved,
so that adherenca to all contractual commitments can be
ensured,

Managemeni places and encourages its employees to place
full reliance on professional guidance and opinion and
discuss impact of all laws and regulations to ensure
company’s total compliance. Advisories and suggestions
from professional agencies and industry bodies, chambers
of commerce etc. are carefully studied and acted upon where
relevant.

Gompliance with Local Laws

SHL is subject to additional risks related to complying with a
wide variety of aational and local laws, restrictions. SHL
strives to place robust process with the help of consultants to
mitigate and minimize such compliance risk under municipal
laws ofthe land.

Eavironmental RIsk Management-

SHL endeavors to protect the environment in all its activities,
as a social responsibility and strives to avoid any situation
causing arisk to the environment and community atlarge.

Heman Resource Managsmant

SHL's Human Resources {HR} Department add value to ali s
Units and assaciate companies by ensuring that the right
person is assigned io the right job and that they grow and
contribute towards organizational excellence. Qur growth
has been driven by our ability to aftract good quality talent
and effeciively engage them in right jobs.

Risk in makters of human resources are sought to be

. Savar SAYAJI HOTELS LIMITED
»  Deployingastralegy and process for implementing the minimized and contained by foliowing a policy of providing
new controls equal opportunity to every employes, inculeate in them a
e Adhering to internal control practices that prevent sense of belonging and commitment and also effectively
collusion and concentration of authority train themn in spheres other than their own speciakization.
. _ ) o Empioyees are encouraged to make suggestions on
e  Employing r:necha[usms for multiple authorization of innovations, cost saving procedures, free exchange of other
key transactions with cross checks positive ideas relating 1o hospitality industry efc. 1t is
e Creating a favorable atmosphere for internal auditors believed that a satistied and committed employee will give
in reporting and highlighting any instances of even his best and create an atmaosphere that cannot be conducive
minar non-adherence to procedures and manuals and to risk exposure,
ahostof ather steps throughout the organization RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY
6. LegalRisk-

Sayaji manages, monitors and reporis on the principal risks and
uncertainties that can impact its ability to achieve its strategic
objectives. The Company's risk management framework
encompasses inigrnal control in an integrated manner and is
tailored to the specific Refiance segments, businesses and
functions. It takes intc account various factors such as the size and
nature of the inherent risks and the regulatory environment of the
ingividual business segment or gperating company.

The Sayaji Hotel management systems, organizational structires,
processes, standards, code of conduct and values and behaviors
together govern how Sayaji conducts its business and manages
associated risks.

Sayaji’s risk management framewark is designed to be a simple,
consistent and clear framework for managing and reporting risks
from the Group's operations to the Board. The framework and
related processes seek to avoidincidents and maximize business
outcames by allowingmanagement to:

o  Understand the risk environment and assess the specific
risks and potential exposure for Reliance.

o Determine how to deal best with these risks o manage
qverall potential exposure.

e  Managetheidentified risks in appropriate ways.

Monitor antl seek assurance of the effectiveness ofthe
managemen! of these risks and intervene for improvement
where necessary.

¢ Report up the management chain to the board on a periodic
basis about how risks are being managed, monitored,
assured and the improvements that are being made.

e Businesses are required 1o confirm peripdically that ail
relevant risks have been identified, assessed, evaluated and
thatappropriate mitigation systems have been implemented.

The Company has a weli established risk management process and
framework for all the hotels and managed propetties across India
and backed hy strong internal control system.
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AUDITAND SYSTEMS

Your Company befieves that internal controf is a necessary adjunct
of the principle of governance that freedom of management shoufd
be exercised within a framework of appropriate checks and
balances. Your Company remains committed to easuring an
effective internal control environment that provides assurance and
comfort on orderly and efficient conduct of operations, security of
assets, prevention and detection of frauds / errors, accuracy and
completeness ol accounting records and the timely preparation of
rediatile financial information.

Your Company’s independent and robust Internat Audit processes
provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of internal
controls, compliance with operating systems, internal policies and
regulatory requirements.

The Internal Audit function consisting of an outsourced
professional firm is resourced fo deliver high standards audit
assurances.

The Audit GCommittee of your Board met five times during the year,
The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committes included reviewing
the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control environment,
monitoring implementation of the action plans emerging out of
Intemal Audit findings including those relating te strengthening of
your Company’s risk management systems, and discharge of
statutory mandates.

HUMAN RESOURCES -

The business is on a growth trajectory and has started sailing
through the transformation phase. To keep abreast with the
growing needs of the business, the HR team has been holding the
baton for achieving exceltence by being the frontrunner in various
initiatives. In order to effectively percolate the transformation plan
and management expectations, regular town hall sessions are
conducted at various focations with the Senior Management. This
has helped in enhancing the employees’ morale and collaborative
spirit.

To realise the vision, HR function of the business is ably supporting
the building of capability and capacity, towards which a multi-
pronged strategy has been developed and deployed. in pasticular,
the HR team has been at the forefront of the company-wide
capability building initiative. Further, HR policies & practices have
been aligned to achieve an efficient delivery mode] and meet
dynamic business requirements. The company has tofal number of
permanent empioyees on rofl as 31st March ,2018 was2313 across
allits units,

SAFETY, HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT

The Company's commitment towards providing a healthy and safe
work environment to its employees, contractors, and all the visitors

forms the foundation of its safety processes. Sayaji’s ultimate goal
is to establish a zero accident work environment. A fully equipped
and well-qualified organisation is in place at all locations providing
necessary governance, docementation and healthy and safety
assurance. A Hotel management team of qualified specialists
provides regcommendations and the action plan is monitored
through a comprehensive and robust fracking system o ensure
complete adoptability of the plan. Delivering safe, compliant and
reliable operations leads to a sustainable competitive advantage.

Terms of reference of health, safety and environmeni inter alia
include the following-

o Monitoring and ensuring the highest standards of
environmenial, heaith and safety norms

o Ensuring compliance with applicable pollution ang
environmental laws al the Company’s works / factories /
Iocations by putting in place effective systems in this regard
and reviewing the same periodically.

® Reviewing, as 1he Committee deems appropriate, the
Company’s health, safety and environmeni reiated policy and
making recommendations as necessary.

e  Reviewing the Company’s perlermance on health, safety and
environment related matters and suggesting improvements
as the Gommittee may deem necessary.

¢  Carry out any ofher function as is mandated by the Board
fromtimetotime.

PERFORMANCE OF THE SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES - AUDITED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY'S SUBSIDIARIES

As an 31st March 2018 the Company has 3 Subsidiaries and 1
Associate Company. During the year under review, there was no
change in the nature of businesses of Subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Act read with
Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, a statement
containing salient features of the financial statements of the
Company’s subsidiarigs and Associates. A statement containing
salient fsatures of the financial statements of the
subsidiary/associate companies is also included in the Annuai
Report as attached in Annexure - 6.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 136(1) of the Act. the
financial statements of the Company, consolidated financial
statements along with relevant documents and separate audited
financial statements in respect of the subsidiaries are available on
the website of the Company, www.sayajihotels.com.

Sharehatders interested in obtaining a copy of the audited annua!
accounts of the subsidiary companies may write to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s Registered Office or e-mail to
CS@sayajigroup.com.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORSAND OTHER KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The Board of Directors has an optimum combination of executive and non-executive independent directors including one women
director. According to the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. As on 31st March, 2018, your

Board has foliowing directors and key managerial personals:

$.No. Name Date of Appointment Designation

1. Mr. Thottapuly Narayanan Unni 31/01/2002 Independent Director

2. Mr. Sanjay Ahuja (1/02/2012 Nominee Director {of TFG)
3. Mr. Raoot Razak Dhanani 14/11/2013 Managing Director

4. Mrs. Suchitra Dhanani 06/02/2014 Whole Time Director

5. Mr. Abhay Chintaman Chaudhari 14/02/2017 {independent Director

8. Mr, Kayum Dhanani 30/11/2012 Director

7. Mr. Pradeep Goyal 06/02/2014 independent Director

8 Mr. Sandesh Khandetwal 06/02/2014 Chief Financial officer

9. M., Amit Sarraf 26/09/2011 Company Secratary

CHANGES IN THE COMPODSITION OF BOARD DF DIRECTORS

During the year under review, there were na changes done in the constitution of the Board.

INDEPENDENT DIRECYORS
As onMarch 31st, 2018, Your Company has following indepandent Directoss:
S.No Name (1]].] Dale of Appointment
1. M TN. Unni 00079237 31/61/2002
2. Mr. Pradeep Goyal 02798770 08/02/2014
3. Abhay Chintaman Chaudhari 06726836 14/02/2017

The Company has received Declarations of Independence as
stipulated under Section 143(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 from
Independent Directors confirming that he is not disqualified from
appointing/continuing as Independent Director.

RETIREMENT BY RDTATION -

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152(6) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and in terms of Articles of Assacialion of the
Company, Mr. Raaol Razak Dhanani is liable to retire by rotation at
the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. The Board recommends their
appointment.

The resclutions seeking approval of the members for the re-
appointment of Mr. Baoof Razak Dhanani, have been incorporated
in fhe Notice of the Annual General Meeting of the Company.

RE-APPOINTMENT OF THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS FOR THE
SECOND TERM

The term of 5 years of the axisting independent directors Mr. TN.

Unni and Mr. Pradeep Goyal is being completed on 31st March,
2019. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board
has considared their significant contribution in the growth of the
Company and has proposed their re-appointment for a second 1erm
of & years w.e.f. 1st April, 2019 to 31st March, 2024 subject to the
approval of the members by way of special resolution. Further that
the age of Mr, T.N.Unni is crossed the age limit of 75 years,
therefore, he can be re-appointed by way of the special resolution
only.

Your Boarg recommend fo pass necessary resolution as set out in
the notice of the Annual Generai Meeting.

CHANGES IN DYHER KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Pursuantto the provisions of Section 203 ofthe Act, during the year
under review, there were no changes in the position of KMPs,

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD
The Board met 5 (five) times during the financial year 2017-18.The
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meeting details are provided in the corporate gevernance report
that forms part of this Annual Report. The maximum interval
between any two meetings did not exceed 120 days, as prescribed
inthe Companies Act, 2013.

FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAM FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has disclosed on its website
(https://www.sayajihotels.com/data/Familiarization _
programme_for_Independent_directors.pdf) details of the
familiarization programs formulated to educate the Directors
regarding their roles, 7ights and responsibilities in the Company
and the nature of the industry in which the Company operates, the
business model of the Company, efc.

SELECTION OF NEW DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEMBERSHIP
CRITERIA

The Board is Responsible for the selection of new directors. The
Board delegates the screening and selection process to the
nomination and remuneration committee, which consists majority
of Independent directors. The Committee, based en defined
criteria, makes recommendations to the Board on the induction of
the new directors. The Policy for the Selection and Appointment of
Dirsctors is publicly avaiable on the Company’s website at
www_sayaji.com which farms the part of this Annual Report.

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THEBQARD

One of the key functions of the Board is to monitor and review the
Board evaluation framework.

The Nemination and Remuneration Committee and the Board have
laid dowr the manner in which formal annual evaluation of the
performance of the Board, committees and individual directors has
to he made.

All Directors responded through a structured guestionnaire giving
feedback about the performance of the Board, iis Committees,
individual directers and the Chairman. The questionnaire included
inputs on composition, culture, functioning, information
availability, compliance and governance, effecliveness etc.
Questionnaire also covered, in the case of individual directors,
gualitative assessment and in the case of Chairman additional
criteria like leadershig gualities and other key aspects ofhis role.

The Individual Directors' responses to the guestionnaire on the
performance of the Board, Committee(s), Divectors and Chairman,
were anakyzed by an independent ¢onsultant, to arrive at unbiased
conclusions.

The inputs, including areas ol improvement, given by all the
directors were discussed in the meeting of the independent
Directors held on 14th February, 2018.

1. Criteria for evaluation of board of directors as a whele
i. The frequency of meetings;
ii.  Thelengthof meeting;
ii. ~ Theadministration of meeting;
iv.  The number of committee and their note;

v. The Fow of information o board members and
between board members;

vi.  Thequality and quantity of information; and
vii. The Disclosure of information 1o the stakeholders.
2. Criteria for evaluation of the individuat Directors

i Ability to contribute and monitor corporate
governance practices;

ii.  Ability to contribute by introducing best practices to
address top management issties;

ifi.  Participation in long ter strategic planning;

iv.  Gommitment fo the fulfillment of director obligatibns
and fiduciary responsibility;

v.  guidingstrategy;

Vi, Monitoring management performance and
development,

vii.  Statutorycompiiance and Corporate Governance;

viii. Aftendance and confribution at board / Committee
meetings,

ix.  Timespentbyeach ofthe member; and

Xx.  Corecompetence.

{NTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

Given the nature of business and size of operations, yoirr Company
has designed a proper and adequate internal control system to
ensure:;

o Recording of transactions are accurate, complete and
properly authorised;

o  Adherence to Accounting standards and compliance to
appkcable statutes, Company policies and procedures;

e  Effective usage of resources and safeguarding of assets.

Further, your Company, through its own independent and multi-
disciplinary Internal Audil function, carries out periotiic risk based
internal audits across locations and functions, based on the
tnternal Audit plan as approved by the Audit Committes of the
Board.
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The Internal Audit function reviews compliance vis-a-vis the
established design of the Internal contro, as also the efficiency and
effectiveness of operations. The risks identified out of the audits are
reviewed periodicalty and mitigation ensured. The summary of the
Internal Agdit findings and status of implementation of action plans
for nisk mitigation, are submiited to the Audit Committee every
quarter for review, and concerns if any, ars reported to the Board.

A CATALOG OF VARIOUS POLICIES OF THE COMPAKNY ARE
HEREUNDER:

Corporate Social Responsibility Policy
Famitiarization programme for Independent directors
Material Subsidiary Palicy

Related Party Transaction Policy

Risk Management Policy

Remuneration and Nomination Policy

Policy for determination of materiality

Policy for Preservation of the Documents
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMERT

Your Gompany's Director make the following statement interms of
Seclion 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, which is to be the
best of their knowiedge and belief and accarding to the information
and explanations obtained by them;

1hat in the preparation of the annual financial statements for
ihe year ended 31st March, 2018, the applicable accou_nting
standards have been foliowed along with proper explanation
relating 1o material departures, if any;

a.

that such accounting policies as mentioned in Notes to the
financial Statements have been selected and applied
consistently and judgment and estimates have heen made
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March, 315t
2018 and of the loss of the Company for the year ended on
{hat date

that preper and sufficient care has been taken for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and datecting fraud and other irreguiarities;

that the annuat financial statements have been prepared on a
gaing concern basis;

that proper internal {inancial controls were in place and that
the financial controls were adequate and were operating
effectively.

1. that proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance
with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and

that such systems were adequate and operating effectively,

GOMPOSITION OF VARIOUS COMMITTEES COF BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

During the year. in accordance with Comparies Act, 2013, the
Cempany has the following committee as at vear ended 31st Masch
2018:

S.No Committees of the Board

1 Audil Committee

2 Corporate Social Responsibility Com mittee
3 Borrowing and Investment Commitiee

4 Nomination and Remuneration Committee
§ Stakeholders’ Refationship Commiltes

The details with respect to the composition, charters and meeting
held dusing the year, are given in detail in the "Report on Corposate
Governance', of the Company which forms part of this Annual
Report and is available on the Company’s website at
hitps://Awww.sayajihotels.com/investors.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transaction entered with the related parties defined under the
Companies Act.2013 and provisions of SEBHLODR) regulation,
2015 during the financial year 2017-18 were mainly in the ordinary
course of husiness and on arm’s [ength basis.. All such contracts or
arrangements have been approved by the Audit Committee. No
material contracts or arrangements with related parties were
entered into during the year under review. Further, the prescribed
details of related party transactions of the Company in Form No.
AQC-2, in terms of Seclion 134 of the Act read with Rule 8 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is given in the Annexure 1 1o
this Report.

The policy on materiality of Related Party Transaction and dealing
with refated party transaction, as approved by the Board, is
available on the Company’s website and can be accessed ai:
htips:/fwww sayajihotels.com/data/Related _Parly_T ransaction_P
olicy.pdf

19. STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s K. L. Vyas & Co., Chartered Accountants, (F.R.No 003283C),
the Statutory Auditors of the Company, hold office till the
conclusion of the 35th Annual General Meeting{AGM) of the
Company. The Board has recommended for the re-appointrent of
M/s K. L. Yyas & Co, Chartered Accountants (F.R.Ne 003289C), as
the Statutory Auditors of the Company, for a term of five
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consecutive vears, from the conclusion of this AGM till the
conclusion of the 40th AGM of the Company ko be heid in the year
2023for approval of the Members by way of Special Resalution.

The report of the Statutory Auditors along with the Notes to
Schedules is enclosed 1o this report and contains an Unsmoditied
Opinion

The Auditors’ have confirmed their eligibility under Section
141(3){g) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed there
under for appointment as Auditors of the Company. As required
under SEBI (L.ODR} Regulations, 2015, the auditors have also
confirmed that they hold a valid certificate issued by the Peer
Review Board of the Insiitute of Chartered Accountants of India.

20. SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Pursuant to the provisions ol Section 204 of the Companies Act,
201 3 read witht the Companies(Appoiniment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnsl) Rules, 2014,the Board appointed M/s
Ritesh Gupta & Ce., Practicing Company Secretary, {(holding
Certificate of Practice bearing No 3764) to conduct Secretarial
Audit for the FY 2017-18. The Secretarial Audit Report for the
financial year ended March 31, 2018 is annexed herewith marked
as "Annexure 2°in ‘Farm No.MR-3'to this Report. The Secretarial
Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservatian,
adverse remark or disclaimer.

CORPORATE GOVERKANCE

At Sayaji, Corporate Governance is alf about maintaining a valuable
refationship and trust with all stakeholders. We consider
stakeholders as partners in our success, and we remain committed
to maximising stakeholders' value, be it shareholders, employees,
suppliers, customers, investors, communities or policy makers.
This approach to value creation emanates from our belief that
sound governance system, based on relationship and trest, is
integral to creating enduring value for all. We have a defined policy
framework for ethical conduct of businesses.

Pursuant to Regulation 24 and Regulation 34 of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015, the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Business Responsibility Report, Report or Corporate Governance
and Auditors’ Certificate regarding compliance with conditions of
corparate governance farm part of the Directors’ Repodt.

CEQ & CFO CERTIFICATION

As required under Regulation 17(8) of the SEB! (LODR)
Regulations, 2015, Certificate signed by Mr. Raoof Razak Dhanant,
Managing Director and Mr. Sandesh Khandelwal, Chiel Financial
Officer, for the year 2017-18 was placed hefore the Board of
Directors in its st Board Meeting held on 30th May’ 2018 and is
annexed to Carporate Governance Report,

A copy of the certificate on the financial statements for the financial

yearended March, 31st 2018 is annexed along with this Report,
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Consdlidated Financial Statements of theCompany is prepared
in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {"Ind AS™)as
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 with effect from Apni 1, 2017 forming part of this
Annual Report.

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND DUTGD

Your Company is confinuously striving towards conservation of
energy acrass all its units and has implemented vasious Energy
Conservation programs and latest technology up gradation
measures,your Company also earned foreign currency in Finangial
Year 2017 — 2018, The hotels are fitted with energy saving devices
to conserve energy in the long run which leads to reduce energy
cost and helps to promote econemic, political and environmental
sustainability and thus maximize profit,

Informatian as required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Act read
with Rute 8 (3) of the Companies {(Accounts) Rules, 2014, relating
to Conservation of Energy, Technolegy Absorption, Foreign
Exchange Earnings and Qutge are furnished in Annexure 3 to this
Report.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE
FINANGIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY BETWEEN THE END OF
THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND THE DATE OF REPORT

There are no material changes and commitment aflecting the
financial position of the Company between the end of the financial
yearand the date of this regort.

DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES AND LIQUIDITY

The Company’s shares are available for dematerialization with both
the Depositosies viz., National Securities Depository Limited
{NSDL) and Central Depository Services {India) Limited (CDSL).
About 91.25% of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company
has been dematerialized as on March 31,2018,

LISTING & DEPOSITORY FEE

The Company has paid Annual Listing Fee for the Financial Year
2017-18 to the BSE Lid, according to the prescribed norms &
reguiations. Company has also paid Annual Cusiody Fee to National
Securities Depository Limited and to Central Depository Serviees.

EXTRACT OF ANKUAL RETURN

As per the provisions of Sectien 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013,
read with the Companies (Management and Administration} Rules
2014, an extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT-Q is attached as
Annexure ‘4’ to this Report.
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PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION OF EMPLOYEES The information as per the provision of section 197{12) af the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5(2) of Companies (Appointment

The disclosure required 1o be made in terms of Section 197(12) of A
and Remuneration of Manageriai Personnel) Rules, 2014 are as

the Companies Acl, 2013 and Rule 5(1) is annexed herewith as

“Annexure 5" under—

1 | Name and Designation of The Employee Vivek Kumar Thakur (General Manager of the Sayaji Hotel -
Indore Unit)

2 | Remuneration Received 318250/~ Monthly Gross

3 { Nature Of Employment, Whether Contractual Or Otherwise | Os role employee

4 | Qualifications And Experience Of The Employee Diploma in Hotel Management
Experience - 18 years.

5 | Bate {f Commencement Of Employment; 01.06.2017

6 1 The Age Of Such Employee; 41 Year {13 Nov 1876 - Date Of Birth)

7 1 The Last Employment Held By Such Employee General Manager, Chancery Pavilion Bangalore

Before Joining The Company

8 | The percentage of equity shares held by the employge None
in the Gompany within the meaning of clause (iii) of
sub — rule (2) above

9 | Whether any such emptoyee is a relative of any director He is not relative of any director and manager.
or manager of the Company and if so, name of stich
director or manager

ACKNGWLEDGEMENTS forward-looking statements, whether as a resuit of new
information, future events, or otherwise. Actual results,
performances or achievements could differ materially fromthose
expressed or implied in such forward-looking statements, Readers
are cautioned notto place undue reliance on these forward-1ooking
statements that speak only as of their dates. This Report should be
read in conjunction with the financial statements included herein
and the notes thereto.

The Bgard of Directors would like to express their sincere
appreciation for the assistance and co-operation received from the
financia institutions, banks, Government autherities, customners,
vendors and members during the year under review. The Boards of
Directors also wish 1o place oh record its deep sense of
appreciation for the committad services by the Company's
executives, staff and workers,

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Report tontains forward-looking statements that involve risks

and uncertainties. YWhen used in this Report, the werds ‘anticipate”,

‘believe’, ‘estimate’, ‘expect’, ‘intend’, 'will' and other similar

expressions as they relate te the Company and / or its businesses Place: Indore

are intended to identity such forward-looking statements. The  Dale : 24.06.2018
Company undertakes no obligation to publicly update or revise any

For and on behalt of the Board
& )

T.N. i

Chairman

DiN - 90079237
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[Pursuant to clause (h} of sub-section (3)of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014) for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the
company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1} of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013]

ANNEXURE ‘1’ TO BOARD’S REPORT
Form AOC-2

1.  Delailsofcontracts or arrangements or transactions net at arm's length basis

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered in to during the year ended March 31, 2018, which were not at

arm's length basis.

2. Details of material coniracts or arrangement or transactions al arm’s lengih hasis

Nama(s) of the Nature of Buralion of the Salient terms of the contracts or Date(s) of | Amount
related party contracts/ contracts / arrangements or lransactions approval by | paid as
and naturg of arrangements/ arrangemenls/ including the value, if any (d) ihe adyances,
relationship transaclions transactions Board, it any

(a) (b} (3] if any (g} )

Any Sister Providing and Continuous The Company shall provide the various | 30.05.2017 None

Concern, availment of the | nature of services which includes but not limited

associate and services. transaction. Room Services, F&B Services, Car

related Services and other ancillary services to its

Companies sister concern/subsidiary

company/assaciate company efc. as may
be require an time to time basis. .

The Company shall alse get various
services/good From the said sister
concern/subsidiary company/associate
company et¢. as may be reguire gn ime to
time basis.

Malwa Service Continuous The Company shall provide intellectual | 30.05.2017 Nore

Hospitality Pvt. | Providing nature of professional services to the Malwa

Ltd, Transaction transaction Hospitality Pvt. Ltd. and the Maiwa shall

Nature oi pay the cost of the above said services in

Relationship — the way to pay professional fee fo the

Associaie Gompany.

Company

Vicon Imperial | The Company 15 Years 3 Consideration of the permission granted to | 30.05.2017 None

(I} Put. Lid. has entered into | months carry on the business at the said hotel -

(Vicon) the agreement | beginning rom | winimym Guarantee of Rs. 4.65 Cr. p.a. to

with Viconfor | the effective date | g pajg in equity monthly instaliment or

Nature of the purpose of | of the agreement | age of the Revenue from Hatel plus 10%

Relationship - { "uANING, Le. wef. of Revenue from outdoor Catedring

Associate conducting, 01.05.2017 And

Company operating and

managing the Security Deposit of Rs. 2.15 Cr. {to be
hotel property of relundable at the time of the termination of
the Vicen the said agreement)

situated at G.E.

Road, Raipur

(Chhattisgarh}
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Hame(s} ol the Malore of Duration of the Salient terms of the contracts or Date{s) of { Amount
related party contragts/ contrasts / arrangemenis or transaclions approval by | paid as
and nature of arrangements/ arrangements/ including ihe value, if any {d) the ativances,
refationship transaclions lransactions Board, it any
(3 (b) (¢} if any (g) {1
Prinite The Company has | 5 Years w.ef. Consideration o the permission granted to | 30.05.2017 None
Hospitality Pvt, | entered i":v f:: effective date of | carry enthe business at the said hotel -
Ltd. Prinite™) | B e the agreement | The company shafl pay on monthly basis
purpose of running. 20% of Revenie from the said hotel.
conductin
Natu r_e of . operating ga‘nd And
Relationship - I managing the hotel Security Deposit of Rs. 10.00 Cr. (ta be
Associale property of the refundable al the time of the termination of
Company Prinita situated at the said agreement
Near Bhimnath
Bridge, Opp. Parsi
Agyari, Sayajigunj,
Vadodara - 390005
{Gujaraty
Barbeque- Service Continuous Barheque Nation Hospitality Lid, 1o provide | 11.12.2017 Nong
Nation Providing nature of condugting services for sals of liquor for
Hospitality Ltd. | Transaction transaction the company in the restaurant lotated at
Nature of so0f top of Pune hotel and company to pay
Relationship - conducting fees 10 Barbeque Nation
Associate Hospitality Ltd, against such services.
Company
Mrs. Suchitra Property The registered | The Company has entered into the| 11.12.2017 None
Dhanani acquisition sale deed to be | agreement for purchase of shop ne. Gi,
Nature of transaction executed within3 | G2, G3, G4, G5, GG, F2 and F3 situated at
Relationship - months from the | Sayaji Arcade, H-1, Scheme No. 54, Vijay
Director of the date of this| Nagar, Indore — 452010 (M.P.) on a total
Company agreement to | consideration ol RS. 1, .76.67,160/-. The
sale. area of each shop is 420 5q. Ft.
Sayaji Hotels lnvestment One-time {invesiment and Subscription of the 50000 1 19.03.2018 None
Management transaction Transaction. At Equity Shares of M/s Sayaji Hotels
Limited the Hime of Mangement Ltd, of Rs. 10/-each
Nature of subscription
Relationship —
Wholty owned
subsidiary
Gompany
Sayaji Hotels invesiment One-time Investment and Subscription of the 50000 | 19.03.2018 None
(Pung} Limited { transaction Transaction, At Equity Shares of M/s Sayaji Hotels (Pune)
Nature of the time of Ltd. of As. 10/-each
Relationship - subscription
Whally swned
subsidiary
Company
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L)

Name(s) of the Naturs of Duration of the Satient terms of the contracts or Dale{s} ef | Amouni
relaled party contracts/ contracts / arrangements or transactions approval by | paid as
and nature ol | arrangements/ { arrangements/ including the value, if any {d) the advancss,
relatiasship ransactions transaclions Board, il any

(a} {0 (c) ifany (e} (1)

Sayaji Hotels Investment One-time {nvestment and Subscription of the 50000 | 19.03.2018 Nong

(Vadodara) {ransaction Transaction. At Equity Shares of M/s Sayaji Hotels

Limitad the time of {Vadodara) Ltd. of Rs. 10/-each

Nature of subscription

Relationship —

Whally owned

subsidiary

Company

For ang ¢n behall Qﬁf Board
7. N. Uhni
Chairman o’
Place: Indore DIN - 00079237

Date : 24.08.2018
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RITESH GUPTA ﬂ RITESH GUPTA &CO. 3

M.Cem.; LL.B.; FCS. COMPANY SECRETARIES

G2, 5 Anil Nagar, M. R. 9 Road, Indore-8 (MP) R94253-11503, 7475601500, Email: coriteshgupta@gnail.com

FORM No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act,!ﬂlSandmleNo.?ofﬂuCompanies
{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014}

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315TMARCH, 2018

To,

The Members,

Sayaji Hotels Limited
Kala Ghoda, SayajiGunj
Opp. Rajashree Talkies
Baroda, Gujarat 390005

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliances of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence o good corporate practices by Sayaji Hotels Limited
(CIN:L51100GJ1982PLCD05131) (hereinafter called “The Company”). Secretarial Audit
was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has,
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31% March, 2018, complied
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and
subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the company for the financial year ended on 31% March, 2018
according to the provisions of;

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

2 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ("SCRA’) and the rules made there
under;




M.Com,, LL.B,, FCS,

6  The Company has identifieq and confirmed the following laws as being
specifically applicable to the Company:

® Securities and Exchange Board of Indja (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
i ts) Regulations, 2015; the equity shares of the Company are listed
on BSE Limited, .

2{Page SAYAJl HOTELS LIMITED{ 2017-18
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RITESH cuUuPTA us RITESH GUPTA &00. 33
M.Conl-, LL.B.. FCS, COMPANY SECRQMIES

G-1, 56-Anil Nagar, M. R. 9 Road, Tndore-8 (MP) ®94253-11503, 78796841500, Esaail: ospiteshgupta @gmail com

4.  The Securities and Exchange Boatd of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

b.  The Securities and Exchange Boardofhdia(lsueand lisﬁngofDethecuriﬁes)
Regulations, 2008;

A TheSecuritiesandExchmmgeBoardofh\dia{DelisﬁngoquuityShars)
Regulations, 2009; and

Wefurmerrepbrtﬂratdm-ingthepeﬂod under teview, the Companyhassubsfanﬁally
complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations Guidelines, Standards, ete,
except the following:

* Securities Exchange Board of India through s adjudication order no,
EAD/SR/SM/AO/01/2017-18 dated September 29, 2017 imposed the penalty of
Rs. 1200000/- (Rs. Twelve Lakh Only) to the Company for non-compliance of

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with
proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent
Directors. The changes in the i

during the period under revi
Act.

IfPage
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To,

‘Annexure-A’ to the Secretarial Audit Report
— —— ———=e oecrelarial Audit Report

The Members,
Sayaji Hotels Limited

Ourreponofevendateistobefeadalongwiththislewer.

1

Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance
of laws, rules and regulations and happenings of events et

Far Ritesh Gupta & Co.
Company Secretari

TSSAVAN HOTELS UMITED ) 2017-18
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1.

‘Annexure-A’ to the Secretarial Audi Report

The Members,
SayajiHolels Limited
Our report of even date is to be read along with Ehis letter,

Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. Qur responsibility is to
€XIress an opinion on these secretaria! records based on our
audit.

We have followed the audit practice and processes as were
appiopriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the Secretasial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct
facts are reflected in secretarial records. [ believe that the
processes and practices, | followed provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of
financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company
since the same have been subiject fo review hy statutory
financial auditor, Cost auditor and other designated
professionals,

Date : 30.07.2018
Place: Indore

The compliances of subsidiaries companies not been
reviewed in this audit since the same have been subject o
review by other designated professionals and not a pait of
ourauditassignment.

Wherever required, | have obtained the Management
representation about the compliance of laws, rules and
requlations and happenings of events efc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other
applicable laws. rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of Management. Gur examination was fimited
to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the
future Nability of the Company nor of the efficiency of
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

For Ritesh Guepla & Co.
Company Secrelaries

Ritesh Gupta
CP No. 3764, FCS:5200

(A)

(8}

ANNEXURE ‘3’ TO BOARD'S REPORT

CGonservation ol Energy-

(i Thesteps taken orimpact on conservation of energy: -
Nong

(ii)  The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate
sources of energy; -~ Company has taken solar power
units from Ujaas Energy Ltd. for its hotel situated at
Indore. Approximately 15% of power consumption of
the above hotel of the Company is through solar
energy.

{fi} The capital investment on energy conservation
egquipment; - None

Technology Absorption

(i}  Theefforts made towards technglogy absorptign; - No

technology absorption was dene by the Company
during the last financial year.

(i) The benefit derived like product improvement, cost
reduction, product development or import

CONSERVATION OF ERERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND BUTGO
[Section 134(3) (m) of The Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of The Companies Accounts) Rules, 2014]

substitution; - NLA,

{iii)  In case of imported technotogy (imported during the
last three years reckoned from the beginning of the
financial year) ~Company has not imported any
technology during the last three financial years.

(3) Thedetails of technology imported; - N.A.
{b) Theyearofimport;-N.A,

ic) Whether the technology been fully absorbed: -
NA.

{d} H not fully absorbed, areas where absorption
has not taken place, and the reason thereof: and
~N.A.

{e) The expenditure incurred on Research and
Development - \LA.

{C} Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo—

i.  Foreign Exchange Farning - 757.62 Lakhs
ii.  ForeignExchange Outga —40.96 Lakhs

- 336
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ANNEXURE ‘4’ TO BOARD’S REPORT

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the financial year ended 31.03.2018

[Pursuant to Secticn 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, and Rule 12(1) of the Companies
{Management and Administration)} Rules, 2614)

FORM NO. MGT -9
l.  Registration and Other Details

CIN L51100GJ1982PLCO05131
Registration Date 05/04/1982

Name of the Company Sayaji Hotels Limited
Category/Sub-Categary of the Company Company having Shars Capitai

Address of the Registered Office and contact details (C2/F1), in Siva Vel Apartment. No. 2 Alagappa Nagar,
Zamin Paflavaram Chennai Tamif Nadu, 600117
Phane : 044-29871174; Fax - 06000000000, Email — cs@sayatigroup.com

Whether listed company Yes

Name, address and contact details of Registrar and | Link In Time India Put, Lid.

Transfer Agent, if any G- 101, 247 Park, LBS Marg, Vikhroli West, Mumbai — 400 083

Phone : 022-49186000

Email: shweta.poojari@ilinkintime.co.in, Name of Contact Person: Shweta Pgojari

Il.  Pringipal Business Aclivities ofthe Company
All the Business Activitles contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shalibe siated:

Name and Description of main Products / Services NIC Cade of the Product / Service | % to fofal turnover of the Company
Hote! 55101 42.14%
Restaurants and Banquet 56301 57.86%

Wl Particulars of Subsidiaries and associale Companiesason 31stMarch, 2018
Holding/Subsidiary/ % of Appiicable
Name and address of the Company CIN/GLN Associate shares held Section

Sayaji Housekeeping Services Ltd. U74900KA2016PLCOB69BS § Wholily-Owned 100% 2(87)
Subsidiary

Aries Hotels Pvt, Ltd, U74300GJ1996PTCO30171 Subsidiary 52.37% 2(87)

Sayaji Hotels Management Lid. U55206TN2018PLC122667 | Wholly-Owned 100% 2(87)
Subsidiary

Malwa Hospitality Pvt. Ltd. U55209MP2008PTC020502 Subsidiary 51.67% 2(87)

Sayaji Hotels (Vadodara) Limited UUS5209TN2018PLC122598 | Wholly-Owned 100% 2(87)
Subsidiary

Sayaji Hotels (Pune) Limited U55204TN2018PLC122599 | Wholly-Owned 100% 2(87)
Subsidiary

=N 7N




: @ . SAYAJL HOTELS LIMITED -* 338
PART - A
EQUITY SHARES
IV(A). SHAREHDLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capilal Breakup as % of the total Equity}
i) Category-wise Shareholding
c sha No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end ol the year % Chasge
Floger e Shreteldor Domat | Physical | Tolm | T peng T ophysical | Totm % f Total ”’323,""
A. Promaeters
(1) Indian
2} Individval 7 HUF 88,67.935 1641100 } 10509035 59.99 | 93.78526| 12.88.1D9 1,06,68,626 60.89 0.90
b) Cantral Govt. H 0 0 0 ¢ ] 0 90 L
c) State Govt.(s) 0 0 ¢ 0 0 C 0 0 0
g} Bodies Corporate 2497575 120000 2617575 1494 24,5500D 0] 2455000 14.01 {£.93)
¢) Banks/Fl g H 0 ¢ 0 0 0 0 D
1} Any Other.... 0 0 ] o i} 0 0 9 0
Sub-Total {A){1): 11365510 1761108 | 1312661D 74.93 | 11,833,526 | 12,88,100 {1,31,21,626 74.90 {0.03)
{2) Forelgn
a) NRIs - individuats @ 0 0 0 0 i} q 0 ¢
b) Other - Individuals 0 0 ] 0 0 0 H 1] 0
¢) Badies Corporate 0 L] 0 o 0 0 0 0 ]
d) Banks/# 4] 4] 0 g 9 0 [t} 0 0
8} Any Other... H 0 0 i} 4] ¢ i} 0 0
Sub-Total (4)(2): ] i} [ 0 ¢ 0 0 0
Tatal Sharshoiding of 11365510 1761100 | 13126610 74.93 | 11,833,526 12,88,100 [1,31,21,526 74.90 (0.03)
Promolers {A) =
A1)+A)2)
B, Public SharehoMing
(1} Institutions
a) Mutaal Funds/ UTI ] 4000 4000 0.02 0 4000 4006 802 0
b} Banks/FI 0 300 300 0.90 50 300 350 0.00 i}
¢) Central Gowt, H 0 0 0 0 0 ( a 0
8} State Gowt.(s) 0 g 0 0 0 0 3] 0 0
€) Venture Capital Funds g ] 0 i ¢ 0 a 0 ]
ft insurance Companies 1] 0 0 0 0 i} ] 0 0
¢g) Flis 0 0 0 0 0 0 1] o 0
h} Foreign Venture o 4] 0 ¢ ¢ i ¢ 0 0
Capital Funds
i} Others (Specify) 0 i 0 0400 6 | )] 0.00 0
Sub-Yeial (B){1): ] 4300 4300 0.02 50 4300 4350 .02 0
{21 Hon-Institutions
a) Bodies Corporate
i} Indkn 87335 13373 100708 0.58 89845 13373 103218 2,59 (LA
ifj Owvbrseas 0 0 b {l 0 0 1] ] ]
b} individuals
1} Individual 294051 214213 508264 2.90 300103 209762 509865 2.91 4.0
Shareholders hoiing
nominal share capital
upto 1 kakh
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No. of Shares helt 2! the beginning of ibe year Ne. 01 Shares held at the end of the year % Change
Category of Sharehoider during the
Demat | Pysical | ot | WRIHOUT pegat | prysical | yaat TRl | s
i) Individuat 72104 4] 727104 4.16 72714 (] 7.27.104 4.18 0.00
Sharehotders holding
nominal share capital
in excess of 1 kakh ]
¢) Others 18142 ¢ 18142 D19 18,521 ] 18,521 011 0.01
{HUF and Non Resident
{Non Repatriabie))
i) Shares held by 0 0 0 0 0 0 ] ¢ .00
Pakistani citizens
vested with the
Gustodian of Enemy
Property
i}y Other Foreign 1] 0 0 0 0 o 0 0 0.00
Mationais
iy Foreign Bodies 0 C 0 i} 1} g 0 0 0.00
ivh NRi/QCBs 3014855 15383 J031238 17.31 3016447 16383 3032830 1731 9,00
v) Clearing Mernbers/ 1634 0 1634 0400 486 {0 486 0.00 (.00
Clearing House
vi) Trusts 1] )] qQ ¢ 3] 0 0 0.00
vii} LLP 0 0 0 ] 0 [V 0.00
viii) Foreign Portfolio 0 0 0 ] 0 0 0.00
Irvestor {Corporate)
i} Qualified Foreign 0 g D g 1] 0 ] ¢ 400
vesior
Sub-Totat (B)(2): 4143121 243569 4387080 25.05 4152506 239518 4392024 25.08 0.03
Total Pubiig Shmhuldinq 4143121 248269 4331390 25.87 4152556 243818 4386374 25.10 2.03
(B}=(B){1)+(B}2)
Grand Tolaf (A+B) 15508631 2008368 | 17518000 100 15986082 1531918 | 17518080 100 ]
ii}  Shareholding of Promoters (Including Promalers Group)
Sharehalding al 1he beginning af the year Sharehalding at the end of the year % change in
o % of Shares o % of Shares | shareholding
Sharehoiders Name % 0f total Pl % of tota) )
No. 01 Shares | shares of the edged/ &\ rshares | sharesofthe | Piedged/ during
’ ancumberad o entumberes to the year
Company folal shares Compary total shares
Raoof Razak Dhanari 3893651 22.26 25.01 3858651 22.28 2756 0.00
Anisha Dhanani 2.96,578 1.69 0.00 296,578 1.69 100 090
Ahilya Hotels Ltd. 245500 14.01 10.39 2455000 14.01 0.00 0.00
Late. Sajid R. Dhanani 2435511 13.90 56.50 2435511 13.90 24.64 0.00
Nasim Desai 626900 3.57 0.00 0 0 0.00 {3.57)
Suchitra Dhanani 320829 1.83 35.02 336029 1.88 0.00 0.05
Kayum Dhanani 25,589,288 14.61 3.09 3638072 20.77 100 6.16
Habibunisha Dhanani 83,700 0.53 0.00 0 0 0.00 {0.53)
Abhas Shaikh 80000 0.29 0.00 0 0 0.00 {0.29)
Sadika Memon 5010C 029 0.00 100 (.00 0.00 (0.29)
Bipasha Dhanant 50000 .29 g 50000 0.29 0.00 (.00
Shamim Sheikh 50200 0.29 0.00 200 0.00 0.00 {0.29)
Abdul Razak Dhanani 50600 0.29 0.00 (] 0.00 0.00 {0.29)
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Sharahalding at ike end of the year Sharehalding at the begirning of Jhe year % change in
. % of Shares o %ot Shares | sharehalding
Sharcholders Kame No. of Shares s;t:fst::lta n!m anr,:lmg:rg; 1 Neo, of Shares sh/;r:;t::::w an::emdhgei: é " !;':"'g'

Gompany tolal shares Compary {olal shares !

Mansoor Memon 100 0.00 0.00 100 0.00 0.00 0.00

Jamila Dhanani 5200 0.05 0.00 0 0.00 0.00 {0.05)

Rafiqunisha Merchnat 17378 0.10 0.00 17378 0.10 0.00 0.00

Liherty Construction & Leasing Ltd. 120000 0.69 4.00 0 0.00 0.00 (0.69)

Bharat Equity Services Ltd.- 1400 0.01 0.00 0 0.00 0.00 (0.01}

M.P. Agro Industries Ltd. 41175 0.24 0.00 0 0.00 0.60 (0.24)

Total 13126610 74.93 13121626 74,90 (0.03}

ifi} ~ Change in Promoters’ (Including Promaters Group} Shareholding (Please specify, if there is ne changs)

Shareholding at the beglaning of the year Cumutalive Sharebalding during the year
No. of Shares % ::;n?:“ﬁ:;s of No. of Shares b r:;:u?ol':::;s N

At the beginning of the year 13126610 74.93 13126610 74.93

02.06.2017 (371} (0.00} 13126239 74.93

To sale ¢f the shares

12.05.2017 {4582) (0.03) 13121657 74.90

To sale of Shares

13.06.2017 (31) {0.00) 13121626 74.90

To Sale of Shares

At the end of the year 13121626 7490 13121626 74.90

iv}  Sharehelding Patlarn of Top Ten Shareholders (Other than Directors, Promotars and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)
Shareholding 2 the begirning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year
For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders % of tolal shares of % of totat shares ef
No. of Shares the Company No. of Shares the Company

Ahdul Gani Sarfaraz Dhanani 748687 4.27 748687 427
Sana Dhanani 716623 4.09 716623 4.09
Nasreen Yusuf Dhanani 715097 4.08 715097 4.08
Rohini S. tdar 526000 3.00 526000 3.00
Shraddha Ankit Gadiya 278600 1.59 278600 1.59
Ankit Gadiya 278600 1.59 278600 159
Shashikant Ghandramohan Dubsy 254850 1.45 254850 145
Ramiz Darvesh 122454 0.69 122454 0.69
Trans Agro India Pvt, Lid. 76000 0.43 76000 0.43
Dilip Kumar Gadiya 59850 0.34 59850 0.34
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¥)  Sharehoiding of Direstors and Key Managerial Personnel
Skareholding at the heginning of the year Cumulalive Sharetolding during the year
No. of Shares % ';,':’::’D'":z:;f o No. af Shares % ‘;;'."L‘;;:;’? N
1 Racoi Razak Bhanani
At the beginning of the year 3858651 22.26% 3898651 22.26%
Changes During the year - - -
At the end of the year 3898651 22.26% 3898651 22.26%
2 Kayum Razak Dhanani
At the beginning of the year 2559288 14.61% 2559288 14.61%
27.03.2¢17 124130 0.71% 2683478 16.32%
By transfer of Shares
28.08.2017
By Transfer of Shares 34755 0.20% 2718233 15.52%
29.03.2017
By Transfer of Shares 34755 0.20% 2752938 15.72%
12.06.2017
By transfer of shares 36593 0.21% 2789581 16.92%
02.06.2018
By transfer of Shares 119979 0.68% 2909560 16.61%
13.06.2017
By Transfer of shares 101619 0.58% 3011179 17.19%
15.06.2017
By transfer of shares 626900 3.58% 3638079 20.77%
At the end of the year 3638079 20.77% 3638079 20.77%
3 Suchitra Dhanani
At the beginning of the year 320829 1.83% 320829 1.83%
Date -~ 23.11.2017
By transfer of Shares 9200 0.05% 330029 1.88%
At the end of the year 330029 1.88% 330029 1.88%
4 T.N. Unni
At the beginning of he year - - - .
Changes During the ysar - - - -
Al the end of the year - - - -
5 Sanjay Ahuja
At the beginning of the year - - - -
Changes During the year - - - -
At the end of the year - - - -
6  Pradesp Goyai
At the beginning of the year - - B -
Changes During the year - - -
At thes end of the year- - - -
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Shareholding al the beginning of the year

Cumaiative Shareholding during the year

No. of Shares % "‘;':g;,::::;’ of No. of Shares L ‘;L;"g‘:;g:;ey‘ of
Abhay Chintaman Chaudhari
At the beginning of the year - .
Changes During the year - - - .
At the end of the year - - - .
Sandesh Khande!wal

At the beginning of the year

Changes During the year

At the end of the year

Amil Sarsaf

At the baginning of the year

Changes During the year

At the end of the year
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PART- B
PREFERENCE SHARES
(Preference Share Capital Breakup as % of the tota! Paid itp Preferance Share Capital)
) Calegory-wise Shareholding
s Ne. of Shares held at the begisning of he year No. cf Shares held at the end of the year % Change
pelegory o Sharehotder Demat Physical Tofal %sm's" Damai Physical Tolai %sﬂgg? d’";ﬂg rlhe
A. Promolers
{1) Indian
a} Individual / HUF 0 1000000 1060000 100 0| 1000000 1000000 100 0
b) Central Govt, D o ] 0 ] 0 ¢ 0
) State Govt.(s) 0 0 0 Q 0 a 0 0
d} Bodies Corporate 0 H 0 00 0 9 0 0 Q
¢} Banks /Fl ¢ 0 9 0 0 0 0 0 0
f} Any Cther..., 0 0 0 0 ¢ 0 0 0 0
Suh-Total (A} 1): 0 1000000 | 1009000 100 0{ 1000000 | 1p30COD 160 0
(2} Foreiga
a) NRIs - individeals 0 0 0 0 ¢ 0 0 ¢ 0
b) Other - Individuals 0 0 0 0 g 0 g 0 0
<) Bodies Corporate g 0 ¢ g 0 0 0 0 0
dy Banks /H 0 0 0 0 H 0 0 9 ¢
@) Any Other... 0 ] 0 ¢ 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-Total (A}2): 0 0 D 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Sharehotding of ¢! 1000008 | 1000000 100 0 1D0EO20] 1000000 100 0
Promoters {A) =
(AHNANZ)
B. Public Shareholding
(1) Institutions
2) Mutual Funds/ UT} 0 0 0 0 ¢ 0 o 0 0
b) Banks /F i 0 1] 0 0 0 0 ¢ (H
c) {eniral Gowt. 0 0 [t} g0 {0 0 g 0 0
d) State Govt.(s) 0 B 0 0 " ¢ ] 0 ¢
€} Venturs Capital Funds, ¢ 0 0 Y 0 c ¢ 0 a
f} Wsucance Companies 0 ¢ 0 I} ] c 0 t 0
g} Fils 0 ¢ 0 ¢ ¢ 0 0 0 0
h) Foreigr Venture
Capital Funds 0 0 D ¢ 1] 0 0 0
iy Qthers (specify) Hj ) 0 0 g [ ¢ g 0
Sub-Tolal {B)(1): [ 0 ) 0 ] L] 0 0 0
(2} Hon-Institutians
3} Bodies Corporate
i) Indian 0 g 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
if) Qverseas 0 0 0 $ [ [ 0 0 0
b} Individuals
i) Indéviduat Share- ] ] 0 ¢ a (1} 0 ¢ 0
hoiders holding
nominaf shats
capital upto 1 Lag
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No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year RNe. of Shares held at the end ol the year % Chaage
Category of Shareholdes - Tolal %ol Total % of darieg the
Demal Physical Total Shares Demat Physical Tolal oShar;s year
iiy Individual Share- 0 0 0 J 0 Q 0 0 0
helders hoiding
rominal stiarg
capital upto 1 Lac
¢} Others (specity) ] 1 )] 0 0 o 0
i} Shares held ¢ 0 0 ] ¢ ¢ 0 0 (1]
Pakistani citizens
vested with the
Custodian of
Enemy Properly
iiy Other Forsign ¢ 0 q 1] 0 4] 0 t 0
Nationals
iii Foreign Bodies 0 ¢ 0 ¢ 0 0 0 i}
iv) NRI/ 0CBs D 0 ] ] 0 [H i} 0
v) Clearisng Members/ 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 ¢ 0
Clearing House
i) Trusts 0 0 [} 0 0 0 9] 0 0
vii) LLP 0 8 0 0 ¢ 0 ¢ ¢
viii} Foreign Porffodio 0 0 j D 0 0 0 0 0
Inyestor (Corporats}
iy Qualified Foreign 0 0 0 0 ¢ 0 ] 0 0
Investor
Sub-Tolal (B){2): 1 ] 1] 0 0 ] 0
Tokal Public Shareholding| 0 0 i} ¢ ¢ ] 0 0 0
(B)=ABK1)+(B)2)
Grand Total (A+B) 0 1000003 ]  1BOUOOD 140 0] 1000000 1000000 108 ¢
*Thera isano Change in preference Shareholding during the year,
ii)  Preterence Shareholding of Promaters
Sharsholding al the baginning of the year Sharehotding at the end of {he year % change in
Sharehsiders Name % of total % of Shares % of lntal % of Shares | sharehelding
Preferance Pledged / Preference Pledged / duri
No. of SHares | staaves of the | encumberedt 1o | N0 ® SIS | chares arthe {encumberedio|  the Vgt
Company totai shares Company total shares
Saha Dhanani 125000 12.50 g 125000 12.50 0 0
Sadiya Dhanani 125000 12.50 0 125000 12.50 0 0
Azhar Dhanani 125000 12.50 t] 125000 12.50 0 0
Zuber Dhanani 125000 12.50 0 125000 12.50 G 0
Kaytm Dhanani 125000 12.50 0 125000 1250 0 0
Akanksha Sara Dhanani 128000 12.50 0 125000 12.50 0 0
Sanya [Yhanani 125000 12.50 0 125000 12.50 ¢ 0
Suchitra Dhanani 125060 12.50 4 125000 12.50 0 i;
Tota| 1000000 100.00 0 1000000 100.60 ] 0
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ill}  Changein Pramoters' Shareholding (Please specify, if there is na change)

Preference Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Preference Sharsholding durinp the year
%o of totai Paid wp Prelerence % of l0lal Paid wp Preference

No. of Shares shares of the Company Mo. of Shares shares of the Company
Atthe beginning ot the year 1000000 100.00 1000000 100.00
Date wise [ncrease/Decrease in Nil 0 0 G
shareholding during the year
specitying the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.g. aflotment/transfer/
bonus/sweat equity etc):
At the end of the year 1000000 100.00 1000000 100.00

“There is no Change in preference Shareholding during the year.
iv}

Shareholding Pattern cf Tap Ten Shareholders (Othe: than Direciors, Promoters and Hoiders of GDRs and ADRs) : Nil

v)  Sharehoiding of Directars and Key Managerial Personnel
Share holding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during dhe year
Wo. of Skaves oﬁl(;:;::mcff:::rr;s No. of Shares i :mcaslmsﬁ :;g
1 Suchiira Dhanani
Al ihe heginning of the year 125000 12,50 125000 12.50
Changes During the year - - -
At the end of the year 125000 12.50 125000 12.50
2  Kayum Razak Dhanani
At the beginning of the year 125000 12.50 125000 12.50
Civangaes During he year - - . -
At the end of the year 125000 12.50 125000 12.50
vi. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebledness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued bul not due for payment {Rs. in Lakhs)
Secured Loans
:’::::::’: UH:::;;CI’ depssila Indez::zlness
Indebiedness at the heginning of the linansial year i.2. 01.04.2017
i) Principal Amount 7854.61 2831.57 ~ 10686.18
ii} Intesest due but not paid - 24.91 - 24.91
iii) Interest acerued but not due 20.32 - - 20.32
Total (i+it+iii) 7874.93 2856.48 - 10731.41
Change in Iindebledness during the financial year i.e. 2017-18
Addition 769.00 1935.47 - 2704.47
Reduction 1269.53 1440.00 - 2709.53
Net Change {500.53) 195.47 (5.06}
Indebieciness al the end of the financial year i.e. 31.03.2018
i} Principal Amount 7368.19 3324.89 - 10693.08
fi)y Interest due but not paid 6.21 22,06 - 33.27
iil} Interest accrued but not due - - -
Total ¢i+i+ii) 7374.40 3351.95 - 10726.35
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vil. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KMP
A. _ Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: (Rs. in Lakhs)
Mes. Suchitra M:. Raoof Razak

S.No. Particular of Remuneration Dhanani Dhanaxi Tolal

1 Gross Salary

(a) Safary as per provisions comtained in Section 17{1) ot the
Income Tax Act, 1961 31.29 0.00 31.29

(b} Value of perquisites under Section 1 7(2) Income Tax Act, 1961 0.00 0.00 0.00
{c) Profits in lieu of salary under Section 17(3} Incomie Tax Act, 1961 - -
2 Stock Options - -
3 Sweat Equity - -

4 Commission - .

- a3 % of profit - R

- others, specify.... - .

5 Others, please specify _
Total 31.2¢ 0.06 31.29
* Inclusive of Leave Encashment

B.  Remuneration to other Direclors:
1. Independent Directors (Rs. in Lakhs)

S.No. Particular of Remuneration Mr. T.N. Unni | Mr. Pradesp Goya! | Mr. Athay Chauthari Total
1 -Fee for attending Beard/Committes Meeti ngs 0.81 0.00 0.51 132
2 -Commission - - - -
3 - Others, please specity - - -

Total B.1 0.81 0.on 0.51 1.32

2. Non-Exscutive Directors (Rs. In Lakhs)

o, | PeearofRemision | v | e oot |connr T
1 -Fee Tor attentling Board/Contmiitee Meetings 0 ) 0.07 0.07
2 -Commigsion - - ) -
3 - Others, please specity . . N

Total B2 ] 0 0.07 0.07
Total (B1+B2) 1.39
£.  REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD
Mr. Sandesh | Mr. Amit Sarraf Total
S.Ro. Particular of Remuneration Khendelwa! CFQ (K
(Rs.InLakhs) | (Rs. In Lakhs) | (RS- nLakhs)
1 Gross Salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in Section 17(1) of the
Income Tax Act, 1961 2157 9.84 M

{b) Value of perquisites under Section 17(2) Income Tax Act, 1961 - - -
{c} Profits in lisu of salary under Section 17{3} Income Tax Act, 1951 - - -
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C.  BEMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

S.No. Particular of Remuneration

Mr. Sandesh
Khandelwal CFD cS
{Rs. in Lakhs)

Mr. Amil Sarrad

{Rs. In Lakhs)

Tolal
(Rs. In Lakbs)

2 Stock Options

3 Sweat Equity

4 Commission

- 85 % of profit

- others, specify. ...

5 Others, please specify

Total €

21.57

9.84

31.41

viii. PENALTY/PUNISHMENT/COMPQUNDING OF OFFENCES - NONE

Brie!
Description

Section of the

Tyve Companies Act

Details of Penalty /
Punishment /
Compaonding fees
imposed

AUTHORITY
{AD/NCLT/GOURT]

Appeal made, if any
(give details)

A. COMPANY

Penalty

Securities Exchange
Board of India
through its
adjudication order
n0. EAD/SR/SM/AD/
01/2017-18 dated
Septamber 29. 2017
imposed the penalty
ofRs. 1200000/- {Rs.
Twelve Lakhs Onlyi
to the Company for
non-contpliance of
minimum public
sharehoiding norms.

Securities Exchange
Board alIndia

Securities Exchange
Board of India
thifough its
adjudication order
no. RA/DPS/287/
218 dated Janvary
31, 2018 imposed
the penalty of Rs.
1500000/~ (Rs.
Fifteen Lakhs Oniy} to
the Company for the
violation of
regulation of 13(6) of
SEBI {Prohibition of
Insider Trading)
Regulation, 1992

Securities £xchange
Board of India
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Details of Penalty /
Type Ser;ﬁnn.al ihe B:igi_ Pun!shtqenl { AUTHORITY Appsa_l made,‘ it any
Companies Act Description Compounding tees | JRD/NCLT/COURT) (give details)
imposed

Punishment — - —
Compounding - - — S

B. DIRECTOR
Penalty — - -
Punishment - - —
Compounding —— —

C. OTHER OFFICER IN DEFAULT
Penalty - - -
Punishment -— - -
Compounding — -
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ANNEXURE ‘5’ TO BOARD'S REPORT

Disclosure pursuant ta Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, ard Rule 5(1) of the Campanies
(Appointmeni & Remuneralion ol Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2814)

i.  The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the company for the financial

year;-
s Remuneration Median
Nl; Name of Director Designation paid to Direclor Remeneration Ratio
' in FY 20%8 inFY 2018
i. | Mrs. Suchitra Dhanani WTD 31,29 1.38 1:22 67

ii.  The percentage increase in remuneration of each direcior, Chief Financiat Qfficer, Chiet Execulive Officer, Company Secretary or
Manager, )l any, in lhe financial year; -

s Remuneraiion { Remuneration Chan ch .
e Nams Designation | PaidinFY17 | Paid inFY1g | ﬂgfs) 0 “9"""
0. (InLakhs) | (i Lakhs) s of %
i. | Mrs.Suchitra Dhanani WTD 3201 31.28 (0.72) {2.25%)
ii. | Mr, Sandesh Khandewal cro 2064 21,57 0.3 4.51%
il.| MrAmit Sarsaf €S 8.02 8.84 0.64 6.36%
Hii. Thepercentage increase inthe median remunsration of employees in the finangial year;
Remuneration FY17 (In Lakhs.) Remuneration FY18 Increase v,
{in Lakhs) {In Lakhs)
1.26 1.38 0.12 9.52%
iv. Thenumber of pesmanent smployses on the relis of company; -
No. of Employees on No. of Employees an o .
Name of the Company payroll (As on 31.063.17) payrcll (As on 31.93.18) % Change during the year
Sayaji Hotels Ltd. 2098 2313 10.25%

v.  Average percentile Incraase already made inthe salaries of employees othar lhan the managerial personnel in the last financial
year and its compariscn with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justilication thereof and point out if
there are any exceptional circumsiances for increase in lhe managerial remuneration;

vi.

Remunssation paid Rerrunsraticn paid % change in %, chanae In
{o employees to employees remuaeration paid Remunerafion paid Remunaralion pald o ':‘g id
excluding excluding 1o employees 0 managerial to managerial re:rwnem on .p?'
manageriai managesial exciuding personal for Y 17 personal fer FY 18 . ma““':'a
personal for FY 17 personal for FY 18 | managerial personal Heraone
{in L2khs) {In lakks) {(in Rakhs) (1a Jakhs) {In lakhs) {in lakchs}
3343.47 4679.78 38.96% 61.85 62.70 1.37%

Affirmation thatthe remuneration is as per the remunaralion pelicy ol the Company -

The remuneration provided by the Gompany to the directors and employees is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.
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ANNEXURE ‘6’ T0 BOARD’S REPORT

FORM ND. ADC-1
(Pursuant to lirst proviso to sub-section {3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statament containing salient leatures gf the linancial statement of suhgidiaries or associale cempanies or joint vantures

Sr. No, 1 2 3
Name of the Subsidiary Mahva Hospitality Pvt. Lid | Aries Hotels Pyi, Lig, Sayaji Housekeeping
Services L1d,
Date of acquiring Subsidiary 26.03.2008 31.03.2014 16.03.2016
Financial Year ending on 31.03.2018 31.03.2018 31.03.2018
Reporting Gurrency INR IN LACS NR IN LACS INR IN LACS
Exchange Rate on thae last day of the firancial vear NA NA NA
Share Capital 1,334.49 996.35 636.50
Reserves & Surplus -852.73 195.19 231.84
Total Assets 2,626.73 1.230.15 871.56
Total Liabilities excluding equity 2.145.06 38.61 3.23
Invesiments - 110.48 631.06
Tumover 2.461.35 - -
Profit/{Lass} before tax 107.14 -2.53 140.54
Provision for tax Including deferred tax 72.78 - 3.96
Profil/(Loss) after tax 34.36 -2.53 136.52
Proposed Dividend - - -
% of sharehelding 51.67% 52.37% 100%

PART B: Associate and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuani to seclion 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Jeint Ventures

Name of Associates or Joint Ventures Barbeque-Nation Hospitality Ltd
1. Latest audited Bakance Sheet Date 31.03.2018

2. Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was associated or acquired | 29.03.2015

3. Shares of Assoctate or Joint Ventures held by the Company on the vear end
Neo. -
Amount of Investment in Associates or Joini Venture -
Extend of Holding {in percentage) -

4.  Description of how there is significant influence M/s Sayaji Houskeeping Services Ltd. (i.e.
Subsidiary of M/s Sayaji Hotels Ltd, ) holds 45.73%
stake in M/s Barbeque-Nation Hospitaity L1d.
therefore it is an associate of M/s Sayaii Hotels Jtd,

5. fleason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated NA
6. Net worth attributable 1o sharehclding as per fatest audited Balance Sheet | 8148.20 lakhs
7. __ Profit or Loss for the year (Net) 161.61 lakhs
{. Considered in Consofidatian Yes.
ii._Not Considered in Consolidation . .
For K. 1. Vyas & Co. For : Sayaji Hotels Limitef yfiji Hotels Limited
Chartered Accountants T
Fitm Regn Mg, 003289C . K. Unni pa a -
Thasran Managing Director
K. L. Vyas DIN-00074237 DIN~- 00172654

Partner ) i
. No. 672043 Forfyvall goteliuud For Sayaji Hotels.{ e
indore 30th May. 2018 |
andelwal
Financial Officer fpan ary .

P
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ANNEXURE ‘6’ TO BOARD'S REPORT

FORM NO. AOC-1

(Pursuant to first provise o sub-section {3) of seclion 129 read with rufe 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Stalement containing salient leatures of the linancial statement of subsidiaries or asseciate companies ar joint veniures

Sr. No. 1 2 3
Name of the Subsidiary Malwa Hospitality Pvt. Lid | Aries Hotels Put. Ltd. | Sayaji Housekeeping
Services Ltd.
Date of acquiring Subsidiary 26.03.2008 31.03.2014 16.03.2016
Financial Year ending on 31.03.2018 31.03.2018 31.03.2018
Reporting Currency iNR IN LAGS INR IN LACS INR IN LACS
Exchange Rate on the last day of the financial year NA NA NA
Share Capitat 1,334.40 996.35 636.50
Reserves & Surplus -852.73 195.19 231.84
Total Assets 2,626.73 1,230.15 871.56
Total Liabilities excluding equity 2,145.06 38.61 3.23
investments - 110.48 631.06
Turnover 2,461.35 - -
Profit#{Lpss} before tax 107.14 -2.53 140,54
Provision for tax Including daferred tax 72.78 - 3.96
Profit/(Loss} after tax 34.36 -2.53 136.52
Proposed Dividend - s -
% of shareholding 51.67% 52.37% 100%

PART B: Associate and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to saclion 129(3) of the Companies Acl, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

fName of Associates or Joint Vantures

Barbeque-fation Hospitality Ltd

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date

31.03.2018

2. Date on which the Associate or Jaint Venture was associated or acquired

29.03.2016

3. Shares of Associate or Joint Ventures held by the Company o the year end

No.

Amount of Investment in Associales or Join1 Venture

Extend of Holding {in percentagej

4. Description of how there is significant influence

Mss Sayaji Houskeeping Services Lid. (i.e.
Subsidiary of M/s Sayaji Hotels Ltd. ) holds 45.73%
stake in M/s Barbeque-Nation Hospitality Lid.
therefore it is an associate of M/s Sayaji Hotels itd.

5. _ Heason why the associate/joint ventitre is not conselidated NA

6. __Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet 8148.20 fakhs

7. Profit or Loss for the year (et) 161.61 lakhs
i. Considered in Consolidation Yes.

fi. NotConsidersd in Consolidation

ForK. L. ¥yas & Co.
Chértered Accountants
Rrm Regn No, 003289C

K L. Vyas

Partngr

M. No. 072043

ndore 30th May. 2018

For : Sayaji Hotels Limited

TN Ui e
Chaioman
DIN-D0079237

For %ayaji Hotels Lt Fok Savaii How®
andetwal /“W
Ch# Financial Officer M

rfl Saxaji Hotels Limited
a

Managing Director
DIN - 00174554

Compar;

=

.

/ -
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A.

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors present the Company's Report on Corporate Governance for the year ended on
3181 March, 2018

COMPANY'S PHILDSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Sayaji Hotels Limited “Sayaji” has been ane of the front
runners in India to have putin place a formalized system
of Corporate Governance. Sayaji is commitied to
achieve the highest standards of Corporate Governance
and adhere to the Corporate Governance requirsments
set cut by the Securities and Exchange Board of india
(SEBH). The report on Corporate Governance as
stipulated under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations. 2015 forms an
infegral part of this Repont.

The Corporate Governance standards demonstrate
inalienable rights vested with various stakeholders and
strong commitment to values, ethics and business
conduct. Your Company is committed to good
Corporate Governance, based on an effective
Independent Board, separation of supervisory role from
the executive management and constitution of
Committees to oversee critical areas thus upholding the
standards practically at every sphere ranging from
action pian to perfermance measurement and custormer
satisfaction.

Sayaji philosophy on Corporate Governance is about
inteliectual honesty whereby the governance is not just
about encompassing regulatory and legal requirements
but also strives 1o enhance stakehoiders’ value as a
whoig. Your Company belongs to legacy where the
visicnary founders laid the stone for good governance
through the philosophies of “To make more & more
people happy for a prolonged period of Time”, implying
the duty to work diligently carrigs the responsibility that
one should give something back to others and society
and enables one to build trust and confidence with one’s
stakeholders, including employees, customers and
suppliers, where long term relationships could be
developed for the benefit of everyone. Thus, the
standards of governance are guided by the foilowing
principles.

Ciear and ethical strategic direction and sound business
decisions

Prudentfinancial management,

Transparentand professional decision making.

Excellence in Corporate Governance by abiding the
guidelines and continuous assessment of Board
processes and the management Systems for constant
improvisation,

« Your Company protects and facilitates the exercise of
shareholders’ rights, provides adequate and timely
information. opportunity to parlicipate effectively and
vote (including remote e-voting) in general sharehaldes
meetings and postal baliots, and ensure equitable
treatment to all the shareholders.

» Your Company recognizes the rights of all the
stakeholders and encourages ¢o-operation between the
Company and the stakeholders to enable your
participation in the Corporate Governance process.

e Your Company ensures adequate, timely and accurate
disclosure on all material matters including the financial
sitvation. performance, ownership and governance of
the Company 1o the stock exchanges and the investors.
Intarmation is prepared and disclosed in accordance
with the prescribed standards of accouating, financial
and non-financial disclosure and are disseminated in an
equal, timely and cost efficient access to relevant
information by users.

Our Core Purpose

“To make more & more People happy for a
Prolonged period of Time”

8. GOVERNANCESTRUCTURE

The Company has put in place an internal governance structure
with defined roles and responsibilities of every constituent of the
system. The Company’s shareholders appoint the Board of
Directors, which in turn governs the Company. The Board has
established five Committees ta discharge its responsibilities in an
effective manner. Sayaji's Company Secretary acts as the Secretary
to all the committegs. The Chairman and Managing Director {MD)
provides overall direction and guidance to ihe Board, In the
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Operations and tunctioning of the Company, the MD is assisteqd by
one Executive Directors and a ¢ore group of senior leve! executives.

The Chairman of the Board (‘the Chairman’} is the leader of the
Beard. The Chairman is responsible for fostering and promoting
the integrity of the Board while nurtu ring a culture where the Board
works harmoniously for the long-term benefit of the Company and
all its stakeholders. The Chairman guides the Board for effective
overnance structure in the Company. In doing so, the Chairman
presides at the meetings of the Board and the shareholders of the
Company.

The Chairman takes a lead role in managing the Board and
facilitating effective communication ameng [irectors, The
Chairman is responsible for matters pertaining to goversance,
including the organisation and composition of the Board, the
organisation and conduct of Board meetings, eifectivenass of the
Board, committees and individual Directors in fulfilling their
responsibilities. The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in
manzagement of the Board’s administrative activities such as
meetings, schedules, agendas, communication and
documentation,

The Chairman and MD actively works with the Human Resources,
Nemination and Remuneration Committee to plan the Board and
committees’ composition, induction of directors to the Board, plan
for director succession, participate in the Board effectiveness
evaluation process and meet the individual directors fo provide
constructive feedback and advice,

C. ETHICS/GOVERNANCE POLICIES-

At Sayaji, we strive to conduct our business and strengthen our
refationships in a manner that is dignified, distinctive ang
responsible. We adhere to ethical standards to ensure infegrity
transparency, independence ang accountability in deaiing with ali
stakeholders. Therefore, we have adopted various codes and
policies to carry outour duties in an ethical manner. Some of these
codes and policies are;

> Code of Conduct

Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blowesr Policy
Pelicy for determining materiality
Nomination and Remuneration Policy

Y v

Policy for preservation of documents
Risk Management Policy

Corporate Social Responsibility Policy

D.  BESTCORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES-

Sayaji maintains the highest standards of Corporate Governance. It
is the Company's constant endeavour to adopt the best Corporate

¥ ¥ ¥ ¥

Governance practices keeping in view the international codes of
Corporate  Governance and practices of well-known globat
companies. Some of the best impiemented global governance
norms include the following:

¢ Al securities related filings with Stock Exchanges are
reviewed every quarter by the Board.

* The Company has independent Board Committees for
matters refated to Corporate Governance and
stakenolders’ interface and nomination of Board
members.

o The Company's internal audit is also conducted by
independent auditors.

E.  BOARD DF DIRECTORS

At Sayaji, The Board of Directors of your Company which consists
of an optimum mix of Executive and Non-Exective Directors and
Women Director. The composition of the Board consists of a fine
blend of professionais from diverse backgrounds which enables
ihe Board to discharge its responsibilities more efficiently and
provitie effective leadership by taking the Company’s business to
achieve greater heights. We believe that a truly diverse board will
leverage difference in thought, perspective, knovdedge, skill and
industry experience cultural and geographical background, age,
ethnicity, race and gender which will help us retain our competitive
advantage,

*  BOARD COMMITTEES -

The Board currently has 5 Commitess: 1} Audit Committee. 2)
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 3} Stakehoiders’
Relationship Comemittee, 4) Corporate Social Aesponsibility
Cermmmitiee and 5) Borrowing & Investment Committee. The terms
of reference of the Board Committees are governed by the Board
from time to time. The Board is responsible for constituting,
assigning and co-opting the members of the Commitiees. The
meetings of each Board Committes are convened by the Company
Secretary in consufiation with the respective Committee Chairman.

Boivowing &
Tnvestment
.. Committee

Corporate Social - §
Ruspangibili‘y///' \\\\Rtlaﬁonshlp
Commlttee // \\Commmee
7 / \\b .
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=  Board Composition and calegory of Directors as on March
31,2018

The Board of Directors has an optimum combination of
executive and non-executive independent direclors
including one women director.

Non-Executive

& Independant
Director - 3

Executive g
Direstor - 2 k4

Gther Non-
Executive Direchors

ineluding tha
Chairman - 2

Board
Eompoilion

*  Informationplaced before the Board of Directors:

 The Board of Directors has complete access to the
information within the Company, which inter alia
includes-

a} Annual revenue budgets and capital expenditurg
plans.

b} Quarterly results.
¢) Financing plans of the Company.

d) Minutes of meeting of Board of Directors, Audit
Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Commities
Stakeholders Relationship Committee and Corporate
Social Responsibitity Committee

e) Details of any joint venture. acguisitions of
coempanigs or collaboration agreement,

1) Guarterly report on fatal or SErous accidents or
dangerous occurrences, any material effluent or
pollution problems,

0) Any materially refevant default, if any, in financial
obligations to and by the Company or substantial
non-payment for goods sold or services rendered, if
any

h} Any issue, which involves possitile pudlic or product
liability claims of substantial nature, including any
Judgmentor Order, if any, which rmay have strictures
on the conduct of the Company.

i) Developments in respect of human Fesource
Comgpliance or Non-compiiance of any regufatory,
statutory nature or listing requirements and invesior
service such as non-payment of dividend, delay in
share transfer, etc., ifany

i) Show cause, demand, prosecetion and adjudication
notices, if any, from revenue authorities which are
considered materially important, including any
exposure that exceeds 1% of the Company’s worih,
and their outcomes.

» Post-meeting internal communication sysiem:
The important decisions taken at the Boargd
/Committee meetings are communicated to the
concerned departments / ICs promptly. An Action
Taken Report is presented to the Board.

- Divectors’ Profile

A brief resume of Directors, nature of their expertise in specific
functional areas and names of companies in which they hold
Directorships, Memberships/ Chairmanships of Board Committees
are hereundar -

(DIN-00174654)

S.Ne | Mame of the Directors Date oi Appointment Prafie
1. T N. Unni 31/01/2002 He is a practicing Chartered Accountant and having
(DIN-00079237} experience of more than 40 yrs in accounts,
taxation, Corporate Governance etc. At present he
is the Ghairman of the Board and the Audit
Committee
2. Raoof Razak Dhanani 14/11/2013 Mr. Racof Razak Dhanani is the Managing

Director of the Sayaji Hotels Lig.
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S.No | Kame of the Directors Date of Appointment Profile

3. Suchitra Dhanani
{DiN-00?1218?]

06/02/2014 Mrs. Suchitra Dhanani, aged 53 years is Whole-
Time Director of Sayaji Hotels Ld. and qualified as
Master in Social Works. She is presently taking
care Guest Satisfaction Index Department and
training department of the Company and also
involved day to day critical matters of the Company

4 Kayum Razak Dhanani
{DIN-00987597)

301172012 Mr. Kayum Dhanani, aged 46 years is qualified as
aniGCS from Cambridge University, Presently heis
serving as non-executive direcior in the Company.

He has wide range of experience viz. soles and
shoes industry, fertilizers business ang hotel &
restaurant business. He is also Managing director
of the Barbegue-Nation Hospitality Limited and
Sara Suole Private Limited

14/02/2017 Mr. Abhay Chintaman Chaudhari, aged 62 years is
retired senior Bank officer. He had worked as Chief
General Manager in State Bank of India, He was
also deputed to other associates Companies of
State Bank on time to time basis. He is well versed
infinance, capital market, risk management etc.

5. Abhay Chintaman Chaudhari
{DIN-06726836)

01/02/2012 Mr. Sanjay Abuja, is a Company Secretary and Cost
Accountant by profession. He is the Compliance
Officer of Tourism Finance Corporation of India £ 1d.
“TFCI” and acting as a naminea of TFCI on the
Board of the Company.

6. Sanjay Ahuja
{DIN-00084945)

06/02/2014 Mr. Pradeep Goyal, aged 53 vears is a Chartered
Accountant and associated with the Company asan
independent director. He has large experience in
the fietd of Finance, Accounts and Taxation.

7. Pradeep Goyal
(DIN-02798770)

=  SELECTION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS Committee, inter aiia, considers qualification, positive attributes,
area of expertise and number of Directorships and Memberships
held in various committees of other companies by such persons in
accordance with the Company's Policy For Selection of Ditectors
and determining Directors independence. The Board considers the
Committee’s recommendation, and takes apprapriate decision.

Considering the requirement of skill sets on the Board, eminent
people having an independent standing in their respactive
field/profession, and who can effectively contribute to the
Company’s business and policy decisions are considered by the
Human Resources, Nomination and Remu neration Commitiee, for
appointment, as Independent Director on the Board, The Every Independent Direcor, at the first mesting of the Board in
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which he participates as a Director and thereafter at the first including the Chairman of the Board and performance of the Board
meeting of the Board in every financial year, gives a declaration that as a whole. The Non- Independant Directors did not take part in the
he meets the criteria of independence as provided under law, meeting.

*  FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMMES FDR DIRECTORS In a separate meeting of independent directors, performance of
nron-independeit directors and the board as awhole was evajuated,
taking into account the views of executive diractors and non-
executive directors. The same was discussed in the baard meeting
that followed the meeting of the independent directors, at which the
performance of the board, its committees, and individual directors
was also discussed. Performance evaluation of independent
directors was done by the entire board, excluding the independent
directar being evaluated,

The Board members are provided with necessary decuments/
brochures, reports and internal policies to enable them tg
familiarise with the Company’s procedures and practices,

Periodic presentations are made at the Board and Committee
meetings on business and performance updates of the Company,
global business environment, business strategy and risks involved.
Detailed presentations on the Company’s business segments are
mads at the separate meetings of the ndependent Directors from

time to time. The independent directors ia the mesting referred abova shall, inter

. o _ alia reviews-
The details of such familiarization programmes for Oirectors are

put up on the website of the Company and can be accessed at @
hitps.//www.sayajihotels.com/investors

= SEPARATEMEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS (b} reviewthe performance of the chairperson of the listed entity,
taking inte account the views of executive directors and non-

exggutive directors;

review the performance of aon-independent directors and
the board of directors asa whole;

During the year under review, an annuval Independent Directors
meeting in accordance with the provisions of Section 149(8) read )
with Schedulg IV of the Act and Regulation 25(3) and 25(4) of the ~ 1©)
SEBI {LODR) Regulations, 2015, was convened on February 14,

2018, wherein ail Independent Directors were present, 1o review

the performance of the Non-Independent Non-Exec utive Directors

assess the quality, quantity and timefiness of flow of
information between the management of the listed entity and
the board of directors that is necessary for the board of
directors to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

= INDEPENDENT DIRECTDRS’ MEETING

During the year under review, the independent
Name of the Uirectors met on 14,02.2018 inter alia 1o review the
Committes Extract of Terms of Reference performance of following Non-independent

Directors and Board as awhole,

Independent Directors” | gection 149(8) read with Scheduig IV of the Act and | Name of the Non Category
Meeting Regulation 25(3) and 23(4) of the SEBI (LODR) |Independent Directors
Regulations, 2015 the meeting shall reviewed-

(a) review the performance of non-independent Mrs. Suchitra Dhanani Whole- time Director
directors and the Board as a Whole

(b} review the gerformance of the Chairperson of the
company, taking into account the views of
executive directors and non-executive directors;

Mr. Kayum Razak Dhanani | Nen-Executive Director

{c) assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow | Mr. Bacof Razak Dhanani | Managing Director

of information between the com pany managemsnt
and the Board that is necessary for the Soard to Mr. Sanjay Ahuja Nominee Director of
effectively and reasonably perform their duties TECI
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Oiher Details-

1.

Mr. T.N. Unni,Mr. Pradeep Goyal and Mr. Abhay Ghintaman
€Chaudhari being the Independent Directors, of the Company
were present at the meeting and the Company Secrefary
assisted the said meeting.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company has in place a comprehensive Coda of Conduct
{the Code") applicable to the Directors and employess. The
Code is applicable to Non-Executive Directors inclhuding
Independent Directors to such extent as may be applicable to
them depending on their roles and responsihilities. The Code
gives guidance and support needed for sthical conduct of
business and compliance of law. The Code reflects the values
of the Company viz. Customer Valug, Ownership Mind-set,
Respact, Integrity, One Team and Excellence.

The Code has been circulated to Directors and Management
Personnel, and its compliance is affirmed by them anauaily
and the same has been posied on the Campany’s website
www.sayajihotals.com

All Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have
confirmed compliance with the Code. A declaration to that
effect signed by the Managing Director is attached, and
forms part ofthis Annual Report.

BOARD MEETINGS, BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND
PROCEDURES

INSTITUTIONALISED DECISION-MAKING PROCESS

The Board of Directors is the apex bhody constituted by
sharenolders for overseeing the Gompany's overall
functioning. The Board provides and evalvates the
Company's strategic direction, management policies and
their effectiveness, and ensures that shareholders' long-
terminterests are being served,

The Board has conslituted five Committees, viz. Audit
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee, Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee, Borrowing and |nvestment
Committee. The Board is autherized to constitute additional
functional Committees, from time to time, depending on
business needs.

The Company's internal guidelines for Board / Committee
megtings facifitate decision-making process at its meetings
in an infarmed and efficient manner. The following sub-
sections deal with the practice of these guidefines at SHL.

SCHEDULING AND SELECTION OF AGENDA ITEMS FOR
BOARD MEETINGS

Minimum four pre-schedufed Board meetings are held
annually. Additional Board meetings are convened to
address the Company’s specific needs. In case of business

exigencies or urgency, resolutions are passeqd by circulation.
The Board notes compliance reports of all jaws applicable to
the Company, every quarter,

The meetings are held at the Company's office at Sayaji Hotel,
H-1, Scheme No. 54, Vijay Nagar, Indore (M.P).

The Chairman of the Board angd Company Secretary, in
consultation with other concerned members of the
seniormanagement, finalise the agenda for Board meetings.

The agenda and notes on agenda are circulated to Directors
in advance, and in the defined agenda format. All material
information is incorporated in the agenda for facilitating
meaningtul and focused discussions at the meeting. Where
it is pot practicable to attach any document 1o the agenda, it
is tabled befors the meeting with specitic reference to this
effect in the agenda. In special and exceptional
circumstances, additional or supplementary item(s) on the
agenda are perinifted.

RECORDING MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS AT BOARD AND
COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The Gompany Secretary records minutes of proceedings of
each Board and Committee meeting. Draft minutes are
circulated to Board/ Board Committee members for their
comiments. The minutes are entered in the Minutes Book
within 30 days from the conclusion of the meeting.

POST-MEETING FOLLOW-UP SYSTEM

The Governance processes in the Company include an
effective post-meeting follow-up, review and reporting
pracess for action taken / pending on decisions of the Board
anl the Board Commiitaes.

The important decisions taken at the Board / Committes
meetings are communicated to the concerned departments /
ICs promptly. An Action Taken Report is presented to the
Beard.

ROLE OF THE COMPANY SECRETARY IN OVERALL
GOVERNANCE PROCESS

The Company Secretary plays a key role in ensuring that the
Board (including commitiees thereof) procedures are
followed and regularly reviewed. The Company Secretary
ensures that all relevant information, details and documents
are made available to the Direclors and senior management
for effective decision making at the meetings. The Company
Secretary is primarily responsible to assist and advise the
Board in the conduct of affairs of the Company, to ensure
compliance with applicable statutory requirements and
Secretarial Standards, to provide guidance to directors and
to facilitate convening of meetings. He interfaces between
the management and regulatory authorities for governange
matters.
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Other Relevan! Details of Diregtors:

Atten;da'nce a;tge'eliuus dre ;#;m:ler hofm‘ Committee Position
Name of ihe Director i “u I:d!:n i c";}";";::‘;“ L
Board AGM :,:c!:::i::::it: g:: Member | Chairman

Mr. Raoof Razak Dhanani 3 No 15 Nit 2 il

Mr. Kayum Razak Dhanani 1 fo 10 Nif 9 Nil

Mrs. Suchitra Dhanani 3 No 10 Nil 2 2
Mr.T.N.Unni 5 No B 1 3 8
Mr. Pradeep Goyal 1 No 9 Nii 4 2
Mr. Sanjay Ahuja 1 No 1 Nif 2 Nil
Mr. Abhay Chaudhari 5 No 5 Nil 3 il
Board Meetings heid during the Year 2017-18

Dale on which the Board Meetings | Tolal Strength [ g of directors Date on which the Soard Meetings | Total Sirength [ i of divectors

were held of the Board present were held of the Board presenl
May 30,2017 7 3 February 14,2018 7 3
August28, 2017 7 4 March 18,2018 7 5
December 12,2017 7 4
Disclesure of Relatlonship between Directors inter-se:
Name Relationship " e totstonaty |
Mr. Raoof Razak Dhanani Brother Mr. Kayum Razak Dhanani
Sister in Law Mrs, Suchitra Dhanani
Mr. Kayum Razak Dhanani Brother Mr. Raoof Razak Dhanani
Sister in Law Mis. Suchitra Dhanani

Mrs. Suchitra Dhanani

Brother in Law

Mr. Raocf Razak Dhanani

Brother in Law

Mr. Kayum Razak Dhanani
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No. of Shares held By Non- Executive Director

Name ol Director and KMPs No. o Shares Held

AUDIT COMMITTEE
COMPOSITION OF THE COMMITTEE

Mr. Kayum Razak Dhanani 3638079

ROLE OF THE COMPANY SECRETARY IN OVERALL GOVERNANCE
PROCESS

The Company Secretary plays a key role in enstiring that the Boarg
(including commitiees thereat) procedures are followed and
reguiarly reviewed. The Gompany Secretary ensures that all
relevant information, details and documents arg made availabla to
the Directors and senior management for effective decision making
atthe meetings. The Company Secretary is primarily responsibie to
assist and advise the Board in the conduct of affairs of the
Company, to ensure compliance with applicable statutory
requirements and Secretarial Standards, to provide guidance to
directors and to facilitate convening of meetings. He interfaces
between the management and regulatory authorities for
governance matters.

G.  COMMITTEES OF THEBOARD

With a view to have a more focused atiention on business and for
better governance and accountability, the Board has censtituted the
following mandatory committees viz. Audit Committee,
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee, Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, Gorporate Social Responsibifity
Committee and non-mandatory committees viz. Borrowing and
Investment Commitiee,

The terms of reference of these Committees are determined by the
Board and their relevance reviewed from time to time. Meetings of
each of these Commiltees are convened by the respective
Chairman of the Commitice, who also informs the Board about the
summary of discussions heid in the Committee Meetings. The
Minutes of the Committee Meetings are sent to all Directors
individuzlly and tabled at the Board Meetings.

Mr. T N. Unni

{Chairman of the Commitiee) independent Director

Mr. Abhay Chaudhari Independent Director

Mr. Pradeep Goyal Indegendent Direcior

Mr. Sanjay Ahuja Nominee Direclor

) Audit Nominatien and

Gommitles of the Company Commitiee ngl:Lmon
Meetings held 5 4
Directors® Attendance
Raoof Razak Dhanani NA NA
T.N. Unni
Abhay Chaudhari 5
Sanjay Ahuja 1 0
Kayum Razak Dhanani NA NA
Pradeep Goyal 1 1
Suchitra Dhanani NA NA

The Comunittee’s composition and terms of refgrence are in
compliance with provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act,
2013 and Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations. Members of the
Audit Committee possess requisite qualifications.

TERMS OF REFERENCE OF AUDIT COMMITTEE INTER ALIA
INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING

«  QOversight of the Company’s financiat reporting process and
the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the
financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible

= Recommending the appointment, remuneration and terms of
appointment of statutory auditors including cost auditors of
the Company

* Approving payment to statutory auditors, including cost
auditors, forany other services rendered by them

* Reviewing with the management, the annual financial
statements and auditors’ report thereon before submission to
the Board for approval, with particular reference to:

o Matters required 10 be included in the Directoss’
Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board's
Report in terms of clause (c) of sub~section 3 of Section
134 ofthe Companies Act, 2013:

« Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and
reasons for the same:

» Significant adjustments made in financial statements
arising out of audit findings;

« Compliance with listing and other legal requirements
relating to financial statements:

« Disclosure of any related party transactions: and
» Qualifications/ modified opinions in draft audit report,

* Reviewing, with the management, the guarterly financial
statements before submission ko the Board for approval

* Reviewing and monitoring the auditors’ independence and
pesformance, and effectiveness of audit process

= Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of
the Gompany with related parties




it

360

SAYAJI HOTELS LIMITED

Scrutiny of inter~corparate loans and investments

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever
itis necessary

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management
systems

Reviewing, with the management, the performance of
statutory auditors and internal auditors, adequacy of intemal
controd systems

Formulating the scope, functioning, periodicity and
methedology for canducting the internal audit

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any,
inciuding the structure of the internal audit department,
staiting and seniority of the official heading the department,
reporting structure coverage and fraquency ofinternal audit

Discussion with internai auditors of any significant findings
and foflow-up thereon

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the
internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud
or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a
material nature and reporting the matter to the Boasd

Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit
commences, aboul the nature and scope of audit as well as
postauditdiscussion to ascertain any area of concern

To review the functioning of the Vigit Mechanism and Whistle
Blower mechanism

Approval of appointment of the CFO (i.e. the whoie-time
Finance Director or any other person heading the finance
function or discharging that function) after assessing
qualifications, experience and background, and so on of the
candidate

Reviewing financial statements, in particular the investments
made by the Company's unlisted subsidiaries
Reviewing mandatorily the following information:

{a) The Management Discussion and Analysis of financial
condition and results of operations

(b} Statement of significant relater party transactions (as
defined by the Audit Committee). submitted by
management

{¢) Management letters/ietters of internaf contrgl
weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors

(d} Intemal audit reports relating to internal controf
weaknesses; and

{e) Reviewing the appointment, removal and terms of
remuneration of the Chief internal auditor / internat
auditor(s)

= Carrying out any other function as is mandated by the Board
from time to time and / or enforced by any statutory
natification, amendment as may he applicable

GENERAL

The representatives of Statutory Auditors are permarent invitees to
the Audit Committee meetings. The representatives of Statutosy
Auditors, Executives from Accounts department, Finance
department and internal Augit department attend the Audit
Committee meetings.

The lnternal Auditor raports directly to the Audit Gommittee.

The Chairman of the Audit Commitiee was present at the iast
Annual Generat Meeting held on September 29, 2017.

MEETING DETAILS

Five meetings of the Committee were held during the year. The
meetings were hefd on May 30, 2017: August 28, 2017; December
11, 2037, Febiuary 14, 2018 and 19 March 2018. The details of
attendance are given in this Report.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
COMPOSITION OF THE COMMITTEE

Mr. T. N. Unni
{Chairman of the Commitice) Independent Director
Mr. Abhay Chandhari independent Director

Mr. Pradeep Goyal Independent Director

The Stakeholders' Relationship Committee is primarily responsible
to review all matters connected with the Company's transfer of
securities and redressal of shareholders’ / investors’ / security
holders’ complaints.

The Committee’s composition and terms of reference are in
compliance with pravisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 20the Listing Regulations.

TERMS OF REFERENCE OF STAKEHOLDERS' RELATIONSHIP
COMMITTEE INTER ALIA INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING

» Qversee and review all matters connected with the transfer of
the Company’s securities

= Approve issue of the Company’s duplicate share / debenture
certificates

= Consider. resolve and monitor redressal of investors® /
shareholders’ / security holders’ grievances refated to fransfer
of securities, non-receipt of Annual Repont, non-receipt of
declared dividend and se on,
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» Oversee the performance of the Company’s Registrars and
Transfer Agents

* Recommend methods to upgrade the standard of services to
investors

»  Monitor implementation andg compliance with the Company’s
Code of Conduct for Prohibition of lnsider Trading

= Perform such other functions as may be necessary or
appropriate for the performance of its duties

= Carry out any other function as is referred by the Board from
time to time and / or enforged by any statutory notification /
amendment or modification as may be applicable

MEETING DETAILS

There was no meeting was required to be held during the year,

COMPUIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Amit Sarraf, Company Secretary, is the Compliance Officer for

complying with reguite ments of Securities Laws,

INVESTOR GRIEVANCE REDRESSAL

= As on March 31st, 2018 ihers was no request
pending/overdue beyond the due dates,

»  The total number of compiaints received and replied to the
satisfaction of the shareholders during the year under review
were 4, Quistanding complaints as on 31st March, 2018 were
nilas per records.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

COMPOSITION OF THE COMMITTEE

Mrs. Suchitra Dhanani
{Chairperson of the Commiltee)

Mr. T. N. Unni

Whole-Time Director

Independent Direclor

Mr. Pradeep Goyal independant Director

The Committee’s prime responsibility is to assist the Board in
discharging its soctal respensibilities by way of formulating and
monitoring implementation of the framewark of carporate social
responsibifity policy, observe practices of Corporate Governance at
all levels, and to suggest remedial measures wherever NECESSAry.
The Board has also empowered the Committee 10 Jook into matiers
refated to sustainability and overafl governance.

The Committee’s composition and terms of reference are in
compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
TERMS DF REFERENCE OF CORPORATE SOCiIAL
RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE INTER ALIA INCLUDE THE
FOLLOWING

« Formulate and recommend to the Board, & Corporate Social
Responsibiiity {(CSR) Policy indicating activities to be

undsriaken by the Company in compiiance with provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereundar

= Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the
CSR activities

= Monitor the implementation of the CSR Policy of the Company
fromtime totime

= Ensure compliance with Corporate Governance norms
prescribed under Listing Regulations, the Comparties Act and
otherslatutes or any modification or re-enactment thereof

= Advise the Board periodically with respect to significant
developments inthe law and practice of Corporate Governance
and to make recommendations to the Board for appropriate
revisions to the Company’s Corporate Governance Guidelines

= Moniter the Company’s compliance with Corporate
Governance Guidelines and applicable laws and regulations
and make recommendations to the Board on all such maters
and onany corrective action to be taken, as the Com mitieg may
fleem appropriate

= Review and assess the adequacy of the Com pany's Gorporate
Governance Manual, Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior
Management, Code of Fthics and other internal policies and
guidslines and monitor that principles described therein are
being incorporated into the Company’s culture and business
practices

* Formulate / approve codes and / or policies for better
governance

MEETING DETAILS

There was no meeting held during the year,
BORROWING AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
COMPOSITION OF THE COMMITTEE

Mrs. Suchitra Dhanani
(Chairperson ot the Commitiee)

Mr. Raoof Razak Dhanari
Nr. Pradeep Goyal

TERMS OF REFERENCE OF BORROWING AND INVESTMENT
COMMITTEE INTER ALIA INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING

Whole-Time Director
Managing Direstor

Independent Director

» To take decision on borrowing, providing guarantee/security
and to make investment subject to the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and limit approved by the shareholders
of the Company.

= Toassistsand makes recommendations to the Board on'
a  investment strategy and investment risk management;

b. investment performance and oullook;
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C. comphance with the investment component of nib’s
Capital Management Plan

d. external group borrowings;

€. undertaking special projects delegated by the Board.
MEETING DETAILS
There was no meeting held during the year,
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
COMPOSITION OF THE COMMITTEE

Mr. Pradeep Goyal

(Chairperson of the Commiltee) Independeni Director

Mr. T. N. Unni Indepeadent Director

Mr. Abhay Chaudhari Independent Direetor

Mr. Sanjay Ahuja Nominee Director

The Commitiee’s composition and terms of reference are in
compliance with provisions of the Comparies Act, 2013,
Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations and Secusities and
Exchange Board of india (Share Based Employee Benefils)
Regulations, 2014, as amended from time to time.

TERMS OF REFERENCE OF NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE INTER ALIAINCLUDE THE FOLLOWING

»  Formuiate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive
attributes and independence of a Direclor, and recommend to
the Board 2 palicy, relating to the remuneration for the
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employses

= Formulate the criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors
and the Board

= Devisea policy on Board diversity

* {dentify persons who are qualified to become Directors and
who may be appointed in senior management in accortance
with the criteria faid down and to recommend to the Board theit
appointment and/or remaval

= Carry outevaluation of every Director’s performance

= Consider extension or continuation of term of appointment of
independent directors on the basis of the report of
performance evaluation of independent directors.

* Recommend/review remuneration of the Managing
Director(s) and Whole-time Director(s) based on their
performance and delined assessment criteria

= Administer, monitor and formulate detailed terms and
conditions of the Employees’ Stock Qption Scheme

Review human resources policies and overall human
fesources ofthe Company

= Perform such other functions as may be necessary or
apprepriate for the performance of its duties

»  Carry outany other function as is mandated Dy the Board from
time to time and/ or enforced by any statutory

*  natification, amendment as may be applicable

MEETING DETAILS

Four meetings of the Committee were held during the year, The
meetings were held on May 30, 2017; August 28, 2017: and
February 14, 2018. 19 March 2018. The deails of attendance are
given in this Report.

NOMENATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Nomination and Remuneration (N&R) Committee has 2adopted
a policy which, inter alia, deals with the manner of selection of
Board of Directors, CED & Managing Director and their
remuneration. The policy is hosted at the website of the company
and may be viewed at the link www. sayajihotels.com

TERMS OF APPOINTMENT & REMUNERATION ~WHOLE-TIME
DIRECTOR

1. Mrs. Suchitra Dhanani

Period of Appointment | 3 Years {from06.02.2017 to 05.02.2020)
SalaryGrade Rs.250000/-" PerMonth

Perquisite & Alowances| Uptothe 100% ofthe salary

Minimum Remunseration| in case of in absence of inadequacy of the
profit in any financial year, the Company
shall pay the above said remuneration i.e,
{Saiary+Perquisited allowances) subject to
the maximum of Rs, 5,00,000 per month

Notice Period 180 Days

" With the ansual inurement a8 may be dscided by the Board of Directors of the
Company.

TERMS OF APPDINTMENT & REMUNERATION -MANAGING
DIRECTOR

1. Mr.Raocf Razak Dhanani

Period of Appointment | 3 Years (from 05.10.2015 1o 84.1 9.2018)
Salary Grade Rs. 200000/~ ' Per Month
Perguisite & Allowancas| Uptoihe 100% ofthe salary

Minimem Renuneration| In case of in absence or inadequacy of the
profit in any financial year, the Company
shall pay the above said remuneration i.e.
{Salary+ Perquisite & altowances) subject
tothe maximurn of Rs. 7,00,060 per month

* With ti3g angal increment as may b decided by the Board of Directors pt the
Company.




SAYAJI HOTELS LIMITED

363

*The Board of Direclors at their Meeting held on 19.03.2018 after
Board, passed spacial resolution on 3rd May,

Chanani, Managing Director of the Company.
H.  POLICY AND THE DISCLOSURES

getting approval of the Nomination and remuneration committee and the
2018 by the way of the postal ballot for the revision of the remuneration of Mr. Raoof Razak

Disciosures
Requirements)
Begulations, 2015 and as
defined under the Aet.

Particulars Regulatiens Details Websile link for details/policy
Related party Regulation 23 of SEBI | ANl material transactions entered into with | hitps://www.sayajihoteis.co
transactions (Listing Obfigations and [ related parties during the financial year were m/data/Related_Party_Tran

in the ordinary £ourse of business on arm's
length basis and approved hy the Audit
Committee. The board approved policy for
related party transactions is uploaded on
the website of ihe Company.

The Register under Section 188 of the
Gompanies Act, 2013 is maintained and
particulars of transactions have been
entered in the Register, wherever
applicable,

saction_Policy.pdi

Details of Non-compliance
by the Company, penalty,
strictures imposed on the
Company by the stock
exchange, or Securities
and Exchange Board of
India ('SEBI") or any
statutory autharity on any
matter refated fo capital
markets

Scheduie V (¢} 10(b) to
the(Listing Obligations and
Disclosures
Reguirements)
Regulations, 2015

The details refated 10 the non-compliance
are separately reported in the Corporate
Governance Report.

Whistle Biower Policy
and Yigi! Mechanism

Regulation 22 of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and
Disclosures
Regquirements)
Reguiations, 2015

The Comipany has adopied & Whistle Blower
Policy and has established the necessary
vigit mechanism for direciors and
employees {0 report concerns about
unethical behavior. No person has been
denied access ta the Mrs. Suchitra Dhanani.
Competent Authority. The said policy has
been uploaded on the website of the
Company.

hitps://www.sayajinotels.co
m/data/WhistleBiowerVigil
MechanismPolicy.pdf

Policy on Defermination of
Materiality for Disclosures

Regulation 23 of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and
Disclosures
Requirements)
Regulations, 2015

Under regufation 30{4) {ii) of SEBI (Listing
Obdigations and Disclosures Requirements)
Regulation, 2015 the Company has framed
apaticy an disclosure of material events and
information as per the Listing Reguiations.
The objective of this policy is to have
uniform disclosure practices and ensure
timely, adequate and accurate disclosure of
informatien on an\ engoing basis.

hitps://www.sayajihotels.co
m/data/determination-oi-
materiality.pdf
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Partigulars

Regulations

Details

Website link for detalls/policy

Policy on Archival and
Preservation of
Documents

Regufation 9 of SEBI
{Listing Obligations and
Disciosures
Reguirements)
Regulations, 2015

The Company has adopted a Policy on
Archival and Preservation of Documents
Policy involves the systematic
identification, catsgorization, maintenance,
review, retention, and destruction of
documents received or created in the
cousse of business.

https://www.sayajinotels.co
m/data/mew_july/Policy-for-
preservation-of-
documents. pdf

Discretionary
require ments

Schedule 1 Part E of the
SEBI(Listing QObligations
and Disclosures
Requirements)
Regulations, 2015

« The auditors’ seport on statutory
financial statements of the Company are
unquafified,

o The Company has complied with the
requirement of having separate persons
to the post of Chairman and Managing
Dirsctor / Chief Executive Officar,

« the internal auditors of the Company,
make presentations to the audit
cormittee on their reports.

Policy on Material
Subsidiary Companies

Regulation 16{1)}(c) of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosures
Reguirements)
Regulations, 2015

The Company does ot have any material
subsidiary whose net worth exceeds 20% of
the consolidated net worth of the holding
company in the immediately preceding
aceounting year or has generated 20% of
the consolidated income of the Company
during tha previous financial year.

The Audit Committee reviews the financial
statements of the Company's unfisted
subsidiary Companies.

hitps./fwww.sayajihotels.co
m/data/Material_Subsidiary
_Policy pdf

Policy for Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressat
Sexual Harassment of
Womenat Workplace

As per the reguirement of
the Companies Act, 2013

As per the reguirement of the Sexuat
Harassment of Women at Workplace
{Prevention. Prohibition and Redressal}
Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, your
Company has constituted an Internal
Compliints Committee (ICC) for each of
their units . During the year, the Company
didn'treceive any complaint,

https//www.sayajihotels.co
m/data/new_july/Internal-
Complaint-GCommittee.pdlf

Reconciliation of Share
Capital Audit Report

Reguiation 55A of the SEBI
Depositories and
Participants) Requlations,
1996 and SEB! CircularNo

D&CC ¢ FTTG, Cir- 16/
2002 dated December 31,
2002

A qualified Practicing Company Sscretary
carried out a share capitaf audit to reconcile
the total admitted equity share capital with
the National Securities Depository Limited
{"NSDL") and the Central Depository
Services{india) Limited (“COSL") and the
total issued and listed equity share capital.
The audit report confirms that he total
issued / paid-up capital is in agreement with
the total number of shares in physical form
and the total number of dematerialized
shares held with NSDLand CDSL.,

hitps://www.sayajihotels.co
mfinvestors
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Patticulars Aegulations

Dotails Webstte fink for defails/pelicy

Gode of Conduct

Listing Regulations

Regulation 17 of SEBI | The members of the Board and Senior | hitps//www.sayajihotels.co
Management Personnel have affirmed | mfnvestors

cornpliance with the Code of Condugct
applicable to them during the year eaded
March 31, 2018. The Annual Report of the
Company contains a cerdificate by the Chief
Executive Officer and Managing Director, on
the compliance declarations received from
Independent Directors, Non-Executive
Directors and Senior Management,

OTHER DISCLOSURES
Strictures and Penalties

Securities Exchange Board of India through its adjudication
order no. EADYSR/SMYAQ/01/2017-18 dated September 29,
2017 imposed the penalty of Rs. 1200000/~ (Rs. Twelve
takbs Only) on ihe Company for non-compliance of
minimum public shareholding norms. This Violation was
tdone during theyear 2014.

Securities Exchange Board of India through its adjudication
order no. RA/DPS/287/2018 dated January 31, 2018
imposed the penalty of Rs. 1500000/~ (Rs. Fifteen Lakhs
Only) on the Company for the violation of reguation of 13(6)
of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Reguiation, 1982.
This Violation was done during the year 2005,

Except above there were no instances of non-compliance,
penaities, striclures imposed on the Company by the Stock
Exchanges on any matler related to the capital markets,
duringthe lastthree years.

Publicissue/Rightissue

The Company has not come out with any public issue or right
issue etc. during the financial year under review.

MD/CFG Cerlification

The Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company give annual certification on financial reporting and
internal controls to the Board in terms of Regulation 1748 of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements),
Regulations, 2015. The certificate given by Managing
Directer and 1he Chief Financial Officer was placed before the
beard of directers meeting held on 30.05.2018 and the said
certificate is annexed and publishad in this Report.

Subsidiary Companies

All subsidiary coripanics are Board managed with their
Boards having the rights and obligations to manage such
¢companies in the best interest of their staksholders. The
Gompany does not have any material unlisted subsidiary.

The Company monitors performance of subsidiary
companies, inter alia, by the following means:

a)  TheAudit Committee reviews the financial statements,
in particufar, the investments made by the unlisted
subsidiary companies.

b)  The minutes of the meelings of the board of directors
of the unlisted subsidiary cempanies are placed at the
meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company.

¢} The Management of the unlisted subsidiary have
periodicatly placed before the Board of Directors of
your Company regarding a statement of all significant
material transactions and arrangements entered inte
by the Unlisted subsidiary

d) Your Gompany formulated a Policy on Material
Subsidiaty as required under Clause 49{V}(D)
SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclesures
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the policy is
hosted on the website of the Company under the web
link htips:/fwww.sayajihotels.com/data/
Material_Subsidiary_pPolicy.pdf.

INTERNAL GONTROL AND WHISTLE BLOWERNVIGIL
MECHANISM POLICY

The Company promotes ethical behaviour in ail its
business activities and has put in place a mechanism for
reporting illegal or unethicat behaviour. The Company has a
Vigil Mechanism and Whistle-blower policy ender which
the employees are free to report violations of applicable
faws and regulations and the Code of Conduct. The
reportabie rmatters may be disclosed to Mrs. Suchitra
Dhanani, Whoie-Time Director of the Company under the
supervision of the Audit Committee. Employees may also
report to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. Quring the
year under review, no employse was denied access to the
Audit Committee.
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MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

Results : The Company's quarteriy/half yearty/ annual
financial results are sent to the Stock Exchanges and
published in ‘Western Times English and Western Times
Gujarati, they are also put up on the Company’s website
(www.sayajihotels.com)

News releases, presentations, among others: Official
news releases and official media releases are sent to
Stock Exchange.

Presentations to institutional investors / analysts:
Detailed presentations are made to instittional
investors and financial analysts on the Company's
unaudited quarterly as well as audited annuat financial
results. These presentations are also uploaded on the
Company’s website {www.sayajihotels.com).

Website: The Company’'s website
{www.sayajihotels.com)} contains a separate dedicated
section ‘Investor’ where shareholders' information is
available. The Company’s Annual Report is also available
in a user-friendly and downloadable form.

Annual Report : The Annual Report containing, inter alia,
Audited Annual Accounts, Consofidated Financial
Statements. Directors’ Report, Auditors’ Report and
other important information is circulated to members
and others entitled thereto. The Management's
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) Report forms part of
the Annual Report.

Extensive Business Reporling Language (’XBRL"):
XBRL is a language for electronic communication of
business and financial data. 11 oifers major bengfits 1o all
those who have to create, transmit, uss or analyze such
information which aids better analysis and decision
making. Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA™) vide its
circular No. 8/2012 dated May 10, 2012 {as amended on
Jung 29, 2012}, had mandated cerlain companies 1o file
their Annual Accounts vide this mode. The Company has
filed its Annual Accounts on MCA through XBRL.

A Gseener environment - Now and for future: The
Company’s phitosophy facuses on making the
envirenment greener for the benefit of posterity. In this
regard, Your Company enceurages its shargholders to
register/update the e-mail ids for communication
purpose therehy contributing to the environment.

Gerporate Filing and Dissemination System (CFOS):
The GFDS portal jointly owned, managed and maintained
by BSE is a single source to view information filed by

L.

listed companies. All disclosures and cammunications
to BSE arefiled electronically through the CFDS portal.

» BSE Corporate Compliance & Listing Centre (the
’Listing Cenire'); BSE's Listing Centre is a wab-based
application designed for corporate. Al periodical
compliance filings like shareholding pattern, corporate
governance report, media releases, among others are
also filed electronically on the Listing Centre. In
continuation of the Exchange's ongoing endeavour 1o
ensure that critical information / disclosures are
available to the investors on real time basis, the
Exchange is putting in place a new Corperale
Annpuncement Filing System {CAFS).

« SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES): The
invester complaints are processed in a centralized web-
based complaints redress system. The salient features of
this system are: Centralized database of all complaints,
online upload of Action Taken Reports (ATRs} by
concerned companies and online viewing by investors of
actions taken anthe complaint and its current status,

SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATIONS

Financiat Year  :April1to March 31

Investors Correspondence

For any queries, investors are requested to get in touch with
ike Company's Registrar and Transfer Agent i.e. Link [n time
India Pvt. Ltd., Mumbai. A dedicated e-mail i.d.
cs@sayajigroup.com has been set up for investor
complaints.

The Link In time India Pvi. Ltd. is registered with SEB as
registrar to an issue/share transfer agent in category | and
the registration number is INROO0004058.

Address for Correspondence with the Registrar and
Transler Agent

Link Intime Endia Pvt. Ltd.

C— 101, 247 Park,

LBS Marg, Vikhroli West,

Mumbai — 400083

Email - shweta.poojari@linkintime.co.in
Phone: 022-25963838

Fax: 022-25946969

Address lor Correspondence with the Company

Sayaji Hotels Ltd.,

H-1, Scheme No. 54, Vijay Nagar,
Indore - 452010 (M.P)

E-mail: cs@sayajigroup.com
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. Communicalion by E-mail:

To contribute towards greener environment and to receive al|
documents, notices, including Annual Reports and other
communications of the Company, investors are requested to
register their e-mail addresses with Link Intime India Private
Limited. if shares are held in physical form or with their DP, if
the holding is in electronic form.

Stock Market Data-Exchangesinindia
Listing on Stock Exchanges
The Company’s shares are listed on the following Stock Exchanges:

Shareholders are requested to intimate their mobile number
and changes therein, if any, to Link intime India Private
Limited , if shares are held in physical form or to their DP if
the halding is in electronic form, to receive cammunications
oncorporate actions and other information of the Company.

For transfer/transmission/subdivision/demai/loss of
shares/dividend/general inquiries and invester grievance
remaining unattended: cs@sayajigroup.com,

Hame and Address of the Stock Exchanges Stock/Scrip Code ISIN for CDSL/NSDL
Dematerialized Shares

BSE Limited 523710 INE318C01014

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towars

Dalal Street Mumbai- 400001

Email: corp.comm@bseindia.com

. Listing Feas to Stock Exchanges:

The Annual Listing Fees due to the BSE Limited for the
financial year 2018-19 has been paid by the Company.

Custodial Faes to Depositories:

The Company has paid custodial tees for the year 2017-2018 to
National Securities Depository Limiled (NSDL} amd Central
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).

. Damaleriglization ol Shares and Liguidity

Sayaji Shares are tradable in electronic as well as physical

form only. We have established connectivity National
Securities Depositary Limited {NSDL) and Central
Depository services {India) Uimited (CDSL) through Link
Intime India Private Limited, our Registrar and transfer
agent.The International Secusities Identification Number
{ISIN) altotted to our shares under the depository system is
INE318C01014.

As on 31st March, 2018, 91.25% of our shares were held in
dematerialized forand the rest in the physical form.

Market Price Dala:
High, Low (based on daily clasing prices} and number of equity shares iraded during @ach month in the year 2017-18 on BSE-
Month | BSE Sensex Closad o Equity i::e Price — N:;:)rli f;‘?;:g;:%}w H;ull:‘;.;irhs

April-2017 299184 230 186 211.7 123 1157178
May-2017 31145.8 314.75 205.5 300 550 19383082
June-2017 30921 61 3115 256.5 283.05 138 63537665
July-2017 32514.94 303.15 242 274.35 76 1088828
August-2017 31730.49 288 234 234 61 843548
Sept.-2017 31283.72 258 234 251 36 645428
Oct.-2017 3321313 279.3 239.85 279.15 107 2816638
Nov,-2817 33149.35 270 228 247 92 1113853
Dec.-2017 34056.83 259.8 225 228 128 2452454
Jan.-2018 35965.02 3195 229 279.5 407 5625639
Feb.-2018 34184.04 293 247 270 7t 1004330
March-2018 32968.68 305 262 302,95 133 2514757

Le6]
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= | B

SHAREHOLDER REFERENCER
Share transfer System

Share transfers are processed and share certilicates duly
endarsed are delivered within a perod of fifteen days from
the date of receipt, subject to documents being valid and
complete in alt respects. The Board has delegated the
authority for approving transfer, transmission, and so on of
the Company’s securities to the Managing Director and/or
Comgany Secretary. A summary of transfer/transmission of
securitiesof the Company so appraved by the Managing
Director/ Company Secretary is placed at quarterly Board
meeting / Stakehalders' Relationship Committee.

The Company oblains from a Company Secretary in Practice
half-yearly certificate to the effect that all certificates have
been issued within thirty days of the date of iodgement of the
transfer, sub division, consolidation and renewal as raquired
under Regulation 40{9) of the SEBI{LODR)Regulations,2015
and files a copy of the said cenlificate with Stock Exchanges

Service of documents

The Notice, alongwith Report and Accouints, has been sent in
electronic mods to those Shareholders who have registered
their e-mail addresses with the Company or with the
Pepaositories and in physical mode to the other Shareholders.
Shareholders who wish to update or register their e-mail
addresses with the Company or with the Depositories may
request to the Company and Registrar and Transfer Agent,

Nomination{acility

As per the provisions of section 72 of the Companies act
2013, the facility for making apmination is availabte for the
Members in respect of the shares held by them. Members
whe have not yet registered their nomination are requested
to register the same by submitting Form No. SH-13.

Shareholders who hold shares in the certificate form and
wish to make any nomination / change norination made
earlier in respect of their shareholding in the Company,
should submit to the Registrar and Transfer Agent.
Permanent Account Number (PAN}

Attention is drawn that Shareholders holding shares in the
certificate form are mandatorily required to furnish copy of
PAN Card and Bank Account Details in the following cases:

1. Transferee’s and Transferors PAN Cards for transfer of
shares.

2. Legal heirs /Nominee's PAN Cards for transmission of
shares.

3. Surviving joint holders' PAN Card for defetion of name of
deceased shareholders, and

4. JointHolders PAN Card for transposition of shares.

In terms of the SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HQ/MIRSD/DOP1/
CIR/P/2018/73 dated 20 April 2018 the Company has issued
nofice by the Registered Speed Post to ali the shareholders
holding shares in the physical form te provide PAN and Bank
Account Mandate to the Registrar of Companies Share. The
Company shail further give two reminders to the
sharehoiders holding shares in the physical form, and if the
notices are retum back/compliances not made such shares
would be considered for strict compliancef ohservation
norms Dy the Share Transfer Agent.

Shares held in Electronic Form

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI™) has
mandated 1he submission of Permanent Account Number
(PAN) and Bank Account Details by every participant in
securities market. Members holding shares in efsctronic
form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN and Bank
account details to their depository participants with whom
thiey aré maintaining their demat accoumts. Members
holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN and
bank account details to Registrar andtransferagent.

Shares held in Physical Form

Members holding shares in dematerialized form are
requested to intimate alf changes pertaining to their bank
details such as bank account number. name of the bank and
branch details, MICR code ang IFSC code, mandates,
nominations, power of atterney, change of address, change
of name, e-mail address, contagt numbers, etc., to their
depository participant {EP). Changes infimated to the DP wil|
then he automatically reflected in the Company’s records
which will help the Company and the Company’s Registrars
and Transfer Agent, Lipk Intime India Private Limited to
provide efficient and better services.

Members holding shares in physical form are reguested to
intimate such changes to Registrar and transter agent.

As per BSE Circular dated Bth June, 2018, all the company
have issued nolice by the Registered Speed Post to all
shareholders holding their shares in the physical shall not be
transterable in the physical form after 5 December, 2018
except by transmission. The Gompany shall further issue two
reminders by the ordinary post.

Members are requested to get their shares in the physical
form to D-mate to avoid hardship for transfer of shares
after.5 December, 2018
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Shares keld in Demat and Physical
Formas on March 31, 2018

Demat 91.25%

Unciaimed Dividend

Sections 124 and 125 of the Act, read with the
InvestorEducation and Protection Fund Authority
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 ({EPF
Rules’}, came into with effect from September 7, 2016, also
contain similar provisions for transfer of such amountstotha
[EPF. Aceordingly, all unclaimed/unpaid dividend, remaining
unclaimed/itnpaid for a period of seven years from the date
they became due for payment, have been transferred 1o the
iEPF.

As per Section 124(6) of the Act read with the IEPF Rules as
amended, all the shares in respect of which dividend has
remained unpaid/snclaimed for seven consecutive years or
more are required to be transferred to an IEPF Demat
Account notified by the Authority, The Company shall send
individual notices to all the shareholoers whose dividend are
lying unpaid/unclaimed against their name for seven
consgcutive years or more and also advertised on the
Newspapers sseking action from the shareholders.
Shareholders are requested to claim the same as per
procedure laid down in the Rules. In case the dividends are
not claimed by the due date{s), necessary steps will be
initiated by the Gampany to transfer shares held by the
members to JEPF without further notice. Please note that no
claim shall lie against the Company in respect of the shares
sotransferred 1o IEPF.

During the year no dividend had been declared by the
Company hence there is no amount of unclaimed dividend
lying in the books of the Company which reguire being
transfer into tnvestor Education & Protection Fund. Further
that the Company was also not required to transfer any
shares on which the dividend remain unpaid for a
consecutive seven years.

Pending Investors’ Grievances

1. We attended to the most of the investors grievances
and postat electronic communications within a period

PN

of 8-10 days from the date of receipt of such grievance

The Company attends to shareholder /fnvestor
complaints, queries and other correspondence
generally within a period o 8-10 working days except
where constrained by disputes or legal impediments.

The Company received 4 complaints during the
financial year ended on 31.03.2018 and the same were
resolved within the reasonable timeline.

The e-mail ID earmarked by the Company for this
Purpose: cs@sayafigreup.com

With a view to making the disclosures more accurate
and efficient, effective from April, 01 2018, only equity
listed entities are required to submit the |nvestor
Complaint Details (Regulation 13 (3}) in the Listing
Centre website using the web form provided for that
purpose. PDF submission shall nol be required 1o be
made by the listed entities, once the companies have
successfully filled in the requisite data in the Listing
Centre using the web form,

nveslor Servicing And Grievance redressal - External
Agencies

{a) Ministry of Corparate Affairs (MCA)

MCA has launched its e-Governance initiative, that is,
MCA21, on the MCA portal (www.m¢a.gav.in). One of
the key benefits of this initiative is timely redressal of
investor grievances. MCAZ21 system accepts
complaints under the e-Form prescribed, which has to
befiled onling.

The status of complaint can be viewed by quoting the
Service Request Number (SAN) provided atihe time of
filing the complaint,

{b) Securities and Exchange Board of india (SEBI}

SEBL in its endeavour to protect the interest of
investors, has provided a platform wherein the
investors can lodge their grievances. This facility is
known as SEBI Complaints Redress System
(SCORES) and is available on the SEBl website
(www.sebi.gov.in) and on SCORES website
(hitp://scores.gov.in).

The investor complaints are processed in a centralized
web based complaints redress system. The salient
features of this system are: Centralised database of all
complaints. onfine upload of Action Taken Reports
{ATRs} by the concemed companies and Crling
viewing 0y investors of actions taken on the complaint
and its currend status.
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All companies against whom complaints are pending
on SCORES, have to take necessary steps fo resolve
the complaint and submit action taken report within
thirty days of receipt of complaint and also keep the
complainant duly informed of the action taken.

SEB! has issued frequently asked questions SEBI has
issued frequently asked guestions (FAQS) in respect of
SCORES which inter ajia lists down the matters which
are considared as complaints and handled by SEBI the
matiers which are not considerad as complaints, how
the investor complaints’ are handled by SEBI, the
arbitralion mechanism, ete. These FAQs can e
accessed on the fink: hitp://scores.gov.in/Dogs/FAQ-
SCORES.pdf.

Recanciliatton of Share Capital Audit

A qualified practicing Company Secretary carried out a share
capital audit as reguired under Regufation 55A of Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants)
Regufation 1996 1o reconcile the total admitied equity share
capital with the National Securities Depository Limited
{("NSDL") and the Central Depository Services(India} Limited
(“CDSL") and the total issued and listed equity share capital.
The audit report confirms that the tolal issued / paid-up
capital is in agreement with the total number of shares in
physical form and the total number of dematerialized shares
held with NSDLand CDSL.

The BSE Limited has been decided that with effect from July
01, 2017 onwards, alt Nisted entities with BSE, weuld be
reguired to make their filings in respect of Reconcifiation of
Share Capital Audit Report {Reguiation 55A of SEBI
{Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 1996 in XBRL
mode along with the submission of the original Share Gapital
Audit Report in PDF machine readable mode.

Disiribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2013

Secralatial Aueii as per Companies Act, 2013:

Pursuant to the provisions of section 204(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, Mrs Ritesh Gupta & Co.. Company
Secretaries, conducts the secretarial audit of the compifance
of applicable statutory provisions of the adherence of good
corporate practices by the Company.

Inasignificant development, Securities and Exchange Beard
of India’s (SEBI} board, at 2 megting held in Mumbai on
March 28, 2018, took important decisions on the
recommendations of the Comumittee. The Committes
submitted its report detailing several recornmendations on
October 5, 2017.The regulator’s board decided to accept
several recommendations with modifications, which
included Secretarial Audit to e mandatory for listed entities
and their material unlisted subsidiaries under SEB! {Listing
Gbligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations.2015.

E-voting

The businesses as set out in the Notice may be transacted
through electronic voting system and the Company will
provide a facility for voling by electronic means. In
compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Act,
read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, Sectetarial Standard 2 on
General Meetings and Reg. 44 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements} Regulations,
2015, the Company is pleased to offer the facility of voting
through electrenic means, as an alternate, to al! its Members
to enable them to cast their votes electronically. The facility of
casting the votes hy the members using an elecironic voting
system from a place other than venue of the AGM {remote e-
voting} will be provided by National Securities Depository
Limited{NSDL} and Central Depositery Services (India) Ltd
{CDSL}

Ne. ol Shares (Stab) No.of Share holders % No. of shares % of share Capital
1-500 3239 94.59 341643 195
5(H-1000 97 2.83 76169 0.43
1001-2000 32 0.93 48145 0.27
2001-3000 14 0.41 34910 0.19
3001-4000 0.12 14834 0.85
4001-5000 5 0.14 24105 0.13
5001-10000 0.21 46007 0.26
10081 or more 26 0.76 16932137 96.65
TOTAL 3424 100 17518000 100.00

The Gompany has entered into agreements with both National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository

Services (India) Limited (CDSL) wherahy Members have an option
to dematerialize their shares with either of the depositories.
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Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March, 2018

No.al Shares held %

Promoters 1.31,21,626 74.90

Banks. Finanaial Institutions, Insurance Companies & Mutual Funds

i.Banks 0 0.0¢

ii. Financial Institutions 350 0.00

iil. Insurance Companies 0 0.00

iv. Mutual Funds/JTI 4000 0.02

Central & State Governments 0 0.00

Foreign Institutional Investors Q 0.00

NRIs/ Foreign Nationals 3034630 17.32

Directors 0 0

Public and Others 1357394 7.74

TOTAL 17518000 100.90

Statement showing Shareholding of more than 1% of the Gapital as on 31st March, 2018

S.No. Name of shareholders No.oi Shares held % of shareholding
1. Mr. Raoof Razak Dhanani 3898651 22.26%
2. Mr. Kayum Razak Dhanarti 3638079 20.77%
3. Ahilya Hotels Limited 2455000 14.01%
4, Late, Mr, Sajid R, Dhanani 2435511 13.90%
5. Mr. Abdz Gani Sarfaraz Dhanani 748687 4.27%
6. Ms. Sana yusuf Dhanani 716623 4.09%
7. Mrs. Nasreen Yusuf Dhanani 715097 4.08%
8. Mrs. Rohini 5. Udar 526000 300%
9 Mrs. Suchitra Dhanani 320829 1.83%
10. [ Mrs. Anisha Raoof Chanani 296578 1.69%
11. | Mr. Ankit Gadiya 278600 1.58%
12. | Mirs, Shraddha Ankit Gadiya 278600 1.59%
13. | Mr.Shashikant Dubey 254850 1.45%
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N. Particularsofthe Last 3 Annuat General Meetings/Extra General meeting held-
i.  Lasithreeannual general body meetings were held as per details shown below-

. No of Special Whether Chalrman of Ihe Audlt

AGM | Dale of AGH Venue of AGM and Time Hems transacted | Committee fias attended the meeting
Jdth 29.09.2017 Sayaji Hotel, 3 Yes
AGM Opposite Rajshree Takkies,

Near Kala Ghoda, Sayajiganj,

Vadodara ~ 390005 (Gujarat) at 3.00 P.M.
33rd 26.03.2016 Sayaji Hotel, 1 Yes
AGM Opposite Rajshree Talkies,

Near Kala Ghoda, Sayajiganj,

Vadodara — 390005 (Gujarat) at 3.60 P.M.
32nd 26.09.2015 Sayaji Hotel, 2 Yes
AGM Cpposite Rajshree Talkies,

Near Kala Ghoda, Sayajigany,

Vadlodara — 380005 (Gujaraty at 3.00 P.M.

patiern-

manner.

Resolution-1

ii. Extra-ordinary General Meeting

Details of Voting Pattern were as under:

There was no Extracrdinary General Meeting was held during the year 2017-2018.

Detaiis of Resolution passed threugh pastal ballot, the persons wheo conducted the postal bzllok exercise and delails of the voting

During the year, the Company sought the approval of the sharehotders by way of a Special Resolution through notice of postal ballot
dated March 19, 2018 for (a) Shifting of the Registered office from Vadodara in the State of Gujarat fo Chennai in the state of the Tamil
Nadu (b} Revision of remuneration of Mr, Racof Razak Dhanani (Managing Director} of the Company, the resulis of which were
anngunced on May 3rd 2018. Mr. Ritesh Gupta (Membership No. 5200 ) of M/s Ritesh Gupta & Company, Practicing Gompany
Secretaries was appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the postal ballot and remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent

promoter dre interested in
the agenda/resolution-

Resolution Shifting of Registered Office from Vadodara in ths state of Gujarat to Ghennai in the state of Tamil Nadu
(within the jurisdiction of the Registrar of Companies, Chennai} and consequential amendment in
Memorandum of Association.

Resofution Reguired: | Special

(Ordinary /Special)-

Whether promoter/| No
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Category Mode of No. of No.of | %ofvoles | Mo.of ! Ne.of % of votes In % of Voles
Voting | Shares held votes polled on { votes-in | voles- | Favour on voles against on
{1) polled |outstanding| Favour | Against polied voles polled
(2) shares (4) (9
{3)=1{2)/{1)1 (8)=I(4)/(2)~100 (2}=1(3)/
*100 (2)1*10D
Promoter & E-voting 13,121.626 { 2,785,029 21,225 | 2,785,028 0 100 0
prometer group
Polt 13,121,626 0 0 0 0 0 0
Postal 13,121,626 0 0 0 0 it 0
ballot (If
applicable)
Total 13,121,626 | 2,785,029 21.225 { 2,785,029 0] 100 0
Public institution | E-vating 4,350 0 0 0 0 0 0
Pall 4,350 1t 0 0 0 ] 0
Postal 4,350 0 0 0 0 a 0
ballot (If
applicable)
Total 4350 0 0 0 0 D 0
Public non E-voting 4,392,024 76,200 1.73% 78,200 0 100 0
instilulion
Pall 4,392,024 0 0 ¢ 0 0 0
Postal
batlat {if
applicable) 4,392,024 214 0.005 205 5 87619 2.381
Total 4,392,024 76,410 174 76,405 5 99.993 0.007
Total 17,518,080 | 2,861,439 16.334 | 2,861,434 5 100 0
Resolution-2
Resolution Ravision in the Remuneration of Mr. Racof Razak Dhanani (Managing Director) of the Company.
Resolution Special
Required:{Ordinary
fSpecial)-
Whether Yes
promoter/promoter are
interested in the
agenda/reselution-
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Gategory Mode of No. of No.of | %oivotes | Mo.of | Ne.of % of votes in % of Votes
Voting | Shares held votes polledon { votes-in | voles- | Favour an voies against on
(1) polled | cutstandingf Favour | Against polied voles polied
) shares {4) (5)
3)=12)01)] (6)=E(2)/(2)*100 (7)=ke5)
*100 (2)1*100
Promoter & E-valing 13,121,626 § 2,785,029 21,225 1 2.785.028 0 100 0
promolet group
Poll 13,121,626 0 0 0 0 0 ¢
Postal 13,121,626 0 8 0 0 0 0
bailot (If
applicable}
Total 13.121,626 | 2,785,029 21.225 | 2,785,029 ! 100 0
Public institution ; E-voting 4,350 0 0 0 0 0 0
Poll 4,350 ] 0 0 0 0 i
Postal 4350 0 0 0 0 0 0
ballot {If
applicable)
Total 4,350 C 0 0 g 0 tH
Pubtic non E-voling 4,392,024 76,200 1.735 76,200 0 106 0
Institutlon
Poll 4,392,024 0 0 0 0 0 0
Postal
ballot (Il
applicable) 4,392,024 210 0.005 210 0 100 0
Tolal 4,392,024 76,410 1.74 76,405 ¢ 100 0
Totat 17,518,080 | 2,861,439 16.334 | 2,861,439 0 100 0
s Pracedure for postal baliot: thereunder.
The Gompany conducted the postal ballotin accordance with In compliance with the provisions of Sections 108 and 110 of
the provisions of Section 110 of the Act read with Rule 22 of the Act and rule 20 and 22 of the Rules read with Reguiation
the Companies (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014 44 of the SEBI{LODR) Regulations,2015 the Company had
(*Rules"}. The Company had completed the dispatch of the offered the facility of e-voting to its members to enable them
Postal Ballot Notice dated March 31, 2018 along with the to cast their vote electronically. The voting under the postal
Explanatory Statement, posial ballot form and seif- ballot was kept open from April 1, 2018 (9.00 a.m. IST) to
addressed business reply envelopes on March 31, 2018 to April 30, 2018 (5.00 p.m. IST). Upan completion of scrutiny
the shareholders who had not registered their ¢-mail IDs with of the postal balfot forms and votes cast through e-votingina
the Company/Depositories and aiso sent by e-mail the said fais and transparent manner, the scrutinizer i.e. Mr. Ritesh
documents to shareholders whose e-mail D5 were Gupta submitted his report to the Company and the results of
registered with the Company/Depositories, The Company the postal haliot were anrounced by the Company on May 3,
also published @ notice in the newspaper declaring the details 20r18. The voting resulls were sent to the Stock Exchanges
of compietion of dispatch and other requirements as and also displayed on the Gompany’s website
mandated under the provisions ot the Act and Rules framed www.sayajihotels.com
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0. OTHER INFORMATIGNS

Board Meeting for consideration of Accaunis for the financial 30th May, 2018
year ended on March 31, 2018.

Date of closing of the financial year 31st Mareh, 2018

Posting of Annual Reports 03.09.2018

Book Closure Dates 11.09.2018 10 12.09.2018

Ng. of Shares in the Demat & % of the total shares in the Demat | 1,58,86,082 Shares {81.25 % of the total paid up capital of
the Company

Total No. of shareholders as at 31,03.2018 3416

Particulars of Shares kept iinder the suspense A/C as per N.A/Nil

Reguiation 39(4) of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disciosure Requirements),2015

Details of the cutsianding ADR/GDR/ Warrants Nii
Cutoff date for remote e-voiing 21.09.2(18
Remote E-Veting pericd 24.09.2018 to 27.03.2018
Name of the Scrutinizers M/s Bitesh Gupla & Co., Company Secretaries
Name of the Compliance Cfficer Mr. Amit Sarraf
Last date for receipt of Proxy Forms 26.09.2018
Date, Time & Venue of the 35 Annual General Megting Date - 28.09.2018
Time=11.00 am

Venue — Re-Gala Party Hall. 113/4, 200 Feet Road,
Zamin Pallavaram, Chennai - 600117

Dividend Payment Date NA.
Probable date of dispatch of warrants NA.

4

[=)




376

SAYAJt HOTELS LIMITED

MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of the internal controls stated in the guidelines notes on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over the
financial reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India{ICAl}.These responsibilities include
the design ,implementation and maintenance of the adequate internat financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act,2013.

These financial statements have been audited by M/s K L. Vyas & Company, Chartered Accountanis, the Statutory

Auditors of the Company.
For and an behalf of the Board of Directors
) Vs
Place: indore N. U i
Date: 30.05.2018 Chalrman

DIN-00079237
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DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL WITH THE COMPANY'S
CODE OF CONDUCT

This is to confirm that the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its employees including the Managing
Director and Executive Directors. In addition, the Gompany has adopted a Code of Conduct for its Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Directors. These Codes are available on the Company's website.

As provided under Regulation 26 and sub- regulation (3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements} Regulation, 2015 with the Stock Exchanges, the Board Members and the Senior Management
Personnel have confirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct and Ethics for the year ended March 31, 2018 as
received from the Senior Management Team of the Company and the Members of the Board a declaration of
compliance with the Code of Conduct as applicable to them.

i Hotels Limited M
Place: Indore azak Dhanani
Date: 30.05.2018 Whole-Time Director

Mmu-£0712137

/ SN

*SA AJ
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE
[Under Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015]

To,

The Board of Directors

Sayaji Hotels Limited

We the undersigned, in our respective capacities as Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of Sayaji Hotels Limited (“the

Company”) to the best of our knowledge and beliet certify that:

(A} We have reviewed the Financial Statements, Cash Flow Statements, Books of Accounts, detaited trial balance and
grouping thereof for the Financial Year 2017-18 and that to the best of our knowledge and betief, we state that:

(1)  these statements do not confain any materially untrue stalement or omit any material fact or contain statements
that might be misleading;

{?) these statements together present a frue and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with
existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(3}  No transactions enlered into by the Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violate the
Company's code of conduct.
(B)  We hereby declare that alt the members of the Board of Directors and Executive Committee have confirmed compliance
with the Code of Conduct as adopted by the Company.
(C)  We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have
evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the listed entity pertaining to financial reporting and we have
disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal contrals, if any,
ofwhich we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.
(D) Wehaveindicated to the auditors and the Audif committee
(a)  significantchanges ininternal control over financial reporting during the Financial Year2017-18
(b}  significant changes inaccounting policies during the period and that the same have been disclosed in the notes of
the financial statements; and

{c)  instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the
management or an employee having a significant role in the company's internal control system over finanicial
reporting.

aii Hotels Limited A

A (LM

For : Sayaji Hotels

Place: indore
Dale: 30.85.2018

Haool asz anni
Managing Direstor
DiN-00174654

Khandelwal
Chief Financial Officer
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K. L. VYAS & COMPANY 1254 - 2521088 (O)

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS . 894141 68167 (N_l) |
Shop No. 2, Il Floor, "Parshwanath Dawa Bazar E-mail : Kivyasca@yahoo.co.in
8, Hazareshwar Colony, Udaipur - 313 001 kivyasca@gmail.com

Ret. No. : _ ~ Date:

Auditors Certificate for Corporate Governance Compliance

To -
The Members,
Sayaji Hotels Limited,

We have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate governance by Sayaji Hotels lelted
{‘the Company'), for the year ended on March, 31, 2018, as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and
clauses {b) to (i} of regulation 46(2) and para C and D of Schedule V of the SEB! (Listing Obligations and
Cisclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (" SEBI Listing Regulations”).

N The compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the
Management. Qur examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by
the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the corporate governance. It is neither
an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

We have conducted our examination in accordance with the Guidance Note on reports or certificates
for special purpose (Revised 2016) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The
Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the code of the ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india. We have complied with the relevant applicable
requirements of the standards on quatity control (SQC) 1, quality controls for firms that perform Audits
and reviews of historical financial information, and other assurance and related service engagements.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we
certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as specified in
regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and para C and D of Schedule V of the
SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulatiuns, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”).

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future vnabllltv of the Company
™ nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affanrs of the
- Company. F

ror K.L. Vyas & Company,
FRN: 003289C
Chartered Accountants

Place: Indore Wﬁ

Date: 14.08.2018
' (K.L.Vyas)

]

For S LS L“Uu P
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CEVEN] SAYAJI HOTELS LIMITED &,
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To, We have faken into account the provisions of the Act, the
The Members,

Sayaji Hotels Limited,
Reporton the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial
statements of Sayaji Hotels Limited (the Company), which
camprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (inchuding Other Comprehensive
income), the Cash Flow Statement and the statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Managemeni’s Responsibifity for the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Siatements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters
stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)
with respect fo the preparation of these standalone fnd AS
financial statements that give a trug and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company
in aceordance with the accounting principles generally accepted

in India, including the Accounting Slandards specified under

Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
{Accounts} Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and lor preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuragy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due tc fraud or error,

Auditor's Responsibility

Qur responsikility is to express an opinion on these standalone
Ind ASfinancial statements based on our audit.

accounting and auditing standards and matters which are
required to be included in the aadit report under the provisions
of the Actand the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those
Slandards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements are
free from material misstatements.,

An audit invalves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the
standalone iInd AS financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
standalone {nd AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation
of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also inchides
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by
the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the standalone Ind AS finangial statements.

We helieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and approptiate to provide a basis for our audit opinion onthe
standalone Ind AS financial statements. '

Opinion

In‘our cpinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS
financial statements give the information required by the Act in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
india, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 3tst March,
2018, and its profit, and its ¢ash flows for the year ended on that
date.
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1.

'Reporl on Other Legal angd Repulatory Requirements

As reguired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report} Order,
2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Centrat Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 1 43 of the
Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the maiters
specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicahie,

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we reportthat:

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

f}

We have sought ang obtained ajt the information
and explanations which fo the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit,

in our opinion proper books of account ag required
by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears 1rom our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss,
and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report
arein agreement with the hooks of account;

in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone ing AS
financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133
of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received
from the directors as on 31st March, 2018 taken on
record by the Board of Directors. none of the
directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2018
from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respectio the adequacy of the internalfinancial
controls ever financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
referio our separate reportin “Annexure B”: angd

g}

Piace of Signature - Indore
Date : 30" May, 2018

With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rufe 11 of
the Companigs {Audit and Audito rs) Rules, 2014 in
aur opinion and to the best of our information ang
aceording to the explanations given tg us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on its financial position in
its standalone Ind AS financial statements -
Refer Notes 48 to the slandatone Ind AS
ﬁnancialstatemeﬂts;

il The Company did not have any long-term
contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foresesahle
fosses.

. There has been no delay in transterring
amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education ang Protection Fund by
the Company.

For K.L. Vyas & Campany,
Chartersd Accountants,
FRN: 0D3288C

(K.L. Vyas)
Partner
M. No. 072043
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ANNEXURE-ATO THE AUDIT ORS’ REPORT

ANNEXURE REFERRED Tg IN CLAUSE 1 OF REPORT ON
OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS OF QUR
REPORT OF EVEN DATE T THE MEMBERS OF SAYAJI HOTELS
LIMITED ON THE STANDALONE IND AS FINANCIAL
STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31STMARCH, 2018,

(i)

(i

(a)

(b)

()

(a)

The company has maintained proper records
showing full particulars including  quantitative
Oefails of fixed assets, however for some fixed
assets, situation of the assets is not given and
identification numbers are also aot been given,
which need to be updated. We have been informegd
by Management that above Workis in progress.

Physical verification of fixeq dssets has been carried
out by the Management at most of the Units in
accordance with a phased programme of
verification which, in our opinion, provides for
physical verification of al the fixed asseis at
feasonable intervals, which in QUr opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size ofthe company
and nature of its assets. According to the
information and explanations given to us, o
material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

According to the information and explanations
given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the conveyance degy provided to us, we report that,
the title deeds, comprising of all the immovable
propertigs of land and buildings which are freehold,
are in the name of the Company as at the balance
sheet date.

in respect of immovable properties been taken on
lease and disclosed as fixed assets in the standalone
financial statements, the lease dgreements are in
the name of the Company, however, there is 3 notice
for cancellation of leage by the Indore Development
Authority for cancelling the lease of one leasehold
tand situated in Indore with carrying value of Rs.
2201.62 Lakhs, which Company is contesting,

The physical verification of the inventory is being
conducted on a monthly basis by the management
and no material discrepancies were noticed.

{iii)

(v}

{vi)

{a) Company has not granted any loan to any Company,
firm, LLP or any other party required to be covered
in register maintained under section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013

Inview of situation explained as above provisions gf
clause 3 (iii) (b) & {c) of the Order are not appiicable
tobe Company,

{0 our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the company has complied with
the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with
respectto the loans and investments made.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanalions given to us, the Company has complied with
the provisions of Sections 73 1o 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Companigs Act, 2013 and the Rules
framad there under, with regard to the deposits accepted
from the public. According to information and
explanations given 1o us, no order has been passed by the
Company Law Board or the National Company Law
Tribunal or the Reserve Bank of India or any Court orany
ather Tribirngt.

Central Government has not prescribeg for the
mainienance of cost fecords under sub-section 1 of
section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, for any of the
business activity carried by the Company during the year
under revie.

(Vi) (a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with

appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, investor education
protection jund, empioyees’ state instirance,
income tax, sales tax, wealth tax, custom duty,
excise duty, service tax & cess and other material
Statutory dlues as may be applicabletoit.

According to the information and explanations
given o us, ne undisputed amounts payable in
respect of income tax, wealih tax, sales tax
customs duty, wealih tax, excise duty and cess were
in arrears, as at 31.03.2018 tor a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

(b} According to the information and explanations
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given to us, details of the dues of sale tax, income

which have not been deposited on account of any

tax, customs duty, wealth tax, excise duty and cess dispute are given below.
Period to which the Forum where the Total Amount
Name of Statue Nature of Dues amount reiates dispute is penting (Rs. in Lakhs)
Finance Act, 1994 and Service Tax Mar.'05-Mar.’09 High Court of M.P, 256.78
Service Tax laws Indare Beneh, indore
Service Tax 2009-2011 High Court of M.P, 800.74
Indore Bench,
Indore
Service Tax 2009-2013 Honourable CESTAT, Mumbai, 39.27
Service Tax Apr’11-Jun.12 High Court of M.P, 538.54
Indore Bench,
Indore
Service Tax Apr'12 - Mar15 Honourable CESTAT, 2.02
Ahmedabad
Service Tax Apr10-Mar.15 Honourable CESTAT, 46.05
Indore
Income Tax Act, 1961, Tax deducted at AY.09-10 Commissioner of Income 2.15
Sowrce AY10-11 Tax (Appeals), Indore.
AY14-15 Commissioner of Income 1.09
Tax (Appeals), Vadodara
M.P. Vafue Added Tax Valug Added Tax 201011 Appelate Tribunal, Commercial 0.56
Act, 2002 2011-12 Taxes. Indore, 10.91
201112 Commissioner (Appeal), 37.72
2012-13 Gommercial Taxes, Indore 287
2013-14 0.52
2014-15 2.94
2015-1p 3461
M.P. Luxery, Entertainment Luxury Tax 2012-2013 Commissioner (Appeal), 40.60
& Advertisernent Tax Act, 2013-2014 Commercial Taxes, Indore 30.85
2011 2014-2015 26,00
2015-2015 26.04
M.P. Entry Tax Act, 1976 Entry Tax 2012-2013 Commissioner (Appeal), 0.01
2014-2015 Commercial Taxes, Indore 1.76
2015-2016 17.00
M.P. Municipa! Property Tax 2015-16 The Mayor-In-Council, 46.39
Corporation Act. 1956 Indore Municipal
Corporation, Jndore
TOTAL 1934.43
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(viity Based on our augit procedures and according to the

(ix)

(x)

(xij

Information and explanations given to us, we are of the
opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment
of loans or borrowing to finangial institutions, banks,
Government or dues to debenture helders,

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial
public offer or further public offer (inciuding debt
nstruments) during the year, however, the Company has
raised term loans during the year and were applied for the
Rurposes for which those were raised.

According to the infarmation and explanations given to
Us, no fraud on or by the company has heen noticed or
reported during the course of our audit.

According to the information angd explanations give to us
and based on owr examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has paid/provided for managerial
remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of seclion 197 read with
Schedule Vo the Act,

{(xii) tn our opinion and according to the information ang

explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhi
company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xi) of the Ordler is not
applicable.

{xiii) According to the information and explanations given o us

and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, transactions with the related parties are in

{xiv)

(xv)

i)

compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where
applicable and details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us
and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or ftdly or partly
convertible debentures during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us
and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with
him. Accordingly, paragraph 3{xv} of the Order is not
applicable,

The Company is not required to be registered under
sectian 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

ForK.L. Uyas & Company,
Chartered Accountants,
FRN: 003239¢

(K.L. Vyas)
Place of Signature - indore Partaer
Date : 30" May, 2018 M. No. 072043
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ANNEXURE~B TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS UNDER
CLAUSE (1) OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT")

We have audited the internal financial contrals over financial
reporting of Sayaji Hotels Limited {“the Company”) as of 31
March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the vear ended on that
date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financia) Contrels

The Company's management is responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financia! reparting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of tndia {"fCAT'). These responsibilities
inciude the dasign, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assefs, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the dccuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliahie
financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013,

Auditers’ Respounsibility

Our responsibility is 1o express an opinion on the Company's
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed 1o be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Finangial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chariered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonabie assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls gver financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in alf
material respests,

Our audit involves performing procedures 1o obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system ogver financial reperting and their operating
eflectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reperting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The pracedures selected
depend on the auditor’s Judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstaternent of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit epinion on the
Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Finangial Controls over Financial
Reporting

A company's internal financial control overfinancial reporting is
aprocess designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
tinancial statements for externai PUrpeses in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1} pertain to the maintenance of records
tat. in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assats of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance thattransactions are recordeq as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the tompany are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors ofthe company; and {3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could havea material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over
Flnanuialﬂepnrtfng

Because of the inherent lim iations of internal financial controls
over financiai reporting, including the possinility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, materiaf
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and nat be
detected. Aiso, projections of any evaluatior of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control gver
financial reporting may become inadequate becairse of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
07 procetures may deteriorate.

Opinien

in our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an
adequate internal financial controls system over financial

feporting and such internaf financial controls gver financia!
reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2018, based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential
tomponents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internai Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india.

ForK.L. Vyas & Company,
Chartered Accountants,

FRN: 003285C
{K.L. VYyas)
Place of Signature : Indere Partner
Date : 30" May, 2018 M. No. 072043
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st
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2018
{Rs. In Lakhs)
Note As at 31st As al 31st As at 1st
Parliculars No. | March, 2018 Maren, 2017 | april. 2016
ASSETS
1 Non-tarrent assets
(3} Property. Plant & Equipments 2 14,6511 15,548.26 13,008.64
by Capitai WOork-in-progress 3 3547 7.36 3,318.80
ic) Intangible assats 9 7138 6.44 2.5%
(4} Invesiment in Subsidiary, Joint Venture & Associate ) 1,853.58 1.953.58 1.953.58
{e} Fnanciat Assets
() Investments 6 0.44 0.44 083
{ii} Trade Receivables - - - -
(i Loans 7 523,92 55.27 12.38
(iv) Other Financial Assets 8 94,31 88.37 3.10
{0 Daferred Tax assets (et} 4 1,353.38 1.262.58 1.108.47
{0} Other non-current assets ib 83745 57201 37557
Tolal Non-Current Assets 19.521.59 19,524.31 19,7%¢.96
Z  Current assets
{a} inverlories 11 1.704,08 1.429.43 1.468.63
{b) Finargial Assets
(i Investments - - -
() Trade Receivablas 12 870.03 633.74 806.39
(i) Cash and Cash Equivaients 13 1.214.95 1.361.15 69.23
(iv} Bank hatances other than {iii} above 14 - 25.60) 519.46
{v) Loans 15 £5.93 115.28 103.38
(vi) Other Financial Assets 16 303.48 1841 1.438.49
f¢) Curent Tax Assets (net} 17 - 43.47 -
{d) Other cument assets 18 723.18 1.179.38 44337
Total Current Assels 08165 1 496296 | 494935
TOTAL ASSETS 24,403.24 24,506.47 24,748.31
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 =@y
{a} Equity Share Capital 19 1,751.80 1,751.80 1.751.80
(1) Other Equity 20 5,830.53 6,193,071 6.807.74
Total Equity 7,582.33 7.944 81 B.559.54
2 LIABULMFS
2.1 Mon-current Liabilitles
{a) Financial Liabilities
{it Borrowings 21 8,430.70 805267 3.763.91
() Trade Payatles - - .
(i} Other Financial Liabilities 22 2.084.4¢ 2.084.33 2,065.86
{b) Provisions 23 570.78 533.86 47408
(€) Deferred Tax Liabifities ( Net) - - -
{d) Delerred Revenye 24 579.18 636.04 -
Total Non-Curreat Liabllities 11,665.07 11,307.00 6,303.85
2.2 Current Liabilitins
(8) Financial Liabilities
{y Borrowings 25 1.412.24 1,457 45 4.215.15
(i) Trade Payables 26 1,176.48 7541 113167
{ii#) Other Rinancial Liabilities 27 1,292.83 1.897.54 3.366.25
(b} Provisions 28 485.86 465.50 399.29
{c) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 29 38.70 - 275.13
{d) Ottier Current Liabifities 30 749.73 614.76 489.43
Total Current Liabilitles 5,155.84 5,254.66 $.876.92
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 24 403.24 24,506.47 24,740.31
Significant Accounting Pelicias ang other Noles 1-55
These notes farm an intagral part of these financial statemenis
in Terms of our Report Attached E d on belall of the Board of Direct
a ors
For K.L.Vyas & Company oran chall ot Ihe Board of Direc
Chartered Accountanis T.N Unni Rzetl Razak Dhanani
Fivm Regn. No. 003283C Director anaging Director
.L.Vyas DIN-D00798237 DIN-D0174854
Pariner .
M.No. 072043 Sandesh Khandejwal Amit Sarraf
indore, 30" May 2013 Chizf Financiat Officer Company Secretary
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31*

MARCH 2018

Bs. in Lakhs Exeept EPS

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements
in Terms ef our Aeport Atlached

Particulars ho. | i tear ended Stst aren oo
i Income
! Revenue From Operations K] 19.150.44 15,778.43
Hi Other Incorne 32 246.41 138,36
v Total Reveaue (l1+11) 19,396.85 15,912.79
V E!pe“ses . _———-——':-—'—_‘————*_.__ﬁ
Feod and Beverages Consumed 33 4,169.33 3.683.60
Employee Benefits Expenses 34 5373.42 3.906.67
Finance Costs 35 1,374.94 1.613.11
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 284 2,045.36 2,104.85
Operating Expenses 36 4,678,91 3,926.41
QOther Expenses 37 2.131.34 1,422.88
Total Expenses 19,773.30 16,557.52
vi Prolit before exceptional items and tax (iv-\) (376.45) (739.73)
Vil | Exceplional items 38 - -
VHI[  Profit/{Loss} before tax (Vi-vi) (376.45) (739.73)
1X Tax Expense
(1) Current Tax 126.44 43.18
{2} Deferred Tax {60.99) (183.92)
(3) Earlier year taxes (18.44) 28.96
Total {1X) 47.01 (111,78}
X Profit/(Loss) for the year after Tax {VE-IX) {423.46) (627,95)
Xi Other Comprehensive (ncome
A lterns that will not be reclassified to profit or Joss
() Acturial Gain/(Loss) on Defined Benefit Plan 92.69 20.58
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be
reclassified to profit or logg (32.08) {(7.00)
B ltems that will be reclassified to prodit or loss
(i} Changes in Cash Figw Hedge Reserve 0.56 (0.56)
(i} Income tax refating to tems that wil be
reclassified to profit or loss {0.19) 0.19
Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax §0.98 13.22
XUl Total Comprehensive Income tor the year {X+X1)
(Comprising Profit /Loss} and Gther Comprehensive incame for the year) (362.48) {614.73)
X Earnings per quUity share 39
{1) Basic (3.10) (4.27)
{2} Diluted {3.10) {4.27)
Significant Aecounting Policies and other Notes 1-55

For and on behalf of the Boarg of Bireclors

For K.L.Vyas & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 003289C
K.L.Vyas

Partner

M.No. 872043

indore, 30* May 2018

T.N Unn!
Director
DIN-00079237

Sandesh Khandeiwal
Chief Financiai Officer

Raoof Razak Dhanant
Managing Director
BIN-00174654

Amit Sarzaf
Company Secretary




389

SAYAJI HOTELS LIMITED *
'STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH 2018
{Rs. In Lakhs)
Particatars st 2oy | e Yoorandeg
A. CASHFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before Tax from continuing operalions {376.45) {739.73)
Non-sashmun-l]peraling adjusiment 1o reconcife profit before fax to
nel cash flows
Depreciation & Amortisation including adjustments 2.045.36 2,104.85
Deferred income Amartisation (87.75) (52.88)
Deferred Expense Amortisation 9.15 446
(Profit) /Loss an Sale/Disposal of Property, Plant & Equipment (0.69) 37.70
Interest Expense 1.374.94 1,613.11
Interest Received (97.52) (18.17)
Prepaid Lease charges on Security Deposit 1577 4.38
Prepaid Lease income on Security Deposit (4.71) (4.55}
Foreign Exchange gain/ (loss} on Derivative Liability {12.78) ©.71)
Dperating profil before Working Capital changes 2,865.32 2,948.46
Adjustmenis for:
{Increase)/ Decreass in trade and other receivables (567.03) 1,016.78
(increase) / Decrease in Inventory (274.65) 39.20
Increase/ {Decrease) in trade and ofher payables 53519 {389.73)
Cash generated from operations 2,358.83 3,614.71
Income Taxes (Paid)/Refund {(57.91) (397.74)
Net Cash irom Operatin g Activily (A) 2,500.92 3,216.97
8. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipmsnt (1.245.04) (1.368.71)
Sale/Disposal of Property, Plant & Equipment 3.92 1.13
Gowvt. Grant Received / Deferred Revenye Received 22.40 774.43
Sale of Investments - 0.39
Maturityf(Investment) in Non Gurrent Fixed Deposits {(5.94) (85.27)
Interest Recaived 91.03 16.60
Net Cash Flow from Invesiing Activity(B) {1,133.63) {661.43)
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31

MARCH 2018

{Rs. In Lakhs)

— i o | oot year g

C. CASH FLDW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Long Term Borrawings (652.19) 2,889.47
Proceedsf{Repayment) of loans from others 434.19 {2,604.57)
Interest & Other Borrowing Costs Paig {1,176.08) (1,435.39)
Netcash used in Financing Activity (G} (1,394.08) {1,150.49)
Nel increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalenis(A+B+C) (26.79) 1,405.05
Cashand cash equivalents at the beginaing of the year 983.61 (421.44)
Cash and cash equivalents at the close of the year 956.81 983.61

Noles:

1. The above ¢ash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in

2. For the purpose of Statement of Cash Flow, Cash and Cash Equivalents comprises the followings:

Ind AS -7 "Statement of Cash Flows'.

{Rs. In Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2013 | As at March 31,2017 Asat April 01, 2016
Balance with Banks 1,101.14 1.337.95 36.92
Cash on hand 43 63 2320 32.31
tnvestment in Mutual Fund 70.18 - -
Less: Bank Overdraft 258.14 377.54 490.67
956.81 983.51 {421.44)

Significaat Accounting Poficies and other Notes
These notss form an integral part of these financiat siaternents
in Terms of our Report Attached

For K.L.Vyas & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 00328a¢

K.L.Vyas
Partner
M.No. 072043

indore, 30" May 2018

For antt on behalf of the Board of Qirectors

TN Unni
Qirector
DIN-00079237

Raoof Razak Dhanani
Managing Director

Santlesh Khandeiwal

Chief financial Officer

Company Secrelary

DIN-00174654
Amit Sarraf
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Significant Accounting Policias for tha FY 2017-18:- Separale Financial Statements
A.  Reporling entity

Sayaji Hotels Limited {SHL" or the “Company”}, is a company domiciled in India and limited by shares (CIN:
L581100G1 982PLCO05131 ). The shares of the company are publicly fraded on Bombay Stock Exchange of India Limited. The address
of the Company’s registered office is F1 G2 Sivavel Apartment, 2 Alagappa Nagar, Zamin Paliavaram, Chennai Tamii Nadu - 600117 The
Company s primarily engaged in the business of awning, operating & managing hotels.

The Financiaf Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018 were approved by Board of Directars and authorized for issue on 30th
May, 2018.

B.  Basisof Preparation
1. Statement ot Compiiance

These Separate Financial Statements are prepared on accrual basis of accounting and comply in all material aspects with the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Gompanies {!ndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 ang
subsequent amendments thereto, the Companies Act, 2013 (to the extent appiicable), applicable provisions of the Comgpanies
Act, 1956. These are Company’s first Ind AS compliant financial statements and Ind AS 101 *First Time Adoption of indian
Accounting Standards’ has been applied.

For ail period upto and including 315t March 2017, ihe company prepared its financiat statements in accordance with Generaily
Accepted Accounting Principies (GAAP) in India, accounting standards specitied under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Companies Act, 2013 (to the extent notified and applicable), applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1955. The Com pany
followed ihe provisions of Ind AS 101 in preparing its opening Ind AS Balance Sheet as on the date of Traasition, viz. 15t April
2018. Some of the Company’s Ind AS Accou ing policies used in the opening Balance sheetara different from its previous GAAP
policies applied as at 31st March 2016, accordingly the adjustment were made to restate the opening balance as per [nd AS. The
resuiting adjustment arase from events ang transaction before the date of transition to Ind AS, Therefore, as required by Ind AS
101, those adjustments were recognized directly through retained garnings as at 1st April 2016, This is the effect of the general
rule of the Ind AS 101 whichiis toapply Ind AS retrospectively,

An Explanation of how the transition to Ind AS 101 has affected the reported financial position, financial performance and cash
flows of the Company is provided in note.

2.  Basisofmeasurement/Use of Eslimates

(il TheFinancial Statements are prepared an accrual basis under the historical cost convention except certain financial assets
and liabilities (including derivatives instru ments) that are measured at fair vatug. The methods used to meastre fair values
arediscussed in notes o financial statements.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration givenin exchange for geods and serviges.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liablity in an orderty transaction belween
market participants at the measurement date.

(i}  The preparation of financial statements requires judgiments, estimates and assumptions that atfect the reported amount of
assets and liabifities. disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actual resalts and estimates are recognized in
the period inwhich the results are known/ materialized. Major Estimates are discussed in PartC.

3. Functional and presentation eufrancy
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company's functional currency. All financial

information presented in INR has been rounded to the nearesi Lakhs (upto two decimals), except as stated oth grwise,
C. Significantaccon nling policies

A summary of the significant accounting policiss applied in the preparation of the financial statements are as given below. These
accounting policies have been applied consistently to afl periods presentec in the financial statements.

The Company has elected to utilize the optian under ind AS 101 by not applying the provisions of ind AS 16 and Ind AS 38
retrospectively and continue to use the previous GAAP carrying amount as a deemed cost under fnd AS at the date of fransition to Ind
AS. Therefore, the carrying amount of property, plant and equiprnent and intangible assets at 1 Aprit 2016, the Company’s date of
transitionto Ind AS, according to the previous GAAP were maintained intransition to Ind AS.




SAYAJI HOTELS LIMITED " 392

Significant Acceunting Policies for the FY 2017-18:- Separate Financial Statements

1.

2.2.

2.3.

24.

Current and non-current elassificat

ion

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification,

Anassetis current when it is:

' Expecied to be realized arintended to soid or consumed in normal operating cycle:

. Held primarily for the purpose

offrading;”

. Expected to be realized within twelve manths after the reporting period; or

. Cash or cash equivalent unies
the reporting period.

$ restricted from being exchanged or used to sattie g fiability for at least twelve months after

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Aliability is current when:

. Rtis expectedto be settled in normal operating cycle;

. tis heid primarily for the purpose of trading;

* ltisdueto be setiled within twelve months after the reporting period: or

*  Thereis no unconditional right to defer settlement ofthe liability for at least twelve months afierthe reporting period.
Al other liabilities are classified ag non-current,

Deferred tax assets/liabifities are classified as non-gurrent.

Property Plant & Equipment

An item of property, plant and equi
associated with the item will flow fo ¢

. Initial recognition ang measurement

pments recognized as an asset if and only if it is probable that future sconomic benefits
he company and the cost of the item can be measured refiably.

{tems of Property, Plant ang Equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation/amortization ang accumulated

impairment losses. Cost includes ex

penditure that is direcily attributable to bringing the asset, borrowing cost, inclusive of non-

refundable taxes & duties, to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by

management.

When parts of an item of property, plantand equipment have different usefu) lives, they are recognized separately.
items of spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment which meet the definition of Property, Plant ang Equipment

are capitalized.
Subsequant cosis

reliably. The carrying amount of the
Equipment are recognized in profito

Derecagnition

rloss asincurred.

Praperty, Plant and Equipment are derecognized when no future economic benefits are expected from their use or upon their

disposal. Gains and losses on dispo

sal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds

from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plantand equipment. and are recognized in the statement of profitand loss.

Depreciation/amontization

Method aver the estimated usefu! fives as prescribed in Schedide If of Companies Act, 2013, excaptin respect of the following

categories of assets, in whose case

the life of assets had been fe-assessed as under based on technical evaluation, taking into

account the nature of asset, the estimated usage of the assel, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement,

anticipated technological changes,
Plantand Equipment,

manufactttrer’s warranties and maintenance support of each pait of an item of Property,
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Classal Assels Useful Life

Assets constructed on leased premises, Over the lease period
l.easehoid lands are amortized ovar the fease term unless itis reasonably certain that the Corpany will obtain ownership by the end of
the leaseterm.

Assets constructed on leased premises are depreciated/amortized over the lease period.
Assets costing up toRs. 5,000/- are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition.
Depreciation on additions to/deductions from fixed assets during the year is charged on pro-rata basis from/up tothe date on which the
asset is available for use/disposed.
Where itis probable that future sconomic benefits deriving from the cost incurred wif] flow to the enterprise and the cost of the item can
be measured reiiably, subsgquent expenditure ona PPE along-with its unamortized depreciable amount is charged off prospectively
averthe revised useful life determined bytechnical assessment,
In circumstance. where a property is abandoned. the cumulative capitalized costs reiating 1o the property are written off in the same
period.
3. Capitalwork-in-pregress
The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials & direct labour, any other costs directly attributable ta bringing
the assets to the location and condition necessary tor it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management and
borrowing costs,

Expenses directly attributable to construction of property, plant and equipment incurred tilt they are ready for their intended use
areidentified and allocated on a systematic basis on the costof refated assets.
Deposit works/cast plus contracts are accounted for on the basis of statements of account received from the contractors,

4. Inlangible assetsang intangible assets underdavelopment

4.1. inltial recognition and measurement
Anintangible asset is recognized ifand only if it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the
asset will flow to the company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably,
Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company, which have finite useful lives, are recognized at cost. Subseguent
measurement is done at cost kess accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes any directly
aftributable incidental expenses Recessary to make the assels ready for its intended use.

4.2. Subsequenl cosis
Subsequent expenditure is recognized as anincregse inthe carrying amount of the asset when it is prababie that future economic
berefits deriving from the costincurred will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the ftem can be measured reliabily,

4.3. Derecognition
An intangibie asset is derecognized when no luture economic benefits are expected from their use or upon their disposal. Gains
and losses on disposal o an item of intangible assels are determined by comparing the proceeds fram disposal withthe carrying
amount of intangible assets and are fecognized in the statement of profitand Joss,

4.4. Amortization
Intangibie assets having definite life are amortizad on Writter Down Value method in their useful lives, Usetut life of computer
software is estimated at five years. If life of any intangibie asset is indefinite then itis not amortized and tested for Impairment at
the reporting date.

5.  Borrowing Cost
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction/exploration/ development or erection of qualifying
assets are capitalized as part of cost of such asset until such time the assets are substantially ready for their intended use,
Qualifying assets are assets which take a substantial peried of time 1o get ready for their intended use or sale. Capitalization of
borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualitying assets for their intended uses are
complete,
All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue as and when incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of {a) interest expense calculated using the effective interest method as described in Jnd AS 108 —




5

RARIELE

SAYAJI HOTELS LIMITED o 39&

10.

Significant Accounting Policies for the FY 2017-18:- Separate Financial Statements

‘Financial instruments' (b) finance charges in respect of finance leases recognized in accordance with Ind AS 17 - ‘Leases’ (c}
exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest
Costs and {d) other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Income earned on termporary
investment of the borrowings pending their expenditure on the qualtying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligibie
for capitalization.

Investmentin Subsidiary, Assaciate & Joint Vanture

These are Company's Separate Financial Statements. Company has opted to show investments in Subsidiary, Associates & Joint
Venture at cost. Dividend from these is recognized as and when right to receive is established.

Impairment foss is recognized as perind AS 36,
Inventories

InventoriesStock of Food and Beverages and stores and operating supplies are are valued carried at the lower of cost and net
realizable vaiue, Cost includes cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other cosis incusred in bringing the inventories ta their
present focation and condition, including duties and taxes (other than those refundable). Cost is determined on Weigivted
Average Basis. Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realizable value is the
estimated selling price inthe ordinary course of kusiness, less estimated costs of campiletion and the estimated cosis necessary
fo make the sale.

The diminution inthe value of obsolete, unserviceable and surplus stores & spares is ascertained on review and provided for.
Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and cash on hand and short-term deposits with an origina
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to insignificant risk of change in value,

Government Grants

Government grants that com pensate the company for the cost of asset are recognized initially as deferred income when therg is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and the Company will comply with the conditions associated with the grant and
are recognized in profit or loss on a systematic basis aver the uselut life of the related asset. Grants that compensate the
Company for expenses incurred are recognized over the period in which the related £OSts are incurred and are deducted from the
related expenses.

Provisicns and contingent liabilities and Contingent Assels

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation 1hat can be
estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of econamic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect of
the time vatue of meney is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at apre-taxrate that
refiects current market assessments of the time value of maney and the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the grovision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obiigation at
reporting date, taking into accaunt the risks and unce rtainties surrounding the obfigation,

When some or all of the ecanomic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a thirg party, the
receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the raceivable
can be measured reliabiy, The expense relating 1o a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any
reimbursement.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will only be canfirmed by the
oocurrence or non-eccurrence of one or more tuture events not wholly within the control of the Company. Where it is not
probable that an cutflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
distiosed as a contingest liability, unfass the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Contingent liabilitics ara
disciosed on the basis of judgment of the management/independent experts. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
areadjusted o reflect the ctirrent management estimate.

Uontingent assets are possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the securrence
or non-gccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Gompany. Contingent assets are
disclosed in the financial statements when inflow of economic benefits is probable on the basis of judgment of management,
These are assessed contin ually to ensure that developmenis areappropriately reflected in the financial statements,
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1.

12.

Fareign currency transactions and transiation

Transactions in foreign curreacies are initially recorded at the functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first
qualities for recognition.

Monetary assets and Jiabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange
atthe reporting date. Exchange differences afising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in profit or loss
inthe year in which it arises,

Non-maonelary items are measured in terms of historical costina foreign currency are transfated using the exchange rate at the
date of the transaction,

Revenue

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company, and the revenue can
be reliably measured. regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and taking into account contractually defined terms of payment. The Company has conciuded that it is the
principalin all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude
andisalso exposed ta inventary and credit risks. _

The Cempany operates ioyalty programime, which aliows ils eligible customers to earn points based o their spending at the
hatels. The points so earned by such customers are accumulated. The revenue aflocated to award poiris is deferred and on
redemption of the award points, the revenue is recognised. Membership fees received from the loyalty programis recognised as
revenue ontime-proportion basis.

12.1 Rendering o1 serviges

12.21

Revenue comprises sale of rooms, food and beverages, allied services relating to Hotel operations. including management fees
tor the management of the hotels.

Revenue is recognized upon rendering of service, provided pervasive evidence ol an arrangement exists, tariff / rates are fixed or
are determinabile and collectability is reasonably certain. Life Membership fees is amortised over a period o1 10 years, taken as an
estimate hy the management.Life fime club membership fees treated as income ir the year of receipt.

Sale is exclusive of Luxury tax, Sales tax, Service Tax and other taxes. Safes tax under the composition scheme is also
excludedRevenue from sales of goods or rendering of services is net of indirect taxes, returns and giscounts.

Life Membership fees is amortised overa period of 10years, taken as an estimate by the management.

Management Fees earned from hotels managed by the Company are usually under long-term contracts with the hote! owner and
is recogn ised when earned in accordance with the terms of the contract,

nterest Income

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and interest-bearing financial assets classified as fair vaiue through
other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly
tiscounts the estimated future cash raceipts over the expected fife of the financial instrument or a shorter period, wherpever
appropriate, to the net carrying amountof the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates
the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument {which inter alia includes for
example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not considerexciuding the expected credit losses. |aterest
income is included in other income in the statement of profit orloss.

12.3 Dividend

Dividend Income is recognised when the Company’s right 1o receive is esiabiished which generally accurs when the
shareholders approve the dividend.

12.4 0ther Income

13.
13.1.

Other income is recognized in the statement of profit and foss when increase in future ecenomic benefits related to an increase in
anasset oradecrease of aliability has arisen that can be measured rebiably.,

Employee Benefits

Shert Term Benetit

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscourted basis and are expensed as the related service is
provided.

Aliability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under performance related pay if the Company has a present iegal or
tonstructive obligation te pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be
estimated refiably. .
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13.2. Post-Employment benefits

Employee benefit that are payable aiter the completion of employment are Post-Employment Benefit {other than termination
benefit). These are of twa type:

13.2.1.  Defined contribution plans

Defined contribution plans are those plans in which an entity pays tixed contribution into separate entities under the plan
and will have no legal or constructive obiigation to pay further amounts to employee in future under the Plan. Provident
Fund and Employee State Insurance are Defined Contribistion Plans in which company pays a fixed contribution and wil
have no furiher obligation,

13.2.2,  Delined benafit plans

A defined benefit plan is 2 post-employment benefit pian other than a defined contribution plan,

Company pays Gratuity as per provisions of the Gratuity Act, 1972. The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined
beneit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the antoun of future benefit that employees have earned
in retuen for their service in the current and prior periods: that benefit is discounted to determine its present vaiue. Any
unrecognized past service costs and the fair value of any plan assels are deducted. The discount rate is based onthe
prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the reporiing date that have maturity dates approximating
the terms of the Company's obligations and that are denominated in the same currency in which the benefits are expected
tobe paid.

The caiculation is performed annualiy by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation
results in a liability to the company, the present vaiue of itability is recognized as provision for employee benefit. Any
actuarial gains or losses are recognized in 0C!in the period in which they arise.

13.23.  Long Term Employes Benelit

14.

Benefits under the Company’s leave encashment constitute other leng term employee bengfits.

Leave Encashment is determined based on the available leave entitiement at the end of the year,
income Taxes
Incomne tax expense comprises current and deferrad tax. Current Income tax expense is recognized in profit or loss except tg the
extent that it relates to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income or equily, in which case i isis the current and
deferred tax are also recognized in OC! or directly in equity, respectively.
Gurrent tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rafes enacted or substantively enacted and as
appficable at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. Current income taxes are
recognized under ‘Income tax payable’ net of payments on accourt, or under “Tax receivables’ where there is a debit balance.
Current tax assets and current tax kabilities are offset when there is a fegaily enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts
andthere isan intention to settle the assetand the liability on a net basis.
Deferred taxis recognized using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilifies for financial reporting purposes and the amounis used for taxation purposes, except when the deferred
income tax arises from the initial recogitition of goodwill, an asset or liability in 2 transaction that is not a business combi nation
and affects naither accounting nor taxable profits or loss atthe time of the transaction,
Deferred taxis measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, based on the
laws that have been enacted or substantivaly enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assats and liabilities are offset if there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax
authority en the same taxable entity, or on differant tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis or theirtax assets and liabilities will be realized simultanequsly.
Deferred tax is recagnized in profit or loss except 10 the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in 0Cl orequity, in which
case itis recognized in OCl orequity,
A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against whicti the
temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it
is no fenger probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.
Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognized at the same time that the liability to pay the
related dividend is recognized.
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15.

Leases AsLessee

Accounting forfinance leases

Leases of Property, Plant and Equipment where the Company, as Iessee has substantially all risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance lease. On initial recognition, assets held under finance leases are recorded as Property, Plant and Equipment
andthe related liability is recognized urder borrowings. Atinception of ihe lease, finance leases are recorded at amouants equalto
the faiv value of the leased asset or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. Minimum lease paymenis mads
under finance leases are apportioned between the finance expense and the reduction ofthe outstanding liability.

Accounting lor operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are net transterred to the Company as lessee are
classified as operating iease. Payments made under operating leases are recognized as an expense over the lease termchargedto
the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight- line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to
increasein fine with the expected general inflation to compensatethe lessor's expected inflationary ¢ostincreases.

Impairment of Non-financial Asseis

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment considering the provisions of Ind AS 36 Impairment of Assets”. If any such indication exists, then
the asset's recoverable amount is estimated,

The recoverable amount of an assetor cash-generating unitis the higher ofits fair value less costs to disposat and its value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their presentvalue using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments ¢f the time vajue of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment
testing, assets that cannot be testad individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generafes cash
inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cagh-
generating unit®, or “CGY").

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of CGUs are reduced from the
carrying amounts of goodwill of that CGU, if any and then the assets of the CGU.

Impairment fosses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the 10ss has decreassd
or no longer exists. An impairment Yoss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only {0 the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying ameynt
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment Joss had been recognized.

Operating Segments

In accordance with Ind AS 108 — Operating Segrents, the operating segments used to present segment information are
identified on the basis of internal reports used by the Company’s Management to allocate resources to the segments and assess
their performance. The Board of Directors is collectively the Cornpany’s ‘Chief Operating Decision Maker” or ‘CODM’ within the
meaning of Ind AS 108. For management purposa company is organized inta miajor operating activity of hoteliering in India. The
indicators used forinternal reporting purpeses may evelve in connection with performance assessment measures putinpiace.
Dividends

Qividends and interim dividends payabletoa Company's shareholders are recognized as changes in equity in the period in which
they are approved by the shareholders’ meeting and the Board of Directors respectively,

Mzterial Prior Period Envors

Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts for the priot periods presented in
which the error occurred. If the error occurred before the earliest prior period presented, the opening balances of assets,
lFabilities and equity for the earliest prior period presented, are restated,

Earnings PerShare

Basic earnings per equity share is computed hy dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Com pany
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial vear,

Diluted eamings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or Ioss attributable to equity shareholders of the
Gompany by the weighted average number of equity shares considered far deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the

weighted average number of equity shares thatcoulq' UE,‘LG.Q*EQ" issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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Statement of Cash Flows
Statement of cash flows is prepared in accordance with the indirect method prescribed in Ind AS-7 ‘Statement of cash flows.
Financial instrements

Afinancialinstrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial iability orequity instrument of
anotherentity,

22.1. Financial assets
Initial recognition and measuremeni

Aft financial assets are recagnized initially at fair value plus or minus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are atiributable o the acquisition orissue of thefinancial asset.

Subsequent measurement
Debtinstruments at amortized cost

A’debtinstrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

(@) Theassetis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets forcollecting contractual cash flows, and

(b} Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
{SPPI) onthe principal amount outstanding.

Atter initiaf measurerent, such financia) assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Amortizad

costis calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fzes or costs that are an integral part of the

EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance iscorme in the profit or foss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in

the profitor loss. This category generally applies ta trade and uther receivables.

Oebtinstrument at F¥TOC! (Fair Value through 0Cil)

A ‘debtinstrument’ is classified as at the FYTOC! if both of the foilowing Criteria are met:

{a) Theobjective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and
(b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPP!

Debt instruments included within the FYTOC! category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value, Fair
value movements are recognized in the OGI. However, the Company recognizes inferest income. impairment losses & reversals
and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously
recegnized in OCl s reclassified from the equity to profit and loss. Interest garned whitst helding FVTOC! debt instrument is
reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debtinstrument at FVTPL (Fair value through profit or loss)

FVTPLis a residual category for deht instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categonization as at
amortized cost or as FVTOC), is classified as at FY¥TPL.

In addition, the Company may efegt to Ciassify a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FYTOC criteria, as at
FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only i deing so reduces or efiminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency
{referred to as 'accounting mismatch'). Debt instruments included within the FYTPL category are measored af fair value with all
changes recognized in the profitand loss.

Equityinvestments

All equity investments in entitiss other than subs idiaries, assuciates and joint ventures are measured at fair value. Equity
instruments which are held for trading are classified as a1 FVTPL. For afl other equity instruments, the Company decides {0
classify the same either as at FYTOG! or FYTPL. The Company makes such efection on an instrument ty instrument basis. The
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevogable.

if the company decides to ciassiy an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instruments, excluding
dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCIto P&L., even on sale of invesiment. However
the company may transfer cumulative gain or loss within the equity,

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with ail changes racognized in the profit and
loss. Equity investments in subsidiaries, assaciated and joint ventures are measured at cost.
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Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognized (i.e. removed from the Gompany’s balance sheet) when:
-The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
- The Gompany has transferred its rights to recgive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-th rough’ arrangement; and either {a) the Comipany has
transierred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or {b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred controi of the asset,
Impairment of linancial assets .
Inaccordance with Ind-AS 109. the Company anplies expected credit foss {ECL) mode! for measurement and recognition of
tmpairment loss on the follawing financial assets and credit risk expostre;
. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, deht securities, depaesits, trade
receivables and bank balance
. Trade recgivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are
withinthe scope 0fInd AS 11 and ind AS 18
. The Company follows ‘simpiified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
. Trade receivables or contract assets resulting from transactions within the scopi of Ind AS 11 and fnd AS 18, if they do not
confaina significant financing companent
. Trade receivables or contract assels resulfing from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 11 and |nd AS 18 that contain a
significant financing component, if the Gompany applies practical expedient to ignore separation of time value of money,
and
The application of simplified approach does not requirg the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes
impairmentloss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.
For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has
beenasignificantincrease in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is
used te provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased sigaificantly, lifetime ECL is used. if, in a subsequent
period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment foss altowance based on 12-month ECL.
22.2 Financial liabilitigs
Initial recognition and measarement
Alljinancial liabilities are recognized at fair value and in case of loans, net of directly attributable cost. Fees of recurring nature are
directly recognised in the Statement of Profitand Loss as finance cost.
Subsequent measuremant
Financtal liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and any material transaction that are any integral part of the EIR. For trade and
ather payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due 1g the
shortmatutity of these instruments.
Derecognition
Afinanciat liability is derecognized when the ohligation under the liabifity is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financiat Hability is replaced by another from the same lender an substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing fiabiity
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liabitity and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of protitorioss.
Derivative financial instruments
The Company uses forwards to mitigate the risk of changes in intergst rates, exchange rates and commodity prices. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and
are also subsequently measured at fair vaiue, Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair valse is positive and as
financiat liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of terivatives are
taken directly to Statement of Profit and Loss, except for the effective portion of cash How hedges which is recognised in Qther
Comprehensive Income and later to Statement of Prafit and, oss when the hedged itern affects profit or loss or treated as basis
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b)

Significant Accou nling' Policies for the FY 2017-18:- Separale Financial Statemenis

adjustment if 2 hedged torecast transaction su bsequently results in the recognition of a non-financiai assets or non-financial
liability.

Hedgesthat meel the criteria for hedge accounting are accounted foras follows:

Cash flow hedge

The Company designates derivative contracts or non derivative financial assets / liabilities as hedging instrements to mitigate the
risk of movement in interest rates and foreign exchange rates for foreign exchange exposure on highly prohable future cash
flows attributable to a recognised asset or Kability or forecast cash transactions. When a derivative is designated as a cash flow
hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognized in the cash flow hedging
reserve being part of other comprehensive income. Any ineffective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is
recognized immediately In the Statenent of Profit and Loss. If the hedging relationship no longer meets the criteria for hedge
agcounting, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or
exercised, the cumulative gain or foss on the hedging instrument recognized in ¢ash flow hedging reserve till the period the
hedge was effective remains in cash flow hedging reserve until the underying transaction occurs. The cumuative gain or loss
previously recognized in the cash flow hedging reserve is transferred to the Statement of Profitand Loss upon the occursence of
the underlying transaction. f the forecasted transaction is no longer expected to occur. then the amount accumulated in ¢agh
flow hedging reserve is reclassified in the Statement of Profitand l.oss.

Fair Value Hedge

Changes in the fair value of hedging instruments and hedged items that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are
recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss. if the hedging relationship no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the
adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for which the effective interest method is used is am ortised to Statement of
Profitand Loss over the period of maturity.

The company discloses certain financial information hoth including and excluding exceptional items. The presentation of
information exchuding exceptional items allows 2 better understanding of the underlying trading periormance of the company
and provides censistency with the company’s internal management reporting. Exceptional items are identified by virtue of either
their size or nature so as to facilitate comparison with prior periods and to assess underlying trends in the financial performance
of the company. Exceptional items can include, but are not restricted to. gains and losses on the disposal of assets/investments.
impairment charges, exchange gain/loss on long term borrowings/ assets and chages in fair value of derivative contracts.

Major Estimates made in preparing Financial Statemenls

Uselul life of praperty, plani and equipment

The estimated useful tife of properiy, plant and equipment is based on a number of factors inchuding the effects of obsolescence,
demand, competition and other economic faciors (such as the stability of the industry and known technological advances) and
the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expectad future cash flows from the asset.

Useluliife of the assets other than Plantand machinery are in accordance with Schetele | of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company reviews at the end of each reporting date the useful iife of property, plant and equipment, and are adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

Post-employment benefit plans

Employee benefit obligations are measured an the basis of actuariat assumptions which include mortality and withdrawal rates
as well as assumptions concerning future developmants in discount rates, the rate of salary increases and the inflation rate. The
Company considers that the assumptiens used o measure its obligations are appropriate and documented. However, any
changes in these assumptions may have a material impact on the resulting calculations,

Provisions aat contingencies

The assessments undertaken in recognizing provisions and contingencies have been made in accordance with ind AS 37,
‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’. The evaluation of the likelihood of the cantingent events has required
hest judgment by management regarding the probability of exposure ta potentiat loss. Should circumsiances change foifowing
unforeseeable developments, this fikelihood could alter,

Impairment Test of Non-Financial Assets:

The recoverable amount of investment in subsidiary is based on estimates and assumptions regarding in particular the future
cash flows associated with the operations of the investee company. Any changes in these assumptions rmay have a material
impact on the measurement of the recoverable amount and could result in impairment,
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2018

A. Equity Shara Capital

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Balance as at 1st April, 2017 Changes in egeity share eapital Balance as at 31st March, 2018
during the year
1.751.80 - 1,751.80
B. Other Equity (Rs. In Lakhs)
Reserve and surplus
Equity somponent EHective
. ol compound - portion of
Particulars finangial SP?‘Z:I:;S General Retained | Cash Flow Total
instruments i
instrume Reserve Reserve Earnings Hetges
Balance as at 1s1 April, 2017 251.56 5,944.60 641.48 (644.36) {0.37) 6,193.01
Profit/(Loss) for the ygar {423.46) {423.46)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - - - 60.61 0.37 60.98
Total Comprehensive incoms for the Year - - {362.85) 0.37 {362.48)
Cash dividends o - - - - -
Dividend distribution tax on ¢ash dividend - - - - -
Transfer to retained earnings - - . - -
issue of share capital - - - - - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2018 251.66 5,944.60 641.48 (1,087.21) {0.37) 5,830.53

A. Equity Share Capitai (Rs. In Lakhs)

Balance as at 1st April, 2016 Changes in aquity share capital Balance as at 31st March, 2017

during the year
1,751.80 - 1,751.80
B. Other Equity (Rs. In Lakhs)
Reserve and surplus .
Equity component E'I:,"l“’e!
" of compound iti i portion o
Particulars finangial ?,?3:;::;3 General Retained | Gash Flow Total
instrumenls Resorve Reserve Earnings Hedges
Balance as at 1st April, 2015 251.56 5,944.60 641.43 (36.00) - 9,807.74
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - - (627.95) - (627.95)
Other Cornprehensive Income for the year - - 13.59 9.37) 13.22
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year - - (614.36) {0.37) (614.73)
Cash dividends - - - - -
Dividend distribution tax on cash dividend - - - -
Transier irom retained earnings - - - - -
Issue of share capilal - - - - - -
Balance as at 3tst March, 2017 251.86 5,944.60 641.48 {644.36} (0.37} 8,193.01
Slgntkicant Accounting Policies ant other Notes 145

These notes form an integral pant of these financial statements in teems of our report aitached

For K.L.Vyas & Company

For and on hehalf of the Board of Directers

Chartered Accountants T.N Unni Raoof Razak Dhanani
Firm Regn. No. 003289¢ Director Managing Director
g- h-"m DIN-00079237 DIN-00174654

artner
M.No. 072043 Sandesh Khandefwal Amit Sarraf
Chief Financial Officer Comgany Secrstary

indore, 30" May 2018
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 34ST MARCH, 2018
NOTE 2: PROPERTY PLANT & EQUIPMENT (OWNED, UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED}

{Rs. In Lakhs)

Gross block Depreciation/Amortization Net book value
Padiculars As at Additions Deletions/ | Asat Uplo Forthe ﬂglelim/ Upto Asat As at

91.04,2017 Adjustment | 31.03.2016 | 01.04.2007]  Year Adjusiment | 31.03.2518 | 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Freehold Land 2,637.00 - -| 2,837.00 - - 2837007 2637.00
Leasehold Land 2.114.11 - - 211411 30.95 20.98 - 61.93| 2052.18} 2,083.16
Buildings 9,398.68 793.11 (5.67)| 10,186.12f 1.021.41] 1.250.85 (4.55)| 2,267.51| 7.91861| 8,377.27
Plant and Equipments 1,746,81 84.28 (7.34) 1,823.7% 271.87 270.27 (6.45) 935681 1,288.07| 147494
Furniture & Fixtures 855.76 58.38 {26.35) 087.79 202.93 342.54 (26.97) 519.40 468.39 752.83
Service Equipment B83.27 144 69 (5.16) 222 30 32.44 53.16 (5.11} 80.4% 142,31 50.83
Vehicles _125.87 31.13 {45.47) 111,53 40.54 32.40 {43.20) 29.74 81.79 85.33
Computers 181.52 23.79 - 205.31 94 62 47 .88 - 142.50 £2.81 86.80
Total 17,243.02 { 1,135.38] (89.99)] 18,288 .41 1,684.76f 2,027.88| (85.39) | 3,637.25 14,651.16 ] 15,548.26

{Rs. in Lakhs)
Gross bleck Deprecialion/Amortization Wet book valug
Particulars Rsat f o tons | Deletions/ | Asal Uplo Forthe | Deletions/ {  Upto Asat As at

01.84.2016 Adjusiment | 31.03.2017 | p1.04.2015 Year Avjustment | 31.93.2017 | 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Freehold Land 2,637.00 . -1 2,6372.00 - - -| 2,637.00( 2.637.00
Leaseho/d Land 21131 1.00 -l 211411 - 30.95 - 30.851 2083.16{ 2.113.11
Buildings 573331 [ 382349 (158.12)| 9.398.68 =[ 1.43.32) (121.91)) 102141} 8377.271 5.733.31
Ptant and Equipmants 1.180.76 558.05 8.00] 1746281 - 267 61 4.26 271.87 | 1474.94} 1,180.76
Furnitere & Fixtures 982.54 261.97) (288.75) 955.76 485,53 (282.60) 202.93 752.83 982.54
Service Equipment 72.56 10.71 - 83.27 - 32.44 - 32.44 50.83 72.56
Vehicles 122.37 3.50 - 125.87 - 40.54 - 40.54 85.33 122.37
Computers 166.99 14.93 {0.40) 181.52 - 94.66 {0.04) 94.62 86.90 166.99
Total 13,008.64 { 4,673.65| (439.27)|17,243.02 =1 2,085.051 (400.29) | 1,694.76 | 15,548.26 | 13,008.64

Information regarging gross biock o

f property plant and equipment and accumulated depreciation under previous GAAP is as foflows:

{Rs. in Lakhs)

Particufars - g:’?::;?;gw gi:l:g::l;;aut:: as a??ltl?l;:‘.:;mti ind as Adjustment 2::;‘:;'1“. 3:';:::
As at 31.03.2016 {Daemed cest)

Free Hold Land 2,837.00 - 2,637.00 - 2,637.00
Lease Hold Land 2,294.06 - 2,294.06 (180.95) 2,113.11
Buildings 12,959.99 7,226.68 5,733.31 - 573331
Piant & Equipment 3,886.25 2.705.49 1.180.76 . 1.180.76
furniture & Fixtures 6,514.41 5.631.87 982.54 - 982.54
Service Equipments 819.71 74715 72.56 - 72.56
Vehicles 653.99 531.62 122.37 - 122.37
Computers 605.51 438.52 166.9% 166.99
Total 30,470.92 12,261.33 13,189.59 {180.95) 13,008.64

2.1 Refer Note 21.6 for information on property, plant and equipment pledged as security by the Company.
P N
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YHE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018

NOYE 3 : CAPITAL WORK-IN-PRGGRESS

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 11.04.2017 Additions Capitafised during |~ . 2131.03,2018
year
Capital work in progress 7.36 28.11 - 35.47
Tofal 1.36 28.11 - 35.47
{Rs. In Lakhs)
Particalars As at 01.04.2015 Additions ca""fh'l'f;g;'r“""“ As at 31.03.2017
Capital work in progress 3.318.30 814.90 4,126.34 7.36
Total 3,318.80 814.90 4,126.34 7.36

The amount of expe nditures recognised in CWIP during construction period

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particalars

For the year Ended
ason 31.03.2018

For the ysar Ended
as on 31.03.2017

(2] Expenses Recogrised in P/L

Employee Benefits Expenses - 53.45
Total expenses - 53.45
{h) Caphalinveniory and stores 28.11 761.45
Total additiens during tha year (a) + (k) 28.11 $14.90

Acarried to Capital Work in Progress (Note 3)

NOTE 4; INTANGIBLE ASSETS (ACOUIRED)

{Rs. In Lakhs})

Gross hiock Depreciation/Amortization Nei book value
Particulars Boal | e Deletions/ | Asat Upta Forthe | Deletions/ |  Wpto Asat Asal
01.04.2017 Adjustment | 31,03.2018 | 01.04.2017 [  Year | Adjusiment | 31.03.2018 | 91.03.2018 | 31.03.2017
Scftware & Licences 16.24 82.92 - 89.16 a.80 17.48 - 27.28 71.88 6.44
Total 16.24 82.92 - 99.16 9.80 17.48 - 27.28 71.88 6.44
{Rs. In Lakhs}
Gross block Depreciation/Amortization Nel book value
Particulars Asal | oaeo | Defetions/ [ Asat Upto Forthe | Deletions/ |  Uplo Asat A at
D1.32.2015 Adjustment | 31.£3.2017 | 91.04.2016[  Year Adjestment | 31.83.2017 | 31.03.2017 | 31.03.2016
Software & Licences 9.59 6.65 . 16.24 - 9.80 - 9.80 B.44 9.59
Total 9.59 6.65 - 16.24 - 9.80 “ 9.80 6.44 9.59

Isformation regarding gross block of Intangible Assets and aceumulater amortization under previous BAAP is as fallows:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Accumufater Net Biock .
Pariiculars oSS Black Depreciation Asal01.04.2016 | Oering balance
atI;. As a1 31.03.2016 {Deemed cost) s
Software & Licences 141.72 132.13 9.99 9.59
Total 141.72 132.13 9.59 9.59
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-NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018
NGN CURRENT ASSETS
Note 5 : Investment in Subsidiary
Number of shares [ Face Value per sha
Particulars GureYear, | comenttor/ e b | 315t o | 198 o
(Previous Year)/ | (Provious Year)/ P v s;n e
[Date of Transition] | IDate of Transitioa)
Subsidiary™ (Unquoted at cost)
Sayaji Housekeeping Services Ltd. (Equity Shares) 63.65,000 10 636.50 636.50 636.50
{6365000) {10
(6365000} [10]
Sayaji Housekeeping Services Ltd. (Preference Shares) 10,000 10 1.00 1.00 1.00
(10000) {10)
[10000] 10]
Malwa Hospitality Pvt. Ltd. (Equity Shares) 68,893,998 10 689.40 689.40 689.40
(6893998) ()
16893998] {10
Aries Hotels Pvt. Ltd. (Equity Shares) §2,18.000 10 770.20 770.20 770.20
{5218000) (10}
{5218000] [10]
Less: Provision for impairment in value of Investment = * (14352) | (143.52) {143.52)
Totai 1,953.58 | 1,953.58 1,953.58
Aguregate value of unquoted investments 1,953.58 } 1,853.58 1,953.58
* As per Ind AS 27 {Separate Financial Statements)
** The company has recognised an impairment amouning to Rs.Nid (31st March, 2017 Rs, Nil; 351 April, 2016 Rs. 143.59 Lakhs) on above
investment. The impairment i recagnised i Statement of Profit and Loss A/c
Note 6:Nen Current Financial Asset: Investmenls
Number of sharss ; Face Vaius per share
Particulars Cuent Year/ | CurentYear/ | o S8 15t March 1ot hotl
{Previous Year)/ | (Peevions Year) ) 2018 ' 2017 ’ 201pﬁ :
{Date of Transition] | (Dafe of Transition]
A.  Trade Invesimsnts {Unquoted At FYTPL}*
Genex Hotels Pvt, Ltd. 1,100 10.00 0.11 0.11 0.50
{1,100) {10.80)
[5,000) [10.001
Winner Holels Pvi. Lid 2,300 10.00 0.23 0.23 0.23
(2,300} {10.00)
[2,300] {10.00]
Sub-Tolal () 0.34 0.34 0.73
B.  Other Investments (Unquoted at FYTPL}*
Bharat Equity Services Ltd, 1,00,000 10.00 0.10 0.10 Q.10
(100000} (10.00)
(100000} [10.00]
Sub-Total (B) n.10 0.10 0.10
Total {A+B) 0.4 0.44 0.83
Aggregaie vaiue of anguoted investments 0.4 0.44 0.83
* As per Ind AS 27 (Separate Financiai Statements)
# FYTPL - Fair Value Through Profit and Loss
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018

Note 7 : Non Current Financ!al Asset; Loans

{Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st Mareh, 2018 As al 31st March, 2017 As at 1st Apsil, 2016
Security Deposits* §23.92 65.27 12.38
Total 523.92 55.27 12.38

“Security deposit Includes Rs. 462.15 Lakhs (315t March 2017 Rs. Nil; 15t Aprit 2016 Rs. Nit) given to Prinite Hospitality Pvt Ltd and
Rs. 48,05 Lakhs (31 March, 2017 Rs, 41.33 Lakhs; 1st April 2016 Rs. Nil) given to M/s Vicon Imperial Private Ltd. an associate company,

Wote 8 : Nan-cusrant Finarcial Assefs: Others

{Rs. In Lakhs)

Parliculars As al 31sl March, 2013 As at 31st March, 2017 As at 1st Aprll, 2016
Fixed Daposits Apainst lien & Bank Guarantee* 94 .31 88.37 3.10
Total 9431 88.37 3.10

*Maturity after 12 months & pledged with bank against margin money.

Note 9 : Beferred Tax assels (nel)

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particuiars As at 31st March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2017 As 21 1st Apri3, 2016

On accouni of Timing Difference in

Carry Forward {osses & Depreciation - - -

Expenses Disaifowed under |.T. Act., 1961 206.50 248.77 148.42

Depreciation on fixed assets 1,120.80 1,030.91 802.40

On cash Flow hedge reserve - 0.19 -

Qthers 61.39 57.20 56.65
Total Delerred Tax Assels 1,388.69 1,332.07 1,108.47

Other Iag AS Adjustments 5.44 13.62

Transaction cost on borrowings 29.87 30.87 -
Total Deferred Tax Liabilitles 3HH 4448 -
Net Deferred Tax(Liability)/Assets* 1,353.38 1,292.58 1,108.47
Amoun? debitedACredited} to Protit & Loss Stalemani {60.80) (184.11) {521.31)

* Deferved tax liability for the year have been arrived at by taking the tax rate of 34.608% (31 March, 2017 33.95%: 1 Apnil, 2016 34.608%) which

is inciusive of education cass,

Movement in Deferred Tax Assel/Liability For the Year Ended As at 31st March, 2018

ey | ameross, | Recounizg noca | Gt St s

Deferred tax Liabilities:

Other [nd AS Adjustments 13.62 8.18} - 5.44
Transaction cost on borrowings 30.87 (1.00) - 29.87
Deferred tax assets:

Expenses Disallowed under }.T, Act,, 1961 248.77 (42.27) - 236.50
Depreciation on Fixed agsets 1,030.91 §9.89 - 1,120.80

On cash Flow hedge reserve 019 - (0.19) -
Others §7.20 419 - 61.39
Met Tax (assets)/liabilities (1,292.58) {60.99} 0.19 {1,353.38)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 313T MARCH, 2018
Movement in Deferred Tax Assel/Liability For the Year Ended As at 395t March, 2017

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Partculars Tao20s | woltorios | Fecosnized inogi | Clsing Balance o

Deferred tax Liabilities;

Other Ind AS Adjustments - 13.62 - 13.62

Transaction cost on borrowings - 30.87 30.87

Deferred tax assels:

Expenses Disallowed under 1.1, Act., 1961 149.42 95.35 - 248.77

Depreciation on fixed assels 802.40 128.51 - 1,030.91

On cash Flow hedge reserve - - 0.19 0.19

Cthers 56.65 0.55 §7.20

Net Tax {asseis)/liabilities {1.108.47) (183.92) ©.19) {1,292.58)

Note 10 : Other non-carrent assels {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2018 As al 315t March, 2017 As at 1st April, 2016

Capital Advances* 19.42 1.79 24.39

Prepaic lease charges 75712 504.62 351.18

Raipur Lease~ Stamp Duty Payment Unamortised £0.91 65.60 -

Tolat 837.45 572.01 375.57

*Given for business purpose.

CURRENT ASSETS

Note 11 ; Invenlories (Rs. In Laihs)
Pasticulars As at 315t March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2017 As at Tst Aprit, 2016

{Vaiued a1 cost or NRV whichever is less &

certified by management)

Operating Supplies 1.579.16 1,247.74 1,286.55

Food & Beverages 124.92 138.15 139.54

Shopping Arcade Stock* - 42.54 42.54

Totat 1,764.08 1,329.43 1,468.63

*Transferred to fixed assets during the year as per Contra in Note 2.

Disciosure As per Ind AS 2, Inventaries

{i} Amount of inventories recognised as expense during the year Is as under: {Rs. In Lakhs)
Pardiculars For the year 2017-18 For the year 2016-17

Operating Supplies 1,207.01 1,154.25

Food & Beverages 4,169.33 3,683.60

Shopping Arcade Stock - -

Total 5,376.74 4,837.85

(ii) Refer Nate 25.1 for information on inventory pledged as secarity by the Company.
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NOTES 70 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2013

Nole 12 : Current Financial Assets: Trade Receivables {Rs. In Lakhs)
Parliculars As al 3131 March, 2918 As at 31st March, 2017 As at st April, 2016

Unsecured

Considered Good 802.25 633.74 906.39

Less: Provision for Doubtful Trade Receivahles (32.22) - -

Total 870.03 633.74 936.39

Note 13 : Cash and Cash Equivaleats (Rs. In L.3khs)

Particulars As at 31st March, 2618 As al 315t March, 2017 As at 1st Aprif, 2016

Cash cn Hand 43,63 23.20 32.31

Balances with 8ank

In current Accounts With Scheduled Bank 1,101,414 1,337.95 36.92
Imvestment in Mustual Fung - 70.18 - -

Tolal 1,214.95 1,361.15 69.23

Nota 14 : Bank halances other than above {Rs. In Lakis)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2018 As at 3tst Mareh, 2017 As at st April, 2016

Fixed Deposits Against fian {with less than 25.60 519.46

12 months maturity)

Total - 25.60 519.46

Note 15 : Cwrrent Financial Assets: Loans {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2017 As at st Apsil, 2016

Staff Advances & Loan 1917 16.80 15.97

Other loans and advancas* 46.76 98.48 87.41

Totai €5.93 115.28 103.38

*Loans and advances have been given for business PUIpoOses.

Note 16 : Cureenl Financial Assets: Dthes {Rs. In Lakhs)
Partigulars As at 31s! March, 2018 A&s at 31sl March, 2017 As at Ts1 April, 2016

Electricity Deposit 97 98 47.38 44.22

Telephone Deposit 0.34 1.86 1.86

Others 206.88 145.61 154.41

Receivable against Sale of Restaurant™ - - 1.238.00

Less: Provision for doubtiul advances (1.72} (1.72)

Total 303.48 194.11 1.438.49

*Amount due from Barbeque Nations Hespitality Ltd.. an associate company.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018

Note 17: Currrent Tax Asssts (net)

{Rs. In Lakhs)

Particutars As ai 315t March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2017 As al 181 April, 2016
Advance Income Tax - 4347 .
Totai - 43.47

Note 18 : Other current assels

{Rs. In Lakhs)

Partienlars As at 31st March, 2019 As at 31st March, 2017 As at 15t April, 2616
Current portion of Unamortised Stamp
Duty Payment of Raipur Lease 4,69 469 -
Prepaid Expenses 118.27 66.54 75.55
Prepaid lease charges 35.35 20.23 8.84
Subsidy Receivable from M P Tourisim
Development Corporation Ltd. - 72393 -
Other urrent assets 0.21 -
Advarice to suppliers for goods & services® 44.38 77.84 108.72
Balance with Govt. autheritics 520.28 280.15 250.66
Total 723.18 1,179.38 443.77
“Advances to suppliers for goods & services include advances against purchases & services which is receivable in kind in next 12 Months & are
for business purpose.
Eauny

Note 19 : Equity Share Capiial

{Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31si March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2017 As at 1st Aprit, 2016

AUTHORISED

30,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 3,000.00 3.000.00 3.000.00

{Previous year 30.000,000 Equity Shares of

Rs.10/- each}

1,000,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each 1,000.00 1.000.00 1,000.60

{Previous year 1,000,000 Preference Shares of

Rs. 100/~ each)

Tolal 4,000.00 4,000.00 4.000.00
ISSUED

1,75,18,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- pach 1,751.80 1,751.80 1.751.80

(Previous year 1,75,18,000 Equity Shares of

Rs. 10/- each)
Total 1,751.80 1,751.80 1,751.80
SUBSCRIBED & PAID-UP

1.75,18,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 1.751.80 1,751.80 1,751.80

(Previous year 1,75,18,000 Equity Shares of

fs. 10/ each)
Total 1,751.80 1,751.80 1,751.80
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018

Terms/rights atlached t¢ equity shares :
19.1 The company has enty one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/~ per share. Each Holder of equity shares is entitied to one vote per
share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed. it any, by the Beard of Directors is subject to the
approval of ihe shareheiders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. During the year ended 31st March 2018, the amount of per share dividend
recognised as distributions to equity sharehelders was Rs. Nif {31 March 2017, Rs. Nil; t Aprit 2016 As. Nil)

19.2 Details of Share holders holdirig more than 5% of Shares are as under -

As al 31st March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2017 As al 31sl March, 2016
tame e Sharzohziding No of Shares Sharz‘;ig:ding No of Shares Sha rzr;lz:ding No of Shares
Late Shri Sajid R. Dhanani™ Promoter 13.90% 2435511 13.90% | 2435511 13.90% 2435511
Raoof Razak Dhanani Promoter 22.26% 3898651 22.26% | 3898651 2226% 3898651
Anisha Raoof Dhanani Promaker - - - - 15.09% 2643256
Kayum Razak Dhanani Promoter 20.77% 3638079 14.61% | 2559288 -
Ahilya Hotels Limited Promoter 14.01% 2455000 14.01% | 2455000 14.01% 2455000

*{Share transmisston is pending in the name of legal heirs)

As per records of the company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding
beaeficial interest, the above sharehaolding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

19.3 Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstandirg at the beginning and at the end of the year

As at 31st March, 2018 As at 31st Mareh, 2017 As 81 31s1 March, 2016
Name Number of . Nurmber of . Number of .
Shares Rs. i Lakhs Shares fis. in Lakhs Shares Rs. in Lakhs
Outstanding at the beginning of the year | 1,75,18,000.00 1,751.80 1,75.18,000 1,751.80 1,75,18,000 1,751.8¢
Add : Freshvissue during the year - - . - . -
Outstanding at the entl of 1ha ysar 1,75.18,000 1,751.80 1,75,18,060 1,751.80 | 1,75,18,000 1,751.80

Note 2D : Other Equity

19.4 Preference Share Capital issued by the company are treated as Compound Financial Instruments in terms of Ind AS 32- Financial Instrument:
Presentation. Accordingly same is classitied as other equity and borrowings. Nscessary disclosures are givenin note no. 20 & 21

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Hote No. | As at 31st March, 2018 | As a1 31st March, 2017 { As at 31st March, 2015
Equity Component of Cumimulative Preference Shases 20.1 251.66 25166 251.66
Securities Premium Reserve 202 5.944.60 5.944.60 5,944,690
General Reserve 20.3 641.48 641.48 641.48
Profit 8 Lass Account -Surplus/(Deficit) 204 (1,007.21) (644.36) (30.00)
Cash Flow Hedge Reserve 20.5 - {0.37) -
Tolal 5,830.53 6,193.01 5,807.74
{Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2018 | As al 31sl March, 2017
20.1| Equity Component of Cummulative Preference Shares
QOpening al beginning 251.66 251.66
Addition during the year -
Utilised during the year -
Closing at end 251.66 251.66
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Particalars As at 31st Mareh, 2018 | As at 31st March, 2617
20.2} Securities Promium Reserve '
Opening at beginning 5.944.60 5.944.60
Addition during the year - -
[Hilised during the year -
Closing at end 5,944.60 5,944.60
20.31 General Aeserve
Opening at beginning 641.48 641.48
Addition during the year -
Utilised during the year -
Closing at end 641.48 647.48
28.4| Profit & Loss Acceunl -Surplus/{Defici)
Opening at beginning (644,35} {30.00}
Addition during the year (423.46} (627.95)
Items of QC| directly recognised
Net acturial Gain / {Loss) on defined benefit plan 60.61 13.59
Claging al eny {1,607.21) (644.36)
20.5] Cash Flow Hedge Reserve
Opening at beginning {0.37} -
Addition during the year 0.37 0.37)
Closing at end - (0.37)
Total Other Equily 5,830.53 6,193.01

Terms/rights altached to pregrance shares:

20.6 That during Financial year 2014-15 company had issued 10,00,000, 10% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each at

prermium of Rs.50/-each. Qut of above, pending 83338 shares were subsciibed & paid up during the year 2015-16.

20.7 Thatabovesharesareto be redeemed within five years from the date ol issue ofsame, at the rate of Rs, 220/ per preference share.

20.8 These shares are in the nature of compound financial instruments. And so the

with [nd AS 32. Equity component is computed as below:

y are bifurcated inte equity and liability companent in accordam&

Particulars {Rs. in Lakhs)
Preference Share Capital (Subscribed and paid up) 1,000.00
Add: Securities Premium onissue 500.00
Less: Liahility component (Present value of Contractual Cash Qutflows) (1.248.34)
Equity Component 251.66

20.9 That above Preference share helders are having preference over paymient of dividend to equity share haiders and accordingly arrears of
preference dividends is required to be cleared befere payment to Equity Share holders. And on the date of Balance Sheet. dividend on
preference shares for more than 3 years are in arrears. And accordingly vide Second Proviso to Seclion 47(2) of the Gompanies Act, 2013, in
case company is unable to pay tividend on preterence shares for two years or mora then such class of preference shareholders shail have a

rightto vote onall the resolutions placed betors the company,
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20.10 Details of Share holders holding more than 5% of 10% Cumulative Preference Sharss areas under:-

As at 31st March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2017 As al 3tst March, 2016
Name Category % of % af % of 4

Shareholding No of Shares Shareholding No of Shaies Shareholding Na of Shares
Saba Dhanani Promoter 12.5% 125000 12.5% 125000 12.5% 125000
Azhar Dhanani Promoter 12.5% 125000 12.5% 125000 12.5% 125000
Zuber Yusuf Dhanani Promoter 12.5% 125000 12.5% 125000 12.5% 125000
Sadiya Dhanani Promoter 12.5% 125000 12.5% 125060 12.5% 125000
Kayum Bhanani Pramofer 12.5% 125000 12.5% 125000 12.5% 125000
Sarg Dhanani Promoter 12.5% 125000 12 5% 125000 12.5% 125000
Sanya Dhanani Promaoter 12.5% 125000 12 5% 125000 12.5% 125000
Suchitra Dhanani Promoter 12.5% 125000 12.5% 125000 12.5% 125000

As per records of the company, including its register of sharsholders/members and other

interest, the above sharetwlding represents both legal and heneficial ownerships of shares.

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Note 21 : Non Current Financial Liabililies: Borrowings

declarations received from shareholders regarding beneticial

{Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2017 As at 1st Apri!, 2016

A.  Secured Borrowings

Term Loans

i) From Banks 3.426.78 291440 630,67

i} From Financial Institutions 700.00 1.200.00 1,700.00

iii) From NBFG 2.106.07 2,333.04 B

Tolal (A) 5,232.85 6,447.44 2.330.67
8. Unsscured Borrowing

Liability Component of Cummulative

Preference Shares (Refer Note 20.8) 1,797.85 1.605.23 1,433.24

Loans from Related Parties 400.00 - -

Total (B} 2,197.85 1,605.23 1,433.24

Tatai (A+B) 8,430,70 8,052.67 3,753.91

21.1 Al Secured loans have heen netted from the instalments falling due within twelve months after the reporting date. Breakup of amount due within
12menth and after 12 months and summarized outstanding position is as under: (Rs. In Lakhs)
As at 3151 March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2017 As at 31st March, 2016
Name Category Current Non-Current Current Non-Cureend Current Non-Current
Froir: Banks
State Bank of India 204.96 1,301.52 347.92 1,456.52 1.412.10 217.68
Axis Bank Lid 173.54 2,103.99 395.32 1,453.65 139.00 36.36
State Bank of Mysore - - - - 490.00 293.36
ICICI Bank - - - - 500.00 -
HOFC Bank Lid 5.79 20.87 2728 423 55.18 55.14
ICICI Bank - - 36.68 - 52.54 28,13
Sub Total {I} 384.29 3,425.78 808.20 | 2,914.40 2,539.82 630.67
From Financial Institutions
TFCI 506.21 700.00 520.32 1,200.00 112.79 £,700.00
Sub Tatal (ii} §06.21 700.00 §20.32 | 1,200.00 112,79 1,760.00
From NBFC
Adlitya Birla Finance Lid 251.05 2,106.07 119.29 2,333.04 - -
Sub Telal (jii) 251.95 2,106.67 119.2¢ { 2,333.04 - -
GRAND TOTAL (i)s{ii)+(il}} 1,141.55 §,232.895 1,447.81 | 6,447.45 2,752.61 2,330.67

e
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21.2 Unsecured loans have been netled from the instalments falling due within twelve months after the reporting date. Breakup of amount due

within 12 monthand after 12 monthsand summarized autstanding position is as under:

{Rs. In Lakhs)

As at 315t March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2017 As al 3181 March, 2046

Hama Category Curvent Non-Current Current Non-Curment Currant Non-Current
From Banks
HDFC Bank Lid - - 242 - 1.94
Sub Total i) - - 2.42 - 1.94 -
From NBFC
Magma Fincorp Limited - - 51.90 -
Bajaj Finange Lid, . 128.92
Sub Total {il) - - 128.92 . 51.90 -
GRAND TOTAL (i)«{if) - - 131.34 - 53.64 -

21.3  HATURE OF SECURITIES AND TERMS OF REPAYMENT OF EACH LOAN

21.3.1  Secured Term Loan from bank includes term loans outstanding from State Bank of Indis, Axis Bank Ltd, State Rank 0t Mysare, HDFC Bank

Ltd & ICICI Bank Ltd.

21.3.2 Term loans outstanding of State Bank of India include term loang accountand corporate loan. Loan are secured by way of mortgage of land &
building at Indore hotel, Amber garden Indare Vadodara & Pune & hypothecation of movables, Present & future except stocks of foog

beverages, operating supplies, stores,spares, book-debts (excluding cred
the wozking capital finance. The terms of repayment of alf ferm loans of State Bank of india is
monthly basis & interest is payable on monthly basis.

21.3.3  Term loans outstanding of Axis Bank Ltd incluce ferm loans account and corporate loan. Ternt loan outstanding is secured by way of first

charge on Company’s sntire fixed assets, present & future, ranking par:i passu with otherexisting

Quarterly basis for term loan and monthly basis for corporate Joan & interest is payable on menthly basis.

21.3.4 Term ioan outstanding of State Bank of Mysore was secureg by way of mortgage of land &

hypothecation of movables, present & future. except stocks of food beverages, Operating supplies, stores, spares, bogk-dabts {excluding
creditcard receivables). bilis ete. The term of repayment of the term Igan was on quarterly basis & the initeres! was payable on monthiy basis,

however same was repaid during the year 2016-17 under review.

21.3.5 Termloan outstanding of ICICI Bank Ltd. was secured by way of mortgage offand & building at Indore, Vatodara & Pune & hypothecation of
movables, present & future, except stocks of fpod beverages, operating supplies, stores, Spares, haok-debts (excludi ng credit card
receivables}, bills etc. The term of repayment of the term loan is on quarterdy basis & the interest is payable on monthly basis. Further

2016-17 under review,

21.3.6 Vehicle loans outstanding from HOFG Bank and ICIC! Bankis secured by way of hypothecation of the specific vehicles financed by hank.
21.3.7  Secured term loans from Financiat Institutions & others includes term lgan outstanding of Tourism Finance Corporatien of India LId(TFCIL)

and Aditya Birla finance Limited.

21.3.8 Termioan outstanding from TFCIL is secured on pari-passu basis by way of morigage ot land & building at Indore, Pune & Vadodara &

hypothecation of the movabies. present & future, except stocks of food beverages, operat

(excluding credit card receivables), bilis ete. And by way of Mortgage of lease hold right of Amber Garden, Indore afong with building
Structure thereon and first charge by way of hypothecation of movables of Bhopal Glub Pproject, Bhopal. The term of repayment of the ferm

loanis onquarterly basis & the interestis payable on monthly basis. This Joan is parsonally guaran

21.3.9 Corporaieioan outstanding from Aditya Birla year s secured by first pari passu Charge with existing term lender by way of mortgage of land
and building at Indore, Amber Garden, Pune and Vadodara and Hypothecation of the plant and machinery and other movable fixed assets of

Company {present and future except vehicles Funded through Vehigle Loan). The term of repaym
basis.

term denders, The lerm of repaymentis on

buitding at Indore, Vadodara & Pune &

ing supplies, stores,spares, book-debts

teed by St Suchitra Dhanani.

ent of principal and interest is on monthly
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21.3.10 Loan outstanding from Magma Fincorp Limited is unsecured |
piven for allinstabments. However the said term loan was repaid

21.3.11 Loan outstanding from Bajaj Finance Limited is unsec

oan. Repayment is being made on EM! basis. Post dated cheques has been
during the vear 2016-17 under review.

ured foan. However, secured by way of shares owned int other companies by Mr. Ranot

Razak Dhanani.
Note 22 : Non Current Financial Liabilities: Other {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at 3tst March, 2018 As al 3151 March, 2017 As at 1si April, 2016
Deposits From Tenants 66.31 66.69 48.63
Finance lease payable 18.10 17.64 17.23
Others™ 2.000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00
Tolal 2,084.41 2,084.33 2,865.86

*Payahle towards canceilation of a

the outstanding amount.

Note 23 : Provisions

greement for land at Indore hotel. This amount is now payable within 5 years. Interest @ 9% p.ais payable on

{Rs. in Lekhs)

Partizulars As at 31st March, 28618 As at 31st March, 2017 As at 131 April, 2016
Provision for Employee Benefits
Provision for Gratuity 283.10 284.80 23448
Leave Encashment* 287.68 249,16 238.60
Tolal 570.78 533.96 474.08

leave of employees at the end of year and cakeufated on the basis of

*The provision of leave encashment have been made on cutstanding privilege
basic pay of employees. Atirition rate taken same as Actuarial valuation report

of gratuity Fability.

Note 24 : Deferred Revenue (Rs. In Lakhs}
Particulars As at 31stMarch, 2018 As at 181 Aprl, 2017
(a) Subsidy recelved fram M.P. Siate Tourism Development Gorp. Ly, *
Balancs al the beginning cf the year 581.50 -
Add: Received During the Year 728.93
Less: Amortised During the Year 81.06 48.43
500.44 681.50
Less ; Current Portion 70.33 81.06
Non Current Balance at the end of ihe year §30.11 500.44
(b) Lite Membership Fees
Balance at the beginning of the year 40.05 -
Add: Received Dering the Year 2240 44.49
Less: Amortised During the Year 8.69 4.44
$5.76 40.05
Less : Current Portion 5.69 4.45
Non Gurrent Baiance at the end of the year 49.07 35.60
Total Balance at 1he end of the year 578.18 636.04

* During year 2016-17, company has received Capital Subsidy under M.P. Tourism Poficy,

2010 (as amended in 2014) amounting to Rs. 729.93 Lakhs

against its "Amber Convention Centre”, Indore. As per AS-12"Accounting for Government Grants”, the above subsidy is treated as deferred income and is

recognised in profit and loss account on a systemmatic and rationaf basis over the usefud li

and in proportions in which depreciation on "Amber Convention Centre' i charged.

fe of assets. Such allocation has been made over the pariod
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CURRENT LIABILITIES

Note 25 : Current Financial Liabilities - Borrowings (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As al 31sl March, 20138 As at 315t March, 2017 As at Tst Agril, 2016
A, Secured
Working capital facilities from Banks 258.14 37754 490 67
Total (4) 258.14 377.58 490.67
8. Unsecured
Loans From related parties 901.06 t,005.00 3.419.48
Loans From others 253.04 11491 305.00
Total (B} 1,152.10 1,119.91 3.724 .48
Total (A+B) 1.412.24 1,497.45 4,215.15
25.1 Working capital facilities include Cash Credit Facilities from State Bank of india outstanding Rs. 8.07 Lakhs (31 March 2017, Rs, 377 54
Lakhs; 1 Aprii 2016 Rs. 411.97 Lakits) & Axis Bank outstanding Rs.250.07 Lakhs {31 March 2017, Rs. Nif, Aprit 2016 Rs. 79.60 Lakhs},
both of which are secured by first charge by way of hypothecation of stocks of food, baverages, operating supplies, stores, spares, book-
tebts {excluding credit card receivables), bills eic. of the company and alse by way of a second charge on the immovable properties of the
companyat Indore, Baroda and Pine,
25.2 Loans from refated parties & others Includes ioan from directors & associate companies.

Note 26 : Corrent Financiai Liabliities: Trade Payables

{Rs. In Lakhs)

Partigulars As at J1st March, 2018 As al 31st March, 2017 As at 13t April, 2016
Trade Payables* 1,176.48 779.41 1.131.67
Tetal 1.176.48 779.41 1,131.67

*Trade payables are for goods purchased and services taken during the normal course of pusiness.

26,1
remaining unpaid to any suppiier as at the yaarend:

Detalls of dues 1o micro and smali enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006 The principal amount ang the interest due theron

Principal amount due te micre and small gnterprises

Interest due on above

during each accounting year.

The amount of interest paid by the buyer iz terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006,
alongwith the amounts of the payrnent made to the supplier beyond the appointed day

interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2Q06.

The amaunt of interest due and payable for the period of defay in makin
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the ¥ear) but without adding the

g payment (which

26.2

26.3
2016 Rs. 42.79 Lakhs)

includes amount payable to Barbegue Nation Hospitality Limited, against Rovalty Payment Rs. NiJ

Trade Payable having scheduled payment beyond 12 months after feporting date Rs. Nil (31 March 2017, Rs. Nil; 1 April 2016 Rs. Nif)

(31 March 2017, Rs. Nit; 1 April
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Note 27:Currend Financial Liabililies: Dther

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018

{Rs. In Lakhs)

Particolars

As at 3tst March, 2018

As at 31st March, 2017

As at 1t April, 2616

Carrent Malurities of Long-Term Loans*

A.  Secured Term Loans

From Banks 384.29 808.20 2.639.82
From Financial Institutions 506.21 520.32 112.78
From NBF; 25105 119.29
Total (A) 1,141.55 1,347.81 2,752.61
B. Unsecurad Term Loans
From Banks 242 1.94
From NBFC - 128.92 51.%0
Tatal (B) - 131.34 53.84
€. Others
Crediors for capital Expenditure 135.62 110.62 431.22
Book Overdratts - 30.58 73.61
Derivative Liabilities/ (Asset) (12.78) 144,71 19.69
Finance Lease Payable 1.88 1.89 1.89
Prepaid Lease Income 26.56 30.59 33.39
Totat (C) 161.29 318.39 559.80
Total {A+B+G}) 1,292.83 1,897.54 3,366.25
* Refer note no.- 21.1; 21.2 & 21.3 or loanwise current maturities and other terms and canditions.
Note 28 ; Provisions {Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st March, 2018 As at 31s1 March, 2017 As at 15t Aprif, 2016
Provision for Employee Benefits
Provision for Gratuity 9.39 719 3.36
Leave Encashment 12.67 6.20 3.48
Bonus 182.58 165.84 156.83
Provision for Expenses 28122 286.27 23582
Total 485.86 465.50 399.29
Nete 29 : Current Tax Liabililies (Net) (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particuiars As at 31st March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2017 As at 1st April, 2016
Provision for currend year Tax 38.70 - 27513
Total 38.70 - 275.13
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Nete 30 : Qther Curreni Liakilitigs

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018

(Rs. In Lakhis)

Particulars As at 313t March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2017 As at 1st April, 2016
Current portion of deterred revenue 77.02 25.51 -
Advance received from customers 247 61 345.04 180.29
Statutory Dues 405,77 124.55 189.12
Others 19.33 59.66 120.02
Tolal 749.73 614.76 489.43

30.1 Advances received from customers includes advancesagainst future poekings for functions to be held in next 12 months.
302 Statutory dues includes GST, VAT luxury tax. TDS, service tax & other statutory payabies.
303 Other currenttiabilities incluces rent payable, interesi payable and staff dues.

Note 31 : Revenue From Operations (Rs. in Lakhs)
For the yaar endeq For the year ended
Particulars 3151 March, 2018 31t Margh, 2017
Salo of Products & Services {Gross)
Rooms 6.379.18 5,014.55
Food and Beverages 11,078.70 9,344.24
Other Services 1,691.55 1.419.64
Total 19,150.44 15,778.43

Nole 32: Other Income

“Revenue from athers services includes incoma froam club, rental income and

income from banquet service etc.

{Rs. in Lakhs)

Far the year ender

For the year ended

Particulars 315t March, 2018 315t March, 2017
Interest Earned” 97.52 18.17
Other Non —Operating Income 48.75 38.15
Sundry Balances Written back 7.09 11.28
Excess/(Short) Provision of Earfier Year Written Sack 11.99 23.33
Deferred Revenue Income {Subsidy) 81.06 48.43
Total 246.41 139.36

Rs. 14.08 Lakis)

" Includes interest on Bank deposits Rs. 3.27 Lakhs (PY Rs. 4.09Lakhs ) & on loans & advances and ather security deposits Rs. 94.25 Lakhs {PY

Note 33 : Food & Beverages Conswmed {Rs. In Laihs)

For the year endad For the year ended

Particulars 31st March, 2018 315t March, 2017
Opening Stock 139.16 138.54
Add : Purchases* 4,155.19 3.683.22
4,294.26 3,822,765
Less ; Closing Stock 124,93 139.16
Tolal 4,169.33 3,683.60

“Includes vegetabie & non-vagetable iterns, grocery items, dairy products, tobacco products,

alsohelic & non-alcahotic beverages ete.
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Note 34 : Employee Benefit Expenses

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018

{Rs. In Lakhs)

. For the year ended Far the year ended
Particulars 31st March, 2018 atst March, 2017
Salaries, Wages and Allowances 4,742 .48 3425.91
Contribution to PF. and other Funds 343.32 305.67
Workmen and Statf Welfare Expenses 102.28 52.17
Workmen and Staff Uniform Expenses 185,34 122.92
Tolal 5,373.42 3,906.67
* Net of Expenses capitalised of Rs Nil (F.Y. Rs.53.45 Lakhs)
flote 35 : Finance Cost {Rs. In Lakhs)
. Feor the year endey For the year ended
Particutars 315t March, 2018 3151 March, 2017
interest on tarm Loan 833.72 517.66
interest on Others 326.63 810.57
Finance cost on lease payable 2.41 2.36
Other expenses 31.76 33.86
Finance cost on Preference Share 192,63 171.99
Other borrowing cost 55.03
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation (12.21) 2164
Todal 1,374.94 1,613.11

expenses includes bank charges, processing fees & uptroni fess of loans. Cther

Interest expense inclydes interest paid on term loans & vehicle loans. Interest on others includ

es interest on unsecured Ioans gredit facilities, Qther

borrowing cost includes forward premium.

i
i
<

Nole 36 : Operaling Expenses (Rs. In Lakhs)
Panioaars ot v, 018 515 B, 2013

Stores & Operating Supplies* 685.93 612,16
Repairs and Maintenance

Building 269.17 107.11
Plant & Machinery 167.46 143.19
Others 214.64 22003
Laundry Expenses 241.88 196.44
Guest pick up Expenses 24579 221.48
Cable TV Expenses 24,72 28.96
Banguet Service expenses 655.22 568.06
Other Operating Expenses** 521,48 342,09
Power and Fuel 1,652.71 1,286.89
Total 4,678.91 3,926 4%

*Stores & operating supplies includes crockery & cuilery, linen & other ¢ansumadles ate.
**ther Operating Expanses ingJudes house keeping & upkeeping expenses, expenses for F&B operations & cluh,
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Note 37 : Otker Expenses

NDTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDE

D 31STMARCH, 2018

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Fer the year enged Far the year ended
Particulars 315t March, 2018 31st March, 2017
Lease Rent 976.44 465.04
Rates & Taxes 164.60 16197
insurance 2540 20.38
Travefling and Conveyance 119.04 90.60
Pastage, Telegram ang Telephones 73.29 53.18
Advertisement and Publicity 80.75 74.43
Legal & Professional 211.78 204.83
Printing and Stationery 58.19 501
Credit Card Commission 93.66 89.86
Other Expenses 284.36 166.93
Auditors’ Remuneration
Statutory audit 8.00 5.50
Certification other matters 2.00 0.53
Provision for doubttul dabts 33.52 172
Loss On Disposal/Retirsment Of Assets {0.69) 37.70
Total 2,131.34 1,422.38
Nole 38 : Exceptignal ftems income/ (Expense) (Rs. in Lakhs)
) For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 3tst March, 2018 315t March, 2017
Total - .
Note 39 : Earnings Per Share (Rs. fa Lakhs)
. . For the year enged For the year ended
Farticalars Unit 3151 March, 2018 315t March, 2617
a)  Amount ysed as the numerator profit afier tax Rs. In Lakhs {423.46) {627.95)
Less: Dividend on Prefersnce Shares & Income Tax Thereon! Rs. In Lakhs 120.36 120.36
Net Profit/(Loss) attributahle to equity share holders Rs. In Lakhs (543.82) {74831}
b)  Weighted average number of equily shares used as fhe
denominator in camputing basic earning per share. Nos. 1,75,18,000 1,75,18.000
Add: Potentiai no, of equity shares that could arise o
conversion of warrants into equity shares. Nos. -
Weighled average number of shares used in
computing Diluted Earning per Share Nos. 1,75,18,000 1.75.18,000
¢} Nominal valug per share Rs. 10 10
d)  Eamnings Per Share:
- Basic (3.10) (4.27)
- Diluted (3.10) (4.27)
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Note 40 : Disctasure as per Ind AS-7, Cash Flow Stalement

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018

The Cempany has accessed the following undrawn lacilities af the end of reporting period

(Rs. [n Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2017 As at 1st April, 2016
Working eapitat Loans
Expiring Within Ong Year 1291.86 297 46 184.33
Floating Rate Borrowings
Exgiring Within One Year 631.00 - -

Nole 41 ; Disclosure as per fnd AS-§,

2 Standards issued but not yel efiactive :

ind AS 115 'Revanne from Contracls with Customers’

0On 28 March 2018, Ministry of Corporate Afiairs (MCA) has notified the lng AS 115, "Reveaue irom Contract with Customers’ . The core principle
of the new slandard is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to cusiomers in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the entily expects 10 be entitled in exchange for those goods or services, Further, the new standard
requires enhanced disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash fiows arising from the enlity’s contracts
with cusiomers.

The standard permits two possible methods of transition:

Retrospective approach - Under this aporoach the standard will he applied retrospectively to sach prior reporting period presented in
accordance with Ind AS 8- Accounting Policies,Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors,

Relrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard secognized at the date of initial application {Cumulative catch - up
approach)

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 115 is financiaf periods beginning on or after 15t April 2018.The Company will adopt the standard on
1st April 2018 by using the cumulativa catch-up transition method and accordingly comparatives for the year ending or ended 31st Margh 2018
will nothe retrospectively adjusted. The Company is evafuating the reguirements of the amendment and the effect on the financial statements is
beingevatuated.

Appendix B o Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and advance cansideration :

On 28 March 2018, MCA has notifiec the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 containing Appendix B to Ind AS
21, foreign currency transactions and advance consideration which clarifies the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the
exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the refated asset, expense or income, when an entity has received or paid advance consideration in
a foreign currency,

The amendment wilt come into force from 1st April 2018. The Company is evaluating the requirements of the amendment and the effect on the

financial slaternents is being evaluated.

Note 42 ; Disclosare As per ind AS-12 Income Taxes
I} Incame Yax recegnised in statemeni of prolit & loss account.

(As. ln Lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March, 2018

For the year ended
31st March, 2017

Cuwren! Tax Expenses

Current year 126.44 4318
Adjustment for earlier year {18.44) 28.96
Total current Tax expenses 108.00 72,14
Beferred Tax Expenses {60.99) {183.92)
Total Income tax expenses a7.01 {111.78)




SAYAJT HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018
if} Incoms fax recognised in other comprehensive income

(Bs. In Lakns)

For the yaar ended 31st March, 2048 For ihe year ended 31st March, 2017
Particular Tax expense/ Tax expense/
Before tax Benefit Net ol fax Before tax Benefit Nst of tax
- Net actuarial gainfoss on defined henefit plan 92.69 {32.08) 60.61 20.59 {7.00} 13.99
- Changes in cash flow hedge reserve 0.56 (0.19} 0.37 (0.56) 0.19 {0.37)
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounling profit multiplied by India’s fax rata : (Rs. In Lakhs),
. For the year ended For the year anded
Particutars 315t March, 2018 315t Mareh, 2017
Protit holore fax (376.45) (739,73}
Tax using company's domestic fax rale 34.608%(r.Y, 33.99%) (130.28) {251.43)
Add: Earlier Year tax (18.44) 28.96
Add: Expenses not Attowed in Income Tax 31.86 28.97
Less: Others 97.10 23.26
Add: Exempt Incoms 66.67 58.46
Tax as per Stalement ol Profit & Loss 47.0 {111.78)

Note 43 : Disclosure as perind AS-17, Leases

The Company has taken certain hotels on non-canceliable operating lease.

As requited under the Ind AS-17 on ‘Leases’. lease payments recognized for the yearand the future minémum fease payments are as follows:

(Rs. In Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 315t March, 2018 31st March, 2017
Lease payment recognized in statement of Profit or Losg 976.44 465.04
Contingent rent regognised in Profit or Loss - -
Total 976.44 465.04

Operating Leases
Lease as Lessee

same s inc luded under Lease Rent forming partof Other Expenses (Refer note no Note 36:).

ameunt are as follows:-

The Comipany has taken land o operating lease. The laase of hoel Properties are generafly long term in nature with varying terms and renewal rights
8xpiring within five years to one hunderd & ninety eight years. On ranewa, the terms of the leases are renegotiated, The total fease rent paid on the

The minimum futyre lease rentals payable in respect of non-cancellabla leases entered into by the Company to the extent of minimun gearantee

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Parliculars As al 31st March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2017 As at st April, 2015
Minimum Leass payment
Not later than one year: 600.24 127.64 90.00
Later than one year and not ater than five years: 2.911.33 558.90 538.88
Later than five years: 3,949.52 256.86 306.99
Total 7.,461.09 943.40 935.87
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Financial Leases

Lease asLessee

The company acquires land on Jeasehold basis for a period gereralty ranging from 25 years {0 99 vears from the government authorities which can be
renewed further based on mutually agreed terrs and conditions. The leases are non cancellable. These leases are capitalised at the present value of
the total minimum lease payments to be paid over the fease term. Future lease rentals are recognised as Finance lease obligalion” at thair present

values. The leasehold land is amortised considering the significant accounting policies of the company. {Rs. In Lakhs)
31st March, 2018 3ist March, 2017 31st March, 2016
Pasticular - Pte:?:: :;lne MLP Pre::nnrnt ::lue MLP Pre:;:n“i l:v;lm;
Not Laker than one year 1.95 189 1.95 1.89 1.95 1.89
Between one and five years 9,76 6.69 9.76 6.60 9.76 6.50
More than five years 21957 11.50 221.52 11.04 22347 10.63
Total MLP 231.28 19.94 233.23 19.53 235.18 19.12
Less amount representing finance charges 211.29 213.70 216.06
Presem valus of MLP'S 19.99 19.53 19.12

Note 44 : Disclosure as per Ind AS-19, Empieyee benelits
{a) Defined benefit pian

The Company makes annual contributions to the Employee's Group Gratuity scheme of the SBI Life Insurance Co. Ltd., a funded defined benefit
plan for the qualifying employees. The scheme providles for lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment
oron terminatien of employrmentas perthe terms of the scheme, Vesting occurs t:pon completion of five years of service.

The prasent value of the defined banefit obligation and current service cost were measured using the Projacted Unit Credit Methed . with
actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. The following table sets out the status of the funded gratuity plan and the
amounts recognized in the company’s financial siatements as at March 31, 2018:-

Changes in Present Value of Cbigalion {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31st March, 2018 31st March, 2917

Present value of obligation as on last valuation 303.68 24B.65
Current Service Cost 22.24 56.90
Interest Cost 23.38 18.65
Participant Contribution - -
Plan Amendments: Vested portion at end of period(Past Service) 5.56

Plan Amendments: Non-Vested portion at end of period(Past Service) - -
Actuarial gainfloss on obfigations due te Change in Financial Assuription (73.30) 25.05
Actuaniat gain/loss on obligations due to Change in Demographic assumption - -
Actuarial gain/loss on obligations due to Unexpected Experience (19.06) (45.58)

Actuarial gain/loss on obligations due to Other reasan - -
The effect of change in Foreign exchanga rates -
Benefits Paid -
Acquisition Adjustment - -
Disposal/Transter of Obligation - -
Curtailment cost - -
Settlement Cost - -
Other{Unsettled Liability at the end of the valuation date} - -
Present valus of obligation as on valuation date 292 .50 303.68
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Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particuiars 31st March, 2018 315t Mareh, 2017
Fair value of Plan Assets al Baginning of period 11.69 10.82
Interest Income 0.50 0.81
Employer Contributions 5.00 -
Participant Contributions - -
Acquisition/Business Cembination - .
Settiement Cost -
Benefits Paid - -
The effect of asset ceiling - .
The effect of change in Foreign Exchange Rates -
Administrative Expenses and Insurance Premium -
Return on Plan Assets excluding Interest Income 0.32 0.06
Fair valug of Plan Assets at End of meastrement period 1791 11.69
Table Shewing Reconciliation to Balance Sheet (Rs. In Lakhs}
Partieulars 31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
Funded Status 1274.59) {291.99)
Unrecognized Past Service Cost -
Unrecognized Actuarial gain/lgss at end of the period - -
Post Measurement Date Employer Contributien{Expected) - -
Unfunded Accrued/Prepaid Pension cost - -
Fund Asset 17.91 11.69
Fund Liabitity 292.50 303.68
Tahle Showing Plan Assumptions
Particalars 311 March, 2018 31st March, 2017
Discount Rate 7.70% 7.50%
Expected Return on Plan Asset 7.70% 7.50%
Rate of Compensation Increase(Salary Inflation) 6.00% 7.00%
Pension Increase Rate N/A N/A
Average expected future service (Rematning working Life) 29 27
Mortality Table IALM 2006-2008 Utimata ALM 2006-2008 Ultimate
Superannuation at age-Mals 58 58
Superanmation at age-Female 58 58
Early Retirement & Disablement (Al Causes Combined) 18-29 years 32%, 30-45 years 18% | 18-29 years 32%, 30-45 years 18%
above age 45 0.05 0.05
Between 29-45 0.18 (.18
below age 29 0.28 0.28
Voluntary Retirement ignored Ignored
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Expense Recognized in stalement of Prolit oss (Bs. I Lakhs)
Particulars 31st Mareh, 2018 J1st March, 2017
Current Service Cost 5225 56.96
Past Servige Cost{ vested) 5.56
Past Service Cost(Non-Vested) - -
Net Interest Cost 2248 17.84
Cost(l.ossf(sain) on settlement - -
Cost{Loss/(Gain) on cortailment -
Actuarial Gain loss Apllicabie only for last year - -
Employee Expected Contribution -
Net Effect of changes in Foreign Exchange Rates - -
Benefit Cost{Expense Recognized in Statement of Profitfloss) 80.29 74.74
Expense Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31st March, 2013 318t March, 2017
Actuarial gain/loss on obiigatiens due to Change in Financial Assumption {73.31) 25,05
Actuarial gainfloss on ebligations due 1o Change in Demographic assumption - -
Actuarial gainfloss on obligations due to Unexpected Experience {19.06) {45.58)
Actuarial gain/loss on obligations due to Other reason - -
Total Actuariat {gain)losses {92.37) (20.53)
Return on Plan Asset, Exciuding interest income 0.32 0.06
The effect of asset ceili ng - -
Balance at the end of the Period {92.69) {20.59)
Net(income)/Expense for the Period Recegnized in OCI (92.69) (20.59)
Sensitivity Analysis
313t March, 2018 31st Margh, 2017
Pariiculars
Increase decrease Increase Decrease
Discount Rate (-4 0.5%) 268.83 319.01 276.94 333.80
%Change Compared to base due to sensitivity -8.09% 9.07% -8.81% 89.92%
Salary Growth (~/+ 0.5%) 318.21 268.47 332,29 27787
%Change Comparad to base due to sensitivity 9.13% -8.21% 9.42% -8.50%
Attrition Rate {-/+ 0.5%) 28235 292,65 303.39 303.97
“eChange Compared 1o base due to sensitivity -0.05% 0.05% -0.10% 0.10%
Mortality Rate (-/+ 10%) 29272 29227 303.72 303.63
%Change Compared o base due fo sensitivity 0.08% -0.0B% 0.02% -0.02%
Table Shawing Cash Flow (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
Next Year Total (Expected) 410,46 432 55
Minimum Funding Requirements 401.29 427.72
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Table Showing Benefit Information Estimated Future payments{ Past Service)

{Rs. In Lakhs}

Particulars 31st March, 2018 31s1 March, 2017
Malurities
Less than 1 year 975 7.46
Between 1-2 years 545 6.44
Between 2-5 years 20.69 14.36
Over § years 1,566.20 1,734.89
Total Undiscounted Payments Past and Future Service - -
Total Undiscounted Payments related to Past Service 1,602.09 1,763.14
Less Discount For Interest 1.308.60 1,459.46
Projected Benefil Obligation 292.49 J03.68
Table Showing Outicok Next Year Components of Net Periodic benefit Cost Next Year (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars J1st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
Current service Gost(Employer portion Oniy) Next period 77.08 82.24
Interest Cost next period 22.15 22.50
Expected Return on Plan Asset 1.38 0.88
Unrecognized pasi service Gost - -
Unrecognized actuarial/gain 10ss at the end of the period - -
Settlernent Cost -
Custaitment Cost - -
Other Actvarial Gain/{loss) - -
Benefit Cost 97.86 103.96

Bifurcation of Net liability

(Bs. In Lakhs)

Partigceiars 31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
Cutrent liability 9.39 719
Non-Gurrent Liability 283.10 296.49
Totat Liability 292.49 303.68

(b) Defined Contribution Plan

The Company has recognised the following expenses as defined contribution plan under the head “Contribution to Provident Fund and Other

fFunds”(net of recoveries).

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Parlicuiars 31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
Contributien towards Provident Fund 243.64 221.55
Total 243.64 221.55

(c) Other Long Term Employee benefit

The provision of leave encashment have been macde on outstanding privilege leave of employees at the end of vear and calculated on the

basis of basic pay of employees. Atfrition rate taken same as Actuarial valuation report of gratuity hiability.

The Company has recognised the following expenses as other long term em piayee benefit under the head "Contribution to Provident Fund

and Other Funds™(net of recoveries).

(As. In Lakhs)

i For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars 31st March, 2018 315t March, 2017
Leave Ecashment 63.87 40.75
Total 63.87 40.75
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Bisclosure As per Ind AS-21, The EHents of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Foreign Gurrency transactions relating to monetary assets and liabilities as at the year end translated as per accousting policy,
netgain of Rs.12.21 Lakhs (PY Rs. 21.64 Lakhs) which has been accounted under relevant heads in Statement of Profitand foss

Disclosure as Per Ind AS-24, Related Parly Disclosire
Listof Related Parties

1 Subsidiary Companies
Arigs Hotels Pyt Ltd
Matwa Hospitality Pvt Led
Sayaji House Keeping Serviges Lt

2 Associate Companies
Barbeque-Nation Hospitality Limited

3 Key Managemant Personnel

Mr. Raoof Razak Dhanani Managing Director

Mr. Kayum Dhanani Director

Mrs. Suchitra Sajid Dhanani, Whole Time Ditector
Mr. Sandesh Khandelwal Chief financial off:cer
Mr. Amit Sarrat Company Secretary

Mr. TN Unni Independent Director
Mr. Abhay Chintaman Chaudhari independsnt Director
Mr. Pradeep Goyal independent Direcior
Mr. Sanjay Ahuja Nominee Qirector, TCFI

q Enterprises where Key Management Personng has contrel finterest

3 § Management

S.N. Travels

Winner Hotels Pvt Ltd

Trans Agro India Pvt Ltd

AR. Hospitality Pvt .Ltd,

Vicon imperial Pwvi. Ltd.

Tungabhadra Fertilizer &Chemical Co. Lid
Prinite Hospitafity Pvt Ltd

5 Relatives ol KMPs
Zuber Y Dhanani
Azher Y Dhanani
Saba R Dhanani
Sadiya R Dhanani
Sara K Dhanani
Sanya $Dhanani
Rizwan R Sheikh
Versha Khandelwal

resulted in
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For the year ended For the ysar ended
St.No. Nalure of Transactions 31st Mareh, 2018 31st March, 2017
A KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
Remuneratipn/ Salary 62.70 60.23
Payable At The Year Eng 1,300.40 905.00
Payment Of Interesi 96,43 330.65
8. SUBSINIARY COMPANIES
Income From Business Support Services 3.68 3.09
. ASSOCIATE COMPANIES/ FIRMS/ RELATIVES
Rental Expenses 510.24 -
Lease degosit 965.00 214 .58
Guest pick up expenses - 39.00
Receivable at the year end 45.10 66.94
Payable at the year end 261.74 214.91
Reimbursement of expenses recejvec 127.91 t28.71 -
Payment of royalty & service charge on fiquor 118.02 181,54
Lease rent received 102.00 102.00
Payment of interest 13.89 85.80
investments sold during the year - 0.39
Payment of professional fee 9.00 15.20
D. COMPENSATION TO KMP
Short ferm employee benefits - -
Post employment Benefit -
Other Long term bengfits - -
Termination Benetits - -
Sitling fees 140 2.24
Total A 1.40 2.24
Note 47 : Disclosurs as per Ind AS-27, Separate Financial Statement
Interest in subsidiary
Place ol % Of Ownership
Name of Entity Business/Country 0f
Incorporaiion 31st March, 2018 | 31st March, 2017 Tst April, 2016
Maiwa Hospitality Private Limited India 51.67% 51.67% 31.67%
Sayaji Housekeeping Services Limifed india 100% 100% 100%
Aries Hotels Private Limitad India §2.37% §2.37% 52.37%
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Note 48 : Movement of provision as per Ind AS-37, Provisions, Contingent Liabililies and Contingent Assets

Contingent Liabilities not provided for

Guaraniee given on behatf of ather companies Rs 6373.60 Lakhs (PY Rs 6873.60 Lakhs). This includes Guarantee given o State Bank of India
on Behalf of Barbeque-Nation Hospitality Ltd amounting Rs 4,000 Laks (PY 4000 Lakhs).guarantee given to Axis Bank Ltd on Behalf of Sana
Hospitality Services Pvt .Ltd amounting to Rs 421.82 Lakhs (PY Rs 421.82 Lakhs), guarantee given to State bank of India on Behalf of Matwa
Hospitality Pvt Ltd amounting to Rs.2400 Lakhs (P.Y. 2400 Lakhs) & HDFC Bank Lid RS.51.78 Lakhs{P.Y. 51.78 Lakhs) Outstanding balanca of
ioan there against for the year ended 315t March, 2018 from SB1is Rs.1025.33 Lakhs (P.Y 3046.12 Lakhs),Axis Bank L1d is Rs, 44.59 takhs
(PY 12334 Lakhs)andfrom HDFC bankLid. RS 5.90 Lakhs (P, 20.30 Lakhs)

Disputed statutory Kabilities inrespect of service tax not provided for:

In Respect of indore hotel, for the peried from 01.03.05 to 31.03.09 the Hon'kle Tribuoal has passed the order against the Company atter giving
the benefit of abatement and waiver of penally imposed in the order passed by Learned Commissioner.Tax demand of Rs 175.01 Lakhs is
pending as per the Tribunal’s arderGompany has challenged said order betore Indore bench of Hon'ble High Court of MP and got interim stay
ofthe demand. Interest liability will alsc arise in case of unfavorable decision, (P.Y. Rs.375.01 Lakhs)

In Respect of indore hiotel, for the period from 01.04,0910 31.03.11 the Comimissioner has passed the order against the Company withoui even
considering the benefit given by the Hon'ble Tribunalin its prior order. Tax demand of Rs. 400.37 Lakhs has beer raised alongwith equal amount
oi penatty. Company has challenged said order before Hon'ble Tribunal & Hon’ble Tribunal has disposed the appeal without giving any refief vide
order dated 15.02.2017, Company has challenged saitl order before Indore bench of Hon'ble High Court of MP and got interim stay. Had the
benefit of abatement & waiver of penalty given by the Hon'ble Tribunal in its prior order been considered by the Learned Commissioner, the
demand would have been reducedto Rs. 139.97 Lakhs. Interest liability wil alsoarise in caseof unfavozable decision. (P.Y. Rs. 400.37 Lakhs)
In Respect of indore hotel for the period from 01.04.11 to 30.06.12 the Commuissioner nas passed the order against the Company without even
considering the benefit given by the Hon'ble Tribunal in iheir prior order. Tax demand of Rs 269.27 Lakhs has been raised alongwith equal
amount of penalty Company had chalienged said order befare Hon'ble Tribunal.& Hon'ble Tribunal has disposed the appeal without giving any
relief vide order dated 15.02.2017. Company has challsnged Said order besore Honourable High Court of M.P., Indore and got interim stay. Had
the benelit of abaternant & waiver of penalty given the Hon’ble Tribunat in their prior order been considered by the Learned Commissiener, the
demand would have been reduced to Rs. 127,98 Lakhs. Interest liahifity will alse arise in case ol unfavorable decision. {P.Y. Rs.269.27 Lakhs)
In Respect of Pune hotel for the period from 01.04.09 to 30.06.12 Commissioner has passed an order againstthe company and raised a tax
demand of Rs,38.27 Lakhs, company had filed an appeal before commissioner {Appeal), which is decided against the Company. Being
aggrieved, Campany has preferred an Appeal before the Honourable Tribunal, Mumbai. interest liability will also arise in case of unfavorable
decision. (P.Y. Rs. 39.27 Lakhs).

In Respect of Varodara hotel for the period From 01.04.12 to 31.03.2015 Comntissioner has passed anorder againstthe company and raised a
tax demand of Rs.2.02 Lakhs. Company had #iled an appeal before Commissioner (Appeal). which is decided against company. Being
aggrieved, Company has challenged said erder before Hon'ble Tribunal and hearing is awaited. |nterest liability will also arise in case of
unfavorable decision.

In Respect of Indore hotel, for the period from 01.04.10 fo 31.03.15 the Commissioner has passed the order against the Company and raised a
tax demand of Rs.46.05 Lakhs, company had filed an appeal before order against the Company had filed an appeal before commissioner
{Appeal). which is decided against the Gompany. Being aggrieved. Company has preferred an Appaal before the Honourabie Tribunal, Interest
liability will alsc arise in case of unfavourable decision,

Custom duties saved against imports under EPCG scheme is Rs. 428.09 Lakhs (PYR542%.39 Lakhs}

Disputed liability of Rs 2,15 Lakhs (PY.5.75 Lakhs} not provided for in respect of income Tax TDS {AY 2009-10 and 2610-11)

Disputed liability o Rs 1.09 Lakhs not provided for in respect of income Tax (AY 2014-15) the matters are pending before CIT {Appeal) -
Varodara..and ameunt paid there against.

Disputed liability of Rs 108.72  Lakhs not provided for in respect of Commercialtax  (FY  2013-14 & 2014-15, 2015-16). The matters are
pending before Commissioner -Appeal Commercial tax Indore. (P.Y.Rs. 143.27 Lakhs})

Dispated fiability of Rs 81.76 Laxhs not provider for in respect of Commercial tax (FYZ810-11, 2011-12 & 12-13). The matteris pending
betore Appelate Tribunal-Commercial fax Indore, {P.Y. Rs. 11.47 Lakhsj

Disputed fiability of Rs 10.91 Lakhs not provided for in respect of Commercial tax demand of BY 2011-12,

Disputed liability of Rs 46.39 Lakhs net provided for in tespect penalty of Property tax demand (FY 2015-15, 2016-17 & 2017-1 8). The
application is pending before Mayor-In-Council Indore Municipanhlx E.‘.gf%gfq’@q\rndore. (P.Y. Rs.32.70)

s
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{x)  Arrears of Cummulative Dividend on Preference Shares & | ncome Tax Thereon, not paid during the Year Rs. 359.14 Lakhs {P.Y.Rs.238.78).

{xi) Inrespectof the leasehold land of indore hotal, Company has received the order on 20th dec. 2017 for cancellation of lease. SHL has chaflenged
the said order dated 20th dec 2017 and tiled writ before Indare high court, Stay has been granted by High Court Matter is currently pending
before High tourtand next date of hearing is 19th June 2018,

(i)  The company has received a show cause notice for Impesing penalty u/s 23E SCRA, 1956 from SEBJand the malter is pending for adjudication
with Adjudicating authority SEBI.

It Commitments
Estimated capital commitments not provided for Rs. Nil {P.Y.NifLakhs)

Note 49 Earning in Foreign Currency - (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 31st March, 2018 | For the year ended 31st March, 2017

Eaming in Foreign Cxrrency
- Salg o Raoms of Food Beverages 757.62 889.95

CIF Value of Imports & Expenditure {on accrual hasis)

- Import Value of Capital Goods - .
- Impert Vaiue of Non-Capital Goods 46.96 16.18

Note 50 : First Time Adoption o ind AS

These financial statements, for the year ended 31st March, 2018, are the first annual Ind AS financial statements, the Company has prepared in
accordance with Ind AS. For periods up to and including the year ended 31st March, 2017, ihe Company prepared its financial statements in
accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 ai the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP).
Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS applicable for periods ending on 315t March, 2018. together
with the comparative period data as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2017, as described in the summary of significant accounting policies. in
preparing these financial statemenls, the Company’s opening balance sheet was prepared as at 1st Aptil, 2018, the Company's date of transition to Ind
AS. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its Indian GAAP financial statements, including the batance sheetas
at 1st April, 2016 and the previously published fndian GAAP financial statenients as ai and forthe year ended 31stMarch, 2017.
Exemptions applied :
Ind AS 101 “First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards” allows first-time adopter certain exemptions from the retrospective application ¢f
certain requirements under Ind AS. The Company has applied the folowing exemptions:
I Ind AS Optional Exernptions
1 Deemed sost
As per Ind AS 101 para D7AA, a first-time adopter to Ind ASs may elect fo continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and
efuipment as recognised in the financial statements as at the date of transition o Ind ASs, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that
asits deemed cost as at the date of transition after making necessary adjustments for e-commissioning fabilities.
Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure ali of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at their previous GAAP
carrying vaiue.
2 Investmantin Subsidiaries, Assaciates and Joint Ventures
As per Ind AS 101, para D15, the Company has elected the option provided uader Ind AS 101 to measure all ts investmennts in Subsidiaries
and Associate at previous GAAP carrying value on the date of transition in its separate financial statement and used that carrying value as
the deemed cost of such investmanis,
3 Borrowings
Ind AS 101 permits that if it is impracticable for an eatity o apply retrospectively the effective interest method in Ing AS 109 Financial
Instruments', the fair value of the financial liability at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be the new amortised cost of that financial fiability
atthe date of transition to Ind AS.
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4 Leng Term Foreign Currency Monetary items

As per para 013AA, afirst-time adopter may continue ihe policy adopted for accounting for exchange differences arising from translalion
of long-term foreign currency monetary Rems recegnised in the financial statements tor the period ending imirediately before the
beginning of the first ind AS fisancial reporting period as perthe previous BAAP.
Il.  Ind AS Mandatory Exemmptions

1 Classlfication and measuremenl of financial assets
As per Ind AS 101, para B8, an entity is required to assess classification and measurzment of financial assets on the basis of the facts and
circwnstances that exist atthe date of transitionto Ing AS.

2 Derecognition of financial assats and financiat liabilities
As per Ind AS 101. para B2, a first-time adopter shall apply the derecognition requirements inind AS 109 prospectively for transactions
occurring on or alter the date of transition to Ind ASs.

3 Estimates
Anentity’s estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ing AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same date
in accordance with previous GAAP. unless there is objective evidence that those estimales were in error. Ind AS estimates as at 1st April,
2015 and 31st March, 2016 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made i the conformity with previous GAAP . The
Company made estimates for the following in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transiion as these were not required under previous
GAAR

1. Impairment of financial assets based on Expected Credit Loss mode!
The estimates used by the Gompany to present these amaunis in accordance with Ind AS reflect conditions at 151 April, 2016, the date of
transition to Ind AS and as of 31s* March. 2017,

(Rs. In Lakhs)

As at 3tst March, 2017 As at sl Aprit, 2016
. ttfect of As per iad Ffiect ot As per Ind
PARTICULARS Note Pge;:‘u:s transition o | AS galanse Prﬁa;)l‘o:s transition to | AS gaiance
Ind AS Siaet Ind AS Sheet

ASSETS
Noa-Current Assets
(a)  Property, Plant & Equipment 15,760.16 (211.90) 15.548.26 13,189.58 {180.94) 13,008.64
(b}  Capitat Work-in-Progress 7.36 - 7.36 3.318.80 (0.00) 3,318.80
(t) Intangible Assets 6.44 {0.00) 6.44 9.53 0.00 9.59
{d} investment in Subsidiary,

Joint Venture & Associate 2,097.10 {143.52) 1,863.58 2.097.10 | (143.52) 1,953.58
(e}  Financial Assets - - - -

() iInvestments ¢.44 B 0.44 083 - 0.83

(i} Trade Receivables - - - - - -

(i) Loans 747.89 (692.62) §5.27 520.20 {507 .82) 12.38

(v} OCthers g7 1.16 88.37 3.10 0.00 319
{)  Deferred Tax assets (net) 1,279.68 12.90 1,292.58 1,051.82 56.65 1.108.47
{g}  Cther Non-Current Asssts 1.79 570.22 572.01 24.39 351.18 375.57
Total Non-Gurrent Assels 19,938.07 (463.76) | 19,524.31 | 20,215.41 | {424.45) 19,790.86
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{Rs. In Lakhs)

As at 3131 March, 2017 As at 1st April, 2016
Py o | pns | B | g | Povas [ S TR g
Ind AS Sheet Ind AS Sheet
Current Assets
(@) inventories 1.429.43 1,429.43 1,468 B3 - 1,468.63
{t) Financial Assets - -
()  Investments . -
{ii) Trade Receivables 633,74 - 633.74 906.39 - 906.39
(ili} Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,361.15 - 1,361.15 69.23 - 69.23
(iv) Bank balances other than
{ili) above 25.26 0.34 25.60 518.92 0.53 51945
{vi Loans 16.80 98.48 115.28 15.97 §7.41 103.38
(vi) Others 146.39 47,72 194.11 1.392.96 45.53 1,438.49
(c) Current Tax Assets (net) 43.47 - 43.47 - «
(d) Gther current assets 424400 | (3.064.62) 1,179.38 44128 2.4% 443.77
Tclal Current Assatls 7,900.24 | {2,918.08) 4,982.16 4,813.38 135.96 4,049.34
Tolal Assels 27,888.91 | (3,381.84) { 24,506.47 | 25,028.79 | (286.49) 24,740.31
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(@) Equity Share Capital 275880 | (1.000.00) 1,751.80 2,751.80 { {1,000.00) 1,7581.80
(b) Other Equity 7.123.41 (930.40) 6,193.01 7.540.38 (732.64} 6,807.74
Total Equity 9,875.21 (1,930.40) 7,944.81 10,292.18 { (1,732.64) §,559.54
LIABILITIES
Nen-Current Liabilities
{a)  Financial Liabilities -
(i}  Barrowings 6,516.28 1,536.39 8,052.67 2,356.60 | 1,407.31 3,763.91
(i}  Trade Payabies - - - - -
{iiiy Other Financial Liabilities 2.100.44 (18.11) 2,084.33 2.083.99 {18.13} 2.065.86
(b} Provisions 533.96 533.96 474.08 - 474.08
{c} Deferred income 681.50 (45.46) 636.04 - -
Tota! Non-current Liabilities 9,832.18 1,474.82 | 11,307.00 4,914.57 | 1,389.18 6,303.85
Current Liabilities - -
(3) Financial Ligbilities ‘
{)  Borrowings 1,497.45 1,497 45 4215.1% - 421515
{i) Trade Payables 779.41 779.41 113167 - 113167
(iii} Other Fnancial Liabilities 1,742.35 153.19 1.897.54 3,311.28 54.97 3.366.25
(b} Provisions 465,50 - 465.50 399.29 - 399.29
{c) Current Tax Liabilities (Net} - - - 275.13 - 27513
{(d) Other Current Liabifities 3.656.21 | (3,081.45) 614.76 489.43 489.43
Total Curreat Liabililles $.180.92 | (2,926.26) 5,254.66 9,821.95 54.97 9,876.92
Total Equity and Liabilities 27,883.31 | (3,381.84) | 24,506.47 | 25,028.60 | (288.49) 24,740.31
N
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Il Reeoeciliation of tofal comprehensive Income Jor the year ending 31st March, 2017 (Rs. In Lakhs)
For the ended year 31st March, 2017
PARTICULARS ote | provius ransitonto | As ortnd
ind AS Sheet
incoma
). Revenue From Operations 16,818.47 {40.04) 15,77843
I Other ingome a 135.23 G.13 139.36
ill. Total Revenue 15,957.70 (39.91) | 15,917.79
iV. Expenses :
rood and Beverages Consumed 3,683.60 3,683.60
Employee Benefits Expenses g 3.386.08 20,59 3,906.67
Finance Costs f.¢ b 1,526.94 86.17 1,613.11
Depreciation And Amortization Expenses e 2,073.90 30.95 2,104.85
Operating Expenses 3.926.41 - 3.926.41
Other Expenses e 1426.45 (3.57) 1,422.88
Total Expenses 16,523.38 134.94 | 16,657.52
V. Profit before tax (H-IV) (565.88) | (174.05) (739.73)
VI Tax Expense
(1) Current tax 4 50.18 (7.00) 43.18
(2) Deferred Tax h (227.86) 43.94 (183.92)
(3) Earlier Year Taxes 28.96 - 28.96
{148.72) 36.94 {111.78)
Vil. Profit After Tax (V-VI) (416.96) (210.99) (627.95)
VI Gther Gomprehensive licome
A ltem that will not be reclassified Io profit o loss
() Remeasurment of defined benefit plan g - 20.59 20.58
(i) Tax refating Remeasurment of dafingg benefit plan g - (7.00) (7.00)
8. lemthat will be reclassified te profit or loss
(i)  Changes in Cash Flow Hedge Reserve - (0.56) (0.56)
{i)  Tax relating Changes in Cash Flow Hedge Reserve - 0.19 .19
Tefal Other Comprehensive income 13.22 13.22
IX. Totai GComprehensive income for the Period {Vil+VIily (416.96) 197.77 (614.73)
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' Recongifiation of Total Equity as at 31st March 2017 and 1st April, 2016 (Rs. fn Lakhs)
PARTICULARS Note 3¥st March, 2017 | 39st March, 2018

Tolal Equily as per Previous GAAP 9,875.21 10,292.17
Add/{Less): Adjustment ol

Amortisation of Life Mem bership fees {40.04}

Impairment loss on investment in subsidiary {143.52) {143.52)
Leasa rent recognised over period of fease € {20.06) (15.68)
interest Income recognised on EIR Basis 346 1.89
Lease income recognised on Security Deposit 2 6.53 1.97
interest Expense recognised on EiR Basis [ {3.37)

Amontization of transaction cost on borrowings based on EIR C 90.83 -
Amartization of Leasehold Land ] (228.68) {197.73)
Finance cost on Preference share f {356.89) (184.90)
Finance Lease Adjustment 2 (3.23) (2.82}
Liability Portien of preference share transferred to Borrowings f (1,248.39) (1,248.34)

Fair Valuation of Derivatives d 0.56 {G,15)
Changes in cash flow hedge reserve (0.37} -
Deferred Tax Impact on above k 1272 56.65
Total Equily as per ind AS 7,344.81 8.559.54

2 Reconcitiation of Total Comprehensive Income for ihe petiod ending 315t March 2017 (Rs. In Lakhs)

PARTICULARS Noite 31st March, 2017

Profit/{Loss) atier lax as per Previous GAAP (416.96)
Add/(Less): Adjusiment of

Amortisation of Life Me mbership fees (40.09)
Interest income on secuurity teposit a 157
Inferest expense on security depesit b {3.37)
Lease income on security deposit € 455
Amortization of fand £ (30.95)
Lease adjustment 2 {4.78)
Transaction ¢ost adjustment ¢ 90.83
Fait Valuation gain on Derivative bl 0.71
Remeasurment of defined benefit plan g {20.59)
Tax refating Remeastirment of defined benefit plan o 7.00
Deferred tax expense h (43.94)
finance cost on preference share f {171.99)
Profit{Loss) after tax as per Ind AS (827.96)
Remeasurment of defined benefit plan 20.60
Tax relating Remeasurment of defingd benefit plan {7.00)
Changes in cash flow hedge reserve {0.56)
Income tax on above 0.19
Total Comprehensive lncome as perind AS (614.73)
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3 Reconiliation of Statement of Cagh Flows as at 31st Mareh 2017 (As. In Lakhs)
PARTICULARS Pravious GAAP Adjustments Ind AS

Net cash flow from aperating activities 2.800.82 416,14 3,216.97
Net cash flow from investing activities (704.78) 43.35 {661.43)
Net cash flow from financing activities (1.297.79) 147 30 (1,150.49)
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31st March 2016 798.26 606.79 1,405.05
Net increase/{decrease) in the cash and cash equivalents -

Cash and cash equivalents as al 31st March 2017 798.26 606.79 1,405.05

(a)

(b)

()

(e}

ftems requiring different treatment under Ind AS as compared to Indian GAAP

Refundahle Interest Frag Securily Deposil {Assat)

Under the pravious GAAP. interest free lease security deposits {those are refundable on completion for the lease term) and other deposits were
recerded at ransactional vajues. Under Ind AS, these security deposits are recognised initially at the fair value. The difference between the fair
valiie and the fransaction value of these security deposits has heen recognised as Rrenaid rent, Subseguently, these lease security deposits are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EFR’}. Accordingly, Prepaio Lease Charges of Rs. 123.69 Lakns has been recognised

Refundable Intsrest Free Security Depasit (Liability)

Under the previous GAAP, interest free lease security denosits (those are refundabie on completion for the Jeage term) and other deposis were
recorded at transactional values, Under Ind AS, thess security deposits are recognised initially at the fair valite, The difference between the fir
value and the transaction valug of these security deposits has bgen recognised as prepaid rent. Sulisequently, these lease security deposits are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate {'ER"). Accordingly, Prepaid Lease incoms of Rs. 22.01 Lakhs has been recognised in
other Non-Current Liability and Rs.4.55 Lakhs been recognised in Current Liabiiity and Security Deposit has been shown at amount of R5.48.63
Lakhs as on 1st Aprif, 2016, Lease income of Rs. 4.55 Lakhs has been credited to Stalement of Profit & Loss and Rs.3.37 Lakiis has been chargsd
to Statement of Profit & Loss ag interestexpenseinyear2016-17,

Transaction Cosi on Borrowings

Under Indian GAAP, fransaction costs incurred in connection with borrowings are charged upfront fo Statement of Profit and Loss for the
period/year. Under Ind AS, transaction costs are inctuded in the initial recognition amount of Imancial liabiiity and charged to Statement of Profit
and Loss using effective interest method, This has resulted in decrsase in borrowings with Rs. 94.90 Lakhs as on 31 stMarch. 2617 and Finance
costfor the year 2016-17 has increased DyamountRs. 4.07 Lakhs.

Fair Vataation of Darivative Contract

The fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts is recegnised unders Ind AS which was not recognised under the previous GAAR. Under the
previous GAAP forward contracts were aceounted under AS 11 wheretly the premiom was recognised to profit and loss over the period of the
forward contract. This has resulted in dec rease in horrowing by Rs. 25.93 Lakis and Prepaid expenses by Rs.6.39 Lakhs as on 1st Agril, 2016 and
Other Current Assets Other Current Liahility has decreased by Bs. 3022.23 Lakhs anc Rs. 3166.95 Lakhs, Tespectively as on 31st March, 2017,
Accordingly, Derivative liabilites has been recognised al Rs. 19.69 Lakhs and Rs.144.71 Lakhs as on 1st Aprit, 2016 and 31st March, 2017,
fespectively and retained earnings as on 1 st April, 2016 has decreased by Rs.0.15 Lakhs and Finance Cost for the year 2016-17 has decreased by
Rs.0.71 Lakhs.

Land Lease - Finance Leass

Under previous GAAP, leasehold land was capitalised at an amount equal to the upfront payments mace at the time of izase. However, under Ind
AS, such leases are capitalised at the presett value of the tofal minimunt lease payments to be paid over the lease term. Accordingly, total feage
payments are now being recognized as *Finance Lease Obligation” at their present value. The effect of the adjustment has resulted in increase in
non current financial tiabifities by Rs. 17.23 Lakhs, current financial Rabifities by Rs. 1.89 Lakhs towards finance lease abfigations, PPE by Rs.
16.78 lakhs, Accumelated Ammortisation by Rs. 197.73 lakhs and net reduction in refained eamings by Rs. 200.58 Lakhs as at 1st April 2016,
During FY 2016-17, there was reduction in non current financial liabifities by Rs. 1,95 Lakhs towards finance lease obligations and decrease of
Rs. 30.96 lakhs in PPE towards a{nr\mo rtisation.
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Prelerence Shares

Under Previous GAAP, preference shares were classified as Eguity and were shown under shareholders’ fund. As per Ind AS 32-Financial
instruments: Presentation, every financial instrument is required to be classified as equity or liability or compound financial instrument, if it hag
both liability or Bquity component, characteristic of every instrumant. The company has classified these preference shares as compound financial
Instrument as they are with uncertainty of payment of dividend. Equity Gomponent has been shown in Other Equity and Liability portion has been
shown in Non-current Borrowing and is meaureg at amortised cost Finance cost is charged on the liability component on the basis of Effective
Interest Rate ('EIR"). This has resuited in recegnition of "Equity Compenent of Compouna Finarcial instrument” in other Equity by Rs. 251 66 fakhs
and Rs. 1433.24 lakhs been recognised has been recognised as Liahility. The liability compenent is increased by finance cost which is charged as
per (EIR) and accordingly retained earning as on 1st April. 2016 has decreased by Rs.184.90 lakhs and Finance cost for the year 2016-17 has
increased by Rs,171.99 takhs.

Acturial Gain or Loss on Defined Benefit Plan

Both under Indian GAAP and Ind AS, the Gompany recognized costs refated to post employment defined benefit plan on an aciuarial basis. Under
Indian GAAP, the entire costs, including actvarial gains and losses, are charged te Statement of Profit and Loss. Under Ind AS, remeasurements
(comprising of actuarial gains or losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability and the refurn on plan assets exclucling amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability) are recognized im mediately in
the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through Other Gomprehensive Income. Thus. the employee henelit
cost is increased by Rs. 13.59 lakhs and remeasurement gain or loss on defined benefit plan has been recogsized in the other comprehensive
income, net of fax,

Deferred Tax

"Indian GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focuses on differences between taxable profits and
accounting profits for the period. Ingd AS 12-fncome Taxes requises entities to account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which
focuses on temporary differences between the carrying amount of asset or liabitty in the balance sheet and its corresponding tax base. The
application of Ind AS 12 approach has resulted in recognition of deferred tax on new teinporary differences which was not required ander Indian
GAAP.In addition, the various transitional adjustments izad to temporary differences. According to the accounting policies, the Company has to
account for such differences. Deferred tax adjusiments ars recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in retained earnings ora
separate component of equity. Accordingly, deferred tax assets as on $1st march, 2017 has decreased by Rs. 30,87 lakhs with corre sponding
increase in deferred tax expense for the year then ended *

Going Concern Assemption

As at the year end, the company's current liabilities have exceeded its curvent assets by Rs.274.19 Lakhs primarily on account borrowings
aggregating to Rs. 1412.24 Lakhs which fall due within 12 months following the balance shest date. Management is confident of its ability to
generate cash inflows from operations and raise cash from financing activities sothat it would be able to meet its obligations on due dates as it has
dernonstrated in earlier years. On these considerations, these financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

Other Equity

"Retained garnings as at 1 April 2016 has been agjusted consequent to the above Ind AS transition adjustments.Refer ‘Reconcifiation of total
eqQuty asat31 March 2017 and 1 April 2016’ as given above for details,”

Other Comprehensive Income

Under previous GAAP, the Company has not presented other comprenensive incomme (OCH) separately. frems that have been reclassified from
statement of profit and loss to other comprehensive income includes remeasurement of defined beaefit plans and fair valus gain/toss on FVTOC
equity instruments. Hence, previous GAAP profit or toss is reconciled (o total comprehensive income as pes Ind AS.
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Note 51: Disclosure asperind AS-108, Qperating Segment

The Company’s only business being hotefigring, disclosure of segment-wise information is not applicable under Ind AS 108 - ‘Operating
Segment’ (Ind AS-108) notified by the Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 ang subsequent amendments thereto.
Informalion about major castomers

No single customer contributas more than 10% or more of the Company's total revenue for the years ended March 31, 2018 and March 31,
2n7.

Note 52 ; Disclosure as per Ind AS-107, Financial [nstruments

A) Financial Risk Managment
The Gompany's principal financial liabilities conprise Borrowings, trade payables and other payables. The main pupose of these
financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets inciude trade & other reeivables,
loan given, cash & cash Equivalent, Investrnent, deposits and derivative that derive directly from its operations.

The Company’s Financial Risk Management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategiss. The Company’s

financial risk management is set by the Manraging Board.

Company is exposed to fotow! ng risk from the use of its financial instrument -

- Credit Risk

- Liquidity Risk

- Market Bisk
Eredil risk
Crediit risk is the risk of firancial foss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations resulfing in a financial loss to tha Company, Credit risk arises principally from trade receivables, loans & advances, cash & cash
equivalents and deposits with banks and financial institutions,
Trade Raceivable
‘Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject tg the Company’s established policy. procedures and conteof refating to
customer credit risk management. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 7 days ko 45 days credit term. Credit limits are
estatlished for all custorners based on internal rating eriteria. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. The Company has no
concentration of credit risk as the customer hase is widely distributed both economically and geographically.An impairment analysis is
peiformed at each reporting date an an individual basis for major clignts. [n addition. a large number of minor receivables are groutped iato
hemaogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The calculation is based on actual incurred historical data, The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporling date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. The Gompany does not hold collateral as
security. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, The requirement of impairment is analysed
as each reporting date.”




SAYAJI HOTELS LIMITED

. 36

NCTES TG FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018
Other Financial instruments and Cash & Cash Equivatents

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is m
Company’s policy. investments of surplus fusds are made only with a
under the counterparty risk assessment process. The Gompany moni
Based on its on-going assessment of Counterparty risk, the groy
exposure 1o credit risk for the components of the Balance sheei
carrying amount as disclosed in Note 51 (i) except for financial

inNote48.

(i) Carrying amounl of maximam ¢redit risk as pn teporting date

D adjusts ifs ex

anaged by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the
pproved counterparties who meets the minimum threshold reqLirements
lors the ratings, credit spreads ano financial strength of its counterparties.
posure o various counterparties. The Company’s maximum
as of March 31st, 2018, March 31st, 2017 & Agril tst, 2016 is the
guarantees. The Company's maximum expos ure for financial guarantee is given

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As al 31st March, 2018 As at 315t March, 2017 As at tst April, 2016
Financial assets for which Joss aliowancs is
measured sing 12 month Expacted Credit
Loss {ECL)
Non-current Investment 0.44 0.44 0.83
Non-cusrent Loans 523.92 55.27 12.38
Other Non-Gurrent Financial Assets 94.31 88.37 310
Cash & Cash Equivalent 1,214.95 1,361.15 69.23
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - 25.60 519.46
Current Loans 65.93 115.28 103.38
Other Current Financial Assets 303.48 194,11 1,438.49
Financial assels lor which loss allowance is
measured using Liletime Expected Credit
Less (ECL)
investment in Subsidiaries 1,993.58 1,953.58 1,953.58
Trade Receivablas 870.03 633.74 $06.39
Total 870,03 633.714 906.39
{ii}  Agsing of trade receivables
The Ageing of trade receivables is as below {Rs. in Lakhs)
o | et | M| ot | et | e
Gross Carrying amount as on 31.03.2018 267.68 506.17 49.95 20.35 58.10 90225
Impairment Ioss recognised on above - - - - 32.22 {32.22)
Gross Carrying amount as on 31.03.2017 226.10 253.06 83.57 13.93 57.08 633.74
impairment loss recognised on above o - - - -
Gross Carrying amount as on 01.04.2016 480.53 34288 16.19 1517 51.62 906.39
Impairment loss recognised on above - - - - - -

{iil)

Provision for Expected Credit or Loss

{a) Financiai assets for which lass allowance is measured using 12 month expecled credit iosses,

The Company has assets where the counter-parties have sufficient capacity to meet the abligations and whers the risk of default is
very low. Accordingly, no loss allowance for fmpairment has been recognised.

(b}  Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using life fime expecled credit iosses
The Company provides Ioss allowance on trade receivahies using life time expected credit foss and as per simplified approach,
(lv) Reconcillalion of impairment loss provisions
The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of financial assets during the vear was as follows:
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Trade irvestment in
Receivables | subsidiaries Advances Totat
Balance as at April 1,2016 - 143.52 - 143.52
Impairment foss recognised - 1.72 1.72
Amounts written off - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2017 - 143.52 1.72 145.24
impairment loss recognised 32.24 . - 32.24
Amaounts written off 0.02 - - 0.02
Balance as at March 31, 2018 32.22 143,52 1.72 177.46

Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter g
by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Cormpan
sufficient Kguidity to meet its fiabilities when due, under b
damage to the Company's reputation.

The table below summarises the matarity profile of tha Company's tinancial Niabilities based on contractual undiscounled paymants:

fficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financiat liabilities that are settled

¥'s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have
ofn normal and stressed conditions, without Heurring unagceptable losses or risking

{Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars On Demand | Within 1ysar |  1-2 years 2-G years m:;;?:" Total

Year ended March 31st, 2018

Term Loans* 1,594.74 1,487.00 3,436.85 855.81 7,374.40
Trade Payables 1,176.48 “ - - - 1,176.48
Cash credit 25814 258.14
Other Pyables 1,154.10 400.00 2,000.80 1,797 85 5,351.95
Finance Lease Payable 1.95 195 586 10.23 19.99
Other Financial Liabilities# 149,39 149.39
Total 1,434.62 2,800.18 1,888.95 §5.442.71 2,663.39 14,330.35

{Rs. In Lakhs})
Parliculars On Demand | Within Tyear | 1-2years | 2.5 years Mg’;”e;'::" Total

Year ended March 31st, 2017

Term Loans* 1,452.06 1193.61 3521.47 1,859.46 8,026.54
Trade Payables 77941 - - - - 77341
Cash credit 377.54 37754
Other Pyables 1,118.91 2,000.00 1,605.23 472514
Finance Lease Payable 1.85 1.95 5.86 9.77 19.53
Other Financial Liabilitigs# 316.50 316.50
Total 1,156.95 2,890.42 1,195.56 5,527.33 3.474.45 14,244 66
Year ended April 1st, 2016

Term Loans * : 281288 825.37 424.80 1.074.06 513711
Trade Payables 1,131.67 - - - - 1,131.67
Cash credit 490.67 490.67
Other Pyables 3.724.48 2.000.00 1,433.24 7157.72
Finance Lease Payable 1.95 195 5.86 936 19.12
Other Financiaf Liabilities# 557.91 557 .91
Tolal 1,622.34 1,097.22 827.32 2,430.66 2,516.66 14,494.20

* Includes centractuat interest payment based qn interest
# Current maturities of loag-term borrowings is included :n interest bearing borrowing part in above note,

Overdraft or other on dema?ﬁqin facitity, if any available with the Company is disclosed, to the extent undrawn in note no. Note 40:

rate prevailfing at the end of the reporting period over the tenure of the borrawings.
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Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that Changes in market prices. such as forgign exchange ra
of market risk management s to manage and control masket risk exposuses with

The Board of Directors is responsibie for setting up of policies and procedy-

carried out within the guidelines set by the risk management commaittee.

Foreign Cumency Risk

Exposure to exchange rate fluctuations arises. The risk istha
rates. The comapany uses forward confractsto hedge its ex

The currency profile of financial assets and financial liabitities are as belgw :

tes and interest rates will atect the Company's income. The objective
inacceplable parameters, while optimising the return,
Bs to manage market risks of the Company. All such transactions are

y other than entity's functional gurrency, hence
tthe functional ey rrency vatue of cash flows will varyas aresuft of movements in exchange
posure from foreign currency fluctuations.

(Rs. In Lakhs)

J1st March, 2018 J1st March, 2017 st April, 2015
Particulars
Uso usp Usb
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 1555.79 2948.60 1580.66
Derivative Liabitity (12.78) 144,71 19.69
Foreign Currency sensithvily

The Company's sxposure to foreign curren

Cy changes for all other currenciss is n

before tax due to change in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilitigs.

Interesi Rigk

Interest rate risk arises from the sensitivity of tinarcial assets an
rate risk arising mainly from leng term borrowings with floating interest rates, The Company 1s exposed to interest rate risk

assoriated with floating rate berrowings will tluctuate with changesininterest rates.

Atthe reporting date the interest rate piofile of the Company's interest-bearing financial instruments is as follows :

d liabilities to changes in market rates of i

ot material. Hence there is ng major impact an company's profit

nterest. The Company is exposed to interest

because the cash flows

{Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017 st April, 2016
Financial Assets
Fixed Rate
Security Deposit 523.92 55.27 12.38
Bank Deposit 84.31 113.97 52256
Total 613.23 169.24 534.94
Financiaf Liabllities
Fixed Rats
Working capital loans 258.14 377.54 490.67
Unsecured Loans 3.351.95 2.856.48 5211.56
Sub-Total (1) 3,610.09 3,234.02 5,702.23
Variable Rale Instruments
Term Loans 7.374.40 7.895,25 5,083.23
Sub-Totaf (ii} 7,374.49 7,895.25 $,083.28
Total {i} + {ii) 16,984.49 11,129.27 10,785.51
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Interest rate sensitiviiy
The following table demonstrates the sensiivity to a reasonably possible change ininterest rates on that pertion of loans and borrowings alfested, With
alltother variables held constant, the Com pany’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on fleating rate borrowings, as fofjows - {Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Eitect of Profit or Loss

§0 bp increase B0 bp decrease

31st March 2018
Financial Liabilities (3.69) 3.69
{3.69) 3.69

31st March 2017
Financial Liabilities {3.95) 3.95
(3.95) 3.95

Nete 53 : Capita Risk Managemant

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes isswed equity capital and ali other equity reserves attributable 1o the equity
haiders of the Company. The primary ohjective of the Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital struciure ang
heaithy capita ratios in ordertp supportits business and maximise sharehalder valyse,

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustmems to it in fight of changes in econontic conditions or its busi ness equirements, To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment fo sharehalders, return capital 1o shareholders or issue new
shares. The Company menitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity. The Company includes within net debt, interest

bearingioans and borrawings less cashand cash equivalents, (Rs. In Lakhs)

Paticuiars 31s1 March, 2018 31st March, 2017 1st April, 2016
Gross Debt 10.984.48 11,129.27 10,785.51
Less : Cash and cash equivalents {1,214.95) (1.361.15) {69.23)
Nat Debt (A) 9,769.54 9,768.12 10,715.28
Total Equity (B) 7.582.33 7,94 31 8,550.54
Gearing Ratio (AB) 1.29 1.23 1.25

{Rs. In Lakhs)
As Al March 31, 2018
Particulars
FYTPL FVY10C) Amorlized cosl

Financial Assels :
Investment
- Equity instrument (unguoted) 044
Loans - - 589.85
Trade Receivables - - 870.03
Gash and Cash Fquivalents - - 1,214.95
Other Bank Balance - . -
Other financial assets 397.7%
Tolal Financial Assets 0.44 - 3,072.62
Financial Liability;
Borrowings - - 9,842.94
Detivative Liabidity (12.78) - -
Trade Payable - - 1,176.48
Other Financial Liabilities - - 3.390.02

Total Financial Liability {12.79) . 14,409.44
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As At March 31, 2017
Particulars

FYTPL FVTQC! Amaortized epst
Financia! Assets:
favestment
- Equity Instrument {unquoted) 0.4a -
Loans - - 170.55
Tratle Receivables - - 633.74
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 1.361.15
Other Bank Balance - - 25.60
Other financiaf assets - - 282.48
Total Firancial Assets 044 - 2,473.52
Financial Liability:
Borrowings - - 9,550.12
Derivative Liability 144 71 - -
Trade Payabie - - 779.41
Other Financial Liabilities - - 3.837.16
Total Flnansiai Liability 144,71 - 14,166.69

(Rs. In Lakhs)
As At April 01, 2016
Particulars

FVIPL FYTOC) Amortized sost
Financial Assets:
[nvestment
- Equity instrument (unquoted) 0.83 - -
Loans - - 115.76
Trade Receivablos - - $06.33
Cash and Cash Equivafents - - 69.23
Other Bank Balance - - 319.46
Other financia) assets - 1.441.59
Total Financia) Asgets 0.83 - 3,052.43
Financial Liability:
Borrowings - . 7,879.06
Derivative Liabitity 19.69 - -
Trade Payable - - 1,131.67
Other Financial Liabilities - - §,2B7.40
Total Financial Liabitity 19.69 . 14,398.13
"The above exciudes investments in subsidiariss and associates amoynting fo 19853 .58 Lakhs
Note 54 : Disclosure asper Ind AS-113, Fair Value Measurement
FairVzlue Hierarchy
“This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and
neasured at fair value ang (b} measured at amartised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in financial statements. 10 provide an indication
about the reliability of the iNputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into three levels prescribed under
the accounting standard. An explanation of each fevel follows underneath the table -
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As at 31sl March 2018
Financial Instrumant measured at Fair Valae - recarring fair value measurment {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particufars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assels
Investment
- Equity |astrument (unquoted) - - 0.44 D.44
Financial Liabilities
Derivatives - {12.78) . (12.78)
Total - (12.78) 0.44 (12.34)
As at 31st March 2017
Financial Insirument measured at Fair Value - recurring fair value meastmeni {Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Level 1 Level 2 ievei 3 Tetal
Financial Assets
Investmeat
- Eguity instrument (unquoted) . - 0.44 0.44
Financial Liabllities
Derivatives - 144,71 - 144.71
Total - 144.711 D.4s 145.15
fis at 31st March 2016
Financial Instrument measured at Fair Vajue - recurring fair valne measurment (Rs. In Lakhs)
Partisuiars Level 1 Leve] 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
Investment
- Equity instrument (unquoted) - . 0.83 0.83
Fimancial Liabililies
Derivatives - 19.69 - 19.69
Total - 18.69 0.83 20.52
(A) Specificvaluationtechnique isusedto determine the fair value of the tinancial instruments which incleds -
i) For Investments in Equity Investments- Quoted Market prices are used and for unquated Equity Instrirments best possible inputs are taken 1o
identify the fair vajue.
i) Forfinancial liabilities (vendor fiahilities, domestic currency loans) - appropriate market horrowing rate of the entity as of each balance sheet
date usad.
fil) Forfinancial assets (employee foans) : appropriate market rate ofthe entity as of each balance sheet date used.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018
{B) The financial instruments are calegorized into diflerent levels based on the inpuls used to arrive at fair valte measurements as described

Level 1

[ncludes financial instruments measured using quoted prices in an active market. This included fisted equily instruments, traded
debentures and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments (including debentures) which are
traded In the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as &l the reporting period. The mutual funds are valued using the
closing NAV,

Lewel 2

includes financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds/debeniures, over the counter
derivatives). The fair value in this hierarchy is determined using valuation technigues which maximize the use of observable
market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. if all significant inputs required fo fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is inciuded in fevel 2.

lavel 3

If one or more of the significant Inputs is not based on ohservable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. Fair values are
determined in whele o in part using a valuation modal bassd on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from
observahle current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data. Financial instruments
suchas unlisted equity shares, loans are included in this hierarchy.

(D) Fairvalue of financial assets and liabilities measured atamortised cust

{C} Interlevel transfors:
There are notransters between levels 1 and 2 as also between levels 2 and 3 during the year.

{Rs. n Lakhs)

As at 31 March 2018
Particulars N
Level Carrying Value Fair Value
Hnancial Assels
Trade Receivables 3 870.03 870.03
Cash and Cash Eguivalents 3 1,214.95 1,214.95
Bank batances other than cash and cash equivalents 3 -
Loan to Empioyees 3 1917 19.17
Sacurity deposit 3 52392 $23.92
Other Financial Assets 3 39779 397.79
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 3 9,842.94 9,842 94
Trade Payables K] 1,176.48 1,176.48
Other Financial Liabilities 3 3.377.24 3377.24
{Rs. In Lakhs)
i As at 31 March 2017

Parliculars tLevel Carrying Value Fair Walue
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables 3 633.74 633.74
{ash and Cash Equivalents 3 1.361.15 1,361.15
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 3 25.60 25,60
Loan to Emgloyees 3 16.80 16.80
Security deposit 3 §5.27 55.27
Other Financial Assets 3 282,48 282.48
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 3 9,550.12 9.550.12
Trade Payables 3 779.41 779.41
Other Financial Liabilities 3 398187 3981 .87
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As 2l 1st April 2016
Parliculars -

Leval Carrying Value Fair Value
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables 3 633.74 633.74
Cash and Cash Equivalenis 3 1,361.15 1,361.15
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 3 25.60 25.60
Loan to Employees 3 15.97 15.57
Security deposit 3 12.38 12.33
Other Financial Asseis 3 1,441.58 1,441.59
Firancial Liabilities
Borrowings 3 8.550.12 9.550.12
Trade Payables 3 779.41 779.41
Other Financial Liabilities 3 3,9681.87 3,981.87

Nate 55: The company has reclassified previous year figures 10 conform to this year classification,

Significant Accounting Policigs and other Notes
These notes form an integral part of these financial statements

In Terms od our Report Attached
For and on behaif of \he Board of Directors

For K.L.Vyas & Company

C_hartered Accountants T.H Vanl Ragol Razak Dhanani
Firm Regn. No. 0B3289C Director Managing Dirsctor
K.L.Vyas DIN-00Q79237 0IN-00174659
Pastner

M.No. 072043 Sandesh Khandelwaf Amil Sarmal

Indors, 30° May 2018 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'’ REPORT

To,
The Members,
Sayaji Hotels Limited,

Report an the Consoligateg Financiai Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS
financial statements of Sayaji Hotels Limited (the Holding
Company) and its subsidiaries {the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together reterred to as the “the Group”} and its
associate, comprising the Consoiidated Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2018, the Consolidated Statement of Profitand Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated
Cash Flow Statement and the statement of Changes in Equity for
the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory informatian {"the consolidated
financial statemnents™).

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind A%
Financial Statemants

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for
the matlers stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) with respect to the Preparation of these consolidated
ind AS financial statements that give a trug and fair view of the
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial
performance ang consolidated cash flows of the Group
including s associates, in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards(ingd AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The
respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the
Group and of its assaciates are responsible for maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Agt for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and compieteness of the
accounting records, relevant o the preparation and
Presentation of the financial statements that give a trug and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether dys to
fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
Preparation of the consolidated ind AS financial statements by
the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Audilor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is 1o €Xpress an opinion on these
consofidated Ind AS financia statements based on our augit,

Whilg conducting the audit, we have taken into accouni the
provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the augit report
under the provisions of the Actand the Rules made there under,

We conducted our audii in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit To obtain reasonaple assurance
about whether the consolitfated ind AS financiai statements are
free from materia) misstatements.

An audit involves pertorming procedures to gbtain audit
evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated Ind AS financial Statements, whether due to fraud
Or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial controf relevant to the Holding
Company's preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstanges, An audit
also includes evatuating the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting
estimates made by the Holding Company’s Board of Directors,
as well as evaluating the overall présentation of the consoligated
Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and by the
other auditors in terms of thelr report referred to in the Other
Matters paragraph befow, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated d AS
financial statements,

Opinion

In- our opinion and to the best of our inforimation and accordi ng
to the explanations given ig us, and based on the consideration
of reports of other auditors, the aforesaid consolidated Ing AS
financial statements give the information required by tha Act in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
confarmity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the consolidated statg of affairs of the Group as at 31st
March, 2018, and their consolidated loss and their consolidated
cash flows for the year ended on thatdate.

Other Matters

We did net audit the financial statements of One subsidia ry,
whase financial statement reflect total assets of Rs, 1230.15
Lakhs as at 315t March, 2018: total revenue of Rs. Nil and net
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cash flows of Rs, (-) 2.80 Lakhs for the year ended on that date.
The Ind AS Consolidated financial statements afso include the
Group’s Share of profit of Rs. 161.61 Lakhs for the year ended
31st March, 2018, as considered in the Ind AS consolidated
financial statements in respect of One Associate, whose
financial statements/ financial information has not been audited
by us. These financial statements / financiat information have
been audited by other auditors, whose reports have been
furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the
consolidated Ind AS financial statermnents, in so far as it relates to
the amounts and disctosures included in respect of these
subsidiary and associate, is based solely on the reperts of the
other auditors.

Our opinion on the consofidated Ind AS financial statements,
and our report on the other Legal and Regulatory requirements
below is not modified in respect of the above matters with
respect fo our reliance on the work done and the reports of the
other auditors and the financial statements / financial
information certified by the Management.

Report on Other Lega! and Regulatory Reguirements
1. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and betief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit of the aforesaid financial
statements,

b}  Inour opinion proper books of account as required
by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consoliclated Ind AS financial statements have been
kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and the reports of the other auditors.

¢)  The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Consolidated
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account
mainained for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

d) inour opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS
tinancial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, as
applicable,

e)  Onthe basis of ihe written representations received
from the directors of the Holding Company as on
31st March, 2018 taken on record by the Board of

Directors of the Holding Company and the reports
ofthe statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies
and associates, none of the directors of the Group
Companies and its assotiate is disqualified as on
Jist March, 2018 from being appointed as a
director interms of Section 164 {2) of the Act.

) Withrespectto the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate report in “Annexure A”, which
is based on the auditors reports of the Holding
Comypany, subsidiary companies and associate
company. Our report expresses an unmodified
opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Holding Company’s/ subsidiary
company’s/ associate company's internal finangial
controls over financial reporting.

g)  With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and
accerding to the explanations given to us:

i.  The consolidated Ind AS financial statements
disclose the impact of pending litigations on
the consolidated financial position of the
Group and its associate — Refer Note 46 | to
the ind AS consclidated financial statements;

i.  The Group and its associate did not have any
long-term conlracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring
amounts, required fo be transferred, to the
investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Holding Company, its subsidiary
companies and associate company.

ForK.L. Vyas & Company,

Chantered Accountants,
FRN: 003283C
{K.L. Vyas)

Place of Signature : Indore Partner

Date : 301k May, 2018 M. No. 072043
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ANNEXURE-A TOTHEAUDITORS' REPORT

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS UNDER
CLAUSE (1) OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ("THEACT")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of Sayaji Hotels Limited {“the Holding Company ™) and
its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
together referred 10 as the “the Group”} and its associate. as of
31 March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated
financial statemenis of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management’s Respansibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Cormpany, its
subsidiary companies and its associate company, which are
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for
gstablishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of India
{‘tCAI"'). These respensibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
pravention and detection of frauds and errors, the accusacy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Respansibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's
internal financial controfs over financial reporting based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICA| and deemed te be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an aadit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Thase
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
sthical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such conirols operaied effectively in alf
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obfain audit
avidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveriess. Our audit of internal financial cantrols over
financial reporting included obtaiaing an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weaknass exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The proceduras selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial staternants,
whether dueto fraud orerror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the
audlit evidence obtained by the other auditors of the subsidiary
companies and associate company, which are companies
incorporated in India, in terms of their reports referred to in the
other matters paragraph betow, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal
financial controls system over financial seporting.

Meaning of Inlernal Financial Controls over Financial
Reperting

Acompany'sinternal financiat control over financial reporting is
a process designed 1o provide reasonadle assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purpases in accerdance with
generaily accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, aceurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expendituies of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and {3) provitle reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthgrised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material etfect on the financial statements.
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inherent Limilations of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financiat controls
over financial reporting, including the possibitity of coliusion or
improper management override of controfs, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Aiso, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may becomne inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the poticies
07 procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of aur information and according to
the explanations given to us, the Holding Gompany, its
subsidiary companies and its associate companies, which are
companies incorporated in India, have, inall material respects,
an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financiat

reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2018, based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria

established by the Company considering the essential
cemponents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting in so far as it refates standalone
financial statements of 1 subsidiary and 1 associate, which are
cornpanies incorporated in india, is based on the correspond ing
reports ofthe auditors of such companies.

For K.L. Vyas & Comgany,
Chartered Accountants,
FRN: 003289C

(K.L. Vyas)
Place ol Signature : Indare Partner
Date : 301k May, 2018 M. No. 072043
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31° MARCH 2018 (Rs. I Laki)
S. I0 Lakhg

Note As at 315t As at 31st As at 154
Particulars No. | March, 2018 March, 2017 |  Apri, 2016

ASSETS
1 Non-current assets

{ay Property, Plant & Equipment 2 $6,029.37 $7.232.90 15,146 03

(b} Capital work-in-progress 3 3547 7.56 3,318.80

(c) Intangible assels 4 71.90 6.66 10.80

{d) Investrneni in Subsidiary, Joint Venture & Assockite 5 8,779.27 7,021.81 6,064.58
(8) Financial Assets

(it lnvestments 8 110.92 110.92 L3

{} Loans 7 90545 436.95 394.03

{ili) Other Financial Assets 8 48.60 G1.89 8.26

ity Deferred Tax assats (pet) 9 668.13 1.035.11 896.56

{g} Other non-curren assets 19 1.315.04 1.058.53 B871.00

Tolal Non-Current Assels 28,214.15 27,002.33 76.819.37

2 Current assets
Eg)} gwmvrﬁs 1% 1,839.48 1,568.88 1,608.43
nancial Assets

(i} Investments

{@y Tracde Receivabes 12 964 51 681,42 950.40
(i) Cash and Cash Equivaients 13 1,359.42 1,466.74 95.27
{w) Bank balances other thaa (iii) above 14 3.52 2B.83 52263
(v)] Loans 15 301.48 212.95 103.84
{vi) Other Financial Assets 16 319,15 210.82 1.464.17
{c} Currem Tax Assets {nat) 17 - 57.61 10.81
(3) Other current assets 18 733.87 §,269.31 A87.02
Tolal Curreni Assets 5,595.44 5.496.56 243.
TOTAL ASSETS 33,818.59 42,498.89 32,062.94
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 EQumy

i@ Equity Share Capital 19 1.751.80 1,751.80 1,751.80
{b) Other Equity 20 1258459 $1.214.92 10,928 47
Total Eguity aitributabla to ewners of the parent 14,336.38 12,966.72 12,680.27
{c} Non-controtling interest 466.51 453.48 51045
Takzl Equity 14,802.96 13,420.26 12.190.72

2 LIABLITIES

2.1 Kon-eurreni Liabilitiss
{9) Financial Liabilities

i} Borrowings 21 10,058.14 9841.54 5,963.51

{if) Trade Payables - - -

{iif) Other Financial Liabilities 22 2.084.4% 2,084.3¢ 2,079.59

{by Provisions 23 522.5% 565.84 499.22
(¢) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) - - -
{d) Defarred Revenue 24 579.18 636.04 -
Total Nen-Cugrent Lizbilities 13,344 28 13,227.74 8 542.32

2.2 Current Liabilities
(@ Financial Liabifities

{i) Borrowings 25 143424 1.544.45 2317.15
(ii) Trade Payables 25 1,247 56 365.86 1,200.88
(iH} Other Financial Liabilities 7 1,640.75 2.298.12 3,58257
(b} Other Current Liabilities 28 78213 629.82 512,66
{¢) Frovisions 2% 509,45 510.83 441 51
{d} Cuirent Tax Liabilities {Net) 30 43.33 187 27913
Total Curvent Liabililiss 5,683.41 5,850.95 10.329.90
TOTAL EGUITY AND UABILITEES 33,810.59 32,498.89 32,062.94
Significant Aceounting Policies 2nd other Notes 154

These notes form an Inlegral part of these financial statamenis
In Terms cf our Reporl Atlached

For K.L.VYyas & Company Far and on behali of the Board of Direclors

Chartered Accountants T.N Unni Raoof Aazak Dhanani
Firm Regn. No. 003288C Dirgctor Managing Director
K.L.Vyas DIN-00079237 DIN-00174654
Pariner

M.No. 072043 Sandesh Khandelwal Amit Sarraf

Indore, 30° May 2018 - Cnizf Financial Officer Company Secretary




SAYAJI HOTELS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH 2018
Amount in Rs. Lakhs
s | Toriderearomind | et paranes
| Income
[ Revenue From Operations 31 21,581.97 17,891.36
] Other income 32 287.28 154.31
W Tolal Reventie {11+1l) 21,869.2% 18,045.87
v Expenses :
Food and Beverages Consumed 33 4,542.73 3.987.94
Employee Benefits Expenses 34 5,965.64 4,448.37
Finance Costs 35 1,628.23 1,920.12
Depreciation And Amortization Expenses 28&%4 2,374.53 2,559.91
Operating Expenses 36 5.043.18 4,230.91
Other Expenses 37 257271 1,798.44
Total Expenses 22,127.03 18,945.68
Vi | Profil before share of profit/(Joss} of assaciate and tax (V-V} ‘ (257.78) {900.02}
Share of Profit/ (Loss) of associate 1593.94 849.15
Vil | Profil Before Tax (63.84) (350.87)
VIHi| Tax Expense :
(1) Current Tax 176.85 64.33
{2) Deferred Tax 166.79 (138.36)
{3} Tax Adjustment of Eartier Year {18.38) 28.96
325.26 {45.07)
IX Profit {Loss} for the year {Vil-VIl) {389.11} (305.80)
X Gther Comprehensive Income
A. ltems that wili not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i} Acturial Gain/(Loss) on Defined Benefit Plan 86.56 20.60
(i} Income tax relating to items that will not he
reclassified 10 profit or lgss (30.83) {7.00)
8. ltems that will be reclassified t¢ profit or loss
(i} Changes in Cash Flow Hedge Reserve 0.56 {0.56)
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be
rectassified to profit or loss (0.19) 0.19
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

REEAA:

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH 2018

Indore, 30" May 2018

Amouni in Rs, Lakhs
\ Note For the year ended Far the year ended
Particutars No. | 3istMarch 2018 | 31stMarch 2017
Xl Total Comprehensive income for the year
(1X+X)(Com prising Frofit /{Loss)} and
Other Comprehensive Income for the year)
before share of associate {333.00) 1292.58)
Share of Profil/ (Loss} of associate {32.33) (7.18)
Total Comprehensive income for the year
{(IX+X)(Comprising Profit /{Loss) and Other
Gomprehensive Income tar the year) (365,33 (299.77)
Net profit altributable to
Owners of the parent (404.53) (248.81)
Non controlling interests 15.41 (56.98)
Other Comprehensive Incame attributable to
Qwners of the parent 26,13 6.03
Non controfling interests (2.36) 0.01
Total Comprehensive income attrihutable to
Owners of the parent (378.40) {242.78)
Non controlling interests 13.05 (56.97)
Xii Earnings per equity share
(1) Basic 38 (2.91) (2.43)
(2) Diluted (2.91} (2.43)
Significant Accounting Poligles and other Noles 1-54
These notes form an integrai part of these iinancial statements
In Terms of our Reporl Atlached R ot e B ' Di
For K.L. Vyas & Company 1 and on behalf of the Board of Direclors
Chartered Accountants T.N Unni Raoof Razak Dhanani
Firm Regn. No. 003289C Diractor Managing Director
K.L.Uyas DiM-00079237 DIN-00174654
Partnsr
M.No. 972043 Sandesh Khandalwal Amit Sarraf
Chief Financial Officer Cornpany Sacretary




SAYAJI HOTELS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED F INANCIAL STATEMENT

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018

(Bs. In Lakhs)
Paticeiass s W B0y | e tear sdod
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit beforel‘l'ax from continuing operations (257.22) (900.58)
Hon-cashfﬂnmﬂperating adjustmenl te reconcile profit before tax tp
rot cash flows
Depreciation & Amortisation including adjustments 2.374.53 2,559.91
Deferred Income Amortisation (81.99) {47.12)
Deferred Expense Amortisation 9.15 4.46
(Profit) /Loss on Sale/Disposal of Property, Plant & Equipment 0.48 38.39
Prepaid Lease charges on Security Deposit 15.77 4.38
Prepaid Lease income on Security Deposit (4.71) {4.55)
Foreign Exchange gain/ (loss) on Derivative Liability (94.27) 114.47
interest Expense 1,628.23 1,920.12
Amortisation of sd 3.16 3.16
Interest Received (131.22) {29.05)
Operating profit betore Working Capital changes 3,451.90 3,663.59
Adjustments for:
(Increase)/ Decrease in trade ang other receivabies {746.56) 864.39
(increase} / Decrease in Inventory (270.60) . 40.55
Increase/ (Decrease) in trads and other payables 51563 -371.02
Cash generated from operatiens 2,960.37 4,197.51
Taxes (Paid)/Refund (58.54) (401.07)
Net Cash from Operating Activity {A) 2.901.83 3,796.44
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment (1.268.54) (1,371.01)
Sale/Disposal ot Property, Plant & Equipment 3.93 1.21
Govi. Grant Received 22.39 774.43
Sale of Investments - 0.33
Maturity/{ Investment) in Non Current Fixed Deposits (6.71) (85.63)
Dividend Recaived 126.21 94 66
interest Received 124.73 27.48
Net Cash Flaw trom investing Activity (B) (997.99) {558.47)
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SAYAJI HOTELS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018

(Rs. In Lakhs)

. For the year ended For the year endad
Particulars 315t March, 2018 |  31st Mareh, 2017

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds/{Repayment) of Long Term Borrowings {878.62) 2,636.70
Proceeds/{Repayment) of [oans from others 468,19 (2,659.57)
Interest Paid (1,425.13) {1,738.16)
Net cash used in Financing Activily (C) (1,894.56) (1,761.03)
Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents{A+8+C) 9.28 1,476.94
Cash and cash eguivalents at the beginning of the year 1.078.40 {398.54)
Cash and cash equivalents at the close of the year 1,087.68 1.078.40

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in gur Report of even date

Notes:

1. The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in fnd AS -7 "Statement ot Cash Flows’.
2. For the purpose of Statement of Cash Alaw, Cash and Cash Equivalents comprises the followings;

As at March 31, 2018 | As al March 31,2017}  Asat April 01, 2016
Balange with Banks 1,239.05 1,441.15 60.01
Cash on hand 50.19 25.59 35.26
Investment in Mutuad Fund 7018 - -
Less: Bank Cverdraft (271.74) {388.34) {(493.81)
1,087.68 1,078.40 {398.54)
Significant Accounting Policies and pther Notes 1-54

Thase notes form an integral part of these financial statements
In Terms of gur Report Attached

For K.L.Vyas & GCompany
Chartered Accountants
Firm Rega. No. 003289C
K.L.Vyas

Partner

M. No. 972043

Indore, 30° May 201§

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

T8 Unni Racol Razak Dhanani
Director Managing Direclor
DIN-00079237 DIN-00174654
Sandesh Khandeiwal Amit Sarraf
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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no__%_am.m__ Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2018

A, Equity Shara Capital (Rs. In Lakhs)
Balance as at tst Apil, 2016 Changes [n equity share capilal Balance as at 31st March, 2017
duting tha year
1,751.80 - 1,751.80
B. Other Equity {Rs. In Lakhs}
Atiributable ta cwners of parnt
Resserva and surplus Share of 00! Q
- of Juint Totzl Equity m
. Shareinal | Effective attributable | Moo~ 4
Parliculars Equity componant Securities Equity | portign of | YEMures to owners | COPUolMing | Total S
of compound Premiym | General | Retalned | Component | Cagh Flgy | ACCOUNted of paremy | Interast ™
financiai R Reserve | Eamings | Direetly | ypgges | (07 USINg ol W
instruments sl credited to Equity mv._ >
Equity Methad @ .
Baiance as at 13t Aril, 2016 251.66 5,944.60 641.48 | 4,090.74 . 10,828.48 510.45| 11,438.93 = m
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - - | (248383 . (40.6%) | seon)| @usrg)| | 23
Other Gomprehensive Income for the year - . - 13.23 7.19) 6.03 6.03 & m
Total Comprehensive income for the Year - . - {248.83) . 13.23 (719} ) (242,79) (56.97)| (299,75} W m
Equity Component - - - 490.67 - 490.67 490.67 2=
Others : . : 3856 . 38.57 38.57 m g
Balance as at 315t March, 2017 251.66 5,944.60 641.48 | 3,880.48 480,67 13.23 (7.19) | 11,214.93 453.48| 11,668.42 m
oy
Significant Accounting Policies and other Notes 1-54 m
These notes form an integral part of lhese financial statements
For K.L.Vyas & Campany For @nd on behall of the Board of Direclors
Chartered Accountants T.N Unpi Raoof Razak Dhanani
Firm Regn. No. 003289C Director Managing Director
K.L.Vyas DIN-00079237 DIN-00174854
Partner
M.No. 072043 Sandesh Khandelwai Amit Sarraf
Chief Financlal Officer Company Secretary
Indore, 30" May 2018
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SAYAJI HOTELS LIMITED -
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

a.

Significant Aecounting Policies for the FY 2017-18:- Consolidailed Finangial Statements

The Group has elected Lo utilize tha option under Ind AS 101 by not ap plying the provisions of Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 38 relrospectively and
continue to use the previous GAAP carrying amouni as a deemed cost ender Ind AS at the date of transition to Ing AS. Therefore, the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at 1 April 2016, the Group's date of transition to inc AS, actording to the
previous GAAP were maintained in transition to ind AS.

1. Basis of consolidation
i Subsidiaries
a. The group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, 10 variable returns from its involvement with the group and

has the ahility to affect those returns through its power over the group. The consolidated financial statements liave been
prepared using uniferm accounting policies for like transactions and other eveats in similar circum stances.

The Group entities combines the financial stalements of parent and its subsidiaries fine by line adding logether like items of
assets, liabilities, equity, income and expense. Intercompany balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also ediminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
oftransferred asset.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Gompany and to the
non-controliing interests,

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line
with the group's accounting policies.

Where company loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and abilities of the su bsidiary, and any related
Non Controlling Interest and other component of equity. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair
value atthe date of coatrol is fost. Any resulting gain or loss is recegnised in Profit and Joss.

it. Assogiate

Under the equity method of accounting, the investment in an associate is initiaHy recognised at cost. The Carrying amount of
the investment is adjusted o recognise changes in the group’s share of the net assets of the associate is included in the
carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment individually.

The Statement of profit and loss reflects the Group's share of the resultsof operations of the associate. Any change in OC! of
those investees is presented as part of the Group’s GCL. In addition, when there has been achange recognised directly inthe
Equity of the associate, the group recognizes its share af any changes, when applicable, in the stalement of changes in
Equity. Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transactions betwean he group and the associate are eliminate to the
extentof the interest in the associate.

Upon foss of significant influence over associate, the group measures and fecognizes any retained investment at its fair
value. Any diffarence between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence in associate and the
fairvalus of the retained invesiment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profitand loss.

2. Currentand non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current class fication.
Anassetiscurrenf when itis:
. Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle:
* Held primarily for the purpose of tracing;
. Expected to be realized within twelve montns after the reporting periog: or

. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used 10 settle a liability for at Jeast twelve months after the
reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
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Significant Accounting Policigs for the FY 2017-18:- Consolidated Finangial Statements
Aliability is current when:

*

Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycie;
Ris hetd primarily for the purpose of trading:
Itis due to be settled within twelve months afier the reporting period: or

There is no unconditional right to defer setliement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities ase classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets/liabilities are classified as non-current.

3 Property 8lant & Equipment

3.1

3.2,

3.3.

34,

Initial recegnition and measurement

Anitem of property, plant and equipments recognized as an asset if and only if it is probable that future economic bensfits assaciated
with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the itern can be measured reliably,

items of Property, Plant and Equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation/amortization and accumulated
impairment iosses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to bringing the assat, barrowing cost, inclusive of non-
refundable taxes & duties, to the focation and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management,

When parts of anitem of property, plantand equipment bave different useful fives, they are recognized separately.

iteins of spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment which meet the definition of Property, Plant and Eguipment are
capitalized.

Suhsequent costs

Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that futire economic
henefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, piant and equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable
thai the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company and ifs cast can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of Property, Plant and Equipment are
recognized in profit orioss as incurred.

Derecognition

Property, Plant and Equipment are derecognized when no future economic benefits are gxpected from their use or upon their
disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipmen: zre determined by comparing the praceeds from
disposal with the carrying amaunt of property. plant and equipment. and are recognized in the staternent of profitand loss.

Depreciation/amortizaticn

Depreciation of each part ofan item of Property, Plant and Equipment is recagnized o profit or foss on a Written Down Value Method
over the estimated useful lives as prescribed in Schedule 1| of Companies Act, 2013, except in respect of the following categories of
assets, inwhose case the life of assets had been re-assessed as under based on technical evaluation, taking into account the nature
of asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditians of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated
technological changes, manufacturer’s warranties and maintanance suppor.

Glass ot Assets Useful Life
Assets construcied on leased premises. Over the fease period

Leasenold lands are amortized over the lease term unless it is reasonably certain that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the
lease farm.
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Depreciation on additions to/deductions from fixed assets during the year is charged on pro-rata basis from/upto the date on which the agset
is available for use/disposed.

Where it is probable that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will fiow to the enterprise and the cost of the itern can be
measured reliably, subsequent expenditure on a PPE along-with its unamortized depreciabile amount s charged off prospectively over the
revised usetal life determined by technical assessment.

incircumstance. where a properyis abanduned, the cumulative capitalized costs relating to the property are written off in the same period.
Capital work-in-progress

The costof self-constructed assets inciudes the cost of materials & direct fabour, any other costs directly aftributable to bringing the agsets
tothe location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management and borrowing costs.

Expenses directly attributable to construction of property, plant and equipment incurred &l they are ready for their intended use are identified
and allocated on a systematic basis on the cost of related assets.

Deposit works/cost plus contracts are accounted for on the basis of statemnents of account received from thecontractors.
Intangible assets and intangible asssts under development
9.1.  Initial recognition and measurement

An intangible asset is recognized if and only if it is probabie that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the
assetwill flow to the company and the cost ofthe assetcan bemeasured reliably.

Intangible assets thatare acquired by the Company, which have finite useful lives_ are recogiized at cost. Subsequeni measurement
is done at cost less accumalated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Costincludes any directly attributabdle incidental
Expenses necessary to make the assets ready forits intended use.

5.2. Subsequentcosis

Subseguent expenditure is recognized as an ingrease in the carrying amount of the asset when it is prohable that future economic
benefits deriving fram the costincurred will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the item can be measured reliably,

5.3. Dsrecognition

An intangible asset is derecognized when no future economic benefits are expectad from iheir use or upon their disposal, Gains and
losses on disposal of an item of intangible assets are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount
ofintangible assefs and are recognized in the statement of profitand loss.

5.4. Amodtization

Intangible assets having definite life are amortized on Written Down Value method in their useful lives, Useful life of computer
software is estimated at five ysars. If life of any intangible asset is indefinite then it is not amortized and tested for lmpaiemant at the
reporting date

Borrawlng Cost

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction/expioration/ development or erection pi qualifying assets arg
capitalized as part of cost of such asset until such time the assets are substantially ready for their intetrded use. Qualitying assets are assets
whichtakea substantial period oftime to get ready forthe:r intended uses are complete,

All other borrewing costs arg charged to revenue as and when incurred.

Borrowing costs consist of {a) interest expense calculated using the effective interest method as described in Ind AS 109 - ‘Financial
tnstruments'(b) finance charges in respect of finance leases recognizedin accordance with ind AS 17 — ‘Leases’ {¢) exchange differences
arising from foreign currancy borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to inferest costs and (d} other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Incoms earmed on temperary investment of the borrowings pending their
expentiiture on the qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligihle for capitalization.
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Invenlories

Inventaries are valued at the Jower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present focation and condition. Cost is determined on Weighted Average basis. Costs of
puschased inventory are determined after ded ucting rebates and discounts. Net realizable vaiue is the estimated seiling price in the ordinary
course of business, less eslimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

The diminution in the value of obsolets, unserviceabie and surplus stores & spares isascertained on feview and provided for.
Cashand Cash Equivalent

Cashand cash equivalantin the bajance sheat comprise tash at banks and cash on hand and short-terin deposits with an originat maturity of
three months or less, which are sy bject to msignificant risk of change in value.

Government Grants

Government grants that compensate the company for the cost of asset are recognized initially as defeyred income when there is reasonable
assurance thatthey will be received and the Company will comply with the conditions associated with the grantand are recognized in profit or
loss ona systematic basis over the useful fife of the related asset. Grants that compensate the Company for expenses incurred are recognized
over the period in which the related costs are incurred and are deducted from the related expenses.

Provisions and cantingantfiabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a preser legal or constructive obligation that can be esfimated
refiably, and itis probable that an cutflow of economic benelits will be required to settle the obligation. [fthe eHect of the time valye ofmoney
is materfal, provisions are defermined by discounting the expected fiure cash flows at a pre-tax rate that refiscts current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liabiiity. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost,

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at reporting date,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

When some or ail of the economic henefits required to seftle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party. the receivable is

recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
The expense refating to a provision is presented inthe statement of profitand loss net of any reimbursement,

Contingent liabilities are possibie obiigations that arise from past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future svents not wholly within the control of the Company. Where it is not probable that an outflow of
econermic benelits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, untess the
probahility of outflow of economic benefits is remote, Contingent liabifities are disclosed on the basis of judgmant of the
management/independent experts. These are raviewed at each balance sheel date and are adjusted to reflect the current ranagement
estimate,

Contingent assets are possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more unceriain future events not whelly witlin the control of the Company. Contingent assets are disclosed in the
financial statements when inflow of economic benefits is probabie on the basis of judgment of management. These are assessed continually
to ensurg that developments are appropriately reflected in the financial statements.

Foreign curreney transactions and translation
Transactions in foreign currencies are initiatly recorded at the functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for
recogaition,

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are transiated at the functional cureency spot rates of exchange at the
reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settiement or translation of monetary items are recognized in profit or loss in the year in
which it arises,

Non-monetary items are measured in terms of historical cast in a foreign currancy are franslated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction.

\‘.‘s RO b
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13.

Revenue

Revenue is recognised 1o the extent that it is probabie that the economic benefits will flow to the Cempany. and the revenue can be reliably
measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured attne fair value of the consideration recgived or receivable
and taking into account contractually defined terms of payment. The Company has canctuded that it is the princ ipal in ali of its revenue
arrangements since it is the primary obligor in ali the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also exposed to invantory and
credi risks.

The Gompany operates loyalty programme, which aflows its eligible customers 1o eain points based on their spending at the hotels. The
points so earned by such customers are accumulated. The revenye aliocated fo award points is defarred and on redemption of the award
paints, the revenue is recognised.

Rendering ol services

Revenue comprises sale of rooms, food and beverages, allied services relating to Hote! operations. Revenue is recognized uponrendering of
service. Life Membership fees is amorfised overa period of 10 years, taken asan estimate by the management

Sale is exclusive of Luxurytax, Sales tax, Service Taxand other taxes. Sales tax under the composition scheme is also excluded,

interestincome
For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and interest-hearing financial assets classified as fair value 1hrough other
comprehiensive income, interest income s recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected Iife of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset. When caiculating the effective interest rate, the Compaity estimates the expected cash fiows by considering all
the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepaymient, extension, cail and similar options) but does not consider the
expecled creditiosses. Interest income is included in other income inthe statement of profitorioss.
Dividend
Dividend Income is racognised when the Group's right to receive is established which generalfy accurs when the shargholders approve the
dividend.
OtherIncome
Otherincome is recognized in the statement of profit and loss when increase in future economic benefits related to an increase in an assetora
decrease of aliability has arisen that can be measured reliab Iy.
Employee Benellls
13.1.  ShortTerm Benejit
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related servige is
provided.

A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under performance related pay if the Company has a present legaf or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a resuit of past service provided by the employee and the obfigation can be estimated
reliably.

13.2. Post-Employment benefiis

Employee benefit that are payable atter the completion of employment are Post-Employmeni Benefit (other than termination
benefit). Thase are of twa type:

13.2.1. Defined contribulion plans
Defined contribution plans are those plans in which angroup pays fixed contribution into separate entities and will have ne iegal or
constructive ebligation to pay further amounts. Provident Fund and Employee State lnsurance arg Defined Contribution Pians in
which company pays a fixed contribution and will iave no furiher obligation.
13.2.2. Delinad benetit plans
Adefined benefit planisa post-employment benefit prag other than a defined contribution plan,
o\ -
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Gompany pays Gratuity as per provisions ol the Gratuity Act, 1972. The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is
cafcuiated Separately for each plan by estimating the amount of juture benefil that employees have earmed in return for their service
inthe current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to detenmine its present value. Any untrecognized pasi service costs angd
the fair value of any plan asssis are deducted. The discount rate is based on the prevailing market vietds of Indian government
securities as at the reporting date that have maturily dates approximating the tenms of the Group’s obligations and that are
denominated in the sams cuirency in which the benefits are expecied to be paig,

The calculation is performed annually by a gualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the calcutation results in a
liability to the company, the present value of liability is recognized as provision for employee benefit. Any actuarial gains or losses are
recognized in OCHin the period in which theyarisa.

13.2.3. Long Term Employee Benefit
Benefits under the Group's leave encashment constitute other fong term employee benefits.
Leave Encashment is determined based onthe available leavesntitlement at the eng of the vear,
14.  income Taxes

income tax expanse comprises current and deferred tax. Current fax expense Is recognized in profit or loss picept to the extent that it relates
to items recognized directy in other comprehensive iNCDME or equity, in which case itis recognized in OC1 or equity.

Current taxis the axpectad tax payable on the taxable inco me for thg year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted and as applicable
atthe reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. Current income taxes are recognized under ‘Income tax
payabie’ net of payments on account, or under ‘Tax receivables’ where there is a debit bafance,

they relate to income faxes levied by the same tax authority on the sams taxable group, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle
currenttax liabilities and assets on a net basis of their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simuttangously.

Deferred tax s recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in OCH or equity, in which case jt is
recognized in GG/ or equity.

A deferred tax asset is recogiized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against whieh the temporary
difference can be utilized. Deferrag tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
thatthe refated tax benefit will be realized.

dividend is recognized.
15.  LeasesAsLessee
Accounting for finance leases

Leases of Property. Plant and Equipment where the Company, as lessee has substantially all risks and rewards of ownership are ¢lassified as
finance lease. On injtial recognition, assets held under finance leases are recorded as Property, Plant and Equipment and the related liability is
recognized in the balance shee! as Finance t.ease Cbligation, Atinception of the lease. finance leases are recorded at amo unts equal to the fair
vaiue of the fease d asset or, if lower the presentvalue of the minimum lease payments. Minimum lease paymemts made under finance leases
areapporiiened between the finance expense and the reduction of the outstanding fability,

Accounting foroperating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ovmership are not transferred to the Company as lessee are clagsified as
Dperating lease. Payments made under operating leases are recognized as an expense over the lease terms. Conbingent rentals ariging under
operating leases arg recognised as an expensein the period in which they are incurred.
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17.
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19.

20.

21,

22,

22.1.

Impairment of Non-financial Assels

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment considering the provisions of Ind AS 36 ‘lmpairment of Assets'. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to disposal and i{s value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present vatue using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assess ments of the time value of money and the rigks specific 1o the asset, For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot
be tested individually are grouped togather into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continy ing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit”, or "CGU™).

Animpairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an assator its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment iosses
are recognized In profitor loss, Impairment losses recognized in respect of GGUS are reduced from the carrying amounts of goodwili of that
CGU. ifanyand then the assets of the CGR),

Impairment losses recognized i prior periods are assassed at each reparting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no
longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in 1he estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the assel’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, netof depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Dparating Segments

In accordance with Ind AS 108 — Operating Segments, the operating segments used to present segment information are identified on the
basis of intermal reports used by the Group's Management 1o allocats resources to the segments and assess their performance. The Board o
Directors is collectively the Company's ‘Chief Operating Degision Maker” or ‘COOM’ within *he meaning of Ind AS 108. For management
purpose company is organized into major operating activity of hoteliering in India. The indicators used for internal reporting purposes may
evolve in connection with performance assessment measures put in place.

Dividends

Dividends and interim dividends payable to 2 Group's shareholders are recognized as changes in equity in the period in which they are
approved by ihe shareholders' meeting and the Board of Directors respectively.

Material Priar Pariod Errors

Materlal psior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts for the prior perieds presented in which the
error eccurred. If 1he error occurred before the earliest prior period presented, the opening balances of assets, fiabilities and equity for the
earliest prior period presented, are restated.

£arnings Per Share

Basic eamings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity sharehalders of the Company by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year,

Diluted earnings per equity share is compuied by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the
weighted avesage number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings perequity share and also the weighted average number of
equity shares that could have been issued upon convarsion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Stalement of Cash Flows

Statementof cash fiows is prepared in accordance with the intizect method prescribed in Ind AS-7 *Statement of cash flows,

Financial insiraments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise 1o a financial agset of one group and a financial fiability or equity instrument of another
group.

Financial assets

Initial recognition ant measurement

All financiatassets are recognized initially at fafr value plus or minus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or
lpss, transaction costs that are attributable te the acquisition arissug of the financial asset.
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Subsequent measuremsnt
Debtinstrumenls atamorized cost
A'debtinstrument’ is measured at the amortized costif both the following conditions are met:

{a) The asset is held within a business model whose abjective is 10 hold assets for collecting contractual cagh fiows, and

(b} Contractual teems of the assat give rise on specified dates te cash flows that are solety payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on
the psincipal amount outstanding.

Atter initial measurement, such financial assets are subseguently measurad &t amortized cost using the EIR method. Amortized cost
is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The
EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or foss. Thelosses arising from impairment are recognized in the profitor
{o5s. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Debt instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income
A‘debtinstrument’is classifiad as at the fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the following criteriaare met:
(a} The objective of the business model is achigved beth by collesting contractual cash flows and seliing the financial assets, and
(0)  Theasset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI

Debt instruments included within the fair value through other comprehensive income category are measured inifially as well as at
each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the OCI. However, the Company recogaizes interast ingome,
impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit and loss, On derecognition of the asset, curmulative
gain or loss previously recognized in OC is reclassified fram the equity to profit and loss. Interest sarned whilst holding fair value
through other comprehensive incomedebt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR methed.

Debtinstrument at fair value through profit and loss

Fatr value through profit and loss is a resigual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as atamertized cost or as fair value through other comprehensive income, is classified as at fair value through profit and loss.

in addition, the Company may elecl 1o classify a debt instrument, which otherwise mests amortized cost or fair value through other
comprehensive incomecriteria, as at fair value through profit and loss, However, such election is allowed enly if doing so reduces or
eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). Debt instruments included within the fair
vaiue through profit and loss category are measured at fair value with all changes racognized in the profitand loss.

Equity invesiments

All equity investments in entities other than subsidiaries and joint ventures are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are hetd for
trading are classified as at fair value through profit and loss. For all other equity instruments, the Company decides to classify the same either
as at fair value through other comprehensive incomeor fair valee through profit and loss. The Company makes such election en an
instrument by instrument basis. The classéfication is made oninitiaf recognition and is irrevocable.

it the company decides to classify an equity instrument as al fair value through other comprehensive income, then alf fair value changes an
the instruments, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. Therg is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of
investrment, However the company may transfer cumulative gain or loss within the equity.

Equity instruments included within the fair value through crefil and loss category are measured at fair value with all changes recagnized in
the profitand loss.

Equily investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures are measured at cost,
Derecognition

Afinancial asset (or, where aprlicable. a part of a financial asset o part of a Company of similar firanciat assels) is primarily derecognized
{i.2. removed from the Group’s balance sheet) when:

. The sights to receive cash flows from the asset hay ired, ar
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. The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash

flows in full without material defay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement and either (a) the Company has transferred
substantiaily all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transterred nor retained substantiafly afl the risks
and rewards o the asset, buthas transiesred controi of the asset.

Impairment of financlal assets

Inaccordancs with ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL} model for measurement ang recagnition of impairment loss
on thefollowing financial assets and credit risk exposure:

. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., foans, debt secarities, deposits, irade
receivables and bank balance.

. Lease Receivabies under Ind AS17

Trade receivabigs or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result fram fransactions that are within the
scope of INdAS 18

The Gompany follows ‘simglifled approach’ for recognition of im pairment ioss allowance on:

Tradle receivalles or conlract assets resuting from transactions within 1he scope of ind AS 18, if they do not contain a significant
tinancing component

. Trade receivables or contractassets resuiting from transactions within the scope of and ind AS 18 that contain a significant finanging
component, if the Company applies practical expedient to ignore separation of time value of money. and

The application of simplified approach does not require the Gempany to track changes in credit sisk. Rather, it recognizes impairment
{uss allowance based o lifetime ECLs ateach reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial asseis and risk exposure, the Company detarmines that wheiher there has been
asignificantincrease in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased signiticantly, 12-month ECL is used to
provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime EGL is used. If, in a subseguent period, credit
quality of the instrument improves such that ihere is no longer a significant increase in cradit risk since initial recognition, then the
group reverts to recogaizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-monih ECL.

Financial liabllities
Initial recognition and measuremant

All financial liabilities are recognized at fair value and in case of loans, net of directly attributable cost. Fees of recurring natuye are
directly recognised :n the Stazement of Profit and Lass as finance cost.

Subseguent measurement

Financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
accountany discount or premium on acquisition and any material transaction that are any integral part of the EiR. For trade and other
payables maturing within ana year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short
maturity of thesg instruments.

Derecognition

A tinancial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the fiability is discharged or cangelled or expires, When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different 1erms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
anew liability. The difference in the respective carrying arounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses forwards to mitigate the risk of changes in interest rates. exchange rates and commadity prices. Such derivative
financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on 1he date on which a derivative contract is entersd into and are also
subsequently measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financiat assets when the fair value is positive and as financial
liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or l9§5z3js an . from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to

-
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Statement of Profit and Lass, except for the effective portion of eash flow hedges which is recognised in Other Comprehensive
Income and later to Statement of Profit and Loss when 1he hedged item affects profit or foss or treated as basis atjustment if a
hedged forecast transaction subsequenly results in the recegnition of 2 non-financial assets or neon-financial iability,

Hedpes that meet the trilaria for hedge accounting are accounted for asfollows:
a) Cashflow hedge

The Company designates derivative contracts or non derivative financial assets / labitities as hedging instruments to mitigate the
risk of movement in interest rates and foreign exchange rates for foreign exchange exposure on highiy probable future cash fiows

part of other comprehensive income. Any ineffective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognized immed iately
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. | the hedging relationship no longer meels the criteria for hedge accounting, then hedge
accounting is discontinued prospectively. If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated gr exercised, the cumulative gain
of foss on the hedging instryment recognized in cash tow hedging reserve til| the period the hedge was etfective remains in cash
How hedging reserve unti) the underlying transaction nceurs. The cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in the cash flow
hedging reserve is transferred to the Staternent of Profit and Loss upon the occurrence of the underlying transaction. [f the
forecasted transaction is no tonger expected to occur then the ameunt accumulated in cash flow hedging reserve is reclassified in
the Staterment of Profitand Loss.

[:}] FairValue Hedge
Changes in the fair value of hedging instrements and hedged items that are designated and Qualify as fair value hedges are recordeg
n the Statement of Profit and Loss. If the nedging relationship no longer meets the eriteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment to
the canrying amount of 3 hetlged item for which the effective interest method is used is amortised to Statement of Profit and Logs
over the period of maturity.
23, Major Estimates made in preparing Finaucial Statements
23.1. Usefullite of property, pfant and eqaipment

The estimated useful iife of property, plant and equipment is based an a number of factors including the effects of obsolescence,
demand, competition and other economic factors (such as the stability of the industry and known technological advances) and the
levefof maintenance expenditures reguired to obtain the expected fuure cash flows from the asset.

Useful lifs of the assets other ihan Plantand machingry are in accordance with Schedule H of the Companies Act, 2013.
The Company reviews at the end of gach reporting date the uselul life of property. plant and equipment, and are adjusted
prospectively, ifappropriate.

23.2. Pust—employmemhanelitplans
Employes benefit obligations are measuied on the basis of actuarial assumptions which include mortality and withdrawal rates as
well as assumptions concerning future devefopments in discount rates, the rate of salary increases and the inflation rate. The

Coempany considers that the assumptions used to measure its obligations are appropriate and documented, However any changes
in these assumptions may have a material impact on the resulting calculations,

23.3  Provigions and contingencies

The assessments underiaken in recognizing provisions and contingencies have been made in accordance with Ind AS 37,
Provisions, Contingent Liabitities and Contingent Assets’. The evaluation of the likelihood of the contingent events has required best
judgment by management regarding the probabifity of exposure to potential foss. Should eircumstances change following
unforeseeable develapmenis. this fikefihood couid alter.

23.4. \|mpairment Test of Non-Finaneiaf Assets:

The recoverable amount of investment in subsidiary is based on estimates ang assumptions regarding in particular the future cash
flows associated with the operations of the investee company. Any changes in these assumptions may have a material impact ont the
measurement of the racoverable amount and could result in impairment.

—
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NOTE 2: PROPERTY PLANT & EQUIPMENT {DWNED, UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Gross block Depreciation/Amertization Nel book vaiue
Particulars Asal | 00 ions | Doletions/ | Asat Upta Forthe | Deletions/ |  Upto As at Asal
31.04.2017 Adjustment | 31.03.2018 { 01.04.2017)  Year | Adjusiment 31.03.2018 | 31.03.2618 | 31.03.2017
Freehold Land 2,668.78 - -| 2,668.79 - - - -| 2,668.79] 2668.79
Leasshold Lang 2,114 = -[ 2,114, 11 30.95 36.98 B 61.83| 2.052.18| 2.083.16
Buildings 10,521.62 795.94 {6.67} 11,310.89} 1,181.20{ 1,387.78 (4.76) ] 2,564.22 1 8,74667] 9,340.42

Plant and Equipments | 2.271.81 100.88 (7.35)] 2365.34|. 366.77] 350.07 (6.46) 710.38 | 1,654.96] 1.905.05
Furniture & Fixtures 1,358.63 61.11 (27.12)] 1,392.62 379.01 44249} (26.49) 795.05 §97.57 | 97962

Service Equipment 96.94 144.69 (5.16) 236.47 38.42 56.52 (5.11) 89.83 146.64 58.52
Vehicies 154.20 31.14F  {45.47) 139.86 49.36 3848F (43.20) 44 67 95.19 104.81
Computers 195.30 25.37 - 22067 102.76 50.54 - 153.30 67.37 92.54
Tolal 19,381.40 | 1,159.12| (91.77)| 20,448.75| 2,148.50| 2.355.85 (85.88) | 4,419.38 |16,029.37 |17,232.90

{Rs. In Lakhs)

Gross block Bepreciation/Amortization Nel book value
Particulars Asal | oo | Deletions/ | Asat Upta Forthe | Deletions/ | Upto Asat Az at

1.04.2016 Adjustment  31.63.2017 | 01.04.2016 |  Year | Adjustment | 31.03.2017 | 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Frechold Land 2,668.79 - -| 2,668.79 - - - -| 2668.79] 2668.79
lL.easehold Land 2113.11 1.00 - 2t1441 - 30.95 - 3095 2083.16{ 2113.11
Buildings 6.856.25 | 1382349 (158.12)} 10,521.62 || 130311 (121.91)| 1,181.20| 934042} 6,855.25
Plant and Equipments | 1,705.50 558.99 7.32] 2.271.81 . 362.60 417 366.77 | 1,905.04] 1,705.50
Furniture & Fixtures 1,385.06 262.57) (288.00)] 1,35883 B 661.84; (282.69) 379.0t 979.62| 1,385.06
Service Equipment 86.24 10.71 {0.01) 96.94 - 38.42 (0.00) 38.42 58.52 86.24
Vehicles 150.70 3.50 - 154.20 - 4939 - 49.39 104.31 160.70
Gomputers 180.38 15.32 (0.40) 195.30 - 102.80 {0.04) 102.76 92.54 180.38
Total 15,146.03 | 4,675.58] (440.21)]19,331.40 -1 2,548.97( (400.47} | 2,148.50 | 17,232.90 15,146.03
Information ragarding gross block of property plant and equipment and accumulated depreciation under previous GAAP is as fuliuws(h 5. in Laks)

Particulars as 2??18 :;'.’;;15 s::::g;l;;;t:: as ar: ?1?1;:?;016 Ind as Adjustment 2::;':1"19 ::g;:g

As at 31.03.2016 (Deamed cost) .

Free Hoid Land 2,668.79 - 2.668.79 - 2,668.79

Lease Hold Land 2.294.06 - 2,294.06 {180.99) 2,113.11

Buildings 14,359.34 7,503.09 6,856.25 - 6,856.25

Plant & Equipnent 4,626.45 2.920.95 1,705.50 - 1,705.50

Furniture & Fixtures 7,509.06 6,124.00 1,385.06 - 1,385.06

Service Equipments 864.81 768.57 86.24 - 86.24

Vehicles 706.69 565.99 160.70 - 150.70

Computers 656.85 478.47 180.38 - 180.38

Tola) 33,676.65 18,349.07 15,326.98 (180.95) 15,146.03

2.1 Refer Note 21.6 for information on property. plant and eqeipment.pledged as security by the Company.
ARy

LE

BT ST 1YY




o

R

SAYAJ1 HOTELS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

466

NOTE 3 : CAPiTAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 318T MARCH, 2018

{Bs. In Lakhs)

Particutars As al 01.04.2017 Additions Capilaiised during As at 31.03.2018
the year
Gapital work in progress 7.56 281 0.20 3547
Total 7.56 2811 .20 35.47
{Rs. In Lakhs)
- Capitalised !
Particulars As at 01.04.2016 Additions v, ,ea‘:""“' Bs at 31.03.2017
Capital work in progress 3,318.80 81510 412634 7.96
Tolal 3,315.80 815.10 4,126.34 7.56
NOTE 4 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Rs. In Lakhs)
Gross block Deprecialion/Amortization Net book value
Particulars L Delelions/ |  Asat Uplo Forthe | Deletions/| Upto As al Asat
01.04.2017 | PO | pdiueiment | 31.03.2016 | 01.64.2017|  Year | Adjustment{31.03.2018 | 31.03.2018 ] 31.03.2017
Software & Licences 17.60 82.4 - 100.51 10.94 1767 - 28.61 71.90 6.66
Tolal 17.60 §2.91 . 100.51 1094 1787 - 78.81 71.80 6.66
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Grass block Depreciation/Amoriization Net book value
Particulars Asat | oo | Deletions/ | psat Upto | Ferthe | Deletions/ |  Uptn As 2l Asat
01.04.2018 Adjusiment | 3¢.05.2017 | 01.04.2016 |  Year | Adjustment | 31.03.2017 [ 31.03.2017 | 31.03.2016
Software & Licences 10.80 5.80 - 17.60 10.94 . 10.94 6.66 10.80
Total 10.80 6.50 - 17.60 10.94 10.94 6.66 10.80

informatior regarding gross block of intangible Assats and accumulated amortization under previous GAAP is as follows:

{Rs. In Lakhs})

Accumidated Net Block .
, Gross Biock Opening balance
Particulars Depreciation As a1 01.04.2016
Asat31.03.2016 | oo a1.03.2016 {Deemed cost) As at 01.04.2016
Soflwars & Licences 156.8¢ 146.00 10.80 10.80
Total 156.80 146.00 10.80 10.80
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Note 5 : Jnvestmen! in Associate (Rs. In Lakhs)
i e e R A
siRars [Previpus Year)/ | {Previous Year}/ 8211 1;“ ’ ssz;m ’ 201"6" :
[Date of Transition} | [Date of Transifion]
investmeni in Associate
{Accounted for using equity method)
‘{ Barbeque-Nation Hespitality Lid. 1.26,21,116 5.00 8,779.271 702181 5,064.58
{6,310,558) {10.00
(6,310,558} [10.00}
Total 8,779.271 7,021.81 | G,064.58
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Hote 6 ; Non Gurrent Financial Asset: Investmenis

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Rumbes of shares | Face Value pershare As at As al As at
. Corrent Year / Carrent Year/ i
Particulars (Previous Year)/ | {Previous Year)/ 313;;1:mh, k1l s;{f;l?rnh, ‘!s; &p;ll,
[Dale of Transision] | [Bate of Transition]
A.  Trade Investmenl (Unguoted At FVTPL)
Genex Hotels Pvi. Lid. 1.100 10.00 0.1 g.11 .50
{1,100) {10.00)
[5.000] {10.00]
Winner Holels Pvt. Lid 2,300 10,00 0.23 0.23 0.23
{2,300 {10.00)
[2.300] [10.00]
Exellent Estate Dev, P. Ltd. 65,000 10.00 0.01 0.01 0.01
{65,000) (10.00)
(65,000 [10.00}
Ahilya Hotels Fid. 276,185 10.60 110.47 110.47 110.47
{276185) (10,00}
[276185] [10.00%
Sub-Total (A) 110.82 110.82 111.29
B.  Other Investmenls (Ungquefed Al FYTPL)
Bharat Equity Services Ltd, 1,00,000 10.00 0.10 .10 0.0
{100000) {10.00}
{100000] (10.00]
Sub-Total (B} .10 0.10 0.1¢
Tola) (A+B} 110.92 110.92 111.31
Note 7 : Non Gurrent Financial Asset: Loans (As. In Lakhs)
Particufars As at 3tst March, 2013 As at 31st March, 2017 As at 1s Aprii, 2016
Unsecured
Sscurity Deposils* 526.44 §7.94 15.02
Other Loans & Advances 430.46 430.46 430.46
Less: Allowance for bad & Doubtful advances 51.45 51.45 51.45
Total 905.45 436.95 394.03

Note & : Other Non Current Finansial Assets

“Security deposit Includes Rs. 462.15 Lakhs (31st March 2017 Rs. Nil; 1st Apsil 2016 Rs. Nilj given to Prinite Hospitality Pvt Ltd and
Rs.46.05 Lakhs {31 March, 2017 Rs. 41,33 Lakhs; 15t April 2016 Rs. Nif) given 1o M/s Vicon Imperial Private L td. an associale company.

{As_ In Lakhs)

Pasticulars As at 31st March, 2018 As at I1st March, 2017 As at 15t April, 2016
Fixed Deposits Against lien & Bank Guarantee* 98.60 91.89 6.26
Tatal 98.60 91.89 6.26

“Maturity after 12 months pledged with bank against masgin maoney.
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Note & : Deferred Tax assets {net) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particuiars As at 31st March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2017 As at tst Aprif, 2016
Deferred Tax assets
On aceount of Timing Difference in
Carry Forward losses & Depreciation 106.51 183.19 165.37
Expenses Disallowed under [.T. Act., 1961 1,338.54 25764 179.00
Depreciation on fixed assets 188.17 1.219.31 1.040.02
On cash Flow hedge reserve - 0.19 -
MAT Credit antitlernent 20.60 - -
QOther Ind AS Adjusiments 64.44 58.35 55.52
Totai Deferved Tax Assels 1,718.26 1,718.68 1,439.91
Other Ind AS Adjustments 820.26 652 69 543.35
Transaction cost on borrowings 29.87 30.87
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities 850.13 683.57 543.35
Net Deferred Tax(Lizbility)/Assets* 863.13 1,035.1¢ 896.56
Amount debiled/(Credited) 1o Prolit & Loss Stalsment (166.93) 138.55 896.56

* Deferred tax Kability for ihe year have heen arrived at
inclusive of education cess,

Iy taking the tax rate of 34.608% i31st March, 2017 33.99% 1st Ap

ril, 2016 34.508%) which is

Movement in Deferred Tax Asset/Liability For the Ysar Endec As on 31.03.2018 {Rs. In Lakhs})
. ening Balance as Recegnized in R Clesing Balange as
Particulars Opat mu .04.2017 pmlg or loss Recogeized in 0CI asl 32 .ga.zmsa
Deferred tax Lizbilitles :
Other Ind AS Adjustments 852.70 167.56 820.26
Transaction ¢ost on borrowings 30.87 {1.00) 29.87
Less: Defarred tax assels:
Carry Forward losses & Depreciation 183.19 (76.68) 106.51
Expenses Disatiowed under I.T, Act., 1961 257.64 1,080,590 1,338.54
Depreciation on fixed assats 1,219.31 {1,031.14) 188.17
On cash Flow hadge reserve 0.18 -
MAT Credit entitlement - 20,60 20.60
Other Ind AS Adjustments 38.35 6.09 64.44
Nel Tax (assets)iabiiitivs {1,033.11) 166.79 0.19 (860.13)

Mevement in Deferred Tay Asset/Liability For the ¥

sar Ended As on 3.03.

2018

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particuiars

Opening Balance as

Recagnized in

Recognized in OCI

Closing Balaace as

at 01.04.2015 profit or loss at 31.03.2017

Deferred fax Liabilities :

Other Ind AS Atijustments 543.35 109.35 652.70

Transaction cost on borrowings - 30.87 30.87
Less: Deferred tax assets:

Carry Forward losses & Depreciation 165.37 17.82 183.19

Expenses Disallowed under i.T, Act., 1961 179.08 78.64 257.64

Depreciation on Fixed assets 1,040.02 178.29 1.219.31

On cash Aow hedge reserve - 019 0.19

MAT Credit entitlement - - -

Other Ind AS Adjustments 56.52 2.83 §8.35
Wet Tax (assets)/fiabilitiss (896.56) (138.36) {0.19) {1,035.11)
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Note 10 : Other non-current asssis

(Amount Ris. In Lakhs)

Particufars As at J1st March, 2018 As a1 311 March, 2017 As at 1si April, 2016
Capital Advances*
Unsecyured 19.42 1.79 24 .39
Advances Other Than Capital Advances
Prepaid {.ease Charges 1,234.71 991.14 846.61
Raipur Lease- Stamp Duty pavment Unamortised 60.91 65.60 -
Total 1,315.04 1,058.53 871.08
*Given for business py rpose.
Note 11 : nvenlories (Amount Rs, in Lakhs)
Particolars As at 31st March, 201§ As al 31st March, 2017 As al 1st Aprii, 2015
{Valved at cost or NRV whichever is less &
certified by management)
Operating Supplies 1,700.49 1,372.79 1,413.06
Food & Beverages 138.99 153.55 153.83
Shopping Arcade Stock* - - 42.54 42.54
Totai 1,839.48 1,568.58 1,669.43

"Transierred to fixed assels during the year as per contra in Note 2

Bisclosure As per ind AS 2, Invantaries

(1) Amount of inventories fecognised as expense during the year is as under :

{(Amount Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars For ihe year 2017-18 For the year 2016-17
Operating Supplies 753.14 676.38
Food & Beverages 454273 3,987.94
Shopping Arcade Stock - -
Total 5,295.87 4,664.32

(i} Refer Note 25.1 for Information on inventory pledged as security by the Company.
Note 12 : Current Finarcial Assets: Trade Receivables

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particuiars As al 31st March, 2048 As at 31st Maren, 2017 As at Ist April, 2016
Unsecured, Considered Good 913.06 633.99 906.46
Others- Considered gaod 103.67 47 43 43.94
Considered doubtfy! 0.21 - -
Less: Provision for doubtiuf trade receivables (32.43) - -
Total 984.51 681.42 950.49
Note 13 : Cash and Cash Equivalents (Rs. Ie Lakhs)
Partieutars As at 31st March, 2018 Ag at 3151 March, 2617 As at 1st April, 2016
Cask on Hend 5D0.19 25.59 35.26
Balanpes with Bank - - -
In current Accounts With Scheduled Bank 1,239.05 1,441,15 60.01
tnvestment int Liguid Funds 7018 - -
Tetal 1,466.74 95.27
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Nole 14 : Bank Balances Other than Cash and cash

'NOTES 10 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TH

Bnuivalents

E YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018

(Rs. In Lakhs)

for business purposs,

*Advances to suppliers for goods & services include advagggs,agai

»\:()b

Parliculars As al 3151 March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2017 As at 1st April, 2016
Fixed Deposits Against lien 352 28,83 522.63
Total 3.52 28.83 522.63
Note 15 : Cureeni Financial Asseis; Loans (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particutars As al 31st Warch, 2018 As af 31st Mareh, 2017 As at 1t April, 2016
Stafl Advances & Loan 254,72 114.47 16.43
Other Loans & Advances* 46.76 98.48 87.41
Total 301.48 212,95 103.84
"Loans and advances have been Given for business purposes.
Note 16 : Other Current Financial Assels {Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 3tst March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2017 As at 1st April, 2016
Otters 206,88 146.61 168.14
Telephone Deposif 0.34 1.86 1.86
Eiectricity Deposit 113.42 63.83 95.86
Other Deposits 0.24 0.24 0.31
Receivable against Sale of Restaurant * - - 1.238.00
Less: Provision for doubtful advances (1.72) (1.72) -
Total 319.16 210.82 1.464.17
Note 17: Cumrent Tax Assets {net) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Parliculars As al 3tsl March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2017 As at st April, 2016
Advance Income Tax - 57.61 10.81
Total - §7.61 10.81
Note 18 : Other current assets {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particutars As at 31st March, 2018 As at 3tst Margh, 2017 As at 181 April, 2016
Prepaid Expenses 146.99 9228 08.62
Prepaid lease charges 4427 29.15 17.76
Subsidy Receivabie from M P Tourism Developivent
Corporation Lid, - 729.93 -
Other current assets 1.68 26.21 1.15
Advance to suppliers for goods & services* 4574 83.54 112 40
Balance with Gowt. authorities 545.50 303.51 257.09
CGurrent portion of Unamontised Stamp Duty Payment
of Raipur Lease 469 4.69 -
Total 788.87 1,269.31 487.02
urchases & services which is raceivable in kind in next 12 Months & are
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gaury
Nate 19 : Equity Share Capilal iRz, In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st Margh, 2013 As at 31st Mareh, 2017 As al tst April, 2016

AUTHDRISED

30,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,000.00
{Previous year 30,000,000 Equity Shares of
Rs.10/- each)

1,000,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- eacH] 1,000.00 1.000.00 1,000.00
{Previous year 1,600,000 Preference Shares g
Rs. 100/- each)

Totat 4,008.00 4,000.00 4,000.00
ISSUED
1.75,18,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10;- each 1.751.80 1,751.80 1,751.80
{Previous year 1,75,1 8,000 Equity Shares of
Rs. 10/- each)
Total 1,751.80 1,751.80 1,751,580

SUBSCRIBED & PAID-UP

1.75,18,000 Equity Shares of Rs, 10/- each 1,751.80 1,751.80 1,751.80
{Previous year 1,75,18,000 Equity Shares of
Rs. 10/- each)

Totaj 1,751.80 1,751.80 1,751.80

Terms/righis attached 1o equity shares :

19.1 The company has enly one class of equity shares having a parvalug of Rs. 10/~ per share. Each Holder of equity shares is entitled 1o one vote pe
share. The comgany declares and pavs dividends in indian rupees. The dividend proposed, if any, by the Board of Direczors is subject 1o the
approval of the sharehoiders in the ensving Annual Genera) Meeting. During the year ended 3tst March 2018, the amount of per share dividend
recognised as distributions to equity sharehofders was Rs. Nil (Previous Ysar Rs. ity

19.2 Details of Share holders helding more than 5% of Shares are as under - {Rs. in Lakks
As at 315t March, 2618 As at 315t March, 2017 As at 1sf April, 2015
e e snarzmmng No of Staros Shatz;:ﬁ:mng Ho o Shares Shar:A;vglfding Ho of Shares
Late Shri Sajid R. Dhanani* Promoter 13.90% 2435511 13.90% 2435511 13.90% 2435511
Raoof Razak Dhanani Promaoter 22.26% 3898651 22.26% 3898651 22.26% 3898651
Anisha Raoof Dhanani Promoter - - - - 15.09% 2643256
Kayum Razak Dhanani Promoter 20.77% 3638075 14.61% 2559288 - -
Ahilya Hotels Limiteg Pronioter 14.01% 2455000 14.01% 2455000 14.01% 2455000

*(Share transmission is pending in the name of legal heirs)

As per records of the company, including its register of shiareholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding
beneficial interast, the above shaseholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.
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18.3 Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the begiming and at the end of the year - (Rs. In Lakhs)
As at 31st March, 2013 As at 31st March, 2017 As at 1st April, 2016
Name
Mamoeral | g, inLakhs Nomber of | s, in Lakas NETREE O | Rs. in Lakhs

Qutstanding at the beginning of the vear 1,75,18,000 1,751.80 1,75,18,000 1,751.80 1,75,18.000 1,751.80
Add : Fresh issue during the year - . - . .

Guistanding at the end of the year 1,75,18,000 1,751.80 1,75,18,000 1,751.80 1,76,18,000 1,751.80
Note 20 : Other Equity {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Nole No. As at 31st March, 2018] As at 3st March, 2017| As at 1st April, 2016
Equity Component of Cummulative Preference Shares 201 251.66 25186 251.66
Secwities Premium Reserve 20.2 5.944.60 5.944.60 5.944.60
General Reserve 203 641.48 641.48 641.48
Profil & Loss Account ~Surplus/(Deficit) 204 5,760.49 4,378.34 4,690.73
Cash Flow Hedge Reserve 20.5 - (0.37) -
Other comprehensive share 20.8 (13.63) {0.79) -
Tota 12,584.59 11,214.92 10,928.47
OTHER EQUITY
Particulars As at 31st March, 2018 { Asat 3st March, 2017
20.1| Equity Component of Compound finaacial instrument
Opening at beginning 251.66 251.66
Additien during the year - -
Utitised during the year - -
Closing at end ' 251.66 251.66
20.2| Sesurities Pramium Resarve
Opeing at beginning 5,944.60 5,944,60
Addition during the year - -
Utilised during the year - .
Closing at end 5,944.60 5,944 .60
20.3| General Reserve
Opening at begianing 541.48 641.48
Addition during the year - -
Utilised during the year -
Closing at end 641.43 641.48
20.4] Prelit & Loss Aecount -Surplus/(Delizit)
Opening at beginning 4,378.34 4.090.73
Adjustments relating to Fixed Assets - -
Addition durring the year 1,497 55 369,75
Ind AS Adjustment in Jv {0.28) {0.01}
Deterred Tax Impact (175.73) (95.73)
fet acturial Gain / (Loss) on defined benefit plan 60.61 13.59
Closing af ead 5.760.49 4,378.34
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(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2017
20.5| Cash Flow Hedge Reserve
Opening at beginning {0.37} -
Addilien during the year 0.37 {0.37)
Closing at eng - 10.37)
20.8{ Oiher eomprahensive Income
Opening at Deginning (0.79) -
Addition during the year (13.12) (0.79)
Transfers to profit ang foss 0.28 -
Clasing at end {13,63) {0.79)
Total Dther Equity 12,584.59 11,14.92
Non Controlling Interest {Rs. In Lakhs)
Parficalars As at 31st March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2017 As at 1t April, 2018
Non Controlling interest
Opening at beginning 45347 51045 -
Addition during the yeas 13.04 {56.98) 510.45
Clasing at end 466.51 453.47 510.45
Mote 21 : Carrent Financial Liabilities: Borrawings {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at 315t March, 201g As at 31st Mareh, 2017 As 2l 151 April, 2015
A Secored Term Loans
i} From Banks 5.054.22 4,803.27 283027
fi) From Financial mstitutions 700.00 1.200.00 1,700.00
i} From NBFC 2.106.97 2,333.04 -
Total (A) 7,860.29 8,336.31 4,530.27
B.  Unsecursd Borrowing
i) Preference shares
1,000,000 10% Cumulative Redeemable
Preference Shares of Rs. 1007 each 1,797.85 1,605.23 1,433.24
(Previous year 1.000,000 109, Cumutiative
Redeemable Preference Shares of
Rs. 100/ each)
i) Reiated Parties 400.00 - -
Tota! (B} 2,197.85 1,605.23 1,433.24
Tolal {A+B) 10,058.14 5,941.54 9,963.51
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(a) Terms/riphisattachedto preference shares:

21.1 That during Finacial year 2014-15 company had issued 10,00.000, 16% Cumulative Redeemabie Preference Shares of Rs. 100/~ each at a
premiumof Rs.50/-each. Out of above, pending 83338 shares were subscribed & paid up during the year 2015-16.

21.2 Thatabove shares are g be redeemed within five years from the date of issue of same, at the rate of Rs. 220/~ per preference share.

21.3 These shares arein the nature of compound financial instruments, And so they are bilurcated into €quity and labitity component in actordance
with ind AS 32. Equity componentis com putedas below:

Particulars (Rs. in Lakhs)
Preference Share Capital (Subscribed and paid up) 1,000.00
Add : Securities Premium on issye 500.00
Less ; Liability component (Present value of Contractual Cash Outflows) (1.248.34)
Equity Component 251,66

the resolutions placed before the company.
21.5 Defails of Share holders holding more than 5% of 10% Cumulative Preference Shares areas under:-

As at 31st Margh, 2013 As at 3151 March, 2017 As al 1st April, 2016

e Feleso Shar?n::{ding No of Shares Shar?hz:dlng No of Shares Sha:‘:;r::ding No of Shares
Saba Dhanani Promoter 12.50% 125000 12.50% 125000 12.50% 125000
Azhar Dhanapi Promoter 12.50% 125000 12.50% 125G00 12.50% 125060
Zuber Yusuf Dhanani Promoter 12.50% 125060 12.50% 125000 12.50% 125000
Sadiya Dhanani Promoter 12.50% 125000 12.50% 125000 12.50% 125000
Kayum Dhanani Promoter 12.50% 125000 12.50% 125000 12.50% 125000
Sara Dhanani Promoter 12,50% 125000 12.50% 125000 12.50% 125000
Sanya Dhanani Promaoter 12.50% 1250600 12.50% 125000 12.50% 125000
Suchitra Dhanani Promoter 12.50% 125000 12.50% 125600 12.50% 125000

As per records of the company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from
beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents hoth legal and benefigial ovmerships of shares,

sharehoiders fegarding

21.6 Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount otlstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year :-

As at 3151 March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2017 As at 1st April, 2016
Naine Number of Number of Number of )
Shares Rs. in Lakhs Shares Hs. in Lakhs Shares Bs. in Lakhs
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 10,00,000.00 1,000.00 | 10.00,000.00 1,000.00 | 10,00.000.00 1,000.00
Add : Fresh issye during the year - - . - - -
Cutstanding at the end of the year 10,00,000.00 1,000.00 | 19,08,000.00 1.000.00 § 10,00,000.00 1,000.00

=%
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21.7  NATUREOF SECURITIES AND TERMS OF REPAYMENT OF EACH LOAN

21.7.1 All Secured loans have been netted from the instalments falting due within tweive months after the reporting date. Breakup of amount dus
within 12 month and after 12 months and semmarized cuistanding position is as under

As at 31st March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2047 As at 1st Agril, 2016
Mams Current [ Non Currennt Current Non Currennt Current Non Currenat
State Bank of India 499,56 2,928.36 594.80 3.339.49 1,598.16 2,396,589
Axis Bank Ltd. 173.54 2.103.99 396.32 1,453.65 130.00 36.36
State Bank of Mysore - - - . 490.00 203.36
ICIC! Bank - - - - 500.00 -
HDFC Bank Lid. 11.69 2087 41.68 10.13 68.20 7543
iCICi Bank - - 36.68 - 52.54 28.13
Sub Total (i) §34.79 5,054.22 1,069.48 4,803.27 2,838.90 2,830.27
From Financlal institutions
TFGI 506.21 700.00 §20.32 1,204.00 112.79 1,700.00
Sub Total (i) 566.21 700.00 520.32 1,200.00 112.79 1,700.00
From NBFC
Aditya Birla Finance Ltd. 251.05 2,106.07 119.29 2,333.04 - -
Seb Total (iii) 25%.05 2,106.07 118.29 2,333.04 - -
GRAND TOTAL (i) + (ii) + iif) 1.442.05 7,860.2% 1,708.09 8,336.31 2,951.68 4,530.27

21.7.2 Unsecured loans here been netted from the instalments falling due within twelve months after the reporting date. Breakup of amount due
within 12 month and after 12 months,

As al 31st March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2017 As at 1st Apri!, 2016

ame Current  [NonCureennt! Current [Non Currannt| Current | Nom Currennt
From Bank
HDFC Bank Ltd. - - 2.42 - 1.94
Sub Total {i) - - 2.42 - 1.94 -
From NBFC
Magma Fincorp Limited . - - - 51.80
Bajaja Finance Lid, - - 128.92 . - -
Sub Total (i) - - 128.92 - 51.9 -
GRANT TOTAL (i) + (ii) - . 131.34 - 5§3.84 -

21.7.3 Secured Term Loan from bank includes term lgans outstanding from State Bank of india, Axis Bank Ltd, State Bank of Mysere, HDFC Bank Ltd
& ICIC) Bank Ltd.

21.7.4 Term loans outstanding of State Bank of India incluce term Joans account and corporate loan. Loan is secured by way of mortgage of fand &
buitding at indore hotel, Amber garden tndore, Vadodara & Pune & hypothecation of movables. present & future except stocks of food
beverages, operating suppliss, stores, spares, hook-debts (excluding csedit card recaivables), bills etc. offered to the bankers for secu ring the
waorking ¢apital finance,

21.7.5 Term loans outstanding of Axis Bank Ltd include term loans account and corporate loar. Term loan outstanding is secured by way of first
charge on Company’s entire fixed assels. present & future, ranking parri passu with ather existing term lenders. The term of repayment is on
quarterly basis for term loanand monthly basis for corporate loan & int
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21.7.6 Term loan outstanding of State Bank of M
hypothecation of movables, present & future, exce
creditcard receivables), bills etc. The term of re

however same was repaid during the year 2016-17 under review.

21.7.7 Tenmloan outstanding of ICIG!
movabies, present & future,
receivables}, bills etc. The term
by pledge of 30.00 Lakhs Equi

nder review,

21.7.8 Vehicle foans outstanding from HOFC Bank and IGIC} Bank is secured b

21.7.9 Secured term loans from Financial Institutions & others in
and Aditya Bisfa finance Limited.

21.7.90Term loan outstanding from TFCI is secured on pari-
hypoihecation of the movabies, present & future, exc
credit card receivabies), biils ete, And by way of Mo
and first charge by way of hypothecation ef movables of Bhopal Club project, Bhopal. The term of repa
basis & the interest is payable on monthly basis, Thisloan is

21.7.11 Corporate loan outstanding from Aditya Birfa Finance Limite
mortgage of land and buitding at Indore, Amber Gardan Pun
fixed assets of company (present and futura except vehicles

on monthly basis.

21.7.12 Loan outstanding from Magma Fineorp Limited is unsecu
given for ailinstalments. However same wag repaid during
21.7.13 Loan qutstanding from Bajaj Finance Limited is unsecured |

Razak Dhanani,

21.7.14Term foans of Malwa Hospitality Pvt. Ltd. outstanding of State Bank of India inchude

hypothecation of entire fixed assets of company.

21.2.15 Vehicle loans of Malwa Hospitality Pvt. Lid. outstanding

ysere was secured by way of mortgage of
pt stocks of food beverages, operatin
payment of the terrn loan was on quarterly

eptstocks of food heverages, operatin
rtgage of lease hold right of Amber Garden

Bank Ltd. was secured by way of moitgage of fand & building at indore, Vadodara & Pune & hypathecation of
except stocks of food beverages, operating supplies. stores, spares, book-dabts (excluding credit card
of repayment of the term Ioanis on quarterly basis & the interest s payable on monthly basis. Further secureg
ty Shares of Company held by Promoters. However the said term loan was repaid dusing the year 2015-17

y way of hypothecation of the specific vehicles financad by bank.
cludes term loan outstanding of Tourism Finance Corporation of India Ltd(TFCIL)

passu basis by way of mortgage of land & building at indore, Pure & Vadodasa &
J supplies, stores, spares, book-debts {excluding
. Indore along with building Structure thereon
yment of the tenm loan is on quarterly
persanally guranteed by Smi Suchitra Dhanani,
d year is sectired by first pari passu Charge with existing term lender by way of
pand Vadodaraand Hypothacation of the plantand machinery and othe r movable
Funded through Vehicle Loan). The term of repayment of prinipal and interest is

red loan, Repayment is being made on EMI basis. Post dated cheques has been

{he year 2016-17 under review.
oan. However, secured by way of sharas ewned in other companies by Mr Racof

from HDFC Bank is secured by way of hypoihecation of the specific vehicles financed

land & building at Indore, Vadodara & Pune &
g supplies, stores, spares, book-debts {excluding
hasis & the interest was payabie an monthly basis,

term loans account. Loan are secured by way

by bank.
NOTE 22 Bther Non Current Financial Liabilities (Rs. tn Lakhs)
Particulars As al 31st March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2917 As al 1st Aprll, 2016
Depasits from Tenants §6.32 66.69 48.63
Finance lease payable 18.09 17.63 17.23
Others* 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,013.73
Total 2,084.41 2,084.32 2,079.59
*Payabie towards cancellation of agreement for land at Indore hotel. This amount is now payable within 5 vears. Interest @ 9% p.a is payable on
the outstanding amount,
NOTE23 Provisions {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particutars As at Itst March, 2018 As al 31st March, 2017 As at 1st April, 2016
Pravisions far
Employee Benafits
Gratuity 321.09 295.32 239.72
Leave Encashment 301.46 270.52 259.50
Tatal 622,55 565.84 499,22

231 The provision of ieave encashment have been madeono
of basic pay of employees. Attrition rate taken same as

o
4 .

utstanding privilege feave of employees atthe end of year and calculated on the basis
Actuarial valuation report of gratuity liability.
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Nole 24 : Delerred Hevenye

'NOTES T0 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDE

D 31ST MARCH, 2013

{Rs. in Lakhs)

Particuiars As ai 31st March, 2018 As at 1st April, 2017
(a}  Subsidy received iram M.P. State Tourism
Developmant Corp., Ltd.
Opening Balance 681.50 .
Recejvad During the Year - 729.93
Amortised During the Year §1.06 48.43
Closing Balance 600.44 581.50
Less : Current Portion 70.33 81.06
Non Current Baiance at the end of the year 530.11 600.44
() Life Membership Fees - -
Opering Balancs 40.05 -
Add: Recejved During the Year 22.40 4449
Less: Amortised During the Year 6.69 4.45
Closing Balance §5.76 40.04
Less : Current Portion 6.62 4.44
Non Current Balance at the end of the year 49,97 35.560
Closing at end 578.18 636.04

Nate 25 Cuireni Financial Liabifilies: Borrowings

* During year 2016-17, company has received Capital Subsidy under M.P. Tourism Poli
againstis “Amber Convention Centre”, Indore As per AS-12 “Accouting for Government
recognised in profitand loss account ona systmatic and ratipnal basis over the usetul life
Proportions in which depreciation on “A mber Convention Centre* is charged.

¢y, 2010 (as ammnded in 2014} amonting to R. 729.93 Lakh
Grants”, the ahove subsidy is treated as deferrad income and g
ofassets. Suchallocation has been made over the peiods and iny

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st March, 2018 As al 31st March, 2017 As at 1st Aprif, 2016

A, Secarsd

Working capital facilities from Banks 258,14 377.54 490.67
Total (A} 258.14 377.54 190.67
B.  Unseeured

Loans From related parties 923.06 1,027.60 3,521.48

Loans From others 253.04 139.91 305.00
Total (B) 1,176.10 1.166.91 3,825.48
Tolal (A+B} 1.433.24 1,544 .45 4,317.15

company at Indore, Baroda and Pune.

Note 26 Current Financial Liabilities: Trade Payahles

25.2  Loansifrom related parties & others includes loan from dire

25.1  Working capital facilities include Cash Credit Facifities from State Bank of Indi
Lacks; T Aprit 2016 Rs. 411.07 Lakhs) & Axis Bank outstanc iny Rs. 250.07 La
both of which are secured by first charge by way of hypothecation of stocks o
debts {excluding credit card receivables), bills eic. of the com pany and also by

ctors & associate companies.

a outstanding Rs. 8.07 Lakhs (31 March 2017, Rs. 377.54
khs {31 March 2017, Rs. ffl: 1 April 2016 Rs. 78.60 takhs),
f food. beverages, operating supplies, stores, spares, book-
way of a second charge on the immovable properties of the

{Rs. in Lakhs)

Particnlars Ag at 31st March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2017 As at 1st April, 2015
Trade Payables* 1.247.56 865.86 1,206.88
Total 1,247.56 865.86 1,200.88

*Trade payabigs are for goods purchased and services taken during the normal course of business.
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26.1 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006 The principal amount and the interest due iheron
remaining Unpaid to any supplier as at the yearend;

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises - -

Interest due on above .-

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of seetion 16 of the SMED Act, 2008, -
alongwith the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointd day
during each accounting year.

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which - -
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the vear) but without adding the
Interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006.

26.2 Trade Payabie having scheduled payment beyond 12 months after reporting date Rs. Nil (31 March 2017, Rs. Nil; 1 April 2016 Rs. Nil)

26.3 Includes amount payabie to Barbeque Nation Hospitality Limited, against Royalty Paymen Rs. Nil (31 March 2017, Rs. Nil: 1 April
2016 Rs. 42.79 Lakhs)

Nole 27 : Other Cusrenl Financial Liabilities {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars &s at 31st March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2017 As at 1st Aprif, 2016
Carrent Malurities ol Lany-Term Loans
A.  Secoured Term Loans
From Banks 684.79 1,069.48 2.838.90
From Financial Institutions 506.21 52032 12.79
From NBFC 251.05 118.29
Total (4) 1,442.05 1,709.09 2,951.69
B.  Unsecured Term Loans
From Banks - 242 1.94
From NBFC ~ 128.92 51.90
Total (B) - 131.34 53.84
€. Dihers
Creditors for capital Expenditure 135,61 110.52 431.22
Book Qverdrafis 13.60 4139 76.75
Derivative Liabilities 20.91 259.89 19.69
Qutsanding Liabifities - 12.51
Finance lease payabie 1.88 1.89 1.89
Prepaid Lease Finance 26.56 30.59 33.39
Others 0.13 .80 14.10
Total (C) 198.70 457.69 577.04
Total {A+B+L) 1,640.75 2,298.12 ,582.57

* Refer note no. - 21.6,1 and 21.6.2 for ioan Wwise current maturities and other ferms of conditions.
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Note 28 . Other Current Liabilities

-NDTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018

{Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st March, 2018 As at 318! March, 2617 As at 1s1 Aprit, 2016
Current portion of deferred revenue 77 85.50
Advance received from customers 261.56 351.97 191.91
Statutory Dugs 423.68 13224 200.73
Others 19.88 60.11 120.02
Total 782.13 629.62 512.66
Nots 29 : Provisions {Rs. In Lakhs)
Partigulars As at 31si March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2017 As at 1st April, 2016
Provision for
Gratuity 0.15 7.21 3.38
Lsave Encashment 2223 6.25 3.54
Bonus 199.53 182.35 174.81
Audit Fess 0.45 0.28 0.18
Expenses 284 49 312.18 257.03
Previous income Tax 2.55 2.55 2.57
Totat 509.40 510.83 441.51
Note 30 : Current Tax Liabilities {Net) {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particidars As at 31st March, 2018 As at 3tsl March, 2017 As at 1s1 Aprif, 2016
Provision for current year Tax 49.33 1.87 275.13
Total 49.33 1.87 27513
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Note 31 : Revenue From Operations (Rs. In Lakhs)
. For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars 3131 March, 2018 315! March, 2017

Sales of Products & Services (Gross)

Rooms 7.911.32 6.325.83

Food & Beverages 11,868.24 10,142.67

Other Services 1.701 4% 1,422.76

Total 21,581.97 17,891.36

Revenae from others services includes income from

Note 32 : (iher Income

club, rental income and income from banquet service elc.

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Trkmen | ey e
Interest Eamed* 131.22 28.05
Other Non ~0Operating Ingome 5226 42.59
“Sundry Balances Wiokf 7.08 11.27
Prior Period Income 11.99 23.33
Excess/(Short) Provision of Earlier Year Written Back (0.33; (2.07)
Management Fees 1.21 -
Deferred Revenue income (Subsidy) 81.06 49.97
Profit on Redemption of Mutual Funds .78 1.54
Foreign Exchangs Difference - 0.14
Finange income on security deposit 0.03 0.03
Total 287.28 154.31

“Includes inlerest on Bank deposits Rs. 4.51 Lakhs [
(PY Rs. 14.97 Lakhs)

Nole 33 : Food & Beverages Consumed

PY 7.89 Lakhs ) & on loans & advances and other security deposiis Rs. 126.61 Lakhs

(Rs. In Lakhs)

St | o
Opening Stack 153.56 153.83
Add : Purchases* 4,528.17 3,987.67
4,681.73 4,141.50
Less : Closing Stock 139.00 153.56
Total 4,542.73 3,987.94

“Includes vegetable & non-vegetable items, grocery iteins, dairy products, tobacco products, alcoholic & non-alcoholic beverages etc.

**Stores & operating supplies includes crockery & ¢

***Dther Operating Expenses inciudes house keeping & upkeeping expensgs, expenses for 8B eperations & club.

utiery, linen & other consumables etc.
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Neote 34 : Employee Benelit Expenses*

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Salarfes, Wages and Allowances 5,284.24 3,914.70
Contribution to PF, and other Funds 375.44 344,31
Workmen and Staf Welfare Expenses 103.33 53.90
Workmen and Staff Uniform Expenses 202.63 134.96
Total 5.965.64 4,448.37
* Net of Expenses capitalised of Rs Nil Lakhs ¢PY. Rs, 53.45 Lakhs)
Nete 35 : Finance Cast (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particalars For the year saded For the year ended
31st March, 2018 315t March, 2017
Interest on term Loan 1,076.99 §13.50
Interest on Others 327.69 812.70
Finance cost on jease payable 24 2.36
Other expenses 40.71 37.89
Finance cost on Preference Share 192.64 172.00
Other borrowing cost - 55.03
Foreign Exchange Fluctaation (12.21) 2164
Total 1,628.23 1,920.12

Nole 36 : Operaling Expenses

(Rs. in Lakns)

st e | e rreate

Stares & Operating Supplies* 753.14 676.38
Repairs and Maintenance

Building 287.00 115.56

Plant & Machinery 191.75 166.23

Othars 232,59 231.83
Laundry Expenses 282 42 230.35
Guest pick up Expenses 259.34 238.26
Cable TV Expenses 31.85 38.95
Banquet Service expenses 655.22 560.56
Other Operating Expenses ** 536.84 582.62
Power and Fugl 1,813.04 1,420.46
Total 5.043.19 4,230.91

* Stores & operating supplied includes crockery & cutlery, linen & other sonsumables etc.
“* Other Operating Expenses includes houss keeping & upkeeping expenses, expenses for F&B operations & club.
PN ™ N —
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Wote 37 : Other Expenses {Rs. in Lakhs)
e o | i

Lease Rent 1.244.48 704.52
Amortisation of lsase deposit 882 §g2
Brand Royailty 18.92 14.19
Rates & Taxes 198.34 191.17
Insurance 28.58 23.56
Travelling and Conveyance 122.30 82.79
Postage, Telegram and Telephones B0.03 61.32
Advertisement and Publicity 90.25 84.09
Legal & Professional 233.89 224,66
Printing and Stationery 66.62 57.81
Credit Gard Commission 110.62 104.49
Commissien & Discount 35.18 11.08
Other Expenses 288.80 171.56
Auditors’ Remuneration - -

Statutory audit 969 7.12

Certification other matters 2.50 1.04
Provision for doubtful debts 33.72 1.72
Loss on account of change in ownership in asscociate D.28 0.01
Loss On Disposal/Retirement Of Assets 0.48 38.39
Total 2.572.1 1,798.44
* Net of Expenses caitalised of Rs. NIL Lakhs {P.Y. Rs. 135.26)
Note 38 ; Earnings Par Share

W | | e

a)  Amount used as the nunerator profit after fax Rs. In Lakhs {389.11) {305,80)

Less : Dividend on Preference Shares & Income Tax Thereon 120.36 120.36

Net Profiti{Loss) attributable to equity share hoiders (509.47} {426.16)
D)  Weighted average number of equity shares used as the

denominator in computing basic earning per share. Nos. 175,18,000 175,18,000
Add : Potential no. of equity shares that couid arise on conversion

of warrants into equity shares. Nos. - -
Weighted average number of shares used In computing
Diluted Earning per Share Nos. 175,18,000 175,18,000
c)  Nominal value per share Rs. 10 10
d}  Eamings Per Share:

- Basic fs. {2.91} {2.43}

- Dikuted Rs. (2.81) (2.43})
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Nol 39 : Disclosure as per Ind AS-7, Cash Flow Statement

The Company has accessed the following undrawn facilities at the end of reporiing period {Hs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2017 As at 1st April, 2016
Working capital Loans
Expiring Within Ong Yaar 1291.86 297.46 184.33
Floating Rale Borrowings
Expiring Within One Year 631.00 - -

Nete 40: Disclosura as per nd AS-8
Standards issued but notyeteffective:
Ind AS 115°Revenus from Coniracts with Customers’

On28March 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MGA) has notified the Ind AS 115, "Revenue from Contract with Custorners”.The core pringi pie
of the new standard is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration 1o which the entity expects 1o be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.Fy rthesthe new standard
requires enhanced dis¢los ures about the natLire, amotint, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity's contracts
with custamers,

The standard permils two possible methods of transition;

Retrospective approach - Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively 10 each prior reporting period presented in
accordance with Ind AS 8 -Accounting Policies,Changesin Accounting Estimates and Errors.

Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date of initial anplication {Cumulativa catch - up
approach}

The eifective date for adoption of Ind AS 115 is tinanciaf periods beginning on or after 1st April 2018.The Company wil adopt the standard on
15t April 2018 by using the cumulative calch-up trangition method and accordingly comparatives for the year ending or ended 31stMarch 2018
will notbe retrospectively adjusted. The Com pany is evaluating the requirements of the amencimentand the effect on the fingncial statements is
being evaluated.

AppendixB 1o Ind AS 21, Fareign currency transactions and advance consideration:
On 28 March 2018, MCA has notified the Companies [Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 containing Appendix B to Ind AS
21, foreign currency transactions and advance consideration which clarifies the tfate of the transaction for the purpose of determining the

exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income, when an entity has received or paid advance cansideration in
aforgign currency.

The amendment will come into force frem 1st Aprit 2018, The Company :s evaluating the requirements of the amendment and the effect on the
financial staternents is being evaluated.

Note 41 : Distlesure As per Ind AS-12 Income Faxss

i} Income Tax recongrised in stalemenl of profit & Joss account (s, In Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st Marsh, 2018 31st March, 2017
Current Tax Expenses
Current year 176.85 64.33
Adjustment for earlier year (18.38) 28.96
Telal eurrent Tax expensas 158.47 93.29
Deferred Tax Expenses 166.79 {138.36)
Total Income tax expenses 325.25 {45.07)
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ii} Income tax recagnised in other comprehensive income {Rs. In Lakhs)
For the year ended 31st March, 2618 For the year ended 315t March, 2017
Partieular Before tax Tasz:pe%t:sel Net of lax Before tax Taxsiﬂ%':w Net of tax
- Net actuarial gain/loss on defined henefit plan 86.56 {30.83) 85.73 20.60 (7.00 13.60
- Changes in cash flow hedge reserve 0.56 (0.19) 0.37 (0.56} 0.19 (0.37}
Reconciliation of tax expanse and the accounting profit muliiplied by India's tax rate {Rs. in Lakns)
G e | e
Profil before tax (63.84) (358.87)
Tax using company’s domestic tax rate 34.608%(P.Y. 33.99%) {(22.99) (119.26)
Add: Earfier Year tax (18.38; 28.96
Add: MAT Adjustrent 1.25 -
Add: Expenses not Allowed in ncome Tax 31.96 29.73
Less: Others 140.05 23.78
Add: Exempt Income 86.67 58.46
Profit or Loss charged at different tax rate 126,82 (66.75)
Tax as per Siatament of Profit & Loss 325.28 {45.08)

42 : Disclosure a5 per Ind AS-17, Leases {Rs. In Lakhs)

The Company has taken certain hotels on hon-cancetiable operating lease,
As required undar the nd AS-17 on 'Leases’, lsase payments recognized forthe pariod and the future minimum fease payments are as follows:

Particulars For ihe year ended For the year anded
J1st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
Leasa payment recognized in statement of Profit or Loss 1.244.48 704,52
Contingent rent recognised in Profit or Loss - -
Tetal 1,244.48 704,52
Oparating Leases
Lease as Lessee

The Company has taken tand on operating lease. The lease of hotel properties are generaily long term in nature with varying tetms and renewal rights
expiring within five years to one hunderd & ninety eight years. On renewat, the terms of the leases are renegotiated, The total Iease rent paid on the
sameisincluded under Lease Rentforming part of Other Expenses {Refer note no 36).
The minimum future lease rentals payable in respect of non-cancellable leasss entered into by the Company to the extent of minimum guaranies
amountare as follows -

ountare (Rs. In Lakis)

As at 31st March, 2018 As al 31st March, 2017 As at 1st April, 2016

Particulars

Minimum Lease payment

Not fater than one year: 872.57 364.44 90.00
Later than one year and not later than five years; 4.082.34 1,689.07 538.88
Later than five years; 5567172 52,292.23 §2,655.54
Total 60,626.53 54,345.74 53,284.42
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The company acquires land on leasehold basis fora period generally ranging from 25 years to 99 years from the goveernment authorities which can be
renewed further based on muteally agreed terms and concitions. The leases are non cancellabfe. These leases are Gapitalised at the present value of
the total minimum lease payments to be paid over the fease term. Future lease rentals are recognised as ‘Finance lease obligation’ at thefr prasent
values. The leasehold land is amortised considering the significant accounting policies of the cormpany.

(Rs. In Lakhs})

J1st March, 2618 31st March, 2617 Jtst March, 2016
Particular Present value Present value Present value

wp of MLP e of MLP mLe of MLP
Not Later than one year 1.95 1.89 1.95 1.89 195 1.89
Between one and five years 9.76 9.76 §.60 976 6.60
More than five years 219,57 11.50 221.52 11.04 22347 10.63
Totat MLP 231.28 13.39 233.23 19.53 235.18 19.12
Less amount representing finance charges 217.89 213.70 216.06
Presen! value of MLP’S 13.39 18.53 19.12

Note 43 : Disclosure as per Ind AS-19, Employee henefils
{a8) Delined benefit plan

amounts recognized inthe company’s financial statements as at March 31, 2018~
Changes in Present Vaiue of Obligation

The Company makes annual centributions to the Employee's Group Gratuity schere of the SBI Life Insurance Co. Ltd., a funded defined benefit
plan for the qualifying employees. The scheme provides for tump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment
or ontermination of employment as per the terms of the scheme. Vesting occurs upon completion of five vears of service.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation and curtent service cost were measured using the Projected Unkt Credit Method. with
actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. The foflowing table sets out the status of the funded gratity plan and the

(Rs. 1n Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 2018

31st March, 2017

Present vaiue of obligation as on last valuation

Gurrent Service Cost

Interest Cost

Participant Gontribution

Plan Amendments: Vested portion at end of period(Past Service)

Flan Amendments: Non-Vested portion at end of period(Past Service)
Actuarial gainfloss on obligations due to Change in Financial Assumption
Actuarial gain/ioss on obligatiens due to Change in Demographic assumption
Actuarlal gainfioss on obligations due to Unexpected Experience
Actuarial gainfloss on obligations due fo Cther reason

The effect of change in Foreign exchange rates

Benefits Paid

Acqguisition Adjustment

Disposal/Transfer of Obligation

Curtailment cost

Settlement Cost

Other{Unsstifed Liability at the end of the valuation date)

Present valus of obligation as on valuation date

314.22
5997
2417

5.50

(75.93}

(10.30)

25399
6178
19.06

25.31

{45.85)
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Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particelars 31st March, 2018 31si March, 2017

Fair value of Plan Assets at Beginning of period 11.69 10.82

Irterest [ncome 0.90 0.81

Employsr Contributions 5.00

Participant Gontributions )

AcquisitionyBusingss Combination - -

Settlement Cost - .

Benefits Paid - -

The effect of asset ceiling - -

The effect of change in Foreign Exchange Rates - -

Administrative Expenses and Insusance Premium - -

Return on Plan Assets excluding Interest Income .32 0.05

Fair value of Plan Assets at End of measurement period 17.91 11.69

Table Showing Recontiliation to Balance Sheet {(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 3181 Marck, 2018 31s1 March, 2017

Funded Status (299.78} (302.53)

Unrecognized Past Service Cost - -

Unrecognized Actuarial gain/toss at end of the period - -

Post Measurement Date Employer Contribution{Expected} - -

Unfunded Accrued/Prepaid Pension ¢ost - -

Fund Asset 1791 11.69

Fund Liability N7 69 314.22

Table Showing Plan Assumplions {Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 31si March, 2018 31st March, 2017

Discount Rate 7.70% 7.50%

Expecled Return on Plan Asset 7.70% 7.50%

Rate of Compensation |nerease(Salary Inflation) 6.00% 7.00%

Pension |ncrease Rate N/A N/A

Avsrage expected future service ¢Remaining working Life) 29 27

Mortafity Table [ALM 2006-2008 Uitimate IALM 2006-2008 Uitimate

Superannuation at age-Male 58 58

Superannuation at age-Female 58 58

Early Retirement & Disablement {All Causes Combined) 18-29 years 32%. 30-45 years 18% | 1B-29 years 32%, 30-45 years 18%

above age 45 0.05 0.05

Between 20-45 0.18 ¢.18

befow age 29 0.28 (.28

Voluntary Retirement ignored lgnared

(169
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(Rs. In Lakhs)
Partieulars Jist Mareh, 2019 3ist March, 2017
Current Service Cost 59.97 61.78
Past Servige Cost{vested) 5,56
Net Interest Cost 23.27 18.25
Benefit CostiFxpense Recognized in Statement of Profitfoss) 88.81 80.03
Expense Recapnized in Other Comprehensive Income {Rs. In Lakhs}
Particulars 31ist March, 2018 3J1st Mareh, 2017
Actuarial gainfoss on obligations due tg Change in Finaneial Assumption (75.94) 25.05
Actuarial gainfless on ebligations due to Change in Demographic assumption - -
Actuarial gainfloss on ¢bligations due to Unexpected Experience (10.31) {45.58)
Actuarial gainfloss on obligations due to Other reason - -
Total Actuarial {gainjtosses {86.24) (20.53)
Return on Plan Asset, Excluding interest income 0.32 0.06
The effect of agset ceiling -
Balance at the end of the Perio {86.56) (20.59)
Net{income)/Expense for the Period Recognized in 0| (92.59) {20,59)
Sensitivity Analysis (Rs. In Lakhs
81st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
Particulars
Increasa Detrease Increases Decrease
Discount Rate (-/+ 0.5%) 280,62 349.80 286,77 34514
Salary Growth (-/+ 0.5%) 35012 289.11 343.67 287.64
Altrition Rate (-/+ 0.5%) 317.86 317.40 313.63 314.81
Tabte Shawing Cash Flow Information (Rs. In Lakhs})
Particelars Jtst March, 2018 31st March, 2017
Next Year Total (Expected) 423.05 437.83
Minimum Funding Requirerents 411.29 427.72
Table Showing Benefit Information Estimated Futvre payments( Past Service) {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 31st March, 2018 31st March, 2077
Maturities
Less than 1 year 9.91 748
Between 1-2 years 5.76 6.96
Between 2-5 years 21.99 19.55
Over § years 1.570.89 1,740.66

)
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Bifurcation of Net liability

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particuiars 3st March, 2013 31st March, 2017
Current liability 256 722
Non-Current Lialility 308.13 307.00
Total Liability 317.58 3422

{b}  Defined Contribution Ptan

The Company has recognised the followin
Other Funds™(net of recoveries).

g expenses as defined contribution plan under the head “Contribution to Provident Fund and

{Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 2018 31st Mareh, 2017
Contribution towards Provident Fund 270.62 249 51
Total 270.52 249.91

(e} Other Long Term Employee benefit

The provision of leave encashment have been made on outstanding privilege leave of employees at the end of year and calculated on the
basis of basic pay of employees. Attrition rate taken same as Actuarial valuation report of gratuily Kability.

The Gempany has recognised the foliowing expenses as other long term employee benefit under the head “Contribution to Provident Fund
and Cther Funds"(net of racoveries).

(Rs. In Lakhs)
. For the year endad Forthe year ended
Parlicuiars 31st March, 2018 315t March, 2017
Leave Ecashment 73.05 47.55
Total 13.05 47.55

1

Foreign Gurrency fransactions relating to monetar
net gain of Rs.12.21 Lakhs (PY Rs. 21.64 takhs)

Note 44 : Disclosure As per Ind AS-21, The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Note 45 : Disclosure as Per Ind AS-24, Refaled Parly Disclosure
List of Reiated Parties

Associate Companles

Barbeque-Nation Hospitality Limited

Key Manzgement Personne|
Parent Company

Mr. Raoof Razak Dhanani

Mr. Kayurm Ohanani

Mrs. Suchitra Sajid Dhanani,
M. Sandesh Khandelwal

Mr. Amit Sarraf

Mr. TA. Unni

Mr. Abhay Chintaman Chaudhari
M., Pradeep Goyal

Mr. Sanjay Ahuja

y assets and ifabitities as at the year end translated as per accounting pelicy no, —, resulied in
which has bean acceunted under relevant heags in Statement of Profit and loss,

Managing Director
Director

Whole Time Directer
Chigf Financial Dfficer
Company Secretary
Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Nominee Director, TFCI
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Subsidiary Company
Aries Hotels Pyt Lty
- Kayum Razak Dhanani Dirscior
- Suchitra Bhanani. Director
- T Narayanan Unni Biractor
- Magscod Yusuf Merchant Director
Malwa Hospitality Pyt Ltg
Mrs Suchitra Sajic Dhanani Director
Mr. Racof Razak Dhanani Disector
Mr. Kayum Dhanani Directar
Mr. TN. Unni Cirector
Mr. Amit Sinha Director
Mr. Kunal Katoch Manager
Mr. Manish Kushwaha Manager
Mr. Ajay Gupta CFo
Sayaji Houss Keeping Services Lig
' - Kayum Razak Dhanani Birector
3 - Racof Razak Dhanani Diractgr
- Suchitra Dhanani Directpr

3 Enterprises where Key Management Persannel has contrgl fintarast
Parent Companies
$ § Management
S.N, Travels
Winner Hotels Pyt Ltd
Trans Agro india Pyt L1g
A.R. Hospitality Pyt i rg.
Yicon Imperial Pvt. Ltd.
Tungabhadra Fertilizer &Chemical Co. Ltd
Prinite Hospitality Pvt. 1.td.
Subsidiary Company
Aries Hotels Pyt Ltg
- Ahilya Hotels Pvt, i 1d,
- Taurus Qurium Impex (P} Ligd.
- Excellent Fstate Dev, (P) Ltd.
- Late Sajid R Dhanani
. Malwa Hospitality Pyl Ltg
i - M/s Tungabhadra furtilizer & chemicat Ltd
N - M/s Sayaji Housekeeping Services Limited
- M/s Liberty Restaarent Pyt i tg
4 Relatives of KMPs
Zuber Y Dhananj
Azher Y Dhanani
Saba R Dhanani
Sadiya R Dhanani
Sara K Dhanani
Sanya S Dhanani
Rizwan R Sheikh

ﬁ;sh_a Khandelw

[1ey]
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Sr.Na. Nature of Transaclions Fstzrs:hr: I;;: 82‘::8: F:i%fs'thr:layf;r, a;g’#

A KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
Remuneration/ Salary B5.64 79.41
Payable At The Year End 1.300.40 905.00
Payment OFf lnterest 96.43 336.28

B ASSOCIATE COMPANIES/ FIRMS/ RELATIVES
Lease Rent Expenses 510.24 -
Lease deposit 965.00 214.58
Guest pick up expenses - 39.00
Receivable at the year end 475.56 487,40
Payable at the year end 288.37 237.71
Reimbursement of expenses recefved 127.91 128.71
Payment of rovalty & service charge on liquor 136.14 197.56
Lease rent recaived 102.00 102.00
Payment of interest 15.3¢ 85.80
Investrents sold during the year - 0.39
Payment of professional fes 9,00 15.20

c COMPENSATION TO XMP
Short term employse henefits - -
Post employment Benefit -
Other Long term benefits - -
Termination Benefits - -
Sitting fees 1.40 2.24
Total 1.40 2.24

!
@}

(i)
(A)

©

Note 46: Mavement of provision as per Ind AS-37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assels

Parent Company

Contingent Liabilities not provided for

Guarantee given on behalf of ather companies Rs 673,60 Lakhs (PY Rs 6873.60 L akhs). This includes Guarantee given to State Bank of india
on Behalf of Barbeque-Nation Hospitality Ltd amounting Rs 4,000 Lakhs (P.Y 4000 Lakhs}.guarantee given to Axis Bank Lid on Behalf of Sana
Hospitality Services Pvt .Lid amounting to Rs 421.82 Lakhs (P.Y Rs 421.82 Lakhs}, guarantee given to State bank of India on Behalf of Matwa
Hospitality Pvt.Ltd amounting to Rs.2400 Lakhs {P.Y. 2400 Lakns} & HDFC Bank Ltd RS.51.78 Lakhs(P.Y. 51.78 Lakhs) Qutstanding balance of
foan there against for the year ended 31st March, 2018 from SBlis Rs.1925.33 Lakhs (P.Y 3046.12 Lakhs}) ,Axis Bank Ligt is Rs. 44.52 Lakhs
(FY 123.34 Lakhs) and from HDFC bank Ltd. RS 5.90 Lakhs (P.Y.20.30 Lakhs)

Disputed statutory liabilities in respact of service 1ax not provided lor:

inRespect of indore hotet, for the period from 01.03.05 10 31.03.09 the Hon'ble Tribunal has passed the order against the Company after giving
the benefit of abatement and waiver of penalty imposed in the order passed by Learnad Commigsioner. Tax demand of Rs 175,01 Lakhs i
pending as per the Tribunal's order Company has chalienged said order before Indore bench of Hon'ble High Court of MP and got interim stay of
the demand. Interest Fability will also arise in case of unfavorable decision. (P.Y. Rs.175.01 Lakhs)

In Respect of Indore hotel, for the period from 01.04.09 t031.03.11 the Gommissioner has passed the ordar against the Company without even
considering the benefit given by the Hon’ble Tribunal inits prior order, Tax demand of Rs. 400,37 Lakhs has been raised alongwith equal amonnt
of penaity. Company has challenged said order before Hon'ble Tribunal & Hon'ble Tribunal has disposed the appeal withoutgiving any reliel vide
order dated 15.02.2017. Company has chakienged said order bafore Indore bench of Hon'ble High Court of MP and got interim stay. Had the
benefit of abatement & waiver of penaity given hy the Hon'ble Tribunal in its prior order bean considered by the Learned GCommissionar, the
demand would have been reduced 1o Rs. 139.97 Lakhs. In‘erest Habitity will also anse in case of unfavorable decision. {P.Y.Rs.400.37 Lakhs}

In Respectof indore hotel for the period from 01.04.11 t0 30.06.12 the Commissionar fas passed the order against the Gompany without even
considering TMWBH by the Hon'ble Tribunal in their prior order. Tax demand of Rs 269,27 Lakhs has been raised along with egual

ziS iy,
ety

)
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amount of penaty Company had challenged said orger before Hon'ble Tribunal.& Hoivble Tribunal has disposed the appeal without giving any
relief vide ordsr dated 15.02,2017. Company has challenged said grder before Honourabie High Court oi M.P., Indore and gotinterim stay. Had
the benefit of ahatement & waiver of penalty given the Hon'ble Tribunat in their prior crder been considered by the Laarneqd Commissioner, the
demand would have been reduced to Rs, 127,98 Lakhs. Intesestliabifity wiff also arisein case of unfavorabledecision, (PY.Rs.268.27 Lakhs}

[n Respect of Pune hotel for the neriod from 01.04 09 to 30.06.12 Comnvissionear has passed an prger against the company and raiset! a tax
demand of Rs.39.27 takhs, company had filed an appeal before commissionar (Appeal). which is decided against the Company, Being

{E)  InRespect of Vadodarg hotel for the period from 01 04.12t0 31.03.201% Commissioner has passeq an order against1he Company and raised a
tax demand of Rs.2.02 Lakhs. Company had filed an appeal before Commissionar (Appeal), which is degided against company. Being
aggrieved, Campany has chailenged said order betore Hon'ble Tribunat and hearing is awaited. Interest fiability will also arise in case of
unfavorable decision.

{F}  InRespectof ndore hote, for the period from 01.04.10t031.03.15 1he Commissiongr hag passed the order against the Company and raised 2
tax demand of Rs.46.05 Lakhs, company had filet! an appeal before order against the Company and raiseq a tax demand of Rs.46.05 Lakhs,
company had fited an appeal before commissioner {Appealy, which is decideq against the Company. Being aggrieved, Company has preferred
anAppeal before the Hongurabte Tribunal, interest liability will also arise in Case of ifavourable decision,

(ifi)  Custom duties saved againstimports under EPCG stheme is Rs, 428.09 Lakhs{P.Y Rs 429 39 Lakhs}

(v} Disputed Hability of Rs 2.15 Lakhs (PY.5.75 Lakhs) not provided fos in respect of Ingome Tax TOS {AY 2003-10and 2010-14 }

(v} Disputed liability of Rs 1.09 Lakhs not provided for in respect of Income Tax (AY 2014-15) the matters are pending before CIT {Appeal) -
Vadodaraand amount paid there against.

{vi} Disputed liability of Rs 108,72 Lakhs hot provided for in respect of Commertial tax (FY2013-14 8 2014-15, 2015-1 B). The matters are pending
before Commissioner-Appea! Commercial tax Indore. {PY.Rs, 143.27 Lakhs)

{(vii} Disputed liability of Rs 81.76 Lakhs not provided tor in respect of Commercialtax (FY2010-1 1,2011-12 & 12-13). The matter is pending before
AppaaledTribunai—Commercfaltax JIndore. {P.Y.Rs. 11.47 Lakhs)

(viii} Disputed Nability ofRs, 10.91 Lakhs not provided for in respect of Commercial tax demand ofFY 241112

(ix) Disputed liability of As 46.39 Lakhs hot provided for in respect penalty of Property tax demand (FY2015-18, 201 6-17, 2017-18}. The
application is pending betare Mayor-in-Council indlore Municipal Corporation Indore. {RY.Rs.32.70}

x) Arearsof Commutative Dividend on Preference Shares & Income Tax Theregn, not paid during the Year R, 359.14Lakhs (P.Y,Rs. 238.78).

{xi) Inraspectofthe feasehold land of Indore hota], Company has received the orderon 20th Dec. 2017 for canceitation of lease. SHL has chalfenged
the said order dated 20th Dec, 2017 and filed writ before Indore high court. Stay has been granted by High Court .Matier is currently penring
belare High courtand next tate of hearing is 19th June 2018,

{xii)  The company has received a show cause notice for Imposing pemalty u/s 23F SCRA, 1956 from SEBI and the matier is pending for adjudication
with Adjudicating authority SFBI.

i Commitments
Estimated capitai commitments net provided for Rs. i {PY. Nif Lakhs }

Sobsidiary Company
Aries Hotels Pvt Ltd

i Cnnlingeml.iahﬂilv
Contingent liabilities not provided for a disputed Hability of Rs 32.23 lakhs rot provided for in respect of income Tax. The mattar is pending
before CIT, Baroda. (P Y. Rs. 32 23 Lakhs)

Note 47 : Earning in Foreign Currency : iRs. In Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 31st March, 2018 | Forthe year ended 31st March, 2017

Earning in Foreign Currency

CIF Value of Imports & Expenditure {an accruai hasis)

- Sale 0f Rooms of Food Beverages 778.36 918.93

- import Value of Capital Googs - -
~ Import Value of Non-Capital Goods 40.96 16.18
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Note 48 : First Time Acdopiion of Ind AS

These tinantial statements. for the year encled March 31, 2018, are the first annual Ind AS financiat statements, the Company has prepared in
accordance with Ind AS. For periods up to and including the vear ended March 31,2017, the Gompany prepared its financial statements in accerdance
with accounting standards notified under section 133 ot the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of tha Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 (Indian GAAP),

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financia! statements which comply with Ind AS applicable for periods ending on March 31, 2018, togetherwith
the comparative period data as at and for the yearended March 31, 2017, as described in the summary of significant accounting policies. In preparing
these financial statements, the Company’s opening balance sheet was prepared as at Agril 1, 2016, the Company's date of transition te Ind AS. This
note explains the principal adjustments made by the Conpany in restating its Indian GAAP financial statements, including the balance sheet as at Aprit
1,2018and the previously published tndian GAAP financial statements as at and for the year snded March 31,2017,

Exemptions appllied ;

Ind AS 101 “First-time Adoption of Indian Account ing Standards™ altows first-time adopter cerfain exernptions from the retrospective application of
certain requirements underind AS. The Company has applied the foifowing exemptions:

Ind A3 Dplinnal Exemptioas
1 Beemedcost

As per Ind AS 101, para DS, a first-time adopter to Ind ASs may elect elect to measure an item of property, plant and equipment at the date of
transition 1o Ind ASs at its fair value and use that fair value as its desmed cost at that date,

Accordingly, the Company has elected to meastire all of its property, plantand equipment and imangible assets at thelr fair values as on tie date of
transition,

Indt AS Mandatory Exemptions
1 Classifigation and measurement of financial assets

As perInd AS 101, para B8, a group s require to assess classification and measurentent of financial assets (investment in debt instruments} on
the basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS.

2 Derecognition of linancial assets andfinancial liabilities

AsperInd AS 101, para B2, afirst-time adopter shall apply the derecognition requirements in Ind AS 1 09 prospectively for transactions occurring
on or after the date of transitionto Ind ASs.

3 Estimates

Anentity's estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same date in
accordance with previous GAAP unless there is abjective evidence that those estimates were in efror Ind AS estimates as at April 1, 2016 and
March 31, 2017 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in the conformity with previous GAAP . The Cornpany made estimates
for the following in acoordance with Ind AS at the date oftransition as these were not required under previous GAAP

1. Impairment of financial assets based o Expected Credit Loss mode

The estimates used by the Company to present these smounts in accordance with Ind AS reffect conditiens at April 1, 2016, the date of transition
toind AS and as of March 31, 2017,
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Effec of Ind AS adoption on the standalone haiange sheet as al 31s March, 2017 and 1st &pril, 2016

(Rs. In Lakhs

As at 31t March, 2017 As at 1st April, 2016
PARTICULARS e { PO nionto| 5 e | Prodous | EIRl ] s ering
Ind AS Sheet fnd AS Shest

RSSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment e 17.444.80 (211.90) 17,232.90 15,326.97 (180.94) 15,146.03
Capital work-in-progress [ 854.26 {846.70) 7.56 4.163.09 | (B44.29) 3.318.80
Intangible assats $.65 0.0 6.66 10.79 {0.01) 10.80
Goodwill on consolidation 28.44 (28.44) - 28.44 (28.44) -
Investment in Associate 2,342.27 4,679.54 7,021.81 1.849.74 | 421484 6.064.58
Financial Assets - -
(i}  Investments j 117.41 (6.49) 110.92 117.80 (6.49) 111.31
(i} Trade Receivables - - - -
(ii) Loans ak 171506 | (1.278.11) 436.95 1,512.73 } (1,118.70} 394,03
(iv) Other Financial Assets 80.73 116 91.89 5.26 0.00 6.26
Deferred Tax assets (net) h 1,660.43 {625.32) 1,035.11 1,382.32 {485.76) 896.56
Other non-current assets 1.78 1,056.74 1,058.53 871.00 - 871.00
Total Non-Carrent Assels 24,261.84 274049 | 27,002.33 | 24,398.14 | 2,421.23 26,819.37
Current Assets
tnventories 1,568.88 B 1,568.88 1.609.43 - 1.609.43
Financial Assets . - - -
{i}  Investments - - - - B -
(i} Trade Receivables 681.42 . 681.42 950.40 - 950.40
('iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 1.466.74 - 1,466.74 617.37 {522.10) 95.27
(iv) Bank balances other than

(iii) above 2843 0.34 28.83 - 522.63 522.63
{v) Loans 11447 98.48 212.95 103.84 103.84
(vi) Other Financial Assets 177.44 33.37 210.82 643.55 820.61 1.464.16
Current Tax Assets (net) 5761 - 5761 10.81 10.81
QOther current assets a.d 5,488.83 {5,219.52) 1.269.31 1,238.54 {751.52) 487,02
Total Gurrent Assels 10,583.88 | (5,087.35) 5,496.56 5,059.29 184.28 5,243.57
Telal Assets 34,845.72 | (2,346.83) | 32,498.89 29.457.43 | 2,605.51 32,062.94

[
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Effact of Ind AS adoption on ke standaione balance sheet as at 31st March, 2017 and 1st April, 2018 {Rs. In Lakhs)

As al 3151 March, 2017 As al st April, 2D16
Effect o1 As pering Effect of As per ind

PARTICULARS Nate P:;e:;t::s transition to | AS Balance Pmpus traesition to | AS Balance
Ind AS Sheet Ind AS Sheet

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQuiTY
(@)  Equity Share Capitat f 2,751.80 (1.600.00) 1.751.80 2,751.80 } (1 300,00} 1,751.80
(6)  Other Equity f 8,464.95 274993 | 11214.92 834367 | 2584.80 10,928.47
Talal Equity atiribatahle tg owners
of the parenl 11,216.79 1,749.93 | 12,066.72 11,095.47 | 1,584.80 12,680.27
g} Non-controlling interest 885.74 (432.25) 453.48 938.98 {428.53) 510.45
Total Equity 12,102.53 1,317.67 | 13,420.20 12,034.45 | 1,156.27 13,190.72
LIABILITIES - -

Non-Currsnt Liahilitias

Financial Liabilities - - . - - -

(i}  Borrowings ¢ f 8.419.07 152247 9,941.54 4.574.36 1,389.15 5,983.51
{ii)  Trade Payables - - - °

(i)  Cther Financial Liabilities b 2,100.44 (16.12) 2,(84.32 2,083.99 (4.40) 2,079.59
Provisions 565.83 0.01 565.84 499.22 - 439,22

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) - . - - -

Deferred Revenye 681.50 {45.48) 636.04 -
Tetal Non-curtent Liahilities 11,766.34 1.460.90 ; 13,227.74 7,152.87 | 1,384.75 8.542.32
Current Liabilities - -

Financial Liabijities -

(7} Borrowings 1,544.45 S| 154445 ] 431715 - 431715
{ii) Trade Payables 885.20 (19.34) 865.85 |  1,200.88 - 1,200.88
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities c.de 755746 | (5.259.34) | 220812 403333 (450.76) 3,582.57
Othar Current Liabilities d 479.90 149.92 629.82 -| 51266 512.66
Provisions 509.34 1.49 510,83 71406 | (272.55) 44151
Current Tax Liabilities {Net) . 1.87 1.87 -1 o513 275.13
Total Current Liabilities 10.976.35 | (5125.40) | 5.850.95 | 10.255.42 64.48 | 10,329.00
Total Equity and Liabililies 34.895.12 | (2,46.84) | 32,498.80 | 29,457.44 | 2.605.50 32,062.94
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i Reconcilialion of total comprehensive Income for the year ending 315t March, 2017

(Rs. In Lakhs)

For the ended 31st March, 2017

won | o [ a0 T e
Ind AS Sheet
Income
l. Revenue from Operations 17.931.40 (40.04} 17,891.36
1. Other lncome a,b 248.82 (54.51) 154.31
ll. Total Revenue 18,180.22 (134.55) | 18,045.67
IV. Expenses:
Food and Beverages Consumed 3,987.94 - 3,987.94
Employee Benefits Expenses o 442177 20.50 4,448 37
Finance Costs b.c.d ef 1.829.71 90.41 1,920.12
Depreciation And Amortization Expenses 8 2.528.96 30.95 255891
Operating Expenses 4,230,91 - 4,230.91
Other Expenses al 1,796.42 2.02 1,798.44
Total Expenses 18,801.71 143.98 18,545.60
V. Profit before tax (HI-1V) (621.49) (278.53) (900.02)
Share of Profit/ (Loss) of associate 513.54 35.61 549.15
Profit Before Tax (107.95) | (242.92) {350.87)
VI. Tax Expense
{1} Current tax 52.12 12.21 64.33
(2)  Deferred Tax h (278.11) 139.75 (138.36)
(3)  Tax Adjustment of Earfier Year 28.95 - 28.96
{197.03) 151.96 (45.07)
Vil Profit After Tax (V-VI) 89.08 (394.88) {305.30)
Viil. Other Comprehensive Income
A.  llems that will not be reclassified fo profit or loss - 20.60 20.60
income tax refating to items that will not be reclassified 1o profit or loss g - (7.00) (7.00)
B.  Hems that will be reclassified 1o peefit or loss {D.56) (0.56)
Income tax selating 1o items that will be reclassified 1o profit or loss - 0.19 0.19
Total Comprehensive income for the year (IX+X)(Comprising Profit fiLoss) and
Other Comprehensive lncome for the year) before share of associate 85.08 (381.85) (292.57)
Share of Profit/ (Loss) of associate - {7.19) (7.19)
Total Other Comprehensive Incoms Year 09.08 {388.84) {299.76)

o]
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Reconciiiation of Equity as at 31st March 2017 and 1st Apsid, 2016 (Rs. In Lakhs)
PARTICULARS Note 31st March, 2017 | 31si March, 2016
Total Equity as par Previous GAAP 11,216.79 11,095.47
Add/{Less): Adjustments as per Ind AS
Amortisation of Life Membership fees {40.04)
impairment of Goodwill {28.44) (28.44)
Change in Value Of associate 4,754.93 4,214.84
Deferred Tax Impact on endistributed profits (635.08) {543.35)
Tax Impact on dividend and dividend {75.39) -
Lease rent recognised over period of lease a (31.37) (25.38)
Interest Income recognised on EIR Basis a 3.46 1.89
Lease income recognised on Security Deposit b 6.53 1.97
Interest Expense recognised on EIR Basis b {3.37)
Amortization of transaction cost on borrowings based on EIR c 100.21 11.56
Amartization of Leasehold Land e (228.68) {197.73})
Finance cost on Preference share f (356.89) (184.90)
Finance Lease Adjustment e (3.23) {2.82)
Liavility Portion of preference share transferred to Borrowings t (1,248.34) (1.248.34)
Fair Valuation of Derivatives d 0.56 {0.15)
Fair Valuation of investments j {3.40} {3.40)
ECL Recognised K (26.94) (28.94)
Changes in cash flow hedge reserve d {6.37)
Deferred Tax impact h 13.20 58.15
Deemed Cost as Fair value f {442.15) (442.15)
Impairment of CWIP f (1.26)
Total Equity as per Ind AS 12,966.72 12,680.27
Reconciliation of Total Comprehensive income as 21 3151 March 2017 (Rs. In Lakhs)
PARTICULARS Note 31st March, 2017
Profit{(Loss) after tax as per Previous GAAP 89.08
Add/(Less): Adjustment of
Amortisation of Life Membership fees (40.04)
Dividend removed (94.66)
Deferred Tax Impact on undistributed profils {95.73}
Tax Impact on dividend {(19.27)
Increse in profit of associate 35.61
Lease rent recognised over period of lease a {5.99)
Interest Income rscognised on EIR Basis a 1.57
Lease income recognised on Security Beposit b 4,95
Interest Expense recognised on EIR Basis b (3.37)
Amortization of fransaction cost on borrowings based en EIR c 88.65
Amortization of Leasehold Land ¢ (30.95)
Finance cost on Preference share f (171.99)
Finance Lease Adjustment ] [0.41)
Fair Valuation of Derivatives d 0.71
Deemed Cost as Fair value h {44.99)
Acturial Gain/(fess) on defined benefit plans {netof tax) g (13.60}
Expense on CWIP | (2.43)
Other adjustments {2.57)
Pvefit/(Loss) alter fax as per ind AS {305.80)
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Reconcillation of Total Comprehensive Income as at 31st March 2017 (Rs. In Lakbs)
PARTICULARS Nole 31s1 March, 2017

Other Comprehensive Income

Acturial Gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans g 20.60

income Tax on above (7.00

Cash Flow Hedge Reserve d {0.56)

income Tax on above 0.19

Shaie in other Comprahensive Inceme of 0CI {7.19)
Total Comprehensive income as per Ind AS {299.75)
3 Reconcitiation of Statement of Cask Flows for year ended 31st March 2017 (Rs. Ir Laidhs)

PARTICULARS Previcus GAAP Adjustments ind AS

Net cast flow from Operating activities 3,545.38 251,06 3,786.44
Net cash flow from investing activities {696.99) 138.52 {558.47)
Net cash flow from financing activitieg {1.870.53) 208.50 {1,761.03)
Cash and cash equivalents as at J1st March 2015 877.35 2,076.08 1,476.94
Net increasef{decrease} in the cash and cash equivalenis 1.495.23 (1.893.77) (398.54)
Cash and cash aquivalents a5 at 31st Maich 2017 2,373.09 182.29 1,078.4p
Kotes onfirsttime adoption

@  Refundabie Interest Free Securily Deposit {Asset)

value and the transaction value of these security deposits has been recognised as prepaid rent, Subsequently, thege lease Security deposits ofarg
measured at amordised cost using the effective interest rate {‘EIR’). Accordingly, Prepaid Lease Charges of Rs. 374.95 Lakhs has been recognised
in ather Noa-Current Assets and Rs. 9.17 Lakhs bean recognised in Gurreni Assets and Sacurity Deposit has been shown atamount of Rs, 12.58
Lakiis as on 1st April, 2016, Lease charges of Rs. 9,17 Lakis has been charged to Statement of Profit & Loss and Rs. 1.62 Lakhts has been
credited to Statement of Profit & Loss asinterestincome in year 2015-17.

b Retundable Interest Free Security Deposit (Liability)

Under the previous GAAP, interest free leage security depgsiis (those are felundable on completion for the lease term) and other deposits were
recorded at transactional values. Under ind AS, these security depusits are recognised initigily at the fair valye. The difference between the fair
valug and the transaction valug of these security deposits has been recognised as prepaid rent, Subsequently, these jease security deposils are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate {‘EIR’). Accordingly, Prepaid Lease Income of Rs. 22,01 Lakhs has been 16COgnised in
other Non-Current Liabifity and Rs. 4.55 Lakhs bean recognised in Gurrent Liability and Security Depasit has been shown at amount of Rs.48.63
Lakhs ason 1stApril, 2016. Lease income of Rs. 4,55 Lakhs has been credited to Statement of Profit & Loss and Rs.3.37 Lakhs has been charged
to Statement of Profit & Loss as interest expense in year 2016-17.

¢ Transaction Coston Borruwings

Under Indian GAAP, transaction Costs incurred in connection with borrowings are charged upfront to Statement of Profit and Loss for the
period/year. Under ind AS, transaction COSts are inciuded in the initial recognition amount of financial fiabiiity and charged to Staternent of Profit
and Loss using effective interest method. This has resulted in decrease in borrowings with Rs. 119.10 Lakhs as on 31st March, 2017 and Finance
costior the year 2016-17 has increased by amount Rs., 8.30 Lakhs.
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Fair Valuation of Derivative Contract

Rs.0.71 Lakns,
Land Leass - Finance Lease

Under previous GAAP, igasehold land was capitalised at an amount equal fo the upfront Payments made at the time of jease. However, under ind
AS, such leases are capitalised at the present vafue of the total minimum tease Payments 10 be paid over the lease term. Accordingly, total lease
payments are now being recognized as "Finance L page Obligation at their present value. The effect of the adjustment has resulted in increase in
non current financial liabilities by Rs. 17.23 Lakhs. cument financial fiabilities by Rs. 1.89 L akhs towards finance lease obligations, PPE by Rs.
16.78 lakhs, Accumulated Ammeortisation by Rs. 197,73 lakhs and net reduction in retained earnings by As. 200.56 Lakhs as at 1st Aprit 2015,
During FY 2016-1 7. there was reduction in hon current financial Nabilitieg by Rs. 1.95 Lakhs towards linance fease obligations and decrease of fis,
30.96 fakhs in PPE towards ammortisation.

Preference Shares

Under Previous GAAP preference shares were classified as Equity and were shown under shareholders’ Fung. As per Ind AS 32-Financial
Instruments: Presentation, every financial Instrument is required to ba classitied as equity or liability or compoung financial instrument, i it has
baih liability or equity component, characteristic of everyinsirument. The company has classified these preference shares as compoung financial
instrument as they are with uncertainty of payment of dividend. Equity Component has been shown in Other Equity and Liabiiity portion has been
shown in Non-current Borrowing and is meaured at amortised cost, Finance cost is tharged on the liability component on the basis of Effective
Interest Rate (‘EIR’). This has resulted in recognition of ‘Equity Gomponent of Compound Financiat Instrument' in other Equity by Rs. 251,65 lakhs
and Rs, 1433.24 4akhs been recognised has been recognised as Liability. The liability component is increased by finance cost which is charged as
per {EiR) and accordingly retainad earning as on 1st April. 2018 has decreaseq by Rs.184.90 fakhs and Finance cost for the year 2016-17 has
increased by Rs,171.99 lakhs,

Aclurial Gainor Loss on Detined Benefit Plan

Both under Indian GAAP ang Ind AS, the Company recognized cosis relatedto postemployment dafined benefit pian on an actuarial basis. Under
Indian GAAP, the entire costs, including actuarial ains and fosses are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss. Under Ind AS, remeasurements
{comprising of aciuaria) gains or losses, the effoct of the asset ceiling, excluting amounts included in net interest g the net defined benafit
liability and the return on planassets excluding amounts included in Netinterest on the et definen benefit iability) are fecognized immediately in
the balance sheet with 3 coiTesponding debit or credit to refained earnings through Other Comprehensive Income. Thus, the employee benefit

cost is increased by Rs. 13.60 lakhs and remeasurement gain or foss on defined benefit plan has been recognized in the other comprehensive

Deferred Tax

Indian GAAP requires deferred fax accounting using the income statement approach, which facuses on differences between taxable profits and
accounting profits for the period, Ind AS 12-Income Taxss requires entities 1o account for deferred taxes using the balance shestapproach, which
focuses on temporary differences between the cartying amount of asset or liability in the balance sheet and its corresponding tax base, The
application of ind AS 12 approach has resulted in recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differences which was not required under indian
GAAP.

component of aquity.

Accordingly, deferred tax asséts as on 31st march, 2017 hag decreased by Rs. 32.92 lakhs with Corresponding increase in deferred tax expense
for the year then endeq,
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i Going Concern Assumplion

generate cash inflows from operations and raise cash from financing activities so that it wourld beahie to meet its obligations on due dates asithas
dermonstrated inearlier years. On these considerations, these financial statements areprepared on a going congern basis.

I FairValuation of nvestments

Under previous GAAP the company accounted for long term investments in unquoted equity shares as investment measured at cost less
provision for other than temporary diminution in the value of investments,

Underind-AS, the Company has designated unquoted investments as FVTPL investments. Ind-AS requires FYTPL investments o be measured at
fair value. The resulting fair value changes in these investments have been recognised in Refained earnings as at the date of iransition and
subsequentlyin PRL.

This has resulted in decrease in fetained earnings by Rs, 6.49 kakhs with corrgsponding decrease in value of financial assets -invesiments ag at the
date of transition.

k  Expecied Crodli Loss

ECL has been recognised on Loans and advances as on the date of transition. This has resulted in decrease in reatinsd earnngs by Rs. 51.45
Lakhsand corresponding decrease in loans and advances

! CapHalwerkinprogress

Ontransition the company has taken the deered cost of its PPE a5 tarrying amount less impairment ioss as on that date. Due to which the value of
CWIP has decreased by Rs. 442 15 lakhts whici hag been transfeed to Retaingd Earnings.

The Company has the capitalisation of Rs.2.42 Lakhs has been ransferred to P&L of 31 March, 2017

m  Other Equlty
Retained earnings as at 1 April 2016 has been adjusted consequentto the above Ind AStransition agjustments.
Refer ‘Reconciliation of totatequ ity as at 31 March 2017 and 1 Aorit 2015' as given above far details.

&t Other Comprehensiva Income

Under previous GAAP the Company has not presented other comprehensive income {0C!) separately. Iterns that have been reclassitied from
staterment of profit and foss to gther Comprehensive income includes remeasurement of defined benafit plans and fair vaiise gainvioss on FYTOC)
equity instruments, Hence, previous GAAP profitorfoss is reconciled o total comprehensive income as per Ind AS.
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Nute 49 : Disclosure as per ind AS-108, Operating Segment

The Company's only busingss being hoteliering, disclosure of segment-wise information is not applicable under Ind AS108 - ‘Operating
Segment’ (Ind AS-108) notifizd by the Com panies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and subsequent amendments thereto,

fnfermation about major customers

No single customer contributes more than 10% or more of the Company’s total revenue for the years ended March 31, 2017 and March 31,
2016.

Note 5B: Disclosure as per Ind AS-107, Finaneiaj instruments

A) Financial Risk Management

The Company’s principal financial ligbilities comprise Borrowings, trade payables and other payables. The main purpose of these
financial fiabfities is o finance the Com pany’s operatiens. The Gompany's principal financial assets nclude trade & other receivables,
loangiven, cash & cash Equivatent, Investrent, deposits and derivative that derive di rectly from its operations.

The Company’s Financial Risk Management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Company's
financial risk management is set by the Managing Board.

Gompany is exposed 1o following risk from the usa of its financial instrument:
- Credit Risk
- Liguidity Risk
- Market Risk
Gredit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Comgany if a customer or coumerparty to a financial instrument fails to mest its contract ual
obligations resufling in a financial loss to the Company. Credit risk arises principally from trade raceivables, loans & advances, cash & cash
gquivalents and deposits with banks and financial institilions.

Trade Receivable

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject 1o the Company’s established policy, procedures and control rglating to
customer credit risk management. Trade receivadles are non-interest hearing and are generally on 7 days to 45 days credit term. Credit limits
are established for all customers based on internaf rati ng criteria. Cutstanding customer receivabies are reqularly monitored. The Company has
neconcentration of ¢redit risk as the customes base is widely distriouted both economicatly and geographicaily,

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a large number of minor
receivables are grouped inte homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The calculation is based on actual incurred
historical data. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each ciass of financiaf assats. The Company
does not hold cotlateral as security, The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect ta trade receivables as low. The requirement
ofimpairment is analysed as each reporting date.

Other Financial Instruments and Cash & Cash Equivalents

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the
Company’s policy. Invesiments of strplus funds are made onty with approved counterparties who meels the minimum threshold requiremsnts
under the counterparty risk assessment process. The Company monitors the ratings, credit spreacs and financial strength of its countesparties.
Based on its on~going assessment of counterparty risk, the group adjusts its exposure to variaus cointerparties. The Company's maximum
exposure to credi risk for the components of the Balance sheet as of March sk, 2018, March 31st, 2017 & Aprit 1st, 2016 is te carrying
amountas disclosed in Note except for financ.al guarantees. The Company’s maximum exposure for financial guarantee is given in Note 46,
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{) Carrying amount of maximum credit risk as on teporling dale (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st Maich, 2013 As at 315t Mareh, 2017 As at st April, 2016
Financial assets for which loss allowance is
measured using 12 month Expecied Credit
Loss (EGL)
Non-current Investment 110.92 110.92 111.31
Mon-current Loans 905.45 436.95 394.03
Other Non-Current Financial Assets 9360 91.89 6.26
Cash & Cash Equivalent 1,359.42 1,466.74 95,27
Bank baiances other than ¢ash and cash equivalents 3.52 28.83 52263
Current Loans 30148 21295 103.84
Other Current Financial Assets 319.16 210.82 146417
Total 3,098.55 2,559.1C 2,697.51
Financial assets for which less allowance is
measured using Lifetime Expected Credil
Loss (ECL)
investment in Associates 8779.27 7.021.81 £,084.58
Trade Receivables 984.51 68142 950.40
Total 9,763.78 7,703.23 7,014.88
(lii} Ageing of trade receivables
The Ageing of trade receivables is as below : (Rs. In Lakhs)
0-180days | 181-365days | 1-2 years 2-5 years
Ageinp Noi Bue past due past due nast due past due Tetal
Gress Carrying amount as en 31.03.2018 267.68 600.83 60.77 20.35 58.10 1016.73
impainment loss recognised on above - - - - 32.22 (32.22)
Gross Carrying amount as an 31.03.2017 226.10 300.48 83.83 13.93 57.08 681.42
impairment loss recegnised on above - - - . - .
Gross Carrying amount as on 01.04.2016 480.53 386.81 16.27 1517 5161 850,40
Impaisment loss recognised e above - - - . - .

(i)  Provision for Expscted Credit or Loss

(a}  Financial assets for which loss aliowance is measured using 12 month expected credil fosses,

The Gompany has assets where the eounter-parties have sufficient capacity to meet the obligations and where the risk of defaukt is

veiy low. Accordingly, no loss allowance for impairment has been regognised.
()  Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using life time expecled credit losses

The Company provides loss allowance on trade receivables using life time expecied credit loss and as per simplified approach,

{iv) Reconciliation of impairment loss provisions
The movement in the allewance for impairment in respect of financial assets during the year was as follows: {Rs. In Lakhs)
Trade Loans and
Parliculars Recelvablas Advances advances Tota)

Halance as ai April 1, 2016 - - 51.45 51.45
lmpairment ioss recognised - 1.72 1.72
Amounts written ofi - - -
Balarce as at March 31, 2017 - 1.72 51.45 53.17
Impairment loss recognised 3245 - 32.45
Amounts written off 0.02 - 0.02
Balance as al Mareh 31, 2018 32.43 1.72 §1.45 85.60

)
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Liquidity Risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will enceunter difficulty in mesting the obligations associated with its financial liabifities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient fiquidity to rmeet its liabilities when due, under both normal and siressed conditions, without incurring enacceptable losses or risking
damage to the Gompany's reputation.

The tatrle below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's linancial liakilities based on contractual undiscounted paymenis:

{As. In Lakhs)
Particulars On Demand | Within tyear | t-2years | 2-5years “5‘"’ than Total
years

Yoear ended March 31st, 2018

Term Loans™ 1.895.24 1.823.00 4,690.18 893.92 $,302.34
{ther Payables - - - 2,000.00 - 2,000.90
Trade Payables 1.176.48 71.08 - - - 1,247.56
Cash credit 258.14 - - - . 258.14
Other Borrowings 22.00 1.154.10 400.00 1,797.85 3,373.95
Finance Lease Payable - 195 1.95 5.86 10.23 19.99
Other Financial Liabilities# 13.73 183.08 - - - 196.81
Total 1,470.35 3,305.45 2,224.95 6,695.04 2,702.00 16,388.79
Year ended March 31st, 2017

Term Lpans* . 1,713.34 1481.61 4293.7% 2,688.00 10,176.74
Other Borrowings 22.00 - - - - 22.00
Loan fram others - 25.00 - - - 25.08
Trade Payables 779.41 86.45 - - - 886.86
Cash credit 377.54 - - - - 377.54
Other Payables 1,119.9 - 2,000.00 1.605.23 4,725.14
Finance Lsase Payable 1.95 1.95 5486 9.77 19.53
Other Financial Liabilities# 11.60 431,68 - - - 443.23
Tolal 1,190.55 3,378.33 1,483.56 5,289.65 4,303.00 16,674.43
Year endert April 151, 2015

Term Loans® 3,051.96 1,065.37 1.480.8% 1,897.66 1,535.79
Other Borrowings 22 22.00
1oan from others 80.00 86.00
Trade Payables 1,131.67 69.21 - - - 1,200.88
Cash credit 490.67 490.57
Other Pyables 3724.48 2,000.00 1,433.24 7,152.72
Finance Lease Payable 1.95 195 5.86 9.36 19.12
Other Financial Liabilities# 3.51 557.91 561.42
Total 1,647.85 7.525.52 1,067.32 3,486.66 3,348.26 17,967.60

* Includes contractual interest payment based on interest rate prevaiting at the end of the reporting period overthe tenarofthe borrowings.
# Current maturities of long-term horrowings is included in interest bearing borrowing partin abave note.
Overdraftor other on demand lean facility, if any available with the Company is disclosed, to the extent undrawn in note no. 39.

Marked Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the Company's income. The objective
of market risk management is to manage and control markst risk 8xp osures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

The Board of Directors is respansible for setting up of policies and procedures to manage market risks of the Company. All such transactions are
carried out within the guidefines set by the risk management commitiee.

W omma N
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Foreign Cerresncy Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value orfuture cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Company is exposed to foreign currency risk on certain transactions that are derominated in a currency ather than entity's functional currency, hence
exposure toexchange rate fluctuations arises. The risk is that the functionat currency value ofcash flows witl vary as a resuit of movements inexchange
rates. The comapany uses forward contracts o hedge its exposure fremforeign currency fluctuations.

The currency profike of financial assets and tinancial liabikities are as below . (Rs. in Lakhs}

31st March, 2018 3tst Mareh, 2N7 18! April, 2016
Particulars
st usp UsD
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 3,840.54 3,755.53 3,27049
Derivative Liability 20.51 259.89 19.69

Foreign Currency Rale Sensitivity Analysis

(Rs. In Lakhs}

Impacl on profit atter 1ax for the year ended

31st March, 2013 1st April, 2017
Decrease inrale by 1%
increase in profit 38.62 40.15
Ingrease in rale by 1%
Decrease in profit 38.62 40.15

IntasastRisk

Interest rate risk arises from the sensitivity of tinancial assets and fiabilities to changes in market rates of interest, The Company is exposed to interest
rate Hisk arising mainly from tong term borrowings with floating interest rates. The Company i5 exposed to interast rate sisk because the cash flows

associated with fluating rate horrowings will fluctuate with ¢hanges in interest rales.

Atthe reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company's interest-hearing financial instruments is as follows:

{Rs. In Lakhs]

Particulars As at 31st March, 2018 As at 31st March, 2017 As at 1st April, 2016
Financia] Assets
Fixed Rate
Loans 0.86 1.24 0.46
Security Deposit 524.19 55.51 12.58
Bank Deposit 102.12 120.72 528.89
Total §27.17 177.47 541.93
Financial Liabilities
Fixed Rate
Working capitat loans 25814 37754 490.67
Unsecured Loans 3.351.95 2,856.43 §,211.56
Sub-Tetal (1) 3,610.09 3,234.02 5,702.23
Variable Rate inskumsenis
Term Loans 9,001.84 8,784.11 7.282.88
Sub-Total {i) 9,001.84 9,784.11 7,282.88
Totak (i) « (i) 12,611.93 13,018.13 12,985.11

—
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NOTES TO CONSGLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TH

Interest rate sensitivity

The following tabie de monstrates th
all other variables hetd constant, the

e sensitivityto a reasonabiy possibfe chan
Company’s profit before taxis atfected th

ge in interest rates on that pertion of foans and borrowirngs atfected. With
rough the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

E YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018

{Rs. In Lakhs)

Effect of Profit or Loss
Particulars
50 bp increase 90 bp decrease
31st March 2918
Financial Liabitities {(4.50) 4.50
{4.50) 4.50

315t March 2017
Financial Liabilities {4.89) 4.89

(4.89) 4,839

Note 51 : Capital Risk Management
For ihe purpose of the Cam
holders of the Gempany, Th

shares. The Company monitors capi

pany’s capital management, capital includes i
€ primary objective of the Co.
healthy capital ratios in orderto supportits business and
The Company manages its capital structure and makes
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Co
agearing ratio, which is net debt divided b

mpany
fal using

maximise s hareholder value.
adjustments to it in light of chan,
may adjust the dividend payment

Ssued equity capital and all other eqjuity
mpany’s capital management is 1o ensuse that it mainfain

9es in economic conditions or its business equirements, To
to shareholders, return capita to shareholders or issus new
y total equity. The Company inciudes within net debt, interest

reserves attribitable 1o the equity
S an efticient capital structure and

bearing loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 3tst Marehy, 2018 31st March, 2017 st April, 2016
Gross Debt 12,611.93 13,018.13 12,985.11
Less : Cash and cash equivafents 1.359.42 1,466.74 85.27
Nei Debl (A) 11,252 .51 11,551.39 12,889.84
Total Equity (B) 14,802.89 13.420.21 13,190.73
Gearing Ratio (A/B) 0.76 0.86 0.98
Financial Instruments By Category {Rs. Ie Lakhs)

As At March 81, 2018
Particulars :
FVTPL FVT0CI Amortized cosi
Flnancial Assets :
investment
- Equity fnstrument (unguoted) 110,92
Loans - - 1,206.93
Trade Receivabies - - 984,51
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 1,359.42
Other Bank Balance - - 3.52
Other financial assets 437,76
Total Financial Assets 110.92 . 3,972.14
Financial Liability :
Borrowings - - 11,793.01
Derivative Liability 2091 - -
Trade Payable - - 1,247.56
Other Financial Liabilities - - 3.403.75
Total Financiaf Liability 20.91 - 16,444,32
Py P
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(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particalars As At March 31, 2017

FYTPL FVTOC) Amortized £os)
Financial Assets ;
invastment
- Equity Instrument {unquoted) 110.92
Loans - - 649,89
Trade Receivables B . 681.42
Cash and Cash Equivalents - 1,466.74
Other Bank Balance - 28.83
Other financial assets - - 302.71
Total Financial Assats 116.92 - 3,129.59
Financial Liability :
Borrowings B 11,747 38
Derivative Liability 259.89 - -
Trade Payable . - 885.20
Other Fnancial Liabilities . - 3,848.76
Total Financial Liability 259.89 - 16,481.34

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particutars As At March 31, 2016

FYTPL FVTOC! Amortized cost
Financial Assets :
invesiment
- Equity Instrument (unguoted) 111.31 - -
Loans - 497.85
Trade Receivables - . 950.40
Cash and Gash Equivalents - . 85.28
Other Bank Balance . 52263
Other financial assets - 1,486.71
Tetal Financial Assets 111.31 - 3,522.87
Financial Liability:
Borrowings - 10.479.83
Derivative Liability 19.69 - -
Trade Payahia - - 1,200.98
Other Financial Liabilities - - 5,304.63
Total Financial Liability 19.69 - 16,985.35

05
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018

Note 53 : Disclosure as perind AS-113, Fair Value Measurement

Fair Value Hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments thatare :
{a} recognised and measured at fair valug and

{b} measured at amortised cost and for whicl fair values are disclosed in financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the
inputs used in determining fair value, the Gompany has classified its financial instruments into three levels prescribed under the accounting
standard, An explanation of each leved follows underneath the fable:

As al 31st Mareh 2018
Finarcial Instrument measured at Fair Value - recurring fair value measurement {Rs. In Lakhs}
Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
investment
- Equity Instrument (unquoted} - - 110.92 110.32
Financial Liabilities
Derivatives . 20.91 . 20.51
Total - 20.9 110.92 131.83
As at 31st Masch 2017
Financial Inslrament measured at Fair Valae - recurring fair value measurement (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Levei1 Level 2 Levsi 3 Tetal
Financial Assels
Investment
- Equity Enstrument (unguoted) ) - 110.92 110.92
financial Liabilities
Derivatives - 258.89 - 259.89
Total - 259.89 110.92 370.81
As at 15t April 2016
Financial instrument measured al Fair Value - recurring lair vakus measurement (Rs. In Lakhs}
Particulars tevel 1 Levei 2 Level 3 Totat
Financial Asseis
Investment
- Equity Instrument (unguoted)} - - 111.31 111.31
Financial Liabilities
Derivatives - 19.68 - 19.69
Total - 19.69 111.31 131.00

(A} Specificvaluationtechnigue is used to daiermine the fair value of the financial instruments which include:
i) For investments in Equity Investments- Quotad Market prices are used and and for unquoted Equity instruments best possible inputs are
taken to identify the fair vatue.
ii} For financial fiabilities {vendor Jiabilities, domestic currency loans) :- appropriate market borrowing rate of the entity as of each balance shest
dale used.
iif) Forfinanciatassets (employee loans) : appropriate market rate otthe entity as of each balance sheei date used.

)
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_ NDTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018

{B) The financial instrumenis are categorized into ditferant levels based on the inputs used to aerive al fair vatue measurements as described

Includes financial instruments measured using guoted prices in an active market. This included Jisted equity instruments, traded
Level 1 debentures and mutoal funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments {including dehentu res) which are
traded in the stock exchangss is valued using the closing price as at thereporting period. The mytuat funds are vaiyed using the
closing NAV.

Levei 2

Leve!3

{C) Inferieveltransfers:
There are no transfers between leveis 1and 2 as aiso between levels 2and 3 during the year.

(D) Fairvalugol tirancial assets and labilities measured atamortised cost {Rs. in Lakhs)
. As at 31 March 2018
Particufars -
Levef Carrying Value Fair Value
financial Assets
Trade Receivables 3 984 51 984.51
Cash and Cash Equivaients 3 1,359.42 1.359.42
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 3 3.82 3.52
Loan 3 1.206.93 1,206.93
Security deposit 3 523.92 523.92
Other Financial Assets 3 39779 397.79
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 3 11,793.01 11,793.01
rade Payabies 3 1,247 56 1,247.56
Other Financial Liabilities 3 3,403.75 3.403.75
{Rs. In Lakhs)
) As at 31 March 2017

Paricutars Level Carrying Valye Fair Value
Financial Asseis
Tratle Receivables 3 681.42 881.42
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 1,466.74 1,466.74
Bank balances other than tash and cash equivalents 3 2883 28.83
Loan 3 649.89 543.89
Security deposit 3 55.27 §5.27
Other Financial Assets 3 247 44 247.44
Financiai Liabilities
Borrawings 3 11,747.38 11,747 38
Trade Payables 3 885.20 885.20
Other Financial Liabfiities 3 3,848.76 3.848.76




SAYAJI HOTELS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED FIN. ANCIAL STATEMENT

210
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{Rs. In Lakhs)
As at 31 March 2016
Particulars ~
Levei Carrying Yalue Fair Yalue
Flnancral Assets
Trade Receivables 3 950 40 950.40
Cash and Cash Equivaients 3 95.28 85.28
Bank balances other than cash and ¢ash equivalerts 3 522.63 522.63
Loan 3 497.85 497 .85
Security deposit 3 12.33 12.38
Other Financiat Assets 3 5.292.26 5,292.26
Financial Liabiiities
Bomowings 3 10,475.83 10,479,83
Trade Payabies 3 1,200.88 1.200.88
Other Financial £ iabilities 3 5,304.63 5.304.63
Nafe54: The Company as reclassifled pravious year figuresto conform a this year classification
Significani Accaunting Pelicies ang other Noies
These notes form an integraf part of 1hese financial statements
in Terms of our Report Attached .
For and on behaif of the Board of Directors
For K.L.¥yas & Campany
Chartered Accountants T.% Unni Raoof Razak Dhanani
Firm Regn. No. 003285¢ Director Managing Director
K.L.Wyas DIN-G0079237 DIN-00174654
Partner
M.No. 072043 Sandesh Khandshyai Amit Sarrat
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

indora, 30" May 2018
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SAYAJI HOTELS LIMITED
Form No. MGT-11

Proxy form
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies {Managerment and Administration) Rules, 20t4]
CIN: L51100GJ1982PLCO05131

Name of the Company: Sayaji Hote!ls limited
Registered office:F1 C2 Sivavel Apartment,2 Alagappa Nagar,Zamin Pallavaram,Chennai, Tamil Nadu- 600117

MName of the Membai(s):
Registered address:
E-mail Id:

Folio Nof Client id:

BP ID:

I/ We being the Member(s) of . holding shares of the above named company, hereby appoint

1. Name: 3. Name:
Address: Address:
£-mail iD; E-mail 1D:
Signature , o faifing him Signature

2. Name:
Address:
E—mail ID:
Signature , or failing him
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T & my/our proxy to attend and vole (on a poll) for mefus and on my/our behalf at 35th Annual General Meeting of members of
L the Company, to be held onFriday, 28th day of September 2018at 11.00 a.m. at the venue situated at Re-Gala Party Hall,
5 113/4, 200 Feet Road, Zamin Pallavaram, Chennai Tamil Nadu - 6001 17, and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such
—  resolutions as are indicated below:
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Resolution No.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION :
1. (a) Consideration and Adoption of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year endedon 31st
March,2018 and reports of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.
(b) Consideration and Adoption of Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended on 31st March,2018 and
reporton Auditors thereon.
2. Appointment of director in place of Mr. Raoof Razak Dhanani (DIN- 00174654), who retires by rotation and, being
eligible, seeks re-appaintment.
3. Appoiniment of Mfs K. L. Vyas & Co.. Chartered Accountants (Firm Regn. No. 003289C) as statutory auditors of the
Company for & second term of 5 years and to fix their remuneration.
SPECIAL BUSINESS :
4. Re-appointmentof Mr. Raoof Razak Dhanani (DiN- 00174654) as the Managing Director of the Company.
5. Re-appointmentof Mr. T. N. Unni as an Independent Director for Second Term of § years and continuance of his tenure
after attaining the Age of 75 years.
6. Re-appointment of Mr. Pradeep Goyal as an independent Director for Second Term of 5 years,

Signed this ............ccecvevvirnnn.. 4BV OF L. 2018 Affix 1 Rs.

Revenue

Signature of shareholder

Stamp

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the
Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.
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